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;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8, kGw|f}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷@)*@

8]6dlnl LgkDs t'Bjlnh g]hGf;
SANJEN JALAVIDHYUT COMPANY Ltd.

t]x|f}F, rf}wf}F / kGw|f}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL ;"rgf 

o; sDkgLsf] ldlt @)*@÷(÷^ df a;]sf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ##!cf}+ a}7ssf] lg0f{o cg';f/ o; sDkgLsf] t]x|f}F, rf}wf}F / kGw|f}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef 
lgDg ldlt, ;do / :yfgdf a;L lgDg ljifox? pk/ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o ug]{ ePsf] xF'bf ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?sf] hfgsf/Lsf] nflu of] ;"rgf k|sflzt 
ul/Psf] 5 .

;ef x'g] ldlt, ;do / :yfg 
ldlt	 M @)*@ ;fn kf}if @( ut] d+unjf/ -tb\cg';f/ O{=;+= @)@^ hgj/L !#_ 
;do	 M ljxfg !)M)) ah] 
:yfg	 M s'G8lnlg b/jf/ AofSj]6, r08f]n, sf7df8f}+]df ;~rfng x'g]5 .

;fwf/0f ;efdf 5nkmn ul/g] ljifox?sf] ;'rL
sDkgLsf] t]x|f}+ -cf=j= @)&(÷)*)_, rf}wf}+ -cf=j= @)*)÷)*!_ / kGw|f}+ -cf=j= @)*!÷)*@_ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf lgDg laifox?df 5nkmn tyf 
lg0f{o ul/g]5M 
!=	 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cWoIfHo"af6 cf=j= @)&(÷)*), cf= j= @)*)÷)*! / cf= j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bgsf] k|:t'lt / ;f] 

pk/ 5nkmn u/L kfl/t ug]{ .
@=	 n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg ;lxt cf=j= @)&(÷)*), cf=j= @)*)÷)*! / cf= j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] cfiff9d;fGt;Ddsf] ljlQo ljj/0fx? -jf;nft, 

cfo ljj/0f, gub k|jfx ljj/0f tyf ;DjlGwt cg';"rLx?_ pk/ 5nkmn u/L kfl/t ug]{ . 
#=	 sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt @)*) df3 @ df a;]sf] @&#cf} j}7ssf] lg0f{o cg';f/ sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf !!# df ePsf] Aoj:yf 

cg'?k sDkgL /lhi6«f/ sfof{nosf] ldlt @)*)÷!)÷)( sf] :jLs[lt cg';f/ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] l;kmfl/;df n]vfkl/Ifs >L ;'/]G› axfb'/ s]=;L= 
rf6{8 PsfpG6]G6nfO{ cf=j= @)*)÷)*! sf] nflu a}wflgs n]vfk/LIfs lgo'Qm u/L d"No clej[l4 s/jfx]s ?=!,(%,))).– -cIf/]kL Ps nfv 
kGrfgJj] xhf/ dfq_ n]vfk/LIf0f z'Ns lgwf{/0f u/L n]vfk/LIf0f u/fOPsf]n] ;f]sf] cg'df]bg ug]{ ;DjGwdf .

$=	 sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt @)*! d+l;/ @# df a;]sf] #)@cf} a}7ssf] lg0f{o cg';f/ sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf !!# df ePsf] Joj:yf 
cg'?k >L dxfn]vf kl/Ifssf] sfof{noaf6 k|fKt ldlt @)*@ a}zfv @% sf] :jLs[tL / n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] l;kmfl/; cg';f/ n]vfkl/Ifs >L 
;'/]G› axfb'/ s]=;L= ,rf6{8 PsfpG6]G6nfO{ cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] nflu a}wflgs n]vfk/LIfs lgo'Qm u/L d"No clej[l4 s/jfx]s ?=!,(%,))).– 
-cIf/]kL Ps nfv kGrfgJj] xhf/ dfq_ n]vfk/LIf0f z'Ns lgwf{/0f u/L n]vfk/LIf0f u/fOPsf]n] ;f]sf] cg'df]bg ug]{ ;DjGwdf .

%=	 cf=j= @)*@÷)*# sf] lx;fa lstfa n]vfkl/If0f ug{ n]vfkl/Ifssf] lgo'QmL ug]{ ;DaGwdf sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ldlt @)*@ d+l;/ @^ df 
a;]sf] #@( cf} j}7ssf] lg0f{o tyf sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf !!# df ePsf] Joj:yf cg'?k k/fdz{sf nflu >L dxfn]vf kl/Ifssf] sfof{nodf 
cg'/f]w ul/Psf]df xfn;Dd pQm sfof{nosf] :jLs[tL k|fKt geO{ ;s]sf]n] kl5 ;f] sfof{nosf] /fo k/fdz{ k|fKt ePkl5 ;f]xL jdf]lhd x'g] u/L cf=j= 
@)*@÷)*# sf] n]vfkl/Ifs lgo'lQmsf] nflu n]vfkl/If0f ;ldltsf] l;kmfl/; eO{ ;~rfns ;ldltaf6 a}wflgs n]vfkl/Ifs lgo'Qm ug{ / d'No 
clej[l4 s/ jfx]s ?=!,(%,))).– - Ps nfv kGrfgJj] xhf/ dfq_ n]vfkl/If0f z'Ns lgwf{/0f ug{ :jLs[tL lbg] ;DaGwdf .

^=	 ljz]if k|:tfj M
	 – sDkgLsf] lgodfjnLsf] lgod @ / @&-@_ df ;+zf]wg ug]{ ;DjGwdf .
&=	  ljljw .

;~rfns ;ldltsf] cf1fn]
sDkgL ;lrj
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;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8, kGw|f}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷@)*@

;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL cGo hfgsf/L

!_	 o; ;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8sf] ldlt @)*@÷)(÷@( ut] x'g] t]x|f}F, rf}wf}F, kGw|f}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef k|of]hgsf nflu ldlt @)*@÷)
(÷@) ut] -Ps lbg_ z]o/ btf{ k'l:tsf aGb /xg] Aoxf]/f ;DjlGwt ;j}df hfgsf/Lsf] nflu cg'/f]w 5 . g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh lnld6]8df ldlt 
@)*@÷)(÷!* ut];Dd sf/f]af/ eO{ k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd o; sDkgLsf ;]o/ /lhi6«f/ >L ;g/fOh Soflk6n lnld6]8,sdnkf]v/L , sf7df8f+}df 
k|fKt ;]o/ bflvn vf/]hsf] cfwf/df z]o/wgL btf{ lstfadf sfod /x]sf z]o/wgLx?n] ;f] ;efdf efu lng, 5nkmn ug{ tyf dtbfg ug{ kfpg] 
Aoxf]/f klg hfgsf/Lsf] nflu cg'/f]w 5 .

@_	 ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng] k|of]hgsf nflu z]o/wgL xflh/L k'l:tsf ( jh] b]lv v'nf /xg]5 .
#_	 sDkgLsf] z]o/wgL btf{ lstfadf gfd btf{ ePsf z]o/wgLx?n] cfkm} jf k|ltlglw dfkm{t ;efdf efu lng, 5nkmn ug{ / dtbfg ug{ ;Sg]5 . 

gfafns z]o/wgLx?sf] tkm{af6 gfafnssf] ;+/Ifs jf lghn] lgo'Qm u/]sf] k|ltlglwn] ;efdf efu lng, 5nkmn ug{ / dtbfg ug{ ;Sg]5g\ . 
z]o/wgLx?sf] btf{ lstfadf ;+/Ifssf] ?kdf gfd n]lvPsf] JolQmnfO{ dfq ;+/Ifs dflgg]5 . 

$_	 ;+o"Qm?kdf Pshgf eGbf a9L JolQmsf] gfddf z]o/ lnPsf]df To:tf] ;fem]bf/x?åf/f dgf]lgt ul/Psf] ;fem]bf/n] jf lghx?n] dgf]lgt u/]sf] 
k|ltlglwn] / ;f] adf]lhd s'g} ;fem]bf/ dgf]lgt x'g g;s]sf]df z]o/wgLx?sf] btf{ lstfadf h;sf] gfd klxn] pNn]v ePsf] 5 ;f]xL JolQmn] lbPsf] 
dt jf k|ltlglwkq dfq ;b/ x'g]5 .

%_	 ;efdf efu lng, 5nkmn ug{ / dtbfg ug{sf] nflu k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ug{ rfxg] z]o/wgLn] sDkgLsf] csf]{ s'g} z]o/wgLnfO{ dfq k|ltlglw lgo'Qm 
ug{ ;Sg'x'g]5 . 

^_	 k|ltlglw lgo'Qm x'g] z]o/wgLn] ;ef z'? x'g' eGbf &@ 306f cufj} k|ltlglwkq o; sDkgLsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ ;g/fOh Soflk6n ln=, gSzfn, 
sf7df8f}+df a'emfO{ ;Sg'kg]{5 . 

&_	 k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/L ;f]sf] nflu k|ltlglwkq o; ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ ;g/fOh Soflk6n ln=, sdnkf]v/L, sf7df8f}+df a'emfO{ ;s]kl5 k|ltlglw 
ab/ u/L csf]{ k|ltlglw lbg rfx]df ;f] sf] ;"rgf ;ef z'? x'g eGbf @$ 306f cufj} o; ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ ;g/fOh Soflk6n ln=, sdnkf]v/L 
, sf7df8f}+df lbg' kg]{5 . gofF k|ltlglwsf] xsdf dfly j'Fbf g+= % / ^ df pNn]v eP adf]lhd x'g]5 .

*_	 Ps} z]o/wgLn] Ps eGbf a9L k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]sf] cj:yfdf j'Fbf g+= & adf]lhd ab/ ul/Psf]df afx]s To:tf] ;a} k|ltlglw ab/ x'g]5 . 
(_	 k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ug]{ z]o/wgLn] s'g} sf/0fjz To:tf] k|ltlglw ab/ u/L cfkm} ;efdf ;xefuL eO{ ;efdf efu lng, 5nkmn ug{ / dtbfg ug{ rfx]df 

;f]sf] lnlvt ;"rgf ;ef z'? x'g' eGbf @$ 306f cufj} o; ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ ;g/fOh Soflk6n ln=, sdnkf]v/L, sf7df8f}+df a'emfO{ 
;Sg'kg]{5 .

!)_	 ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DjlGw cGo hfgsf/Lsf nflu sDkgLsf] j]j;fO6 www.sjcl.com.np df x]g{ ;lsg]5 . 
!!_	 ljljw zLif{s cGtu{t k|:tfj /fVg rfxg] z]o/wgLn] cfkm"n] k|:tfj /fVg rfx]sf] laifo af/] ;ef x'g'eGbf & lbg cufj} sDkgLsf] w'Djf/fxL, 

sf7df8f+} l:yt s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf hfgsf/L lbg'kg]{5 . To;/L hfgsf/L glbPsf] ljifo pk/ 5nkmn ug{ ;lsg] 5}g . 

b|i6JoM	jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ;"rgf ;lxtsf] 5nkmnsf] ljifo ;"rL o; sDkgLsf] j]a;fO6 www.sjcl.com.np df klg /flvPsf] x'Fbf ToxfFaf6 
;d]t x]g{ ;lsg] Joxf]/f hfgsf/L u/fpFb5f}+ .
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;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8, kGw|f}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷@)*@

   
k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ug]{ kmf/d -k|f]S;L_

======================================= lhNnf =============================== g=kf=÷uf=kf= j8f g+= ============== a:g] 
d÷xfdL To; sDkgLsf] z]o/wgLsf] x}l;otn] ldlt =========================== sf lbg x'g] ================== jflif{s ;fwf/0f 
;efdf :jo+ pkl:yt eO{ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{odf ;xefuL x'g g;Sg] ePsfn] pQm ;efdf efu lng tyf dtbfg ug{sf nflu d]/f] 
÷xfd|f] k|ltlglwTj u/L efu lng =============================== lhNnf= ============================== g=kf=÷uf=kf= a:g] To; sDkgLsf 
z]o/wgL >L====================================================== z]o/wgL g+============================================nfO{ d]/f]÷xfd|f] 
k|ltlglw dgf]gog u/L k7fPsf] 5'÷5f}F .

k|ltlglw x'g]sf]
;xLM

gfdM

z]o/wgL g+=÷aLcf]cfO8L g+=	

z]o/ ;+VofM

ldltM

k|j]z–kq

sDkgLsf] ldlt @)*@ ;fn kf}if @( ut] d+unaf/ -@)@^ hgj/L !#_ sf lbg x'g] t]x|f}F, rf}wf}F / kGw|f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng  
of] k|j]z–kq hf/L ul/Psf] 5 . 

z]o/wgLsf] gfd M

z]o/wgL g+=÷aLcf]cfO8L g+=	

z]o/wgLsf] ;+s]t g+=M 

z]o/ ;+Vof M

sDkgL ;lrj

k|ltlglw lgo'Qm ug]{sf]
;xLM

gfdM

z]o/wgL g+=÷aLcf]cfO8L g+=	

z]o/ ;+VofM

ldltM
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;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8, kGw|f}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷@)*@

;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 kGw|f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf cWoIfåf/f k|:t't
cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg .

cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?,
o; sDkgLsf] kG„f}+ aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf d ;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8sf] tkm{af6 ;fwf/0f ;efdf ;xefuL z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, g]kfn 
lwtf]kq jf]8{ sDkgL, /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh lnld6]8, 
ljleGg ;+3;:yfx?af6 efu lng'x'g] k|d'v tyf k|ltlglwx?, n]vfkl/Ifs 
sDkgLsf sd{rf/Lx? nufot ;Dk"0f{ JolQmTjx?df ;~rfns ;ldltsf] 
cWoIfsf] x}l;otn] / d]/f] JolQmut tkm{jf6 oxfFx?nfO{ xflb{s :jfut ug{ 
rfxG5' . 

o; ul/dfdo ;efdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ 
df ;Dkfbg ul/Psf d'Vo d'Vo lqmofsnfkx?sf] ljj/0f ;lxtsf] jflif{s 
k|ltj]bg / ;f]xL cjlwsf] n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf ljlQo ljj/0fx? k|:t't 
ug]{ cg'dlt rfxG5' . ;fy} o; sDkgLsf] cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] k|ult 
ljj/0fx? klg ;+lIfKt ?kdf oxfFx? ;dIf k|:t't ug{ rfxG5' .

g]kfn ;/sf/af6 3f]lift hgtfsf] hnljB't sfo{qmddf ;dfj]z ePsf 
sDkgLn] lgdf{0f ul//x]sf] ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf -!$=* 
d]= jf=_ lgdf{0f ;DkGg eO{ ldlt @)*) c;f]h @! b]lv g} Jofkfl/s ljB't 
pTkfbg eO{ j}slNks k|zf/0f nfO{g dfkm{t l;ldt dfqfdf ljB't vl/b–
ljqmL ;Demf}tfsf] Take and Pay zt{ cg';f/ g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0fnfO{ 
ljB't ljqmL eO{/x]sf]df g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0faf6 lrlnd]– lqz'nL @@) 
s]= le= k|zf/0f nfO{g lgdf{0f ;DkGg ePkl5 ldlt @)*! d+l;/ @$ ut] 
b]lvk"0f{ pTkfbg Ifdtf cg';f/ g} pTkfbg eO{ ljB't k|jfx eO{/x]sf] 5 .

lgdf{0f ;DkGg ug{ lgs} r'gf}ltk"0f{ /x]sf] lgdf{0f ;DkGg x'g afFsL ;fGh]g 
hnljB't cfof]hgf -$@=% d]= jf=_ ;d]t ;~rfns ;ldlt, Joj:yfkg 
tyf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx?sf] cys k|of;af6 lrlnd]– lqz'nL @@) s]= le= 
k|zf/0fnfO{g lgdf{0f ;DkGg x'gf;fy ;Dk"0f{ kl/If0f k'/f u/L ldlt @)*! k'if 
! ut] b]lv Joj;flos ?kdf g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0fnfO{ ljB't ljqmL z'? 
ul/;lsPsf] 5 . o; ;'vb cj;/df d ;a} z]o/wgL dxfg'efjnfO{ xflb{s 
jwfO{ lbg rfxG5' .

sf]le8–!( sf] sf/0f nfdf] ;do;Dd ePsf] aGbfaGbLn] dflg;x¿sf] 
cfjt hfjt tyf d]zLg pks/0fx?sf] 9'jfgLdf ePsf] cj/f]wn] tf]lsPsf] 
;dodf d]lzg pks/0fx¿ 9'jfgL u/L kfj/xfp;df h8fg ug{ l9nfO ePsf] 

sf/0f cfof]hgfsf] lgdf{0f sfo{ ;DkGg x'g lgwf{l/t ;do eGbf s]xL l9nfO{ 
x'g uPsf] Joxf]/f hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' . o2lk ;f] laifd kl/l:ytdf ;d]t 
lgdf{0f ;DkGg u/fpg sDkgL cys ?kdf nflu k/]sfn] sDkgL cfh of] 
Joj;flos pTkfbgsf] l:yltdf k'u]sf] ;d]t hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' .

!= cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] sf/f]jf/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg
cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df sDkgLsf] s]G›Lo sfof{no tyf b'j} hnljB't 
cfof]hgfdf ? %) s/f]8 !* nfv *& xhf/ -x|f; / k"FhLs[t Aofh afx]s_ 
s'n vr{ ePsf] 5 . ;f] dWo] s]G›Lo sfof{no tyf cfof]hgfx?sf] sd{rf/L 
Pj+ k|zf;lso vr{ ?=@) s/f]8 @! nfv $! xhf/ -Jofh afx]s_ / 
k'FhLuttkm{ -lgdf{0f sfo{ k|ult tyf l:y/ ;DklQ_ s]G›Lo sfof{no / b'j} 
cfof]hgfx?df hDdf ?= @( s/f]8 (& nfv $^ xhf/ vr{ ePsf] 5 . 
cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] cfDbfgL / vr{sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f o;} ;fy ;+nUg 
n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf ljlQo ljj/0faf6 cjut x'g] g} 5 .

sDkgL cGtu{t ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf -!$=% d]= jf=_ 
af6 @)*) cflZjg @! ut] b]lv Jofkfl/s pTkfbg ePsf] ePtfklg 
j}slNks k|zf/0f nfO{gaf6 ;d]t Take and Pay sf] cfwf/df @)*! d+l;/ 
;Dd ljB't ljqmL ug{' k/]sf] sf/0f cf=j= @)*!÷*@ cfiff9 d;fGt;Dd 
lgwf{l/t eGbf s]lx sd ljB't ljlqmaf6 ? #) s/f]8 !# nfv ! xhf/ 
ljqmL cfDbfgL ePsf] 5 . ldlt @)*! kf}if ! ut] b]lv ;fGh]g hnljB't 
cfof]hgf -$@=% d]= jf=_ sf] ;d]t Jofkfl/s pTkfbg ePsf]n] @)*!÷*@ 
cfiff9 d;fGt;Dd pQm cfof]hgfaf6 ? %& s/f]8 &! nfv %# xhf/ 
;fy} sDkgLsf] s]lx /sd a}+sdf df}Hbftsf] ¿kdf /xFbf k|fKt x'g cfPsf] 
Jofh ?= !$ nfv @* xhf/, tyf ljleGg 7]s]bf/x?n] k|of]u u/]sf] x]eL 
O{So'kd]06 ef8f / cGo cfDbfgL afkt ? #) nfv !^ xhf/ ;d]t u/L ? ** 
s/f]8 @* nfv (( xhf/ cfDbfgL ePsf] 5 . pQm b'j} cfof]hgfx? ;DkGg 
ePsfn] ;~rfns ;ldltsf] lg0f{o cg';f/ ;~rfng ;Def/ cg'udg tyf 
k|zf;lso ;xhtfsf nflu cfof]hgfx?nfO{ ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't 
s]G› -!$=* d] jf_ / ;fGh]g hnljB't s]G› -$@=% d] jf_ sf ?kdf 
kl/0ft ul/Psf 5g\ .

cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] cfDbfgL tyf vr{sf] ;+lIfKt ljj/0f lgDgfg';f/ 
tflnsf ! df k|:t't ul/Psf] 5M
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tflnsf !M cfDbfgL / vr{ tkm{ 
-?= xhf/df_

ljj/0f cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ cf=j= @)*)÷)*! yk÷36
s'n cfDbfgL **,@(,)) @),^!,&% ^&,^&,@%
;~rfng ;+ef/ vr{ -!,!^,!*,#(_ -#^,)&,^$_ -*),!),&%_
;~rfngaf6 gfkmf / gf]S;fg -@&,*(,#(_ -!%,$%,*(_ -!@,$#,%)_
z]o/ lgisfzg vr{ – –
ut jif{;Ddsf] ;l~rt gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_ -#(,%*,$(_ -@$,)&,#)_ -!%,%!,!(_
ljut jif{sf] gfkmf÷ gf]S;fg ;dfof]hg – -%#)_ %#)

s"n ;l~rt gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_ -^&,$&,**_ -#(,%*,$(_ -@&,*(,#(_

;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] Jofkfl/s pTkfbg ut cf=j=df g} eO{;s]sf] tyf ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] Jofkfl/s pTkfbg ldlt @)*! 
kf}if ! ut] df ePsf]n] ut cf=j= sf] t'ngfdf o; cf=j= df ljB't ljqmL cfDbfgL pNn]Vo ¿kn] j[l4 x'g uPsf] 5 . 

ut cf=j= @)*).*! df ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf k"FhLs/0f eO{;s]sf]n] cfof]hgf nufgL tyf sfo{ k|ult vr{nfO{ l:y/ ;DklQdf 
;fl/Psf]n] l:y/ ;DklQsf] x|f; vr{ Pj+ To;}u/L ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] -$@=% d] jf_ ldlt @)*! k'if ! b]lv Jofkfl/s pTkfbg ePsf]n] 
cfof]hgf nufgL tyf sfo{ k|ult vr{nfO{ l:y/ ;DklQdf ;fl/Psf]n] @)*@ cfiff9 d;fGt;Dddf ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf -$@=% d]= jf=_ sf] 
x|f;vr{, ;~rfng ;+ef/ vr{ tyf sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]ifsf] Jofh e'QmfgLnfO{ ;d]t k|zf;lgs vr{df /flvPsf]n] ;~rfng ;Def/ vr{df ;d]t pNn]Vo 
?kn] j[l4 ePsf] 5 .

tflnsf @M cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] ;DklQ tyf bfloTjsf] ljj/0f
-?= xhf/df_

ljj/0f @)*@ cfiff9 #@ @)*! cfiff9 #!
z]o/ k"FhL #,^%,)),)) #,^%,)),))
rfn' bfloTj (!,(&,() #(,!),%(
dWod tyf bL3{sflng C0f (,#%,*@,($ (,@@,^$,!&
s'n ;l~rt gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_ -^&,$&,**_ -#(,%*,$(_

hDdf k"FhL tyf bfloTj !#,@%,#@,(^ !@,*&,!^,@&
l:y/ ;DklQ tyf cfof]hgf sfo{ k|ult !@,^&,^!,#* !@,%#,^!,*(
rfn" ;DklQ %&,&!,%* ##,%$,#*

hDdf ;DklQ !#,@%,#@,(^ !@,*&,!^,@&

s'n ;l~rt gf]S;fgLdf pNn]Vo j[l4 x'gdf s]lG›o sfof{no, ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf -!$=* d]= jf=_ tyf @)*! kf}ifaf6 ;fGh]g 
hnljB't cfof]hgf -$@=% d] jf_ sf] ;~rfng ;+ef/ vr{ tyf sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]ifsf] Jofh e'QmfgLnfO{ ;d]t k|zf;lgs vr{ tyf l:y/ ;DklQsf] 
x|f; vr{sf] sf/0f k|d'v /x]sf 5g\ . ut cf=j=sf] t'ngfdf o; cf=j df ljB't ljlqm jfkt g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f nufot 7]s]bf/x?af6 k|fKt ug{ afFsL 
/sdsf lx;fan] rfn' ;DklQdf j[l4 ePsf] 5 . sDkgLsf] cNksflng ljleGg k"lhFut tyf k|zf;lgs vr{ e'QmfgLsf] nflu >L lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8 / >L g]kfn O{Ge]i6d]G6 d]uf a}+s lnld6]8af6 cNksflng C0f lnO{Psf] sf/0fn] rfn' bfloTjdf ;d]t j[l4 ePsf] 5 . sDkgL ;DalGwt cGo 
lj:t[t ljlQo ljj/0f oxfFx?nfO{ pknAw u/fO{Psf] jflif{s k|ltj]bgaf6 cjut x'g] g} 5 .

@= sDkgLsf] z]o/ k"FhL / z]o/ ;+/rgf
sDkgLsf] clws[t z]o/ k"FhL ? # cj{ &% s/f]8 /x]sf] 5 eg] hf/L k"FhL ? # cj{ ̂ % s/f]8 /x]sf] 5 . sDkgLsf] lgwf{l/t z]o/ ;+/rgf adf]lhd ztk|ltzt 
z]o/ hf/L e} ;Dk'0f{ /sd ;+sng e};s]sf] 5 . sDkgLsf] k"FhL ;+/rgf lgDgfg';f/sf] rf6{df b]vfOPsf] 5M
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#= cfof]hgfx?sf] cg'dflgt nfut, k"FhLs[t ljj/0f / nufgLsf] Joj:yf
g]kfn ;DkGg ePsf] ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf -!$=* d]= 
jf=_sf] kl/dflh{t nfut cg'dfg ?=$ cj{ #& s/f]8 $^ nfv &% xhf/ 
-lgdf{0f cjlwsf] Aofh ;lxt_ / ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf -$@=% 
d]=jf=_sf] kl/dflh{t nfut cg'dfg ?=& cj{ &! s/f]8 & nfv &# xhf/ 
-lgdf{0f cjlwsf] Aofh;lxt_ u/L hDdf ?=!@ cj{ * s/f]8 %$ nfv $* 
xhf/ x'g] cg'dfg ul/Psf] lyof] . 

cfof]hgf ;DkGg ePkZrft\ k"hLs/0f ug]{ qmddf ;DklQsf] nfut jlu{s/0f 
ubf{ ;~rfng ;ldltsf] lg0f{o adf]lhd ljleGg nfut zLif{sx?nfO{ 
;d'xLs[t u/L k"FhLs/0f ljj/0f tof/ u/L ;dfof]hg ul/Psf] 5 . ;f] cg';f/ 
;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf -!$=* d]= jf=_sf] k"FhLs[t ;DklQ 
?=# cj{ @^ s/f]8 (* nfv ^$ xhf/ -lgdf{0f cjlwsf] Aofh ;lxt_ 
/x]sf] 5 . ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf -$@=% d]=jf=_sf] k"FhLs[t ;DklQ 
?=( cj{ %^ s/f]8 &@ nfv &* xhf/ -lgdf{0f cjlwsf] Aofh;lxt_ u/L 
s'n ?=!@ cj{ *# s/f]8 &!nfv $@ xhf/ z'? k"FhLs[t ;DklQ sfod 
ePsf] 5 .

pQm k"FhLs[t ;Dklt /sddf k/fdz{bftfsf] clGtd sfo{;DkGg k|ltj]bgsf 
-Final Statement_ cfwf/df 7]s]bf/x?;Fu ljleGg lsl;dsf lng'kg]{ 
/ lbg'kg]{ /sdx? / lghx?sf] bfjLx?sf ;DaGwdf cflj{6«]zg k|lqmofdf 
/x]sf]n] kl5 7x/ ePjdf]lhd ;dfof]lht ;Dklt k"FhLs/0f ul/g]5 .

o;} u/L cfof]hgf lgdf{0fsf] qmddf @)&@ ;fnsf] ljgfzsf/L e'sDk, 
g]kfn–ef/tsf] ;Ldfdf b]lvPsf] cj/f]w, l8hfO{g kl/jt{g / sf]le8 
!( nufotsf sf/0fn] cfof]hgfsf] lgdf{0f calw yk x'Fb} hfFbf lab]zL 
ljlgdo b/df ePsf] kl/jt{g, d"No ;dfof]hg, ylkb} uPsf] k|zf;lgs 
vr{, k/fdz{bftfsf] vr{, lgdf{0f cjlwsf] Aofhsf sf/0f cfof]hgfx?sf] 
nfut a9\g uPsf] b]lvPsf] 5 . o;/L a9\g hfg] nfutnfO{ Joj:yfkg ug]{ 
of]hgf :j¿k sd{rf/L ;+rosf]if;Fu klxnf]k6s ldlt @)&& >fj0f !$ 
ut] yk ?= (% s/f]8sf nflu k'/s C0f ;Demf}tf ul/Psf] lyof] . ljljw 
sf/0fn] cfof]hgfsf] lgdf{0f cjlw nlDjb} uPsf] x'Fbf yk ljQ Joj:yfkg 
ug{'k/]sf]n] ldlt @)*) cfiff9 !! df sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]if;Fu bf];|f] k6s 
yk ? ! cj{ !) s/f]8sf nflu C0f ;Demf}tf ;DkGg eO{ ljQ Aoj:yfkg 
ul/Psf] lyof] . t/ pQm C0f ;Demf}tf jdf]lhdsf] /sd ? %* s/f]8 && 
nfv kl/rfng gu/L t'ngfTds?kdf cGo sd Jofhb/sf C0f kl/rfng 
u/L Joj:yfkg ul/Psf] lyof] .

sDkgLsf] ljlQo cfjZostf Joj:yfkg ug{ cf= j= @)*!.)*@ df 
>L lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8;Fu k6s k6s u/L ? #% s/f]8 
cNksflng ;fkl6 lnO{ cNksflng >f]t kl/rfng ul/Psf] 5 . ;f]lx 
jdf]lhd yk ljlQo cfjZostf Joj:yfkg ug{ g]kfn O{Ge]i6d]G6 d]uf a}+s 
lnld6]8af6 cNksflng C0f ? !& s/f]8 lnO{Psf]df o; k|ltj]bg tof/ 
ubf{sf] ;do;Dddf pQm C0f /sd k'0f{ ?kdf r'Qmf u/L ;lsPsf] 5 eg] 
lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8af6 lnO{Psf] C0f /sd ? ^* s/f]8 
cNksflng C0f bfloTjsf] ?kdf jf;nftdf b]vfO{Psf] 5 . cNksflng 
C0f /sdsf] Jofh eg] q}dfl;s ?kdf e'QmfgL x'Fb} cfPsf] 5 . pQm C0f 
/sd ;d]t e'QmfgL ub}{ hfg] of]hgf /x]sf] 5 .

o;/L cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] kf}if d;fGt;Dd sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]ifaf6 ¿= 
% ca{ * s/f]8 #( nfv ## xhf/ ;fFjf / ;f]lx cjlwdf Jofh k"Flhs/0f 
ul/Psf] /sd ¿= $ cj{ #@ s/f]8 &% nfv !* xhf/ ;d]t ¿= ( cj{ $! 
s/f]8 !$ nfv %! xhf/ s'n C0f ;fFjf /sd sfod ePsf] 5 . o; cf= 
j = @)*!÷)*@ sf] cfiff9d;fGt ;Dddf s'n ? ^( s/f]8 %^ nfv $( 
xhf/ C0fbftf >L sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]ifnfO{ C0f e'QmfgL ul/Psf] 5 . pQm 
/sddf ;fFjf ? #) s/f]8 (* nfv @% xhf/ / Jofh #* s/f]8 %* nfv 
@$ xhf/ /x]sf] 5 . ;fFjf /sd e'QmfgL kl5 jfFls C0f /sd ? ( cj{ !) 
s/f]8 !^ nfv @^ xhf/ nfO{ jf;nftdf lb3{sflng C0f zLif{sdf k|:t't 
ul/Psf] 5 . 

cfof]hgf lgdf{0fsf nflu to ePsf] ljQ Joj:yfkg of]hgf cg';f/ shf{ 
:jk"hL cg'kft %)M %) k|ltzt /x]sf]df sfj'jflx/sf] kl/l:ylt ;[hgf eO{ 
cfof]hgf tf]lsPsf] ;dodf ;DkGg x'g g;Sbf d'VotM cfof]hgf lgdf{0f 
cjlwsf] Jofh, ljb]zL d'›fsf] ljlgdob/ nufotsf vr{x? pNn]vgLo 
?kdf a9\g uO{ cfof]hgf nfut a9\g uPsf] / xfn sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]if;Fu 
ePsf] C0f ;Demf}tf / cfof]hgfsf] k"FhLs[t C0f /sdsf] cfwf/df s'n 
bL3{sflng C0f / O{lSjl6sf] cg'kft &@M @* sfod ePsf] 5 .

$= cfof]hgfdf ePsf] nufgL
;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ cfof]hgf -!$=* d]=jf=_ @)*) sflt{s d;fGtdf 
k"FhLs/0f ul/Psf] 5 . h; cg';f/ cfof]hgfdf nufgL / sfo{ k|ult 
zLif{sdf /x]sf] k"FhLs/0f kZrft\sf] vr{ ;d]t ;dfj]z u/L x'g cfpg] yk 
k"FhL vr{ ;lxt s'n /sd ?=# cj{ #% s/f]8 ^^ nfv /sdnfO{ l:y/ 
;DklQdf b]vfOPsf] 5 . 

;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf -$@=% d]=jf=_ @)*! d+l;/ d;fGtdf 
k"FhLs/0f ul/Psf] 5 . h; cg';f/ cfof]hgfdf nufgL / sfo{ k|ult 
zLif{sdf /x]sf] k"FhLs/0f kZrft\sf] vr{ ;d]t ;dfj]z u/L x'g cfpg] yk 
k"FhL vr{ ;lxt s'n /sd ?=( cj{ &* s/f]8 #$ nfv /sdnfO{ l:y/ 
;DklQdf b]vfOPsf] 5 .

h; cg';f/ s]Gb|Lo sfof{no ;lxt ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf 
tyf ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfdf vr{ ePsf] yk k"Flhs/0f ul/Psf] /sd 
?=!# cj{ !$ s/f]8nfO{ jf;nftsf] l:y/ ;DklQdf b]vfO{Psf] 5 . To:t} 
u/L lhNnf k|zf;g sfof{no /;'jfdf hUufsf] d'cfJhf ljt/0f ug{ hDdf 
ul/Psf] /sd, l;len lgdf{0f sfo{sf 7]s]bf/, O{n]S6«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sf 
7]s]bf/ nufot cGo ;fgfltgf 7]Ssf tyf cGo k]ZsL cGtu{t hDdf ?=* 
s/f]8 && nfv &% xhf/ clu|d e'QmfgL /x]sf] tYo hfgsf/L u/fpg 
rfxG5' .
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%= z]o/ lgisfzg tyf ;"rLs/0f
sDkgLsf] k|jGwkqdf /x]sf] Joj:yf jdf]lhdsf] cfof]hgf k|efljt 
:yfgLo /;'jfjf;Lsf] ;d]t ;Dk'0f{ z]o/ lgisfzg eO{ g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh 
lnld6]8df ;'rLs/0f eO{ lgoldt sf/f]jf/ eO{/x]sf] 5 .

^= sDkgLaf6 lgdf{0f ;DkGg ePsf cfof]hgfx?sf] cj:yf tyf efjL 
of]hgf Pj+ sfo{qmdx?M
;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf ut cf= j= d} ;DkGg eO{;s]sf] 
tYo oxfFx¿nfO{ cjut g} 5 . ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] xsdf klg 
xfn} ldlt @)*! k'if ! ut] b]lv Joj;flos pTkfbg z'? eO{;s]sf]n] 
;~rflnt cfof]hgfx?sf] lgoldt lgjf{w ljB't pTkfbg / eljiosf nflu 
rf8} gofF hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] klxrfg, cWoog, lgdf{0f tyf ;~rfng 
ug]{ nIo sDklgn] lnPsf] 5 . sDkgLn] ljleGg ;DefJo cfof]hgfsf] 
k|f/lDes ?kdf klxrfgsf] sfdnfO{ tLj| agfPsf] 5 .

^=! sfj' jflx/sf] kl/l:ylt tyf 6g]n kl/If0fkl5 cfof]hgf lgdf{0fdf 
k/]sf] c;/
@)&@ ;fnsf] dxfe'sDk tyf nuftf/ nfdf] ;do ;Ddsf] k/fsDkg, 
tTkZrftsf] gfsfjGbL @)&^ ;fnsf] sf]le8 !( To; kl5sf] bf]>f] 
sf]/f]gfsf] nx/sf sf/0f g]kfn ;/sf/af6 nufO{Psf] jGbfjGbLsf sf/0f 
:yfgLo 7]s]bf/x?sf] lgdf{0f ;fdfu|L tyf hgzlQm kl/rfng / ljz]iftM 
rLlgof 7]s]bf/af6 pks/0f cfoft / h8fg sfo{df cTolws k|efj kg{ 
uPsf] lyof] . n6 # O{n]S6«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sf hgzlQm ;fO{6df kl/rfng 
gx'bf cGo n6 ;d]tsf 7]Ssf sfo{df ;d]t kl5Nnf] ;do s]xL k|efj kg{ 
uPsf] lyof] . Joj:yfkg / ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cys k|of;kl5 ldlt 
@)&* b]lv dfq hgzlQm / pks/0f cfoftdf ;xlhs/0f ul/ lgdf{0f 
sfo{nfO{ ;"rf? ul/Psf] lyof] . To:t} ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf -$@= 
% d] jf_ sf] 6g]n kl/If0fsf qmddf s]xL ;d:of cfO{ yk nfOlnª sfo{ 
nufot ;f]sf] k'gM k|jlns/0f ubf{ yk ;do nfu]sf] lyof] . 

^=@ ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf
;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf -!$=* d]= jf=_ sf] ;Dk'0f{ lgdf{0f 
;DkGg ePkZrft ldlt @)*) c;f]h @! b]lv g} Jofkfl/s ?kdf pTkfbg 
eO/x]sf] 5 . pQm cfof]hgfdf x]8jS;{, ^) ldg]6 Ifdtfsf] lklsË kf]v/L, 
l8;]G8/, kmf]/j], !=$ ls= ld=6g]n, %)) ld nfdf] k]g:6s, kfj/xfp;, 
k|zf/0fnfOg nufotsf :6«Sr/x? /x]sf 5g\ . pQm cfof]hgfsf] sfo{x? 
d'VotM l;len, O{n]S6«f]d]sflgsn / xfO{8«f]d]sflgsn sfo{x? ;DkGg eO{ 
xfn;Dd lgjf{w?kdf ljB'tu[x ;~rfng eO/x]sf] 5 . o; cfof]hgfsf 
nflu l;len lgdf{0fsf nflu 7]s]bf/ >L O{= l;= cfO{=– ah|u'? h]÷ le, 
O{n]S6«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sfnflu >L 8f]ËkmfË O{n]lS6«s O{G6/g]zgn skf]{/]zg 
rLg, xfO{8«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sf nflu 7]s]bf/ >L g]kfn xfO{8«f] O{n]lS6«s 
sDkgL lnld6]8 / !#@ s]= le= k|zf/0f nfO{g lgdf{0fsf nflu >L d'8j/L P08 
hf]zL sDkgL k|f= ln=, g]kfn /x]sf 5g\ . n6 @ l;len lgdf{0f sfo{sf 7]Ssf 
sfo{sf] Defect Notification Period ;dfKt eO{ Performance 
Certificate ;d]t hf/L u/L ;lsPsf] 5 eg] 7]Ssf sfjf{Gjogsf qmddf 
/x]sf s]xL ljjfbsf ;DaGwdf eg] xfn Arbitration proceedings 
rfn' /x]sf] 5 . n6 # O{n]S6«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sf] 7]Ssf sfo{sf] Defect 
Notification Period ldlt @)@% l8;]Dj/ )( ;Dd /x]sf]df s]lx 
Punch List df afFsL /x]sf sfo{ ;DkGg ug{ # dlxgf yk ul/Psf] 5 . 
n6 $ xfO{8«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sf 7]Ssf sfo{sf] Defect Notification 

Period ;dfKt eO{ Performance Certificate ;d]t hf/L u/L 
;lsPsf] 5 . cfof]hgfsf] lgdf{0f ;'kl/j]If0fsf nflu z'?jftdf SMEC 
International n] sfo{ u/]sf]df ldlt @)&$÷)!÷@* -!! d] @)!&_ 
b]lv >L lrlnd] O{lGhlgol/Ë P08 ;le{;]h sDkgL lnld6]8n] ;f] sfo{ ub}{ 
cfPsf] 5 . xfn pQm k/fdz{bftfsf] s/f/ ;Demf}tf cjlw ldlt @)@^ dfr{ 
#) ;Dd /x]sf] 5 .

^=# ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf 
$@ =% d]= jf= Ifdtfsf] ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf -$@=% d]= jf=_ sf] 
;Dk"0f{ lgdf{0f ;DkGg ePkZrft ldlt @)*! k'if ! ut] b]lv Joj;flos 
?kdf pTkfbg eO/x]sf] 5 . pQm cfof]hgfdf Aofn]lG;Ë kf]v/L, )=% 
3gld6/ Ifdtfsf] yk Og6]s, #=^ ls= ld= 6g]n, ;h{6\ofªs, ! ls=dL 
nfdf] k]g:6s, kfj/xfp;, ! ls= ld= k|zf/0f nfO{g h:tf ;+/rgfx? /x]sf 
5g\ . o; cfof]hgfsf nflu l;len lgdf{0fsf] 7]s]bf/ >L P;= O{= 8Jn'= 
– t'FbL h]÷le, O{n]S6«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sf nflu >L 8f]ËkmfË O{n]lS6«s 
O{G6/g]zgn skf]{/]zg rLg / xfO{8«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sf nflu 7]s]bf/ >L 
g]kfn xfO{8«f] O{n]lS6«s sDkgL lnld6]8, g]kfn /x]sf 5g\ . !#@ s]= le= 
k|zf/0f nfO{g lgdf{0fsf 7]s]bf/ b'j} cfof]hgfx?sf nflu Pp6} /x]sf] lyof] . 
n6 @ l;len lgdf{0f sfo{, n6 # O{n]S6«f]d]sflgsn sfo{ tyf n6 $ 
xfO{8«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sf] Defect Notification Period ldlt @)@% 
l8;]Da/ !^ ;Dd /x]sf]df Punch List sf sfo{ ;DkGg ug{ # dlxgf yk 
ul/Psf] 5 . cfof]hgfsf] lgdf{0f ;'kl/j]If0fsf nflu z'?jftdf SMEC 
International n] sfo{ u/]sf]df ldlt @)&$÷)!÷@* -!! d] @)!&_ 
df ;Demf}tf eO{ k/fdz{÷;'kl/j]If0f sfo{x? >L lrlnd] O{lGhlgol/Ë P08 
;le{;]h sDkgL lnld6]8n] ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . xfn pQm k/fdz{bftfsf] s/f/ 
;Demf}tf cjlw ldlt @)@^ dfr{ #) ;Dd /x]sf] 5 . 

b'j} cfof]hgfx?af6 Joj;flos ?kdf pTkfbg z'? ePkZrft lgjf{w ?kdf 
ljB't pTkfbg eO /fli6«o k|zf/0f k|0ffnLdf of]ubfg eO/x]sf] hfgsf/Lsf] 
nflu cg'/f]w 5 .

&= ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] ljB't ljqmLsf nflu lgdf{0f 
ul/Psf] Contingency Plan cGtu{tsf] k|zf/0fnfOg 
g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f cGtu{t lgdf{0fflwg lrlnd]–lqz'nL @@) s]=eL= 
6«fG;ld;g nfO{gsf] lgdf{0f ;DkGg x'g' eGbf klxn]g} ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ 
hnljB't cfof]hgf lgdf{0f ;DkGg x'g] ePsf] / pQm cfof]hgfaf6 pTkfbg 
x'g] ljB't zlQm cfk"lt{ ug{sf nflu a}slNks nfOgsf] Joj:yfkg 
ug{'kg]{ b]lvPsf]n] sDkgL Joj:yfkg / ;~rfns ;ldltsf] Joj:yfklso 
lg0f{oaf6 yfDa'r]taf6 lrlnd] hnljB't s]G›sf] kfj/xfp;;Dd sl/j * 
lsnf]ld6/ nfdf] !! s]=eL= 8an ;ls{6 k|zf/0fnfOg tyf !#@÷!! s]= 
le= ;j:6]zg ;d]t sDkgLsf] cfˆg} nufgLdf ›'t ultdf lgdf{0f ;DkGg 
ul/Psf] lyof] . pQm k|zf/0fnfO{g lgdf{0fsf sf/0f nfutsf] t'ngfdf 
nfebfos ljB't ljqmL cfDbfgL, @@) s]=le k|zf/0f nfOgsf] t'ngfdf 
cfof]hgf l56f] lgdf{0f ;DkGg ePaf6 x'g ;Sg] 7]s]bf/sf] bfjLsf] lgSof}{n 
/ pQm cfof]hgfsf] ljleGg 7]Ssfsf] ;dod} Joj:yfkg ;Dej ePsf] 5 . 
ldlt @)*) c;f]h @! ut]b]lv cf};t * d]= jf= sf b/n] g]kfn ljB't 
k|flws/0fnfO{ ljqmL ul/Psf]df @@) s]=le k|zf/0f nfOg lgdf{0f kZrft ;f] 
!! s]=eL k|zf/0f nfOg k|of]udf gePsf] ePtfklg pQm k|zf/0fnfO{gdf ut 
jiff{tdf cfPsf] jf9L klx/f]sf sf/0f s]xL efudf Iflt ePsf] 5 . xfn ;f] 
k|zf/0fnfOgsf] dd{t tyf Joj;flos pkof]usf nflu ljleGg ljsNkx?df 
5nkmn tyf k|of; eO{/x]sf] 5 .
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*= /fli6«o tyf cGt/fli6«o kl/l:yltn] sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/df kg]{ c;/
cfof]hgfx?df :jb]zL tyf ljb]zL 7]s]bf/ sDkgLx? sfo{/t /x]sf]n] ubf{ ljb]zL d'›fsf] ljlgdo b/df k/]sf] c;/, lgdf{0f ;fdfu|Ldf x'g] d'No a[l4 tyf 
ljleGg ;dodf x'g] aGb x8\tfn h:tf 36gfqmdx?n] cfof]hgf lgdf{0fdf c;/ kg]{ x'G5 . ;fy} cfof]hgf lgdf{0fsf] qmddf ljleGg ;/sf/L tyf u}x| ;/sf/L 
lgsfoaf6 k|fKt ug{' kg]{ :jLs[ltx?df l9nfO{, ljleGg k|sf/sf b}jL k|sf]k h:t} @)&@ ;fnsf] e"sDk tyf tTkZrfTsf] gfsfaGbL / l8;]Da/ @)!( af6 
z'? ePsf] sf]/f]gf dxfdf/L, k|zf/0fnfOgsf] cefj nufotsf] sf/0f klg cfof]hgf lgdf{0fsf] ultdf k|ToIf jf k/f]Io ?kdf k|efljt ePsf] tYo Joxf]/f 
cjut u/fpg rfxG5' .

(= sDkgLsf] Joj;flos ;DaGw
sDkgLsf] Joj;flos ;DaGw ljleGg ;/f]sf/jfnf ;+:yfx?;Fu ;'dw'/ /x]sf] 5 . sDkgLn] lgdf{0f ul//x]sf cfof]hgfx?n] pTkfbg ug]{ ;Dk"0f{ ljB't vl/b 
ug]{ u/L g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f;Fu ljB't vl/b–laqmL ;+emf}tf e};s]sf] 5 . To:t} u/L sd{rf/L ;~rosf]if;Fu b'a} cfof]hgfx?sf] nufgLsf] nflu C0f 
;Demf}tf eO{ C0f nufgL ;d]t e};s]sf] 5 . o; sDkgL;Fu k|ToIf jf ck|ToIf ;DaGw /fVg] cGo ;+:yfx? h:t}M sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, pBf]u 
dGqfno, phf{ dGqfno, ljB't ljsf; ljefu, jg tyf jftfj/0f dGqfno, cy{ dGqfno, g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f, lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL ln=, /;'jfu9L 
xfO8«f]kfj/ sDkgL ln=, dWo ef]6]sf]zL hnljB't sDkgL ln=, sd{rf/L ;~rosf]if, g]kfn :6s PSr]Gh, gfu/Ls nufgL sf]if, z]o/ /lhi6«f/sf] ?kdf sfo{ 
ul//x]sf] ;g/fO{h Soflk6n ln=, /;'jf lhNnfsf ;/sf/L lgsfox? tyf :yfgLo lgsfox?, cfof]hgf:yn cfdf5f]lbËdf] ufpFkflnsf tyf j8f sfof{no, 
g]kfn a}+s ln=, Pe/]i6 a}+s ln=, s'df/L a}+s ln=, nIdL a}+s ln=, d]uf a}+s ln=, l;4fy{ a}+s ln=, lxdfnog a}+s ln=, /;'jf lhNnfsf :yflgo afl;Gbfx?, 
cflb ;Fu klg sDkgLsf] ;'dw'/ ;DaGw /x]sf] / cfufdL lbgx?df klg of] ;DaGw yk ;'b[9 / k|uf9 aGb} kf/:kl/s ;xof]udf clea[l4 x'g]df ljZj:t 5' .

!)= sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt
sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldltdf d'Vo k|jw{s lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL ln= sf] tkm{af6 # hgf, g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0fsf] tkm{af6 ! hgf / ;~ro sf]ifdf 
/sd hDdf ug]{ sd{rf/Lsf] k|ltlglwTj gx'Gh]n;Ddsf] nflu sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]ifsf] tkm{af6 ! hgf ;d]t u/L % hgf ;~rfns /x]sf] ;~rfns ;ldlt 
/x]sf] 5 . sDkgLsf] ;+zf]lwt k|aGwkq / lgodfjnLdf ePsf] Joj:yf cg';f/ Ps hgf :jtGq / Ps hgf dlxnf ;lxt b'O{ hgf ;~rfns ;d]t hDdf & 
hgf ;~rfns /xg] Joj:yf /x]sf] x'Fbf ;j{;fwf/0f ;d'xsf] k|ltlglwTjsf nflu ;~rfnssf] lgjf{rg ;DkGg eP kZrft dfq ;~rfns ;ldltn] k"0f{tf 
kfpg] 5 . pQm ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ;+Vofsf ;DaGwdf k/]sf] l/6 / dfusf ;DaGwdf o; ;fwf/0f ;ef;Fu k/fdz{ cfufdL ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 lgjf{rg 
u/L ;~rfnsx?sf] nug u/fOg]5 .

tflnsf $Mxfn sfod ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ljj/0fM

;~rfnssf] gfd kb k|ltlglwTj ug]{ ;+:yf b]lv ;Dd
>L bL3f{o" s'df/ >]i7  cWoIf k|ltlglw, lrlnd] hnljB't s= ln= @)*!÷!!÷@) xfn;Dd
>L zflGtnlId zfSo ;~rfns k|ltlglw, lrlnd] hnljB't s=ln= @)*@÷)#÷@% xfn;Dd
>L ;ld/ k|;fb kf]v/]n ;~rfns k|ltlglw, g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f @)*@÷)#÷@% xfn;Dd
>L jfj'/fhf dxh{g ;~rfns k|ltlglw,lrlnd] hnljB't s= ln= @)*@÷)#÷@% xfn;Dd
>L gj/fh kf}8]n ;~rfns k|ltlglw, sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]if @)*!÷!@÷!$ xfn;Dd

cf=j= @)*!.)*@ df ljleGg ljifodf 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o ug{sf nflu ;~rfns ;ldltsf] @& k6s a}7s a;]sf] lyof] .

!!= n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt 
sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !^$ df ePsf] Joj:yf cg';f/ ;~rfns ;ldltn] ;~rfns >L ;ld/ k|;fb kf]v/]nsf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;~rfns >L jfj'/fhf 
dxh{g / ;~rfns >L gj/fh kf}8]n ;b:o /x]sf] tLg ;b:oLo n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 5 .

cf=j= @)*!.)*@ df n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg, cfjlws cfly{s k|ltj]bg nufotsf ljQLo ljj/0fx? nufotsf ljifodf k'g/fjnf]sg, 5nkmn tyf 
l;kmfl/; ug{sf nflu n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] @$ k6s a}7s a;]sf] lyof] . n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] a}7sdf pkl:yt ;~rfnsx?nfO{ k|lt a}7s eQf jfkt 
hgxL ?= $ xhf/ lbg] Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 .

!@= n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|lts[of
g]kfn ljQLo k|ltj]bgdfg -Nepal Financial Reporting Standard_ cg'?k tof/ u/L n]vfk/LIf0f ;DkGg e} oxfFx¿nfO{ pknAw u/fOPsf cf=j= 
@)*!.)*@ sf ljQLo ljj/0fx? pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] s'g} s}lkmot gb]lvPsf] Joxf]/f o; ul/dfdo ;ef;dIf cjut u/fpg rfxG5' . 

!#= sDkgLsf] kl5Nnf] jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef
sDkgLsf] @)*) r}q % ut] lgwf{l/t !# cf} ;fwf/0f ;efdf ;j{;fwf/0f tkm{sf] ;~rfns lgjf{rg sfo{qmd ;d]t k|sflzt eO;s]sf]df >L pRr cbfnt, 
kf6gdf k/]sf] l/6 / pQm l/6sf] lg0f{o x'g nfu]sf] ;do tyf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ;+Vof ;DalGw ljjfbsf sf/0f ;f] ;fwf/0f ;ef :ylut ePsf] ;fy} 
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;f]xL ;dofjlwdf b'a} cfof]hgf ;DkGg u/L /fli6«o k|zf/0f k|0ffnLdf hf]8\g 
;Dk"0f{ Joj:yfkg Ao:t /xL sfdx?nfO{ tLj|tf lbg a9L Wofg lbg' k/]sf] 
sf/0f !#cf}F -cf=j= @)&(.*)_ / !$cf} -cf=j= @)*).*! _ ;fwf/0f 
;ef ;DkGg ug{ ;lsPsf] lyPg . t/ xfn b'j} cfof]hgf lgjf{w ;~rfng 
ePsf] / !%cf} -cf=j= @)*!.*@_ ;fwf/0f ;ef ;d]t ug{ cfjZos 
eO;s]sf]n] pQm # j6} ;fwf/0f ;ef cfh} ;DkGg ug{ nfluPsf] xf] .

!$= cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL
sDkgLsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfO/fVgsf nflu 
o; sDkgLn] cfjZostf cg';f/ lgod ljlgodx? tof/ u/L ;~rfns 
;ldltaf6 :jLs[lt u/fO{ nfu' ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . k|rlnt >d P]gsf] k|fjwfg 
cg'?k sDkgLsf] sd{rf/L k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL @)&^, ;fj{hlgs vl/b 
P]g cg's'n x'g] u/L cfly{s k|zf;g tyf vl/b ljlgodfjnL, @)&), e|d0f 
vr{ ljlgodfjnL @)*@ nufotsf laleGg ljlgodx¿ sfof{Gjogdf /x]sf 
5g\ . 

sDkgL P]g / sDkgLsf] ljlgodfjnLsf] k|fjwfg adf]lhd n]vfk/LIf0f 
;ldlt, sd{rf/L kbk"lt{ ;ldltx¿ u7g u/L ljleGg sfo{x¿ x'Fb} cfPsf 
5g\ . ;fy} cfjZostf cg';f/ cGo pk–;ldltx? klg u7g x'g] kl/kfl6 
/x]sf] 5 . 

;"rLs[t ;+ul7t ;+:yfx?sf] ;+:yfut ;"zf;g ;DaGwL lgb]{lzsf @)&$ 
sf] Joj:yf jdf]lhd # hgf ;~rfns /x]sf] hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf 
Go'lgs/0f pk;ldlt tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0fflnsf] ;+:yfut cg'udg 
tyf ;xlhs/0fsf nflu cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL pk;ldlt u7g ePsf 
5g\ . hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf Go'lgs/0f pk;ldltaf6 d'VotM cfof]hgf 
lgdf{0f sfo{df cfO{kg{;Sg] ;Defljt hf]lvdx?sf] klxrfg tyf ljZn]if0f 
u/L ;f]sf] Go'lgs/0fsf nflu nfu' ug{'kg]{ pkfox?sf ;DjGwdf ;~rfns 
;ldltdf l;kmfl/; k]z x'g] u/]sf] 5 . xfn jftfj/0f kl/jt{gsf sf/0f 
cfof]hgf If]qdf cfO{kg{ ;Sg] af9L klx/f]sf sf/0f x'g ;Sg] Iflt nufot 
sfj' jflx/sf kl/l:yltx?sf] ;fdgf ;f]xL sf/0f cfof]hgf nfutdf k/]sf] 
c;/ ;f]sf] Joj:yfkg, gub k|jfxdf kg{ ;Sg] c;/, cg'ejL hgzlQmsf] 
Joj:yfkgsf ;DjGwdf b]lvPsf hf]lvdx?sf af/]df /fo l;kmfl/; k|fKt 
x'g] u/]sf] 5 .

sDkgL tyf cfof]hgfsf cfly{s sf/f]af/x?sf] n]vfÍg sfo{ Aojl:yt 
ug{ e/kbf]{ ;ˆ6j]o/sf] dfWodaf6 n]vf /flvPsf] 5 . ;fy} sd{rf/Lx?sf] 
k]/f]n Aoj:yfkg Pj+ xflh/L Joj:yfkgsf] nflu E–attendance sf] 
;d]t Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . 

!%= ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj
cfof]hgf k|efljt If]qdf cfof]hgfsf] ;dflhs tyf jftfj/0fLo k|efj 
Go"gLs/0f tyf ;fdflhs Pj+ k"jf{wf/ ljsf;sf] nflu sDkgLn] ljljw 
sfo{x? ub}{ cfO/x]sf] 5 . o; cGtu{t af6f] tyf ;8s lgdf{0f, :yflgo 
afl;GbfnfO{ k|fljlws tflnd tyf /f]huf/L, ;fd'bflos ejg lgdf{0f, 
vfg]kfgL tyf gfnL lgdf{0f, u'Djf tyf dfg] lgdf{0f, lzIff tyf :jf:Yo / 
v]ns'b If]qdf ;xof]u, e'Ifo lgoGq0f, v]ns'b tyf ;f+:s[lts sfo{x?df 
;xof]u ub}{ cfO/x]sf] 5 .
 
!^= ;Da4 sDkgL aLrsf] sf/f]jf/
cf=j= @)*!.)*@ df lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL;Fu hUuf ef8fdf lnP 
jfktsf] e'Qmflg, sDkgLsf] cg'/f]wdf g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0faf6 sfhdf 

vl6g' ePsf] sd{rf/Lx?sf] cf]e/x]8, Pj+ ;fk6L s§L afktsf] /sd e'QmfgL 
ul/Psf] cg'/f]w 5 . To:t} j}sNkLs !! s]= le= 8jn ;ls{6 k|zf/0f 
nfO{g lgdf{0f l56f] ug{' kg]{ cj:yfnfO{ dWogh/ ul/ ;f] k|zf/0f nfO{gsf] 
nflu cfjZos kf]n nufotsf ;fdfu|L g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0faf6 vl/b 
ul/Psf] lyof] . ;f] k|zf/0f nfO{gsf] nflu cfjZos !#@÷!! s]= le= kfj/ 
6«fG;km/d/ / ;f] nfO{g lgdf{0fsf] k/fdz{;]jf ;d]t g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0faf6 
k|fKt ePsf]n] pQm lgdf{0f sfo{ ;xh ePsf] lyof] . cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df 
;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfaf6 Jofkfl/s pTkfbgsf] l;nl;nfdf g]kfn 
ljB't k|flws/0fnfO{ SCADA Integration Charges nufPt cGo 
;]jf z'Ns ;d]t e'QmfgL ePsf] 5 . sDkgL / k|flws/0f ljrdf ePsf] ljB't 
vl/b ljlqm ;Demf}tf jdf]lhd @)*! >fj0f b]lv @)*@ cfiff9 d;fGt ;Dd 
ljB't ljlqm cfDbfgL ? *& s/f]8 *$ nfv %% xhf/ k|fKt ePsf] 5 . 
cfufdL cf= j= @)*@.*# df ljB't ljqmL cfDbfgL pNn]Vo ?kn] j9\g] 
cg'dfg /x]sf] 5 .

o; cf=j=df lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL ln= af6 cNksflng ;fk6Lsf] 
?kdf ? #% s/f]8 k|fKt u/L cfof]hgf lgdf{0f sfo{df kl/rfng ul/Psf] 5 . 
ut cf=j=sf] ¿= ## s/f]8 ;lxt ? ^* s/f]8 cNksflng C0f bfloTjsf] 
?kdf /x]sf] 5 . 

cfof]hgfsf] lj:t[t l8hfO{g tyf lgdf{0f ;'k/LjIf0f -Detail Design 
and Construction Supervision_ ;DaGwL k/fdz{ sfo{ k/fdz{bftf 
>L lrlnd] O{lGhlgo/LË P08 ;le{;]h sDkgL ln= n] ub}{ cfPsf]df ;f] 
;DalGw sfo{ ;d]t clGtd r/0fdf /x]sf] hfgsf/L u/fpb5' . ;Dj4 
sDkgLx¿;Fu ePsf] sf/f]jf/sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf ljlQo 
ljj/0fsf ;DjlGwt cg';"rLdf pNn]v ul/Psf] 5 .

!&= cf=j= @)*!.)*@ sf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{
o; cfly{s jif{df b'a} cfof]hgfsf] k"FhLs/0f ul/Psf]n] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{ 
o; cl3sf] cfly{s jif{ eGbf pNn]vgLo ?kdf j[l2 ePsf] 5 . sDkgLsf] 
s]G›Lo sfof{nosf] ldlt @)*! >fj0f b]lv ldlt @)*@ ciff9;Ddsf] ;Dk"0f{ 
k|zf;lgs tyf ;~rfng ;Def/ vr{, b'j} cfof]hgf k'FhLs[t eO{;s]sf]n] 
;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf -!$=* d] jf_ sf] ldlt @)*! 
>fj0f b]lv @)*@ ciff9;Ddsf ;Dk"0f{ k|zf;lgs tyf ;~rfng ;Def/ 
vr{ tyf ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf -$@=% d] jf_ sf] @)*! kf}if b]lvsf] 
;Dk"0f{ k|zf;lgs tyf cGo ;~rfng vr{nfO{ Joj:yfkg vr{ dflgPsf] 
5 . o; cfly{s jif{ @)*!.*@ sf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{ ¿= @) s/f]8 @! 
nfv $! xhf/ /x]sf] 5 . s'n Joj:yfkg vr{ j[l2 x'g'df b'j} cfof]hgfsf] 
k"FhLs/0f eO;s]sf]n] k|zf;lgs nufot ;~rfng ;Def/ vr{ , ljB't 
ljqmL cfDbfgLdf /f]olN6 / ljB't pTkfbg ;+/rgfsf] ;Dklt ljdfsf] lk|ldod 
e'QmfgL d'Vo ?kdf /x]sf] 5 .

!*= rfn" cf=j= @)*@÷*# sf] pknAwL tyf vr{
rfn" cf=j= @)*@÷)*# sf] c;f]h d;fGt;Dddf sDkgLsf] ljB't ljqmL 
cfDbfgL pNn]Vo ?kdf a9\g uO{ ljB't ljlqmaf6 ? %% s/f]8 &( nfv 
#( xhf/ / j}s Aofhaf6 ? % nfv (! xhf/ tyf cGo cfDbfgL tkm{ ?= ! 
nfv !& xhf/ ul/ ? %% s/f]8 *^ nfv $& xhf/ cfh{g u/]sf] 5 . o;} 
ul/ skf]{/]6 sfof{nosf] k|zf;lgs vr{ tkm{ ?= ! s/f]8 #^ nfv *! xhf/ 
vr{ ePsf] 5 . ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf -!$= * d]= jf=_ 
sf] k|zf;lgs ;~rfng ;Def/ vr{ tkm{ ?=^ s/f]8 #( nfv () xhf/ 
vr{ ePsf] 5 . pQm vr{ /sddf sd{rf/L ;~rosf]ifsf] cf=j= @)*@.*# 
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sf] k|yd q}dfl;s cjlwsf] C0f /sdsf] Aofh /sd ? $ s/f]8 #$ nfv 
*@ xhf/ ;lxt ljB'tLo pks/0fsf] jLdf / /f]oN6L vr{ ;d]t ;dfj]z 
/x]sf] 5 . To:t} u/L ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf -$@=% d]= jf=_ sf] 
k|zf;lgs tyf ;~rfng ;Def/ vr{ tkm{ ?= !& s/f]8 #^ nfv dWo cf= 
j= @)*@.*# sf] k|yd q}dfl;s cjlwsf] Aofh /sd ? !# s/f]8 $ nfv 
$^ xhf/ ;lxt ljB'tLo pks/0fsf] jLdf / /f]oN6L vr{ ;d]t ;dfj]z 
/x]sf] 5 . o;} cjlwdf pQm cfof]hgfdf yk k"FhLut tkm{ ?= ^# nfv @# 
xhf/ vr{ ePsf] 5 . ;fy} o; q}dfl;s cjlwdf sDkgLn] n]vfkl/If0f 
x'g jfFsL ckl/is[t q}dfl;s k|ltj]bgdf pNn]vgLo ?kdf klxnf] k6s 
v'b d'gfkmf ? !% s/f]8 @* nfv #^ xhf/ cfh{g u/L cfˆgf] Joj;flos 
hLjgdf O{ltxf; sfod u/]sf] 5 .

!(= ;~rfns tyf pRr kb:y kbflwsf/Lsf] kfl/>ldsM
;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf k|lt JolQm k|lt a}7s s/;lxt ?= ( xhf/, 
;~rfns ;ldltn] u7g u/]sf] ;ldlt tyf pk–;ldltsf] a}7s eQf k|lt 
JolQm k|lt a}7s s/ ;lxt ?=$ xhf/ / k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] dfl;s 
kfl/>lds jfkt s/ ;lxt ?= @ nfv #@ xhf/ /x]sf] 5 .

@)= a}+s tyf ljlQo ;+:yfx?af6 lnOPsf] C0f tyf a'emfpg afFsL /x]sf] 
;fFjf tyf Jofhsf] /sd
cf=j = @)*!÷)*@ sf] kf}ifd;fGt ;Dd sd{rf/L ;~rosf]ifaf6 ¿= % 
ca{ * s/f]8 #( nfv ## xhf/ ;fFjf / ;f]lx cjlwdf Jofh k"Flhs/0f 
ul/Psf] /sd ¿= $ cj{ #@ s/f]8 &% nfv !* xhf/ ;d]t ¿= ( cj{ $! 
s/f]8 !$ nfv %! xhf/ ;fjfF sfod ePsf] 5 . o; cf=j = @)*!÷)*@ 
r}q d;fGt / cfiff9 d;fGtdf sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]ifnfO{ ?=^( s/f]8 %^ 
nfv $( xhf/ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] 5 . h;dWo ;fFjf ?=#) s/f]8 (* nfv 
@% xhf/ / Jofh #* s/f]8 %*nfv @$ xhf/ /x]sf] 5 . pQm ;fFjf 
/sd e'QmfgL kl5 afFsL /sd ?=( cj{ !) s/f]8 !^ nfv @^ xhf/ nfO{ 
jf;nftdf bL3{sflng C0f zLif{sdf k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 . o; cf=j=df 
lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL ln=af6 cNksflng ;fk6Lsf] ?kdf ? #% s/f]8 
k|fKt u/L cfof]hgf lgdf{0f sfo{df kl/rfng ul/Psf] 5 . ut cf=j=sf] 
¿= ## s/f]8 ;lxt ? ^* s/f]8 cNksflng C0f bfloTjsf] ?kdf /x]sf] 
5 . yk ljlQo cfjZostf Joj:yfkg ug{ g]kfn O{Ge]i6d]G6 d]uf j}+s 
lnld6]8af6 cNksflng C0f ? !& s/f]8 lnO{Psf]df o; k|ltj]bg tof/ 
ubf{sf] ;do ;Dddf pQm C0f /sd r'Qmf u/L ;lsPsf] 5 .

@!= sDkgLn] e'QmfgL lng'kg]{ jf sDkgLn] cGo JolQmnfO{ e'QmfgL ug{' 
kg]{ egL bfaL ul/Psf] /sd jf o; ljifodf d'2f dfldnf rln/x]sf] eP 
To;sf] ljj/0f
;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf -!$=* d]= jf=_ sf] n6 @ 
l;len lgdf{0f sfo{sf 7]s]bf/ ECI–BGCCPL J/V ;Fu 7]Ssf g+ Lot @ 
Civil Works Contract ID No. SUHEP )^&÷^* l;len lgdf{0f 
sfo{sf] ;dodf lgdf{0f ;DkGg gu/]jfkt 7]Ssf ;Demf}tf jdf]lhd Delay 
Damages jfktsf] /sd ?=!!,@%,^),@%)÷&* -P3f/ s/f]8 kRrL; 
nfv ;f7L xhf/ b'O{ ;o krf; / c7xQ/ k};f dfq_ 7]s]bf/;Fu ;~rfns 
;ldltsf] lg0f{o cg';f/ lghsf] ljleGg a}s Uof/]G6Lx? dfkm{t hkmt bfjL 
ul/Psf]df lghn] >L pRr cbfnt, kf6gdf pQm bfjL lj?2 lgif]wf1f 
dfu u/L l/6 bfo/ u/]sf]df ldlt @)*! h]i7 #) df l/6 hf/L eO{ bfjL 
:ylut /x]sf] cj:yf 5 . pQm l/6 hf/Lsf] k'0f{ kf7 k|fKt x'g] qmddf /x]sf] 
5 . pQm 7]s]bf/;Fu ePsf] ljleGg bfjLx?sf ;DaGwdf NEPCA dfkm{t 

cflj{6«zgn l6«Jo'gn u7g eO{ ;'g'jfO{ sfo{ z'? eO;s]sf] 5 .

;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf -$@=% d]= jf=_ sf] n6 @ l;len lgdf{0f 
sfo{sf 7]s]bf/ SEW–TUNDI J/V sf] Advance Bank Guarantee 
jfktsf] a}+s Uof/]G6L /sd ?=#,%*,($,!@!.!^ -tLg s/f]8 cG7fpGg 
nfv rf}/fgJj] nfv Ps ;o PSsfO; / ;f]x| k};f dfq_ hkmt ul/Psf]df 
a9L hkmt x'g cfPsf] a}+s Uof/]G6L /sd ?=*#,!&,*)).–-lqof;L nfv 
;q xhf/ cf7 ;o dfq_ lkmtf{ ul/Psf]df 7]s]bf/n] pQm sf/afxLdf lrQ 
ga'emfO{ >L pRr cbfnt, kf6gdf cflj{6«]zg l6«Jo'gn u7g ul/kfFp egL 
l/6 k]z u/]sf]df sDkgLsf] tkm{af6 >L pRr cbfnt, kf6gaf6 >L z/b 
k|;fb sf]O{/fnf lgo'Qm x'g' ePsf] t/ k"0f{?kdf l6«o'Ao'gn u7g x'g g;sL 
;'g'jfO{ z'? x'g g;s]sf] . xfn} ldlt @)@% l8;]Dj/ !( df 7]s]bf/ SEW–
TUNDI J/V n] lghsf] Uof/]G6L k|bfg ug]{ a}+s >L gljn a}+s lnld6]8;Fu 
;f] ljjfbsf ;DaGwdf Amicable Settlement sf nflu k|of; 
e}/x]sf] af]wfy{ hfgsf/L kq dfkm{t sDkgLnfO{ k|]lift u/]sf] 5 .

@@= sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkgdf sfo{/t cGo :t/sf sd{rf/L jf sfdbf/sf] 
;+Vof
xfn o; sDkgLdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx¿dWo] g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0faf6 
sfhdf cfPsf b'O{ hgf afx]s ;a} sd{rf/Lx¿ s/f/ ;]jfdf sfo{/t /x]sf 
5g\ . sd{rf/Lsf] ;]jf ;'ljwfnfO{ Jojl:yt ug{sf nflu sDklgsf] cfˆg} 
sd{rf/L k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL /x]sf] 5 . xfn sDkgLsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no, 
;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf / ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfdf 
u/L clws[t :t/ !% hgf, ;xfos :t/ (& hgf ;d]t hDdf !!@ hgf 
sd{rf/L sfo{/t /x]sf 5g\ . sd{rf/Lx?sf] j[lt ljsf; / Ifdtfj[l2sf 
nflu ljleGg lsl;dsf pkof]uL tflndsf cjz/x? pknAw u/fO{Psf] 5 
eg] k|fljlws hgzlQmx?nfO{ cGo ljB't u[xx?sf] cjnf]sg / sfo{Ifdtf 
j9fpg ;Lksf] cfbfg k|bfg ug{ ;"rgf g]6jls{ËnfO{ ;'b[9 ul/Psf] 5 .

@#= sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkgdf sfo{/t tyf cGo :t/df sfo{/t ljb]zLx?sf] 
;+Vof tyf lghx?nfO{ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwf
xfn s'g} klg ljb]zLx? sfo{/t 5}gg\ .

@$= sDkgL / s'g} ljb]zL lgsfo jf JolQmx? aLr nufgL, Joj:yfkg 
jf k|fljlws ;]jf jf cGo ljifodf Ps jif{ eGbf a9L cjlwsf] nflu s'g} 
;Demf}tf ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f / ;DalGwt cfly{s jif{df To:tf] 
;Demf}tf cg';f/ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] nfef+;, sld;g, z'Ns, b:t'/ / /f]oN6L 
cflbsf] ljj/0f
of] k|ltj]bg tof/ ug]{ ;do;Dd pk/f]Qm k|of]hgsf] nflu sf]xL ljb]zL JolQm 
tyf ;+:yf;Fu cfly{s bfloTj x'g] u/L s'g} ;Demf}tf ePsf] 5}g . s'g} 
lsl;dsf] /sd e'QmfgL ul/Psf] 5}g .

@%= z]o/wgLx?n] a'lemlng afFsL /x]sf] nfef+;sf] /sd
xfn;Dd s'g} nfef+z ljt/0fsf] lg0f{o gePsf]n] To:tf] s'g} /sd afFsL 
g/x]sf] .

@^= sDkgLn] o; P]g tyf k|rlnt sfg"gsf] kfngf k"0f{ ?kdf u/]sf] 5 eGg] 
s'/fsf] p¢f]if0f
o; sDkgLn] k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd l;h{gf x'g] ;Dk"0f{ zt{x? pRr 
;ts{tfsf ;fy kl/kfng u/]sf] tYo o; ul/dfdo ;efdf p43f]if ug{ 
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rfxG5' .

@&= kl/kfng clws[tsf] k|ltj]bgsf] hfgsf/L 
g]kfn lwtf]kq jf]8{n] hf/L u/]sf] ;"rLs[t ;+ul7t ;+:yfx?sf] ;+:yfut 
;'zf;g ;DalGw lgb]{lzsf @)&$ sf] Joj:yf adf]lhd sDkgLaf6 lgo'Qm 
kl/kfngf clws[taf6 lwtf]kq jf]8{af6 to ul/Psf] 9fFrfdf cf= j= 
@)*!÷*@ sf] nflu tof/ ul/Psf] k|ltj]bg sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldltjf6 
:jLs[t u/fO{ n]vfkl/Ifsaf6 k|dfl0ft u/L g]kfn lwtf]kq jf]8{df k]z 
ul/Psf] 5 . pQm k|ltj]bg d'VotM sDkgLsf] z]o/ ;+/rgf, ;~rfns ;ldlt 
/ a}7sx?sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f, ;'rgf tyf hfgsf/L ;DalGw k|sfzg, tflnd 
tyf vr{ ljj/0f, n]vfkl/If0f / n]vfkl/If0f ;ldltsf] ljj/0f, ljlQo 
ljj/0f, cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg nufotsf ljifo;Fu 
;DalGwt /x]sf 5g\ . sDkgLsf] Joj;flos If]q, Ifdtf / k|lti7fdf cfFr 
cfpg] s'g} klg lsl;dsf] s}lkmot gb]lvPsf] kl/kfngf clws[tsf] 
k|ltj]bgaf6 b]lvPsf] Joxf]/f cg'/f]w 5 .

s[t1tf 1fkg tyf wGojfb,
;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf -!$=* d]= jf=_ tyf ;fGh]g 
hnljB't cfof]hgf -$@=% d]= jf=_ sf] k|f/lDes cWoog z'? ePb]lv 
xfnsf] cj:yf;Dd k'of{pg k|ToIf jf k/f]If ?kn] ;xof]u k'of{pg] phf{, 
hn;|f]t tyf l;+rfO{ dGqfno, ljB't ljsf; ljefu, jg tyf jftfj/0f 
dGqfno, jg ljefu, If]qLo jg lgb]{zgfno, e"ld ;'wf/ dGqfno, e"ld 
Joj:yf, ;xsf/L tyf ul/aL lgjf/0f dGqfno, pBf]u jfl0fHo tyf cfk"lt{ 
dGqfno, >d /f]huf/ tyf ;fdflhs ;'/Iff dGqfno, u[x dGqfno, g]kfn 
lwtf]kq jf]8{, g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh, l;=l8=P;=;L= lnld6]8 nufot g]kfn 
;/sf/sf ljleGg lgsfosf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ d wGojfb lbg rfxG5' . 

o;} qmddf :yfgLo /;'jf lhNnfsf] lhNnf k|zf;g sfof{no, lhNnf 
;dGjo ;ldlt, cfof]hgf :yn /x]sf] cfdf5f]lbËdf] ufpFkflnsf, lrlnd] 
tyf uf]Nh'Ë j8f sfof{no, uf];fO{s'08 ufpFkflnsf tyf :ofFk|m'j]F;L j8f 
sfof{no, /;'jf eG;f/ sfof{no, nfª6fª /fli6«o lgs'~h tyf sfnLh+u 
u0f, g]kfnL ;]gf, lhNnf k|x/L sfof{no, ;z:q k|x/L an, lhNnf dfnkf]t 
sfof{no, lhNnf jg sfof{no, lhNnf gfkL sfof{no, g]=lj=k|f w'Gr] ljt/0f 
s]G› cflbaf6 cfof]hgf sfo{Gjogdf k|fKt ;xof]usf nflu wGojfb lbg 
rfxG5' / cfufdL lbgx?df klg lg/Gt/ ;xof]u kfpg] ljZjf; u/]sf] 5' .

cfof]hgfx?sf] lgdf{0f / ;~rfng ;DaGwL sfo{df ;xof]u / ;b\efj 
b]vfpb} cfpg' ePsf ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ tyf ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf 

j/k/sf ;Dk"0f{ :yflgojf;LGbfx?, :yfgLo txsf kbflwsf/Lx?, jg 
pkef]Qmf ;ldltx?, cfdf ;d"xx?, o'jf Snj, z}lIfs ;+:yf nufot k|ToIf 
jf k/f]If ?kdf ;xof]u ug{' x'g] a'l4hLlj ju{ Pj+ kqsf/ ldqx?nfO{ klg 
wGojfb lbg rfxG5' .

k|aw{s ;+:yf g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f, lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL ln= df 
sfo{/t /xg' ePsf Joj:yfkg tyf sd{rf/L Pj+ sd{rf/L o'lgogx?df xflb{s 
wGojfb lbg rfxG5' . ljz]iftM sDkgLsf] s]G›Lo sfof{no / cfof]hgfsf 
Joj:yfkg nufot ;a} txsf sd{rf/L tyf sd{rf/L o'lgognfO{ wGojfb 
lbg rfxG5' . ljleGg /fhlglts bnsf g]tf tyf sfo{stf{x?, ;/f]sf/jfnf 
;+3 ;+:yf, lzIfs, ljBfyL{, ;dfh;]jL, gful/s ;dfh, kqsf/, a'l4hLlj, 
lhNnfsf ;/sf/L lgsfox?, ;'/Iff lgsfox?, ;/f]sf/ ;ldlt ;Dk"0f{ 
;/f]sf/jfnfx?k|lt o; sDkgLsf] tkm{af6 xflb{s cfef/ k|s6 ub{5' .

sDkgLsf] :yfkgf, lgdf{0f tyf Joj:yfkgdf of]ubfg k'¥ofpg' x'g] ;~rfns 
;ldltsf ;b:o tyf k"j{ ;~rfns tyf k"j{ sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ klg wGojfb 
lbg rfxG5' .

lgdf{0fsfo{df ;+nUg e} cfof]hgfx?nfO{ cfhsf] cj:yf;Dd Nofpg 
e"ldsf lgefpg] 7]s]bf/ sDkgLx? ECI–BGCCPL J/V, SEW–TUNDI 
J/V, g]kfn xfO8«f] P08 O{n]lS6«s sDkgL, Dongfang Electric 
International Corporation, Mudbhary and Joshi 
Company Pvt Ltd, Nepalese/Sharmila J/V, Tenji Nirman 
Sewa nufotsf ;Dk"0f{ lgdf{0f Joj;foL sDkgLx¿nfO{ ;d]t wGojfb 
lbg rfxG5' .

o; sDkgLsf] ljlQo Joj:yfkgdf ;xof]u / ;b\efj /fVg] sd{rf/L ;~ro 
sf]if, gfu/Ls nufgL sf]if, cGo ljlQo ;+3 ;+:yfx? tyf z]o/ /lhi6«f/sf] 
;]jf k|bfg ug]{ ;g/fO{h Soflk6n lnld6]8nfO{ klg wGojfb lbg rfxG5' .

cGTodf, ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ sDkgL / sDkgLsf] ;~rfns 
;ldlt k|lt b]vfpg' ePsf] ;xof]u, ;b\efj / ljZjf;sf] lgldQ d pxfFx?k|lt 
xflb{s s[t1tf tyf wGojfb 1fkg ug{ rfxG5' ;fy} cfufdL lbgx?df klg 
o;/L g} lg/Gt/ ;fy / ;xof]u lbg' x'g]5 eGg] cfzf JoQm ub{5' .

wGojfb,
cWoIf

;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8
w'Djf/fxL, sf7df8f}+ .
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Statement of Financial Position
As on 32nd Ashadh, 2082 (Corresponding to 16-July-2025)

(Figure in NPR)
Particulars Notes 32.03.2082 (16.07.2025) 31.03.2081 (15.07.2024)

ASSETS      
Non-Current Assets      
Property Plant and Equipment’s 1 12,676,138,229.86 3,231,530,163.54
Project Capital Work in Progress 2  - 9,304,659,216.34
Term Deposit 3  -  - 
Total Non-Current Assets    12,676,138,229.86  12,536,189,379.88
Current Assets      
Inventories 4  104,689,690.28  31,727,203.40 
Prepayments 7  6,113,948.09  3,784,020.06 
Financial Assets:    
Advances to Contractors and Consultants 5  62,759,786.94  62,804,420.89 
Deposits and Margin 6  2,777,222.72  2,176,102.75 
Current Tax Assets 8  11,130,622.05  12,016,649.00 
Term Deposits with Banks 9  270,000.00  270,000.00 
Trade Receivables 10  334,662,992.76  52,418,035.10 
Other Financial Asssets 11  25,015,257.16  53,291,757.38 
Bank Balances Call and Current 12  29,738,749.87  116,949,816.45 
Total Current Assets    577,158,269.87  335,438,005.03 
TOTAL ASSETS    13,253,296,499.73  12,871,627,384.91 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      
Equity      
Equity Share Capital 13  3,650,000,000.00  3,650,000,000.00 
Other Equity(Reserve & Surplus) 14  (674,787,324.03)  (395,848,290.37)
Total Equity    2,975,212,675.97  3,254,151,709.63 
Liabilities      
Non-Current Liabilities      
Financial Liabilities:      
Borrowings 15.1.1  9,101,625,635.62  8,970,060,706.41 
Other Non-current Liabilities 15.1.3  256,668,459.61  256,355,818.23 
Total Non-Current Liabilities   9,358,294,095.23 9,226,416,524.64
Current Liabilities      
Provisions 15.2.3 1,417,982.92  2,433,230.03 
Financial Liabilities:      
Borrowings 15.1.1 850,000,000.00  330,000,000.00 
Other Financial Liabilities and Payables 15.1.2  68,371,745.61  58,625,920.61 
Total Current Liabilities   919,789,728.53 391,059,150.64
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    13,253,296,499.73  12,871,627,384.91 

*As per our report of even date.

..........................................
Dirghayu Kumar Shrestha

Chairperson

...................................
Shanti Laxmi Shakya

Director

..........................................
Sameer Prasad Pokharel

Director

...................................
S.B.K.C. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Surendra Bahadur K.C., FCA
Proprietor

.................................
Babu Raja Maharjan

Director

..........................
Nawaraj Poudel

Director

Date: 2082/09/04
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

..................................
Arpan Bahadur Singh

Chief Executive Officer

....................................
Ghanashyam Shrestha

Account Chief
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jf;nft @)*@ cfiff9 d;fGt;Dd
g]kfnL ?k}+ofdf

ljj/0f  @)*@ cfiff9 #@ Uft]sf] -?=_  @)*! cfiff9 #! Uft]sf] -?=_
;DklQ
l:y/ ;DklQ
;DklQ, KnfG6 tyf pks/0f  12,676,138,229.86  3,231,530,163.54 
cfof]hgf nufgL tyf sfo{ k|utL  –  9,304,659,216.34 
d'4tL lgIf]k  –  –
hDDff l:y/ ;DklQ  12,676,138,229.86  12,536,189,379.88 
rfn' ;DklQ

lhG;L df}Hbft  104,689,690.28  31,727,203.40 
clu|d e'QmfgL  6,113,948.09  3,784,020.06 
ljlQo ;DklQ

7]s]bf/ tyf k/fdz{bftfnfO{ k]ZsL  62,759,786.94  62,804,420.89 
lgIf]k tyf dflh{g  2,777,222.72  2,176,102.75 
sn tyf d'4tLdf k|fKt Jofh  11,130,622.05  12,016,649.00 
j}ssf] d'4tL lgIf]k  270,000.00  270,000.00 
Jofkf/ tyf cGo k|fKt ug'{kg]{  334,662,992.76  52,418,035.10 
cGo ljlQo ;DklQ  25,015,257.16  53,291,757.38 
a}s d}Hbft  29,738,749.87  116,949,816.45 
hDdf rfn' ;DklQ  577,158,269.87  335,438,005.03 
hDDff ;DklQ  13,253,296,499.73  12,871,627,384.91 
z]o/ k'FhL tyf bfloTj

z]o/ k'FhL 

z]o/ k'FhL  3,650,000,000.00  3,650,000,000.00 
hu]8f sf]if  -674,787,324.03_  -395,848,290.37_
hDdf z]o/ k'FhL  2,975,212,675.97  3,254,151,709.63 
bfloTj  –  –
lb3{sfnLg bfloTj

ljlQo bfloTj

lb3{sfnLg C0f ;fk6L  9,101,625,635.62  8,970,060,706.41 
cGo lb3{sfnLg bfloTj  256,668,459.61  256,355,818.23 
hDdf lb3{sfnLg bfloTj  9,358,294,095.23  9,226,416,524.64 
rfn' bfloTj

ljlQo bfloTj  –  –
cNksflng C0f ;fk6L  850,000,000.00  330,000,000.00 
Joj:yfx?  1,417,982.92  2,433,230.03 
cGo ljlQo bfloTj tyf e'StfgL ug'{kg]{  68,371,745.61  58,625,920.61 
hDDff rfn' bfloTj  919,789,728.53  391,059,150.44 
hDdf z]o/ k'FhL tyf bfloTj  13,253,296,499.73  12,871,627,384.91 
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Statement of Profit or Loss
From 1st Shrawan 2081 to 32nd Ashad 2082 (Corresponding to 16th July 2024 to 16th July 2025)

(NPR)
Particulars Notes FY 2081.82 (2024.25) FY 2080.81 (2023.24)

Revenue  

Sales of Electricity 16.1  878,455,015.20  197,880,774.06 
Cost of Sales      
Direct Costs 19.1&2  (127,813,532.14)  (35,151,263.51)
Royalty 19.1&2  (24,407,163.42)  (5,431,153.64)
Gross Profit   787,202,084.90  157,298,357.91 
Employee Benefits 17  (20,504,868.14)  (17,614,448.22)
Operating and Administrative Expenses 19.3  (25,189,205.31)  (23,668,823.19)
Depreciation and Amortization 18  (386,475,469.33)  (100,179,544.99)
Profit From Operation    294,064,776.82  15,835,541.51 
Other income 15.4  3,015,997.74  3,138,159.60 
Finance income 15.3  1,428,577.24  5,156,072.11 
Finance Cost 20  (573,222,605.14)  (171,282,436.64)
Exchange Gain / (loss) 21  (3,868,636.01)  (6,147,205.85)
Profit Before Bonus and Tax   (278,581,889.35)  (153,299,869.27)
Provision for Bonus    -  - 
Income Taxes   (357,144.31)  (1,289,018.03)
Net Profit   (278,939,033.66)  (154,588,887.30)
Notes Basic EPS (Annualised) 22 (7.64) (4.24)
Diluted EPS   (7.64) (4.24)
*The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of event date.

..........................................
Dirghayu Kumar Shrestha

Chairperson

...................................
Shanti Laxmi Shakya

Director

..........................................
Sameer Prasad Pokharel

Director

...................................
S.B.K.C. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Surendra Bahadur K.C., FCA
Proprietor

.................................
Babu Raja Maharjan

Director

..........................
Nawaraj Poudel

Director

Date: 2082/09/04
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

..................................
Arpan Bahadur Singh

Chief Executive Officer

....................................
Ghanashyam Shrestha

Account Chief
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gfkmf gf]S;fg ljj/0f cf=j= @)*!÷)*@
g]kfnL ?k}+ofdf

ljj/0f cf=j= @)*!÷*@ cf=j= @)*)÷*!
cfDbfgL
ljB't ljqmL  878,455,015.20  197,880,774.06 
ljqmLsf] nfut

k|ToIf vr{  -66,845,766.88_  -35,151,263.51_
/f]oN6L  -24,407,163.42_  -5,431,152.64_
hDdf cfDbfgL  787,202,084.90  157,298,357.91 
sd{rf/L vr{  -81,472,633.44_  -17,614,448.22_
;~rfng tyf ;Def/ vr{  -25,189,205.31_  -23,668,823.19_
x|f; tyf cdf]{6fO{h]zg  -386,475,469.33_  -100,179,544.99_
;~rfngjf6 gfkmf  294,064,776.82  15,835,541.51 
cGo cfDbfgL  3,015,997.74  3,138,159.60 
Jofh cfDbfgL  1,428,577.24  5,156,072.11 
ljlQo vr{  -573,222,605.14_  -171,282,436.64_
ljlgdo b/jf6 ePsf] gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_  -3,868,636.01_  -6,147,205.85_
nfef+; tyf s/ cuf8Lsf] gfkmf  -278,581,889.35_  -153,299,869.27_
nfef+; Joj:yf – –
cfo s/  -357,144.31_  -1,289,018.03_
v'b gfkmf  -278,939,033.66_  -154,588,887.30_
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
From 1st Shrawan 2081 to 32nd Ashad 2082 (Corresponding to 16th July 2024 to 166h July 2025)

(NPR)

Particulars Year Ended
32.03.2082 (16.07.2025)

Year Ended
31.03.2081 (15.07.2024)

Profit/Loss for the year  (278,939,033.66)  (154,588,886.81)
Other comprehensive income/(expense)    

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit 
or loss when specific conditions are met    

Available-for-sale investments    
–  fair value gains / (Losses)  -  - 
–  income taxes  -  - 
Exchange differences and other  -  - 
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss    

Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans    
–  before income taxes  -  - 
–  income taxes  -  - 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  -  - 
Total comprehensive income for the year  (278,939,033.66) (154,588,886.81)

As per our report of event date

..........................................
Dirghayu Kumar Shrestha

Chairperson

...................................
Shanti Laxmi Shakya

Director

..........................................
Sameer Prasad Pokharel

Director

...................................
S.B.K.C. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Surendra Bahadur K.C., FCA
Proprietor

.................................
Babu Raja Maharjan

Director

..........................
Nawaraj Poudel

Director

Date: 2082/09/04
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

..................................
Arpan Bahadur Singh

Chief Executive Officer

....................................
Ghanashyam Shrestha

Account Chief
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 16th July 2025 (2024/25)

(Figure in NPR)

Particulars 32.03.2082 
(16.07.2025)

31.03.2081
(15.07.2024)

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss / (profit) before taxation (278,939,033.66) (154,588,886.81)
Adjustments for non-cash items and non-operating adjustments
Depreciation 386,475,468.70  100,179,545.00 
Loss (Gain) on disposal of assets -  - 
Dividend income -  - 
Defined benefit plan net charge -  - 
Changes in Operating assets and Liabilities
Change in operating assets (328,931,331.42)  (68,440,460.30)
Change in operating liabilities 9,043,219.94  (79,373,480.01)
Contributions to defined benefit schemes
Previous year adjustments -  (529,758.93)
Defined benefits paid -  - 
Net cash from operating activities (212,351,676.94)  (202,753,041.05)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (244,633,126.30)  (60,548,157.81)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment -  - 
Purchase of CWIP (281,791,192.55)  (1,005,828,785.25)
Disposal of CWIP -  - 
Purchase of Investments -  - 
Disposal and maturity of investment securities -  - 
Dividends received from investment in securities -  - 
Net cash used in investing activities (526,424,318.85)  (1,066,376,943.06)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ordinary and preference share capital, net of expenses -  - 
Share Issue Expenses -  - 
Borrowings 651,564,929.21 1,377,401,000.06 
Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders, net of scrip
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities 651,564,929.21 1,377,401,000.06 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (87,211,066.58)  108,271,015.95 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 116,949,816.45  8,678,800.50 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash & cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 29,738,749.87  116,949,816.45 

*As per our report of event date.
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Dirghayu Kumar Shrestha

Chairperson
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Shanti Laxmi Shakya

Director
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Sameer Prasad Pokharel

Director

...................................
S.B.K.C. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Surendra Bahadur K.C., FCA
Proprietor

.................................
Babu Raja Maharjan

Director
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Nawaraj Poudel

Director

Date: 2082/09/04
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Chief Executive Officer
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Account Chief
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gub k|jfx ljj/0f cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ 
g]kfnL ?k}+ofdf

ljj/0f cf=j= @)*!÷*@ cf=j= @)*)÷*!
;~rfng ultljlwaf6 v'b gub k|jfx
cfos/ vr{ cufl8sf] v'b gfkmf÷-gf]S;fgL_  -278,939,033.66_  -154,588,886.81_
;dfof]hg 

!= x|f; s§L  386,475,468.70  100,179,545.00 
@= ;DklQsf] lg;u{jf6 ePsf] gf]S;fg /-gfkmf_ – –
#= nfef+; cfo – –
$ tf]lsPsf] cfo of]hgfsf] vr{ – –
sfo{lzn k'Flhdf ePsf] kl/jt{g

!= rfn' ;DklQdf ePsf] sdL÷-j[l4_  -328,931,331.42_  -68,440,460.30_
@= rfn' bfloTjdf ePsf] j[l4÷-sdL_  9,043,219.44  -79,373,480.01_
#= tf]lsPsf] cfo of]hgfdf of]ubfg – –
$= utjif{sf] ;dfof]hg –  -529,758.93_
%= tf]lsPsf] cfo e'QmfgL – –
;~rfng ultljlwaf6 v'b gub k|jfx  -212,351,676.94_  -202,753,041.05_
nufgL ultljlwaf6 gub k|jfx

;DklQ, KnfG6 tyf pks/0f–vl/b  -244,633,126.30_  -60,548,157.81_
;DklQ, KnfG6 tyf pks/0f –lg;u{ – –
cfof]hgf nufgL tyf sfo{ k|ult–vl/b  -281,791,192.55_ -1,005,828,785.25_
cfof]hgf nufgL tyf sfo{ k|ult–lg;u{ – –
nufgL – –
lwtf]kqsf] lg;u{ tyf – –
lwtf]kqjf6 k|fKt nfef+; – –
nufgL ultljlwjf6 v'b gub k|jfx  -526,424,318.85_  -1,066,376,943.06_
ljlQo ultljlwsf] gub k|jfx

;fwf/0f ;]o/ k'FhL – –
;]o/ lgisf;g vr{ – –
lb3{sflng C0f tyf ;fk6L  651,564,929.21  1,377,401,000.06 
;fwf/0f ;]o/ wlgnfO{ nfef+; e'QmfgL

ljlQo ultljlwjf6 v'b gub k|jfx  651,564,929.21  1,377,401,000.06 
gubdf ePsf] s'n j[l4÷-sdL_  -87,211,066.58_  108,271,015.95 
jiff{/Dedf gub tyf a}+s df}Hbft  116,949,816.45  8,678,800.50 
ljlgdo b/sf] gf]S;fgLjf6 gubdf ePsf] kl/jt{g

jiff{Gtdf gub tyf j}s df}Hbft  29,738,749.87  116,949,816.45 
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts
A. Statement of Compliance			 
The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 
(NFRS) to the extent applicable and as published by 
the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) – Nepal. These 
statements have been approved from 330th Board 
of Directors’ meeting held on 2082/09/04 and have 
been recommended for approval by shareholders in 
the Annual General Meeting (AGM)	 		
	
B. About SJCL					  
Sanjen Jalavidhyut Company Limited (SJCL) is a 
subsidiary of Chilime Hydropower Company Limited and 
was incorporated in February 2010 as a public limited 
company. SJCL has developed two hydropower projects 
– Sanjen Hydroelectric Project (SHEP) having capacity 
of 42.5 MW and Sanjen (Upper) Hydroelectric Project 
(SUHEP) of capacity 14.8 MW in Rasuwa district of 
Province 3 in Nepal. The company’s registered office is 
in Maharajgunj Kathmandu. Both the hydropower plants 
have commissioned and are connected to the National 
Grid through Chilime-Trisuli 220kv transmission line at 
Chilime hub located at the Rasuwa district.	

Project Details: 
1. Sanjen Hydroelectric Project (SHEP) – 42.5 Mw 
- Commercial Operation Date (COD) – Poush 1, 2081 
(16 December 2024)
- Revenue Geenration Commenced from 2081-82. 

2. Sanjen (Upper) Hydroelectric Project (SUHEP – 
14.8 MW
- Commercial Operation Date (COD) : Ashoj 21, 2080 
(08 October 2023)
- Revenue Generation Commenced from 2080/81	
				  
C.  Basis of Preparation			 
The financial information has been prepared under the 
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation 
of assets at fair value wherever the standard requires or 
the company adopts the option given in the standards 
for such revaluation. 				  
	
i. Compliance with NFRS			 
The financial statements of SJCL have been prepared 
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 
(NFRS) issued by Accounting Standard Board of Nepal 
on 13 Sept 2013. These are based on the International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by 
International Accounting Standard Board (IASB). 
The NAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement is notified to be applicable for recognition, 
measurement and reporting of Financial Instruments.	
		
ii. Presentation of Financial Statements	
The statement of profit or loss has been prepared 
using classification ‘by nature’ method. The cash flows 
from operation within the statement of cash flows 
have been derived using the ‘indirect’ method.		
	
iii. Presentation Currency				  
The financial statements have been presented in the 

nearest Nepalese Rupees (NPR). Nepalese Rupees 
(NPR) is also the functional and presentation currency.	
	
iv. Current and Non-Current Distinction	
Assets and liabilities, wherever applicable, are bifurcated 
in current and non-current based on their respective 
maturity. Such information has been separately disclosed 
wherever applicable. 

v. Discounting					   
When the realisation of assets and settlement of obligation 
is for more than one year, the company considers the 
discounting of such assets and liabilities where the 
impact is material. Various internal and external factors 
have been considered for determining the discount rate 
to be applied to the cash flows of company.		
			 
vi. Accounting policies, critical accounting estimates 
and judgements	
Accounting Policies				  
	
NFRS requires the company to adopt accounting 
policies that are most appropriate to the company’s 
circumstances. In determining and applying accounting 
policies, management is required to make judgements 
in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, 
accounting estimate or assumption to be followed 
could materially affect the company’s reported financial 
position, results or cash flows. These accounting policies 
are consistently applied by the Company. 	

Specific accounting policies have been included in the 
specific section of the notes for each items of financial 
statements which requires disclosures of accounting 
policies or changes in accounting policies. Effect and 
nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed. 	
	
Accounting estimates and judgements	
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance 
with NFRS requires the management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions in applying 
the accounting policies that affect the reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, including 
contingencies and commitments. Due to the inherent 
uncertainty in making estimates, actual results reported 
in future periods may differ from those estimates. The 
estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on on-going basis based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimates is revised, if the revision 
affects only that period; they are recognised in the period 
of revision and the future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. 			

The significant judgements made by management in 
applying the company’s accounting policies and the 
key sources of estimation uncertainty in these financial 
statements, which together are deemed critical to the 
company’s results and financial position, are given in 
the respective sections of the notes wherever they have 
been applied. 
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Explanatory Notes
Company does not have any separable intangible 
assets. The accounting software in use by the company 
is grouped with the office equipment.			 
				  
B. Property Plant and Equipment		
Accounting Policies 
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement 
of financial position at their cost and are inclusive of 
all expenses necessary to bring the assets to working 
condition for its intended use less any subsequent 
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated 
impairment losses, if applicable. Property, plant and 
equipment are recognised as an asset, if and only if it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the company; and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably.

Upon achieving Commercial Operation Dates (COD), 
all capital work-in-progress relating to the hydropower 
projects has been capitalized into appropriate PPE 
categories. Depreciation is charged on a straight-line 
basis from the respective COD dates based on the 
estimated useful lives of the assets of the concerned 
projects. Useful life and residual values are reviewed 
at each reporting date. Any changes in the previous 
estimates of depreciation are accounded for as change 
in accounting estimates in accordance with NAS 8. 	
	
In addition to the purchase price and cost directly 
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
conditions necessary for it to be capable of operating 
in the manner intended by management if an item 
of property, plant and equipment consists of several 
components with different estimated useful lives, those 
components that are significant are depreciated over 
their individual useful lives. Subsequent costs that do 
not qualify the recognition criteria under NAS 16 are 
expensed as and when incurred. All other repairs and 
maintenance costs are expensed. 		
	
Useful Life
Explanatory Notes
Useful life of property plant and equipment has been 
depreciated under the management’s estimate of 
useful life of the particular class of assets. Assets are 
categorised in different class of assets according to their 
similar nature and characteristics. Useful life estimated 
by the management is as follows.		

Asset Class Useful life
Furniture and Fixtures 7
Heavy Equipment 7
Office Equipment 5
Other Assets 5
Tool and Equipment 7
Vehicles 7

Corporate Assets
SJCL has constructed two hydropower plants. 
Therefore, only assets that are not directly associated 
with the plants and are put to use has been categorised 

	 				  
vii. Going Concern				  
The management consider that it is appropriate to 
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing 
the financial statements.				 
	
viii. Reporting dates				  
SJCL follows the Nepalese financial year based on the 
Nepalese calendar. The corresponding dates for the 
English Calendar are as follows:	

Relevant 
Financial 
Statement

Nepalese 
Calendar

English 
Calendar

Date / Period Date / Period
Opening SFP 
date 1 Shrawan 2081 15-Jul-24

Closing SFP 
Date 32 Ashadh 2082 16-Jul-25

Comparative 
reporting period

1 Shrawan 2080- 
31 Ashadh 2081

17 July 2023 - 
15 July 2024

ix.  Materiality					   
The Company for the preparation of financial statements 
determines materiality based on the nature or magnitude, 
or both. Materiality is a pervasive constraint in financial 
reporting because it is pertinent to all of the qualitative 
characteristics.

x. Cost Constraint 			 
The company assesses whether the benefits of 
reporting particular information are likely to justify the 
costs incurred to provide and use that information. It is 
consistent with the Framework for in NFRS requirement 
not to maximise the qualitative characteristics of financial 
information and other main Framework concepts when 
the costs of doing so would exceed the benefits
	 .
D. Notes to Accounts
1. Property Plant & Equipment’s and Intangible 
Assets
A. Intangible Assets					   
			 
Accounting Policies
Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the 
company controls the asset, it is probable that future 
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to 
the company and the cost of the asset can be reliably 
measured. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are 
stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives 
and the amortisation methods of the assets are reviewed 
at least annually. Changes in the estimated useful 
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefit embodied in the assets are accounted 
for by changing the amortisation period or method, as 
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting 
estimates in accordance with NAS 8. Amortisation is 
charged to Statement of Profit or Loss on a straight-line 
basis over the useful life of license. Intangible assets 
having infinite useful life are assessed for impairment at 
each reporting date.				  
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2. Capital Work in Progress			 
Accounting Policies 
All construction-related costs for SHEP and SUHEP up to their respective COD dates have been fully capitalized 
to PPE. Accordingly, CWIP relating to major project components (civil, HM, EM, transmission line, etc.) has been 
reduced to NIL.		

(NPR)
Capital Work in progress 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

Capital Assets - 2,034,837,243
Operation and Maintenance - 1,262,297,024
Capitalization - (3,269,864,701)
Transferred to Inventory - (27,269,567)
Sanjen Upper 14.8MW
Capital Assets 5,451,393,706 5,487,319,271
Operation and Maintenance 4,135,056,702 3,817,339,945
Capitalization (9,586,450,408)
Sanjen Lower- 42.5MW - 9,304,659,216
Total Upper & Lower - 9,304,659,216

CWIP- Capital Assets 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24
Sanjen Upper - 14.8MW
Opening CWIP - 2,866,791,023
Addition during the year - 19,984,322
Adjustments - (851,938,102)
Closing Balance - 2,034,837,243
Sanjen Lower - 42.5MW
Opening CWIP 5,487,319,271 4,441,283,809
Addition during the year - 195,824,957
Adjustments (35,378,774.14) 851,412,252
Adjustments (546,790.99) (1,201,747)
Closing Balance 5,451,393,706 5,487,319,271

Total 5,451,393,706 7,522,156,515

CWIP - Operation & Maintenance 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24
Sanjen Upper - 14.8MW
Opening CWIP - 1,403,751,442
Addition during the year - 76,612,328
Adjustment - (218,066,746)
Closing Balance - 1,262,297,024
Sanjen - 42.5MW
Opening CWIP 3,817,339,945 2,856,868,855
Addition during the year 317,716,757.35 742,404,344
Adjustment - 218,066,746
Closing Balance 4,135,056,702 3,817,339,945

Total 4,135,056,702 5,079,636,969
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 Operation and Maintenance Expenses-42.5 MW (With Capitalized Portion) NPR
Particulars As at 15-July-2024 Addition As at 15-Dec- 2024

Salary 216,237,941.63 10,872,232.91 227,110,174.54
Wages 147,88,454 118,340 14,906,794
Allowances and Benefits 160,011,393.54 8,422,534.41 168,433,927.95
Overtime Allowances 21,335,097.96 1,130,028.87 22465126.83
Employee Leave Provision 15,803,498.83 - 15,803,498.83
Medical Expenses 16,078,164.12 21,784,92 18,256,656.12
Employee Provident Fund 8,949,364.81 - 8,949,364.81
Social Security Fund 22,692,465.53 2,174,446.58 24,866,912.11
Employee Insurance 4,029,021.95 118,978.25 4,148,000.20
Employee Welfare 515,647.66 - 515,647.66
NEA Employee Overhead 6,218,278.07 - 6,218,278.07
Other Services 7,565,582 50,588.00 7,616,169.78
Consulting Services 6,745,312 - 6,745,312
Electricity 8,686,622 658,578.33 9,345,199.97
Other Repair Maintenance 2,745,279 78,252.50 2,823,531.33
Fuel Vehicle 38,710,387 781,577.14 39,491,964.39
Fuel - Heavy Equipment 9,044,998 760,643.23 9,805,641.25
Mobil and Lubricants 1,966,942 44,945.75 2,011,888.09
Vehicle Repairs and 
Maintenance 31,443,446 639,313.35 32,082,759.64

Repair Equipment 7,837,480 31,753.00 7,869,232.89
Civil Repair and Maintenance 9,497,904 674,196.85 10,172,101.34
Rent 1,202,066 - 1,202,066
Insurance 5,783,105 71,002.60 5,854,107.77
Licence Fee 7,756,740 - 7,756,740
Land & Property Tax 171,505 254,101.00 425,606.00
Postage and Telegram 193,765 - 193,765
Telephone and Internet 4,824,220 - 4,824,220
Land Lease 9,416,083 - 9,416,083
Training 1,523,432 31,020.00 1,554,452.27
Printing and Stationery 5,629,710 59,343.26 5,689,053.62
Books and Periodicals 238,555 - 238,555
Advertisements 6,904,736 45,000.00 6,949,735.91
Guest Entertainment 3,280,855 163,525.00 3,444,380.27
Examination expenses 6,825 - 6,825
Misc Expenses 9,662,386 268,684.41 9,931,070.03
Travel 7,277,046  179,925.00  7,456,971.47 
Transport 1,891,775 - 1,891,775
Meeting Expenses 10,706 - 10,706
Feasibility Study 5,304,193 - 5,304,193
Interest - Finance Cost - EPF 2,900,965,517 277,632,504.21 3,178,598,020.84
Interest - Finance Cost Others 67,258,569 8,411,609.59 75,670,178.21
Interest - Finance Cost - Lease 4,471,607 628,700.37 5,100,307.34
Service Fee 2,424,534 - 2,424,534
Annual Day Events and 
Celebrations 393,232 - 393,231.80



37

;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8, kGw|f}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*!÷@)*@

Particulars As at 15-July-2024 Addition As at 15-Dec- 2024
Bank Charges 11,648,096 95,746.70 11,743,842.33
Social and Local Development 56,357,982 368,901.81 56,726,883.33
Compensations 11,318 - 11,318
Legal Expenses 887,445 - 887,445
Donation 425,850 - 425,850
Public Hearing 429,670 - 429,670
Royalty 225,000 225,000
Depreciation 89,846,973 546,792.23 90,393,765.62
Adjustments 238,169 - 238,169

Total 3,817,339,944 317,716,757.35 4,135,056,701.71

3. Term Deposits		
Accounting Policies 
These are deposits and margins with various entities 
and authorities, are made by the company as the part of 
the operational or regulatory requirements.	
Explanatory Notes					   

NPR
Term Deposits  16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

 
Total  

4. Inventories 	
Accounting Policies 
Inventories are carried at the lower of net realisable 
value or cost. Cost comprises of all costs of purchase, 
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing 
the inventories to their present location and condition. 
Cost is measured using first in first out method. Net 
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of 
completion and the necessary estimated expenses. 
Cost is determined using the First-In, First-Out (FIFO) 
method, in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standard 
(NAS) 2	
	
Composition of Inventories	
Corporate Office Store: These inventories consist of 
stationery supplies, vehicle spare parts, plant spare 
parts and other goods for office use. 		  .	
	
"Store, Spare Parts and Tools
NAS 16, paragraph 8 and 9 specifically states that:
•	 Spare parts and servicing equipment are usually 

carried as inventory and recognized in SoPL when 
consumed.

•	 Major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify 
as PPE when and entity expects to use them during 
more than one period.

•	 The standard does not prescribe the unit measure 
for recognition and judgment is to be applied in 
determining what constitutes an item of PPE."

	
Explanatory Notes					   

NPR
Inventory    

Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24
Corporate 
Office Store - 2,834,219.00

Project Store 104,689,690.28 -
Spares SUHEP - 28,892,984.40
 Total 104,689,690.28 31,727,203.40

5. Advance Payments, Prepayments and 
Deposits	
Accounting Policies 
These assets are subject annual review for any indication 
of impairment.
		
Explanatory Notes
Advances to contractors and consultants	
Advances to contractors and consultants pertain to the 
contractual payments to the contractors and consultants 
and will be settled when the contracted work is completed 
and settled.	
Advances to Contractors and 
Consultants   NPR

Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24
ECI-BGCCPL 
JV - Lot 2 Upper  1,354,982.51  1,354,976.90 

SEW Tundi JV - 
Lot 2 Lower  50,000,000.00  50,000,099.99 

Dongfang 
Electric 
International 
Corp - Lot 3 
Upper & Lower

 11,404,804.43  11,449,344.00 

Total  62,759,786.94  62,804,420.89 
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6.Deposits and Margins
Accounting Policies
These are deposits and margins with various entities 
and authorities, are made by the company as the part of 
the operational or regulatory requirements.	

Explanatory Notes
Deposits and Margins NPR

Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24
LC Margin – HBL 1,237,722.72 606,602.75
Nepal Telecom 64,500.00 64,500.99
Margin Deposit 
HBL(Chilime 
Hydropower 
Company 
Limited)

1,275,000 1,275,000.00

Police Petrol 
Pump Deposit 200,000.00 200,000.00

Guarantee 
Margin HBL(Exim 
Code)

 - 30,000.00

Total 2,777,222.72 2,176,102.75

7. Prepayments		
Accounting Policies
Instances where the payments have been made and 
where the expenses pertain to the future period(s) 
are recognised as prepayments. These amounts are 
charged to statement of profit or loss in the period to 
which they relate with.

Explanatory Notes
Prepayment NPR

Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24
Prepaid Insurance  5,254,348.09  2,924,420.06 
Advance Rent  859,600.00  859,600.00 

Total  6,113,948.09  3,784,020.06 

8. Taxes		
Accounting Policies 
Current Taxes		
SJCL applies NAS 12 Income Taxes in accounting for 
taxes on income. Income tax payable on taxable profits 
(Current Tax) is recognised as an expense in the period 
in which the profits arise. Withholding taxes are also 
treated as income taxes. Income tax recoverable on tax 
allowable losses is recognised as a current tax asset 
only to the extent that it is regarded as recoverable by 
offset against taxable profits arising in the current or prior 
period. Current tax is measured using tax rates and tax 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
at the statement of financial position date. Current tax 
assets and liabilities have been netted off, as there is a 
legal right to settle those amounts on net basis. The net 
current tax asset / liability has been reported separately 
in the statement of financial position.	
			 

Deferred Taxes		
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, 
on temporary differences arising from the differences 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial 
statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates 
and legislation enacted or substantively enacted by the 
statement of financial position date, which are expected 
to apply when the deferred tax asset is realised or the 
deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are only offset when there is both a legal right to 
set-off and an intention to settle on a net basis. 	

Explanatory Notes
8.1 Current Tax Assets and Liabilities	

Current Tax Assets NPR

 Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

Advance Taxes  11,130,622.05 12,016,649.00 
 Total  11,130,622.05 12,016,649.00 

Current Tax Assets represent advance withholding taxes 
deducted at source by third parties, including banks on 
interest income earned by the Company. The Company 
is liable for income tax only on its finance income, after 
adjusting such advance tax credits. As the Company is 
under a tax-holiday period for its hydropower operations, 
no income tax arises from the generation of electricity, 
and only finance-income–related tax is applicable during 
this exemption period.	
		
8.2 Income Tax Expenses		
Both SUHEP and SHEP have commenced commercial 
operations, and the Company has begun generating 
revenue. Nevertheless, income arising from the 
generation of hydroelectricity is not subject to tax, 
resulting in no taxable operating income for the year. The 
Company has, however, earned finance income, which 
remains taxable under prevailing laws. In accordance 
with the applicable income tax incentives, the Company 
is entitled to a full income tax exemption for the first ten 
years from the date of commencement of commercial 
operations. Upon expiry of this exemption period, the 
Company will be liable to corporate income tax at 50% 
of the applicable rate for the subsequent five years.	
			 
8.3 Deferred Taxes		
As per prevailing tax laws, accumulated tax losses are 
eligible for carry-forward and set-off against taxable 
profits for a period of seven subsequent income years 
from the year of origination. However, the Company has 
been granted a ten-year income tax exemption under the 
applicable incentive provisions. In view of this extended 
tax holiday period, it is not probable that the carried-
forward tax losses will be utilized within their permissible 
set-off period. Accordingly, no deferred tax asset has 
been recognized in respect of such tax losses, as their 
recovery in the foreseeable future is considered unlikely.

9. Term Deposits with Banks
Accounting Policies
These term deposits are classified as held to maturity 
and recognised at amortised cost using effective interest 
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rate. Since there are no additional costs involved the 
intrinsic interest on these instruments are considered 
to be the effective interest rate and they cover for the 
default risk and tie value of money. 

Explanatory Notes
The term deposit with Himalayan bank limited as the 
lien for the purpose of issuance of guarantee has been 
classified as non-current. All the other term deposits 
have maturity period of less than one year. These deposit 
bear interests. The commercial banks are regulated by 
the central bank and the risks associated with these 
deposits are considered not to be significant. Company 
has made term deposits with commercial banks as 
under. 		

NPR

Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

Himalayan Bank 
Limited (Lien against 
Custom guarantee)

270,000.00 270,000.00

Total 270,000.00 270,000.00

10. Trade Receivables
Accounting Policies
Trade receivables represent amounts due from 
customers for sale of power and other services rendered 
in the normal course of business. These balances are 
carried at their invoiced value and are unsecured in 
nature. The Company assesses the recoverability of 
receivables at each reporting date based on ageing, past 
collection trends, customer credit profile, and specific 
identifiable risks. No receivables have been written off 
during the year.		

Explanatory Notes				  
NPR

Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24
Receivable 
From NEA 

 334,662,992.76  52,418,035.10 

Total  334,662,992.76  52,418,035.10 

11. Other Financial Assets		
Accouting Policies	
These financial assets are classified as loans and 
receivables and recognised at amortised cost using 
effective interest rate. These advances do not bear any 
interest and are considered to be settled within normal 
course of operation. The company considers that there is 
nominal risk of default on these advances. The company 
considers that the cost of these assets are present the 
amortised costs.

Explanatory Notes	
Other Advances  NPR

Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

Staff Advances  20,000.00  185,000.00 
Bhajuratna 
Engineering

 48,000.00  48,000.00 

Advance to 
Rasuwa DAO - 
for Land

 1,600,391.12  1,600,391.12 

NRB Margin 
Receivables HBL

 1,098,797.00  1,606,197.00 

Other Advances  55,805.05  10,000.00 
Other 
Receivables 
(Contractors 
Others)

 22,020,995.75  47,582,389.49 

NEA Dhunche 
Distribution 
Center

 167,979.92  2,256,715.68 

Achyut Singh 
Basnet
Petty cash 
Corporate office

 - 

Kathmandu 
Upatyaka 
Khanepani 
Limited

 3,288.32  3,064.09 

Total  25,015,257.16  53,291,757.38 

12. Financial Instruments			 
Accounting Policies 			 
The company recognises financial instruments when 
it becomes a party to the terms of the contract, 
which is the trade date or the settlement date. SJCL 
applies NAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement the recognition, classification and 
measurement, and de-recognition of financial assets 
and financial liabilities, the impairment of financial 
assets, and hedge accounting. 			 

Classification and measurement		
Financial assets are classified under four categories as 
required by NAS 39, namely, 	

S.N NAS 39 classification - Financial Assets
1 Fair Value through Profit or Loss
2 Held to Maturity
3 Loans & Receivables
4 Available for Sale

Financial Liabilities are classified under two categories 
as required by NAS 39, namely, 	

S.N NAS 39 classification - Financial Liabilities
1 Fair Value through Profit or Loss
2 Other Financial Liabilities

At initial recognition, the company measures financial 
instruments (financial assets and liabilities) at its fair 
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial 
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair 
value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. 
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De-recognition			
The company derecognises a financial asset, or a 
portion of a financial asset, from its balance sheet where 
the contractual rights to cash flows from the asset have 
expired, or have been transferred, usually by sale, and 
with them either substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset or significant risks and rewards, along with the 
unconditional ability to sell or pledge the asset.	

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the 
liability has been settled, has expired or has been 
extinguished.	
		
12.1 Financial Assets			 
Accounting Policies
Financial asset is any asset that is:		
(a)	 Cash			 
(b)	 An equity instrument of another entity
(c)	 A contractual right:			 

i.	 To receive cash or another financial asset from 
another entity; or			 

ii.	 To exchange financial assets or financial 
liabilities with another entity under conditions 
that are potentially favourable to the entity; 
or	

(d)	 A contract that will or may be settled in the entity's 
own equity instruments and is:
i.	 A non-derivative for which the entity is or may 

be obliged to receive a variable number of the 
entity's own equity instruments; or		
	

ii.	 A derivative that will or may be settled other 
than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash 
or another financial asset for a fixed number of 
the entity's own equity instruments. 

Explanatory Notes
12.1.1	 Bank Balances 			 
These financial assets are classified as Bank balances. 
The call accounts are interest bearing and current 
accounts are non-interest bearing. The company 
considered that there are nominal risks associated with 
these instruments.

NPR
S.N  Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

 1 
 Everest 
Bank 
Limited 

 186,615.46  335,016.12 

 2 
 Himalayan 
Bank 
Limited 

 3,199,512.82  383,584.01 

 3 
 Nepal Bank 
Limited - 
Dhunche 

 93,094.16  93,044.16 

 4 
 Mega 
Bank New 
Account 

 1,917,254.52  31,605,058.41 

 5 
 Siddhartha 
Bank 
Limited 

 3,344,615.19  21,293,022.66 

 6 
 Century 
Bank 
Limited 

 -  929,711.25 

 7 
 Prabhu 
Bank 
Limited 

 934,027.73  - 

 8 
 Kumari 
Bank 
Limited 

 19,198,814.77  58,167,778.07 

 9 
 Sanima 
Bank 
Limited 

 232,172.35  711,230.11 

 10  Laxmi Bank 
Limited 

 617,735.74  3,416,464.53 

 11  NMB Bank 
Limited 

 14,907.13  14,907.13 

 Total 29,738,749.87  116,949,816.45 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 			 
These bank balances also represent the cash and 
cash equivalents of the company. These can be readily 
converted into cash with nominal risk.

13. Share Capital		
Accounting Policies 
Equity Instruments are:		
Any contract that evidences a residual interest in the 
assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities 
meeting both of the following condition		

(i)	 No contractual obligation to deliver cash / another 
financial instrument		

(ii)	 Will or may be settled in the company’s own equity 	
	

SJCL applies NAS 32, Financial Instruments: 
Presentation, to determine whether funding is either 
a financial liability (debt) or equity. Issued financial 
instruments or their components are classified as 
liabilities if the contractual arrangement results in the 
company having a present obligation to either deliver 
cash or another financial asset, or a variable number 
of equity shares, to the holder of the instrument. If this 
is not the case, the instrument is generally an equity 
instrument and the proceeds included in equity, net of 
transaction costs. 		

Dividends and other returns to equity holders are 
recognised when paid or declared by the members at 
the AGM and treated as a deduction from equity. 	
	
Where issued financial instruments contain both liability 
and equity components, these are accounted for 
separately. The fair value of the debt is estimated first 
and the balance of the proceeds is included within equity. 
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Explanatory Notes
Capital in Value

16-Jul-25    
Authorised capital   3,750,000,000
Issued capital   3,650,000,000
Paid up capital   3,650,000,000
     
15-Jul-24   Capital in Value
Authorised capital   3,750,000,000
Issued capital   3,650,000,000
Paid up capital   3,285,000,000

   

Share Capital Reconciliation 
Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

Opening Share Capital  3,650,000,000  3,650,000,000 
Capital Issued during the period    
Allotment Adjustments    
Total  3,650,000,000  3,650,000,000 

Percentage Holding in Paid Up Share Capital 
Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

Chilime Hydropower Company Limited 39.36% 39.36%
Nepal Electricity Authority 10.36% 10.36%
Various Municipalities – Rasuwa District 1.28% 1.28%
General Public 15.00% 15.00%
Depositors of EPF 19.50% 19.50%
Project Effected Local 10.00% 10.00%
Employees of Promoter Companies 3.50% 3.50%
Employees of EPF 1.00% 1.00%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

Shareholding Structure as per MOA
Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

Chilime Hydropower Company Limited 39.36% 39.36%
Nepal Electricity Authority 10.36% 10.36%
Various Municipalities – Rasuwa District 1.28% 1.28%
General Public 15.00% 15.00%
Depositors of EPF 19.50% 19.50%
Project Effected Local 10.00% 10.00%
Employees of Promoter Companies 3.50% 3.50%
Employees of EPF 1.00% 1.00%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

14. Other Equity (Reserves and Surpluses)
Explanatory Notes

NPR
Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

Capital Premium    
Retained Earning  (674,787,324.03)  (395,848,291.37)
Revaluation Reserve
Deferred Tax Reserve 

Total  (674,787,324.03)  (395,848,291.37)
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Share (Capital) Premium		
Any premium collected on issue of shares to the public 
is credited to this reserve. This reserve is utilised only for 
issue of the bonus share capital.		

Retained Earning		
Earning made during the current and previous years not 
distributed has been credited to this reserve.	
	
Revaluation Reserve		
This is the reserve created to include any gain on 
revaluation of property plant and equipment.	

Deferred Tax Reserve		
It is company’s policy to appropriate the equivalent 
portion of the deferred tax assets when a net deferred 
tax asset arises. In event where deferred tax liability 
arises such amounts are reclassified within the equity to 
retained earnings.	

15. Financial Liabilities		
A financial liability is any liability that is: 		
(a)	 Contractual obligation:		
i.	 To deliver cash or another financial asset to another 

entity; or 		
ii.	 To exchange financial assets or financial liabilities 

with another entity under conditions that are 
potentially unfavourable to the entity; or 

(b)	 A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s 
own equity instruments and is: 

i.	 A non-derivative for which the entity is or may be 
obliged to deliver a variable number of the entity’s 
own equity instruments; or 		

ii.	 A derivative that will or may be settled other than by 
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another 
financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own 
equity instruments. 		

15.1.1	 Borrowings
Accounting Policies	
The loans and borrowings include amount received from 
Employee Provident Fund and Citizen Investment Trust. 
These borrowings have been classified as financial 
liabilities carried at amortised cost using effective 
interest rate. The company has taken loan from Nepal 
Investment Mega Bank at the year end as well.	

Explanatory Notes
Non-Current Portion					   

NPR
Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

From 
Employee 
Provident 
Fund

 9,101,625,635.62 5,083,933,000.00 

Capitalised 
Interest – 
EPF

 
3,886,127,706.41 

Sub Total  9,101,625,635.62 8,970,060,706.41 
Current 
Portion

16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

Chilime 
Hydropower 
Company 
Limited

 680,000,000.00  330,000,000.00 

NIMB  170,000,000.00 
Sub Total  850,000,000.00  330,000,000.00 

Total  9,951,625,635.62 9,300,060,706.41 

15.1.2	 Other Financial Liabilities and 
Payables	
Other Liabilities and Payables				 

NPR

Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

S.E.W. Tundi J/V  12,314,929.08  16,713,402.55 

Dongfang Electric 
International

 382,352.74  252,151.00 

Nepal Hydro & Electric 
Limited

 500,000.00  30,016.43 

Mudvary & Joshi 
Construction P LTD

 1,591,050.00  1,591,050.00 

Chilime Engineering 
& Services Company 
Limited

 13,687,859.11  5,557,750.41 

Payable to Employees  14,480,681.29  10,591,402.08 

Payable to Contractors 
and Consultants

 - 

 NEA - Overhead  1,797,534.98  1,330,558.61 

Chilime Jalavidhyut 
Company Limited

 223,125.00  - 

Vat Payable  2,158,048.26  1,326,024.68 

TDS Payable  3,177,731.62  4,715,944.64 

Liabilities under Finance 
Lease

 15,606,309.86  15,450,700.85 

Other Liabilities and 
Payables

 607,591.39  636,406.85 

Audit Fee Payable  373,525.00  381,887.50 

Achyut Singh Basnet  1,289,400.00 

Staff Union  -  47,600.00 

Miscellaneous  181,607.27  1,024.84 

Total  68,371,745.60  58,625,920.44 

15.1.3	 Other Non-Current Liabilities 
Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

Deposit 
Received from 
Contractors

 232,421,799.00 235,793,066.64 

Translation 
Difference on 
Retention

 24,246,660.61  20,562,751.59 

Total  256,668,459.61 256,355,818.23 
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15.2 Fair Value Measurements of Financial 
Instruments		
Accounting Policies
In accordance with NFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, 
the Company categorises financial instruments carried 
on the reporting sheet at fair value using a three-level 
hierarchy. Financial instruments categorised as Level 
1 are valued using quoted market prices and therefore 
there is minimal judgement applied in determining fair 
value. However, the fair value of financial instruments 
categorised as Level 2 and, in particular, Level 3 
is determined using valuation techniques including 
discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation models. 
In addition, in line with market practice, the company 
applies credit, debit and funding valuation adjustments in 
determining the fair value of its uncollateralised assets. 
A description of these adjustments is set out as under.

These valuation techniques involve management 
judgement and estimates the extent of which depends 
on the complexity of the instrument and the availability of 
market observable information. Valuation techniques for 
Level 2 financial instruments use inputs that are based 
on observable market data. Level 3 financial instruments 
are those where at least one input, which could have 
a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation, is 
not based on observable market data. Determining 
the appropriate assumptions to be used for Level 3 
financial instruments requires significant management 
judgement. Further details of the company’s Level 3 
financial instruments and the sensitivity of their valuation 
including the effect of applying reasonably possible 
alternative assumptions in determining their fair value 
are set out wherever required. 		

Valuation of financial assets and liabilities 	 Assets 
and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values 
are disclosed have been classified into three levels 
according to the quality and reliability of information 
used to determine the fair values. 	

Level 1 - Level 1 fair value measurements are those 
derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as 
level 1 predominantly comprise equity shares, treasury 
bills and other government securities. 		

Level 2 - Level 2 valuations are those where quoted 
market prices are not available, for example where the 
instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to 
be active or valuation techniques are used to determine 
fair value and where these techniques use inputs that 
are based significantly on observable market data. 
Examples of such financial instruments include most 
over-the-counter derivatives, financial institution issued 
securities, certificates of deposit and certain asset-
backed securities. 		

Level 3 - Level 3 portfolios are those where at least 
one input, which could have a significant effect on the 
instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable 
market data. These are valued using various valuation 
techniques that require significant management 
judgement in determining appropriate assumptions, 
including earnings multiples and estimated future cash 
flows. 		

15.2.1	 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities Carried at Fair Value		
There are no financial assets or financial liabilities 
carried at fair value.		

15.2.2	 Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Carried 
at Amortised Costs		
Assets and liabilities carried at amortised costs using 
effective interest rate as below, do not have the active 
market quoted price nor they have observable similar 
value inputs. Management considers that the cost and 
/ recognised value of these instruments represents 
the fair value and these assets and liabilities will be 
recovered or settled at the recognised amount without 
significant risk in normal course of the business.

Assets and Liabilities 2024-25									        NPR	

Particulars Carrying amount Fair Value
Quoted 
prices

Observable 
Inputs

Unobservable 
inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets
Term Deposit - non 
current 270,000 270,000 - - 270,000

Trade Receivables 334,662,992.76 334,662,992.76 - - 334,662,992.76
Other Advances 25,015,257.16 25,015,257.16 - - 25,015,257.16
Bank Balances Call and 
Current 29,738,749.87 29,738,749.87 - - 29,738,749.87

Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 9,951,625,635.62 9,951,625,635.62 - - 9,951,625,635.62
Other Liabilities and 
Payables 325,040,205.21 325,040,205.21 - - 325,040,205.21
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Assets and Liabilities 2023-24
Term Deposit - non 
current 270,000.00 270,000.00 - - 270,000.00

Trade Receivables 52,418,035.10 52,418,035.10 - - 52,418,035.10
Other Advances 53,291,757.38 53,291,757.38 - - 53,291,757.38
Bank Balances Call and 
Current 116,949,816.45 116,949,816.45 - - 116,949,816.45

Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 9,300,060,706.41 9,300,060,706.41 - - 9,300,060,706.41
Other Liabilities and 
Payables 314,981,738.67 314,981,738.67 - - 314,981,738.67

15.2.3 Provisions					   
NPR

Particulars 16-Jul-25 15-Jul-24

Employee Leave 
Provision

 813,838.61 1,144,212

Other Provision  604,144.31 1,289,018
Total 1,417,982.92 2,433,230

Leave provision of Employees are calculated for the year 
and expenses of leave during the year are recognized 
through Income Statement. The leave provision for 
permanent employees have been provided herewith. 
	
16. Revenue		
Accounting Policies 		
"Revenue is recognized in accordance with NFRS 15, 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Revenue 
is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the 
economic benefits associated with the hydropower 
generation will flow to the company and the revenue can 
be reliably measured.

The Company sells electricity generated from SHEP and 
SUHEP to Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) under long-
term Power Purchase Agreements.
Revenue is recognized when electricity is supplied and 
confirmed by NEA based on monthly energy dispatch 
reports."

Explanatory Notes					   
NPR

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Electricity 
Sales to NEA

 878,455,015.20  197,880,774.00 

Revenue from 
Contract with 
Customers

 -  - 

Finance 
Income

 1,428,577.24  5,156,072.11 

Other income  3,015,997.74  3,138,160.00 
Total  882,899,590.18 206,175,006.11 

16.1 Electricity Sales to NEA		
Project SHEP has been capitalised and commenced 
revenue generation from Poush 1, 2081 while Project 
SUHEP has been capitalized and commenced revenue 
generation from 1st Kartik 2080. Revenue is recognized 
at the time of invoicing to the Nepal Electricity Authority 
(NEA) in accordance with the terms of the Power 
Purchase Agreement.	

NPR
Particular 2024-25 2023-24

Sanjen Upper 
Hydroelectric 
Project

 301,301,083.69  197,880,774.00 

Sanjen 
Hydroelectric 
Project

 577,153,931.51  - 

Total  878,455,015.20  197,880,774.00 

16.2 Revenue from Contract with Customers
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Rental income - -

Total   

16.3 Finance Income
NPR

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Finance Income 1,428,577.24  5,156,072.11 
 

Total  1,428,577.24  5,156,072.11 

16.4 Other Income					   
NPR

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Other Income  2,976,997.74  3,133,160.00 
Tender Sales  39,000.00  5,000.00 

Total  3,015,997.74  3,138,160.00 

17. Employee Benefit		
Accounting Policies
Company applies NAS 19 Employee benefits for 
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accounting most of the components of staff costs.

Short-term employee benefits		
Salaries, allowances, socials security expenses, 
performance bonuses as provided in the law and other 
employee related expenses are recognised over the 
period in which the employees provide services to which 
the payments relate. 		

Post-retirement benefits - Defined Contribution 
Scheme		
SJCL provides contribution to Social Security Fund (SSF) 
as post-retirement benefits under defined contribution 
scheme. A certain percentage of basic salary is paid 
into the scheme on monthly basis. SJCL recognises 
contributions due in respect of the accounting period to 
profit and loss. Any contributions unpaid at the reporting 
date are included as a liability.		

Post-retirement benefits - Defined Benefit 
Schemes	
The company operates gratuity, accumulated annual 
leave payments and sick leave payments as post-
retirement benefits as defined benefit schemes. 
Since only four employees are eligible for such 
benefits under cost benefit consideration independent 
actuarial assessment of post-employment liability is 
not undertaken. However, liabilities are valued and 
recognised at each reporting date on the full obligation 
basis as if such benefits payable to employees if the 
employees retired on the reporting date. 	

Explanatory Notes
17.1	 Employment Benefit Costs
Staff Expenses – Corporate NPR
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Current Employee Benefits 
Salary  7,723,934.00  7,618,412.86 
Wages  135,320.00  - 
Allowances and 
Benefits

 6,835,331.30  6,476,197.66 

Overtime 
Allowances

 1,128,022.84  927,197.60 

Employee leave  704,611.77  633,237.20 
Employee Medical  638,884.00  623,986.00 
Employee 
Insurance

 133,474.30  74,598.00 

Training  - 
Capacity 
Development 
exposures 

 - 

 NEA Overhead 
expenses

 1,821,717.07 

Post-Employment Benefits
Defined 
Contribution Plan 
Expenses – EPF

 161,213.90  75,220.70 

Defined 
Contribution Plan 
Expenses -Social 
Security Fund

 1,222,359.00  1,185,598.20 

Defined Benefit 
Plan Expenses

 - 

Total 20,504,868.18 17,614,448.22 

Staff Expenses – SUHEP 14.8 MW
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Current 
Employee 
Benefits
Salary 14,083,044.00  10,793,597.31 
Wages  107,500.00 
Allowances and 
Benefits

 8,595,831.23  6,843,860.66 

Overtime 
Allowances

 2,329,429.28  1,923,109.78 

Employee Leave 
Provision

 1,140,231.64  1,124,649.51 

Medical 
Expenses

 1,172,690.00  - 

Employee 
Insurance

 181,114.43  - 

Training  - 
Staff Welfare  - 
Post 
Employment 
Benefits
Defined 
Contribution Plan 
Expenses - EPF

 - 

 Defined 
Contribution 
Plan Expenses 
-Social Security 
Fund

 2,816,608.80  2,174,994.86 

Total  30,318,949.38  22,967,712.12 

Staff Expenses – SHEP 42.5 MW
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Current Employee Benefits
Salary  14,988,898.82  19,497,922.05 
Wages  217,000.00  227,556.00 
Allowances and 
Benefits

 8,378,134.99  11,704,317.01 

Overtime 
Allowances

 1,922,050.88  2,497,211.11 

Employee Leave 
Provision

 1,955,262.70  1,940,419.77 
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Medical Expenses  -  - 
Employee 
Insurance

 189,688.74  - 

Training  - 
Staff Welfare  - 
Post 
Employment 
Benefits

 - 

Defined 
Contribution Plan 
Expenses - EPF

61259.11

 Defined 
Contribution Plan 
Expenses -Social 
Security Fund

 2,997,779.75 3777066.20

Total  30,648,815.88  39,705,751.25 

Employee benefits costs is charged for the services 
rendered during the period and for the allowances 
and benefits pertaining to the period during which 
such services are rendered and the employee related 
expenses incurred for such periods.

Employee benefit costs for Corporate Staff is charged 
directly to profit or loss and those employee costs 
pertaining or directly attributable to the projects have 
been charged to the capital work in progress of the 
individual projects within operation and maintenance 
costs. Upon receipt of COD, all the employee benefit 
costs for part of Statement of Profit or loss. 	
	
17.2 Post-Employment Benefits		
17.2.1 Defined Contribution Plan		
Employees are entitled to the Social Security scheme 
(SSF) contribution of 20% of their salaries under 
defined contribution plan. These amounts are deposited 
to Social Security Fund (SSF). Once deposited the 
company is absolved from further obligations. 		
	
17.2.2	 Defined Benefit Plan		
The company does not have any employees who qualify 
for defined benefit payments. The entire workforce 
comprises of the contracted staffs with four staff being 
deputed under secondment from Nepal Electricity 
Authority (NEA). The four staff seconded from NEA will 
receive the defined benefits under NEA by laws from 
NEA for which SJCL pays special overhead to NEA. 
Therefore, no actuarial measurement of defined benefit 
obligation is calculated.			 

18. Depreciation and Amortisations	
 Depreciation and amortization expense comprises:
-Depreciation on plant assets (civil, EM, HM, TL)
-Depreciation on office/corporate assets
-Amortization of software (if any)		

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method. 
Asset-wise depreciation is detailed in the depreciation 
schedules for SHEP, SUHEP, and Office Assets.

NPR
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Depreciation of 
Property Plant 
and Equipment

 386,475,469.33  100,179,545.00 

Amortisation 
of Intangible 
assets 

Total  386,475,469.33  100,179,545.00 

19 Operating and Administrative Expenses
19.1 Operating and Administrative Expenses - 
SUHEP 14.8 MW

NPR
Particulars  2024-25  2023-24 

Staff Benefits 30,318,949.00  22,967,712.12 
Staff Welfare  - 
Small Tools  97,180.00  - 
Other Services  198,661.62  269,959.31 
Electricity  48,556.20  285,030.00 
Consultancy 
Services

 9,109,900.48  97,500.00 

Other 
Repair and 
Maintenance

 37,949.25  48,400.00 

Fuel Vehicle  792,597.04  524,905.49 
Fuel - Heavy 
Equipment

 733,615.92  295,771.11 

Mobil and 
Lubricants

 737,342.11  79,735.02 

Vehicle 
Repair and 
Maintenance

 1,139,037.40  1,448,642.17 

Heavy 
Equipment 
Maintenance

 158,257.44  57,645.82 

Civil Repair and 
Maintenance

 106,025.64  100,000.00 

Transmission 
Repair and 
Maintenance

 1,576,869.50  - 

Rent  - 
Insurance  6,184,613.34  6,016,585.61 
License Fee  -  156,000.00 
Land & Property 
Tax

 229,805.00  - 

Postage and 
Telegram

 - 

Telephone and 
Internet

 177,445.00  156,660.00 

Training  98,969.12  45,000.00 
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Printing and 
Stationery

 201,097.30  166,931.63 

Books and 
Periodicals

 11,250.00  9,500.00 

Advertisements  194,828.00  175,678.00 
Guest 
Entertainment

 220,616.85  203,132.56 

Annual Day 
Events and 
Celebration

 - 

Donation  15,000.00 
Misc Expenses  588,511.50  475,711.62 
Meeting 
Expenses

 - 

Travelling 
Expenses

 237,325.00  182,400.00 

Legal Fee  100,000.00  100,000.00 
Social and Local 
Development

 403,534.71  1,126,141.89 

.Compensations  - 
Bank Charges  390,581.94  147,221.00 
Royalty  7,876,828.69  5,431,153.00 

Total 61,970,348.57 40,582,416.35

19.2 Operating and Administrative Expenses – 
SHEP 42.5 MW

NPR
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Staff Benefits 30,648,816 -
Staff Welfare  - -
Small Tools  - -
Other Services  530,943.18 -
Electricity  518,772.33 -
Consultancy 
Services

 25,580,531.36 -

Other Repair and 
Maintenance

 199,089.66 -

Fuel- Vehicle  1,373,555.30 -
Fuel - Heavy 
Equipment

 844,727.64 -

Mobil and 
Lubricants

 740,995.93 -

Vehicle Repair and 
Maintenance

 1,474,580.02 -

Heavy Equipment 
Maintenance

 338,745.75 -

Civil Repair and 
Maintenance

 1,397,091.45 -

Transmission 
Repair and 
Maintenance

 - 
-

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Rent on land  - -
Insurance  3,708,220.60 -
License Fee  - -
Land & Property 
Tax

 349,725.00 -

Postage and 
Telegram

 - -

Telephone and 
Internet

 313,611.45 -

Training  175,420.37 -
Printing and 
Stationery

 264,615.32 -

Books and 
Periodicals

 20,000.00 -

Advertisements  195,504.35 -
Guest 
Entertainment

 253,557.55 -

Ceremonial 
Expenses

 157,613.97 -

Annual Day Events 
and Celebration

 - -

Donation  - -
Misc- Expenses  1,130,394.85 -
Meeting Expenses  - -
Travelling Expenses  412,650.00 -
Legal Fee  106,000.00 -
Social and Local 
Development

 1,863,586.44 -

Compensations  - -
Bank Charges  1,121,264.00 -
Royalty  16,530,334.73 -
NEA Other 
Expenses

 - -

Total 90,250,347.57 -

18.3 Operating and Administrative Expenses – 
Corporate

NPR
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Advertisement  423,037.00  292,410.00 
Annual Day and 
events expenses

 5,000.00  795,199.00 

Audit Expenses  250,910.06  129,095.43 
Audit Fee  528,387.50  573,475.00 
Bank Charges  3,231.24  4,627.77 
BOD Facilities  289,000.00  240,000.00 
BOD Meeting 
Allowances

 2,010,100.00  2,047,900.00 

Books and 
Periodicals

 40,630.00  47,050.00 
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Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Ceremonial 
Expense

 111,324.00  76,681.00 

Consultancy 
Services

 671,405.00  1,260,463.00 

Examination 
Expenses

 40,000.00  - 

Finance Cost 
under Financial 
Lease

 -  10,364.02 

Fuel and 
Lubricants

 1,165,790.86  1,340,742.01 

Guest 
Refreshments

 574,004.93  490,884.00 

House Rent  5,157,600.00  4,298,000.00 
Insurance  235,310.30  78,630.22 
Land & Property 
Tax

 139,530.00  - 

Legal Fee  200,800.00  - 
License Fee  -  552,631.00 
Meeting 
expenses

 591,351.14  633,089.21 

Misc Expenses  484,189.18  664,975.00 
NEA Overhead 
Charges

 -  752,207.00 

Organization 
Development 
Expenses

 5,918,889.05  4,239,224.93 

Other Meeting 
Allowance

 2,074,000.00  1,629,500.00 

Other Repair and 
maintenance

 54,834.00  240,492.16 

Printing and 
Stationery

 409,590.92  477,116.18 

Repair – 
premises Civil

 56,556.50  22,000.00 

Security Services 
Expenses

 304,955.97  324,154.38 

Share Issue 
Management 
Expenses

 1,483,420.00  428,480.00 

Telephone and 
Internet

 613,002.35  587,425.35 

Training 
Expenses

 157,707.43  78,090.00 

Transportation  -  23,450.00 
Travelling 
Expenses

 273,300.00  218,125.00 

Vehicle Repair 
and Maintenance

 578,278.56  732,309.15 

Water & 
Electricity

 343,069.32  380,032.12 

Total  25,189,205.31  23,668,822.93 

20 Finance Cost
Accounting Policy
Finance costs are capitalised and are included under 
capital work in progress under NAS 23 Borrowing 
Costs. Interest expenses have been included operation 
and maintenance expense of the individual projects. 
Interest income recognized from temporary investment 
of borrowings has been netted off with finance cost as 
explained in Notes 12.2

Explanatory Notes:
Finance costs represent interest and related charges 
incurred by the Company on borrowings and lease 
liabilities. Following the capitalisation of project assets, 
interest costs relating to the construction or development 
phase are no longer eligible for capitalisation under 
applicable accounting standards. Accordingly, all 
borrowing costs incurred post-capitalisation are 
recognised directly in the Statement of Profit or Loss as 
finance cost for the period.

In addition, in accordance with the requirements of 
NFRS 16 – Leases, the Company recognises interest 
expense on its lease liabilities using the effective interest 
rate method. This lease-related finance cost is also 
presented under finance costs in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss.

The total finance cost for the year therefore includes:
(i) interest on borrowings incurred after the assets were 
available for use, and
(ii) interest expense arising from lease liabilities.

NPR
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

SUHEP Project
Interest on EPF Loan  206,803,662.00  166,051,302.39 
Interest on Other Loan  7,791,873.96  5,231,134.00 
SHEP Project    
Interest on EPF Loan  342,778,481.82  498,153,907.17 
Interest on Other Loan  14,964,012.34  15,693,403.00 
Interest on Lease 
Liability  884,575.02  

Finance Cost  573,222,605.14  685,129,746.56 
Less : Amount 
Capitalized on 
Qualifying Assets 
(SHEP Project)

 -  513,847,310.17 

Total Finance Cost  573,222,605.14  171,282,436.39 

21. Effects of Changes in foreign exchange 
rates	
Accounting Policies 		
Foreign currency transactions are converted into 
functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing 
at the date of the transaction. 		

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currency are translated in to the reporting currency of 
the company using the rates prevailing on the reporting 
date. The resulting gain or loss due to translation is taken 
to statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary assets are 
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recorded using the rate of exchange prevalent as on the 
date of initial recognition. 	

Explanatory Notes					   
NPR

 Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Exchange Gain  (44,116.98)  - 
Included in CWIP 
adjusted    

Translation Gain 
/ (Loss)    

Advances    
Retention  (3,824,519.03)  (6,147,206.00)

Total  (3,868,636.01)  (6,147,206.00)

Foreign currency advances given to the contractors 
and consultants and foreign currency retentions taken 
on behalf of the consultants and contractors have been 
considered as monetary assets for translation as at 
reporting dates. Mid rate of Nepal Rastra Bank has been 
considered for period end translations as follows		
				  
 Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
USD: NRs 137.3 133.66

22. Earnings Per Share		
Accounting Policies 
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on 
the profit attributable to equity holders of the company 
and the basic weighted average number of shares. 
When calculating the diluted earnings per share, the 
weighted average number of shares in issue is adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares 
held in respect of the company.

Explanatory Notes
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Opening 36,500,000 36,500,000
Weight 1 1
Further Issue
Allotment Date
Weight
Further Issue
Allotment Date
Weight
Total Shares 36,500,000 36,500,000
Weighted Average 
Shares

36,500,000 36,500,000

PAT  (278,939,034) (154,588,887)
Basic EPS  (7.64)  (4.24)
Diluted EPS  (7.64)  (4.24)

23. Leases		
Accounting Policies 		
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, 
or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the 
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the 
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 
a specific asset or whether the arrangement conveys a 
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period 
of time in exchange for consideration.	

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset, the Company considers 
whether:		

The contract involves the use of an identified asset. This 
may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be 
physically distinct or represent substantially all of the 
capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has 
a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not 
identified;	

The Company has right to obtain substantially all of the 
economic benefits from the use of the asset throughout 
the period of use; and 		

The Company has right to direct the use of the asset. 
The Company has this right when it has the decision 
making rights that are most relevant to changing how 
and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases 
where the decision about how and for what purpose the 
asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the 
right to direct the use of the asset if either; 	

The Company has the right to operate the asset; 
or	

The Company designed the asset in a way that 
predetermines how and for what purpose it will be 
used.		

The Company recognizes a right of use asset and a 
lease liability at the lease commencement date. The 
right to use of assets is the present value of the total 
lease payments up to the contract date from the start 
of contract inclusive of any increments on the payment 
of the rent. The present value has been derived using 
the discount rate equal to the interest rate of Employee 
Provident Fund. The Company has applied cost model 
after initial recognition on commencement date and 
subsequent measurement. The Company has measured 
the right-of-use asset at cost:		

a.	 Less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment and 		

b.	 Adjusted for any re measurement of lease liabilities 
if any.

		
The lease liability is initially measured at the present 
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest 
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Company’s interest rate of Employee 
Provident Fund. Generally, the Company uses its 
interest rate of Loan from Employee Provident Fund 
as the discount rate. The lease liability is subsequently 
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measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method.	

The Company presents right of use assets under Note 
1 PPE related to corporate assets to the financial 
statements & The Company presents right of use assets 
under Note 2 Project Assets - capital assets related to 
the Sanjen Lower 42.5 to the financial statements while 
the corresponding lease liability is presented in Note 
14.1.2, ‘Other Liabilities & Payable’.	
	
Short term leases and leases of low value 
assets	
The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use 
assets and lease liabilities for short term leases (that 
have a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low 
value assets. The Company recognizes lease payments 
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight 
line basis over the lease term.		

Explanatory Notes	
The Company has recognized a right of use of asset and 
lease liability as per NFRS 16 Leases. The right to use of 
assets and lease liability is the present value of the total 
lease payments up to the contract date from the start of 
contract inclusive of any increments on the payment of 
the rent. The right to use of assets is depreciated over 
the lease term on straight line basis. The lease liability is 
amortised over the lease term. 		

As required by Para 53 of disclosure part of NFRS 16 
Leases, following amounts shall be disclosed about the 
leases of the company and the maturity analysis of lease 
liability is shown as below.	

Particulars Right of Use 
Assets

Lease 
Liability

Balance 31st Ashad 
2080  14,576,135  16,098,728 

Less: Depreciation  1,499,385  - 
Add: Interest Cost  -  1,505,951 
Less: Total cash 
outflow of lease  -  2,152,616 

Less: Prior Period 
Adjustment  529,760  1,361 

Balance 31st 
Ashad 2081  12,546,990  15,450,701 

Particulars Right of Use 
Assets

Lease 
Liability

Balance 31st 
Ashadh, 2081

 12,546,990  15,450,701 

Less: Depreciation  727,362  - 
Add: Interest Cost  -  1,513,275 
Less: Total cash 
outflow of lease

 -  1,357,667 

Less: Prior Period 
Adjustment

 -  - 

Balance 31st 
Ashad 2081

 11,819,628  15,606,310 

24. Service Concession Arrangements	
The party that grants the service arrangement (the 
grantor) is a public sector entity, including a governmental 
body, or a private sector entity to which the responsibility 
for the service has been devolved.	

The operator is responsible for at least some of the 
management of the infrastructure and related services 
and does not merely act as an agent on behalf of the 
grantor. 			 
1	 The contract sets the initial prices to be levied by the 

operator and regulates price revisions over the period 
of the service arrangement. 			 

2	  The operator is obliged to hand over the infrastructure 
to the grantor in a specified condition at the end of the 
period of the arrangement, for little or no incremental 
consideration, irrespective of which party initially 
financed. 			 

3	 IFRIC 12-Service Concession Arrangements applies 
to public-private service concession arrangements 
if:			 

4	 The grantor controls or regulates what services the 
operator must provide with the infrastructure, to 
whom it must provide them and at what prices; 	
		

The grantor controls-through ownership, beneficial 
entitlement or otherwise- any significant residual 
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the 
arrangement. 			 
1	 An arrangement within the scope of this interpretation 

typically involves a private sector entity (an operator) 
constructing the infrastructure used to provide 
the public service or upgrading it (for example, by 
increasing its capacity) and operating and maintaining 
that infrastructure for a specified period of time. The 
operator is paid for its services over the period of 
the arrangement. The arrangement is governed 
by a contract that sets out performance standards, 
mechanisms for adjusting prices and arrangements 
for arbitrating disputes. Such an arrangement is often 
described as a 'build-operate-transfer', a ‘rehabilitate-
operate-transfer' or a 'public-to-private' service 
concession arrangement.

2	 Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA)(a government entity), 
Chilime Hydropower Company Ltd ( government 
controlled entity) and various municipalities 
holds more than 50% of the shares in SJCL. The 
interpretations provided in IFRIC 12 is based on the 
relationship of a “Grantor” and an “Operator” under 
a concession agreement. However, SJCL itself is a 
body where the majority of the capital investment 
has been done by a public-service entity i.e. NEA. 
Nepal Electricity Authority itself plays a major role in 
the management of the services provided by SJCL. 
In consideration of all these factors, it is concluded 
that the requirement of IFRIC 12 are not applicable to 
SJCL as the grantor-operator relationship cannot be 
established.  		

25. Related Parties Disclosures		
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the 
ability to control the other party or exercise significant 
influence over the other party in making financial or 
operation decisions, or one other party controls both. The 
definition includes subsidiaries, associates, directors, 
key management personnel and employees’ retirement 
benefit fund.
 			 
25.1 Identification of Related Parties		
Following have been identified as related parties		
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25.1.1	 Parent Company 
i.	 Chilime Hydropower Company Limited (shareholding is disclosed in Note: 12)			
ii.	  By virtue of representation to the board of directors			 
•	 Nepal Electricity Authority
•	 Employee Provident Fund			 

iii. Board Chair and Directors
Position 2024-25 2023-24

Chairman Dirghayu Kumar Shrestha Ramji Bhandari

Director Shanti Laxmi Shakya Lokhari Luitel
Director Sameer Prasad Pokhrel Subhas Kumar Mishra
Director Babu Raja Maharjan Narayan Prasad Acharya
Director Nawaraj Poudel Thakur Jung Thapa

iv. Key Managerial Personnel

 Designation 2024-25 2023-24

CEO Arpan Bahadur Singh Sunil Kumar Dhungel
Project Chief- Upper Devendra Gautam Sudhan Singh Mahat
Project Chief- Lower Devendra Gautam Arpan Bahadur Singh
Sr Contract Engineer Dipak Ram Vaidhya Dipak Ram Vaidhya
Company Secretary/Head Finance Ghanashyam Shrestha Ghanashyam Shrestha

						    
NPR

Name of Personnel Role

Payments of Employee Benefits Share 
Based 

Payments
Short
Term

Post- 
Employment Termination

Other 
Long 
Term

Arpan Bahadur Singh CEO 2,543,821.49 502,157.40 - -

Devendra Gautam Project Chief- 
Lower 1,862,961.68 503,989.40

Ghanashyam Shrestha Company 
Secretary 1,700,272.43 501,583.00

Dipak Ram Vaidhya Sr. Engineer 1,294,024.79 510,585.57

•	 Employee Provident Fund - EPF is considered related parties as it represents to the board. It also manages 
SJCL’s employee’s retirement benefit plans.	

•	 All the Amount Contributed to EPF and SSF are considered as Post-Employee Benefits, whereas Short Term 
Employee Benefits Consists of all the allowances including Salary.

25.2 Transactions with Related Parties		  NPR

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Land Lease from Chilime Hydropower Company Limited  1,357,667 1,293,016
Interest Payment to Chilime Hydropower Company Limited  31,139,178 27,437,085
Yearly Payment for Utilizing of NEA server for E-bidding -
Overhead payment to NEA for deputed Staff  1,821,717 1,565,363
Directors’ sitting fees  2,010,100 2,047,900
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel  9,419,396 13,327,568
Chilime Jalavidhyut company Limited (Short Term) 680,000,000 330000000
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25.3 Year End balances with / from related parties
The year end Receivable/(payable) balance with 
related parties are as follows:-

NPR

Particulars  2024-25 2023-24

Chilime 
Hydropower 
Company Limited

 442,647 458,976

 Nepal Electricity 
Authority

 334,662,993 51,087,476

Total 335,105,640 51,546,452.57

26.Operating Segments
Accounting Policies
NFRS 8 Operating Segments requires particular 
classes of entities (essentially those with publicly traded 
securities) to disclose information about their operating 
segments, products and services, the geographical 
areas in which they operate, and their major customers.

Explanatory Notes
The Company has only one reportable operating 
segment (both in terms of geography and products) and 
therefore, identification, classification and disclosure of 
separate reportable operating segments in accordance 
with NFRS 8 is not disclosed separately.

27.Interest In Other Entities	
 Accounting Policies
The company follows NFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in 
Other Entities for disclosing the extent of the investment, 
control and influence.	

Explanatory Policy 
SJCL does not have any interest in other entities.

28. Events After Reporting Period
Accounting Policies
The company follows NAS 10 Events After Reporting 

Period for accounting and report for the events that 
occur after the reporting period. The company classifies 
those events as adjusting and non-adjusting in 	

Accounting Policies
There are no material events both adjusting or non-
adjusting for the reporting periods. 		
		
29. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
"Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose 
existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future 
events, and present obligations where the transfer of 
economic resources is uncertain or cannot be reliably 
measured. Contingent liabilities are not classified as 
on-SFP but are only disclosed unless the outflow of 
economic resources is probable.	

A commitment is a contractual obligation to make a 
payment in the future. These amounts are not recorded 
in the statement of financial position since the company 
is not under obligation at reporting date to make such 
payments. The amounts below are the minimum 
amounts that we are committed to pay in future.	

NPR

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Contingent 
Liability

 26,304,683 26,304,682

Commitments – 
Contractual 

 282,115,000.00 399,605,546

Litigation -
Total 308,419,682.60 425,910,228

Restatement of prior period balances		
Previously reported financial statements and financial 
statements for the current financial year as reported in 
the regulatory financial statements has been restated in 
compliances with the requirements of NFRS and due to 
prior period error adjustments.	

..........................................
Dirghayu Kumar Shrestha

Chairperson

...................................
Shanti Laxmi Shakya

Director

..........................................
Sameer Prasad Pokharel

Director

...................................
S.B.K.C. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Surendra Bahadur K.C., FCA
Proprietor

.................................
Babu Raja Maharjan

Director

..........................
Nawaraj Poudel

Director

Date: 2082/09/04
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

..................................
Arpan Bahadur Singh

Chief Executive Officer

....................................
Ghanashyam Shrestha

Account Chief
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;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8
w'Djf/fxL, sf7df8f}+

sDkgLsf]] lgodfjnLdf kGw|f}F ;fwf/0f ;efdf b]xfo adf]lhd ;+zf]wgsf] nflu ljz]if k|:tfj M
# dxn] 

lgod eO/x]sf] Joj:yf  ;+;f]lwt Joj:yf sf/0f / cf}lrTo

kl/R5]b !
k|f/lDes 
lgod @

sDkgLsf] /lhi68{ sfof{no /xg] 7]ufgf M
o; sDkgLsf] /lhi68{ sfof{no sf7df8f}F 
dxfgu/kflnsf j8f g+= # skgdfu{ sf7df08f}df /xg]5 . 
sDkgLsf] cfof]hgf sfof{no / hnljB't s]Gb| /;'jf 
lhNnf lrlnd] uf= ljÞ ;= df /xg] 5 .

sDkgLsf] /lhi68{ sfof{no /xg] 7]ufgf M
o; sDkgLsf] /lhi68{ sfof{no lrlnd] 
6fj/, sf7df8f}F dxfgu/kflnsf j8f g+= $ 
w'Djf/fxL, sf7df8f}df /xg]5 . sDkgLsf] 
cfof]hgf sfof{no / hnljB't s]Gb| /;'jf 
lhNnf lrlnd] uf= ljÞ ;= df /xg] 5 .

sDkgLsf] /lhi68{ 
sfof{no ;/]sf]n] .

kl/R5]b $
;~rfns ;ldlt
@&

;~rfns ;ldltsf] u7g, ;+Vof / sfo{sfn M
-@_ o; sDkgLdf Ps hgf :jtGq ;~rfns ;lxt & 
-;ft_ hgf ;~rfnsx? /x]sf] ;~rfns ;ldlt x'g]5 
/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] u7g b]xfo adf]lhd x'g]5 M 
-s_ ;+:yfks ;d'xsf z]o/wgLx?af6 dgf]lgt jf 

lgjf{lrt rf/ -$_ hgf ;~rfns . 
-v_ ;a{;fwf/0f ;d'xsf z]o/wgLx?af6 lgo'Qm jf 

lgjf{lrt Ps hgf dlxnf ;lxt b'O{ -@_ hgf 
;~rfns .

-u_ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] l;kmfl/;df ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 
lgo'Qm jf lgjf{lrt Ps -!_ hgf :jtGq 
;~rfns . 

-3_ ;+:yfks z]o/wgLx?af6 lgo'Qm jf dgf]lgt 
;~rfnsx? dWo]af6 ;~rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIf 
lgjf{lrt x'g]5 .

;~rfns ;ldltsf] u7g, ;+Vof / sfo{sfn M
-@_ o; sDkgLdf b'O{ hgf :jtGq ;~rfns 
;lxt ( -gf}_ hgf ;~rfnsx? /x]sf] ;~rfns 
;ldlt x'g]5 / ;~rfns ;ldltsf] u7g b]xfo 
adf]lhd x'g]5 M 
-s_ ;+:yfks ;d'xsf z]o/wgLx?af6 dgf]lgt 

jf lgjf{lrt rf/ -$_ hgf ;~rfns . 
-v_ ;a{;fwf/0f ;d'xsf z]o/wgLx?af6 lgo'Qm 

jf lgjf{lrt Ps hgf dlxnf ;lxt tLg 
-#_ hgf ;~rfns .

-u_ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] l;kmfl/;df ;fwf/0f 
;efaf6 lgo'Qm jf lgjf{lrt b'O{ -@_ hgf 
:jtGq ;~rfns . 

-3_ ;+:yfks z]o/wgLx?af6 lgo'Qm jf 
dgf]lgt ;~rfnsx? dWo]af6 ;~rfns 
;ldltsf] cWoIf lgjf{lrt x'g]5 .

o:t} k|s[ltsf cGo 
sDkgLx?df ePsf 
Joj:yfx? ;fy} 
k|efljt /;'jfjf;L 
z]o/wgLx?jf6 k|fKt 
dfu / ;'emfjnfO{ 
;d]t ;Djf]wg ug{ 
;~rfnsx?sf] ;+Vof 
k'g{;+/rgf ug{'k/]sf]n] .
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;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 rf}wf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf cWoIfåf/f k|:t't
cf=j= @)*)÷)*! sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg .

cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?,
o; sDkgLsf] rf}wf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf d ;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8sf] tkm{af6 oxfFx?nfO{ xflb{s :jfut ug{ rfxG5' . 

o; ul/dfdo ;efdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷)*!df 
;Dkfbg ul/Psf d'Vo d'Vo lqmofsnfkx?sf] ljj/0f ;lxtsf] jflif{s 
k|ltj]bg / ;f]xL cjlwsf] n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf ljlQo ljj/0fx? k|:t't 
ug]{ cg'dlt rfxG5' . ;fy} o; sDkgLsf] cf=j= @)*)÷)*! sf] k|ult 
ljj/0fx? klg ;+lIfKt ?kdf oxfFx? ;dIf k|:t't ug{ rfxG5' .

sDkgLn] lgdf{0f ul//x]sf ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf -!$=* 
d]= jf=_ lgdf{0f ;DkGg eO{ ldlt @)*)÷^÷@! b]lv g} Jofkfl/s ljB't 
pTkfbg eO{ j}slNks k|zf/0f nfO{gdfkm{t l;ldt dfqfdf ljB't vl/b–ljqmL 
;+emf}tf cg';f/ g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0fnfO{ ljB't ljqmL eO{/x]sf]df g]kfn 
ljB't k|flws/0fjf6 xfn} lgdf{0f ;DkGg ePsf] lrlnd] lqz'nL @@) s]= 
le= k|zf/0f nfO{gjf6 pTkfbg Ifdtf cg';f/ g} ljB't k|jfx eO{/x]sf] 5 .

lgdf{0f ;DkGg ug{ lgs} r'gf}ltk"0f{ /x]sf] lgdf{0f ;DkGg x'g jfFsL ;fGh]g 
hnljB't cfof]hgf -$@=% d]= jf=_ ;d]t ;~rfns ;ldlt, Aoj:yfkg 
tyf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx?sf] cys k|of;jf6 lrlnd] lqz'nL @@) s]= le= 
k|zf/0fnfO{g lgdf{0f ;DkGg x'gf;fy ;Dk"0f{ kl/If0f k'/f u/L ldlt @)*! k'if 
! ut] b]lv Aoj;flos ?kdf g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0fnfO{ ljB't ljqmL z'? 
ul/;lsPsf] 5 . o; ;'vb cj;/df d ;j} z]o/wgL dxfg'efjnfO{ xflb{s 
jwfO{ lbg rfxG5' .

n6 g+= # O{n]S6«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sf] rLlgof 7]s]bf/ ePsf] / sf]le8 !( 
sf] sf/0f nfdf] ;do;Dd rLgdf ePsf] jGbfjGbLn] dflg;x¿ cfjt 

hfjt tyf d]zLg pks/0fx?sf] 9'jfgLdf cj/f]wn] tf]lsPsf] ;dodf 
d]lzg pks/0fx¿ 9'jfgL u/L kfj/xfp;df h8fg ug{ l9nfO ePsf] sf/0f 
cfof]hgfsf] lgdf{0f sfo{ ;DkGg x'g l9nfO{ ePsf] Joxf]/f hfgsf/L u/fpg 
rfxG5' .

!= cf=j= @)*)÷)*! sf] sf/f]jf/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg
cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df sDkgLsf] s]G›Lo sfof{no tyf b'j} hnljB't 
cfof]hgfdf ePsf] s'n vr{ ? $* s/f]8 (@ nfv ^( xhf/ -k"FhLs[t 
Aofh afx]s_ vr{ ePsf] 5 . ;f] dWo] s]G›Lo sfof{no tyf cfof]hgfx?sf] 
sd{rf/L Pj+ k|zf;lso vr{ ?= !& s/f]8 !@ nfv !& xhf/ -k"FhLs[t 
Aofh afx]s_ / k'FhLuttkm{ -lgdf{0f sfo{ k|ult tkm{_ s]G›Lo sfof{no / 
b'j} cfof]hgfx?df hDdf ?= #! s/f]8 *) nfv %@ xhf/ vr{ ePsf] 5 . 
cf=j= @)*)÷)*! sf] cfDbfgL / vr{sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f o;} ;fy ;+nUg 
n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf ljlQo ljj/0faf6 cjut x'g] g} 5 .

cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgfjf6 @)*) 
cflZjg @! ut] b]lv Jofkfl/s pTkfbg ePsf]n] @)*) cflZjg @! ut] 
b]lv @)*! cfiff9 d;fGt;Dd ljB't ljlqmjf6 ? !( s/f]8 &* nfv *) 
xhf/, sDkgLsf] s]lx /sd a}+sdf df}Hbftsf] ¿kdf /xFbf k|fKt x'g cfPsf] 
Jofh ?= %! nfv %^ xhf/, tyf 7]s]bf/n] k|of]u u/]sf] x]le O{So'kd]06 
ef8f / cGo cfDbfgL ? #! nfv #* xhf/ ;d]t ? @) s/f]8 ^! nfv &% 
xhf/ cfDbfgL ePsf] 5 . 

cf=j= @)*)÷)*! sf] cfDbfgL tyf vr{sf] ;+lIfKt ljj/0f lgDgfg';f/ 
tflnsf ! df k|:t't ul/Psf] 5M

tflnsf !M cfDbfgL / vr{ tkm{M
-?= xhf/df_ 

ljj/0fljj/0f cf j )*)÷)*!cf j )*)÷)*! cf j @)&(÷*)cf j @)&(÷*) yk÷36 yk÷36 
s'n cfDbfgLs'n cfDbfgL @),^!,&%@),^!,&% !,^&,*^!,^&,*^ !*,(#,*(!*,(#,*(
;~rfng ;+ef/ vr{ ;~rfng ;+ef/ vr{ -#^,)&,^$_-#^,)&,^$_ -#,(^,*@_-#,(^,*@_ -#@,!),*@_-#@,!),*@_
;~rfngaf6 gfkmf / gf]S;fg;~rfngaf6 gfkmf / gf]S;fg -!%,$%,*(_-!%,$%,*(_ -@,@*,(^_-@,@*,(^_ -!#,!^,(#_-!#,!^,(#_
z]o/ lgisfzg vr{z]o/ lgisfzg vr{ –– -!$,@#_-!$,@#_ !$,@#!$,@#
ut jif{;Ddsf] ;l~rt gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_ut jif{;Ddsf] ;l~rt gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_ -@$,)&,#)_-@$,)&,#)_ -@!,#^,^#_-@!,#^,^#_ -@,&),^&_-@,&),^&_
ljut jif{sf] gfkmf÷ gf]S;fg ;dfof]hgljut jif{sf] gfkmf÷ gf]S;fg ;dfof]hg -%#)_-%#)_ -@&,$*_-@&,$*_ @@,!*@@,!*
s"n ;l~rtgfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_s"n ;l~rtgfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_ -#(,%*,$(_-#(,%*,$(_ -@$,)&,#)_-@$,)&,#)_ -!,%%,!!(_-!,%%,!!(_

cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgfjf6 ljB't Jofkfl/s pTkfbg ;d]t ePsf]n] ut cf=j= sf] t'ngfdf o; cf=j= df cfDbfgL 
pNn]Vo ¿kn] j[l4 x'g uPsf] 5 . 

o; cf=j=df ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf k"Flhs/0f ePsf]n] cfof]hgf nufgL tyf sfo{ k|ultnfO{ l:y/ ;DklQdf ;fl/Psf]n] l:y/ ;DklQsf] 
x|f; vr{ / @)*) sflt{s b]lvsf] ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] ;~rfng ;+ef/ vr{nfO{ k|zf;lgs vr{df /flvPsf] sf/0fn] ;~rfng 
;Def/ vr{df ;d]t pNn]Vo ?kn] j[l4 ePsf] 5.

cf= j= @)*)÷)*! df z]o/ lgisf;g cGtu{tdf s'g} klg vr{ gePsf]n] ut cf=j=sf] t'ngfdf o; cf=j=df ;tk|lt;tn] vr{ 36\g uPsf] 5 .
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tflnsf @M cf=j= @)*)÷)*! sf] ;DklQ tyf bfloTjsf] ljj/0f
-?=xhf/df_

ljj/0f @)*! cfiff9 #! @)*) cfiff9 #!
z]o/ k"FhL #,^%,)),)) #,^%,)),))
rfn" bfloTj #(,!),%( #(,!!,%%
dWod tyf bL3{sflng 
C0f

(,@@,^$,!& &(,@*,@(#

s"n ;+lrt gfkmf 
÷-gf]S;fg_

-#,(%,*$(_ -@$,)&,#)_

hDdf k"FhLtyf bfloTj !@,*&,!^,@& !!,&@,*&,!*
l:y/ ;DklQ tyf 
cfof]hgf sfo{ k|ult

!@,%#,^!,*( !!,%^,((,(@

rfn" ;DklQ ##,%$,#* !%,*&,@^
hDdf ;DklQ !@,*&,!^,@& !!,&@,*&,!*

sDkgLsf] dWod tyf bL3{sflng C0f /sd j[l2 x'gdf sd{rf/L ;~rosf]ifaf6 
lnOPsf] C0fsf] ;fjf tyf Aofh k|d'v /x]sf] 5 . s"n ;l~rt gf]S;fgL 
j9\g'df s]Gb|Lo sfof{no / ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] 
k|zf;lgs vr{ tyf ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] l:y/ 
;DklQsf] x|f; vr{sf] sf/0fn] ;l~rt gf]S;fgLdf pNn]Vo j[l4 ePsf] 
5 . l:y/ ;DklQ / cfof]hgf sfo{ k|ult vr{ j9\g'sf] sf/0f cfof]hgfx?df 
ePsf] k"FhLut nufgL tyf ;~rfng ;Def/ vr{ / lgdf{0f cjlwsf] Aofh 
k|d'v /x]sf] 5 . ut cf=j=sf] t'ngfdf o; cf=j df j}s df}Hbft / ljB't 
ljlqm jfkt g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f nufot 7]s]bf/x?jf6 k|fKt ug{ jfFsL 
lx;fjn] rfn" ;DklQdf j[l4 ePsf] 5 .
@= sDkgLsf] z]o/ ;+/rgf
sDkgLsf] lgwf{l/t z]o/ ;+/rgf jdf]lhd ztk|ltzt z]o/ hf/L e} ;Dk"0f{ 
/sd ;+sng e} ;s]sf] 5 . sDkgLsf] k"FhL ;+/rgf lgDgfg';f/sf] rf6{df 
b]vfOPsf] 5M

#= cfof]hgfx?sf] cg'dflgt nfut/ nufgLsf] Joj:yf
cfof]hgfx?sf] kl/dflh{t nfut cg'dfg adf]lhd ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ 
hnljB't cfof]hgf-!$=* d] jf _ sf] ? # cj{ #^ s/f]8 (* nfv 
^$ xhf/ - lgdf{0f cjlwsf] Aofh ;lxt_ /x]sf] 5 . ;fGh]g hnljB't 

cfof]hgfsf] nfut ? ^ cj{ &) s/f]8 #^ nfv (# -lgdf{0f cjlwsf] 
Aofh jfx]s_ x'g] cg'dfg /x]sf] 5 .

o;} u/L cfof]hgf lgdf{0fsf] qmddf @)&@ ;fnsf] ljgfzsf/L 
e'sDk,g]kfn–ef/tsf] ;Ldfdf b]lvPsf] cj/f]w, lab]zL ljlgdo b/df 
ePsf] kl/jt{g, d"No ;dfof]hg, l8hfO{g kl/jt{g / sf]le8 !( nufotsf 
sf/0fn] cfof]hgfsf] lgdf{0f calw yk x'Fb} hfFbf ylkb} uPsf] k|zf;lgs 
vr{, k/fdz{bftfsf] vr{,lgdf{0f calwsf] Aofhsf sf/0f cfof]hgf nfut 
s]xL a9\g] b]lvPsf] 5 . o;/L j9\g hfg] nfutnfO{ Aoj:yfkg ug]{ of]hgf 
:j¿k sd{rf/L ;+rosf]if;+u klxnf]k6s ldlt @)&& >fj0f !$ ut] yk 
?= (% s/f]8sf nflu k'/s C0f ;Demf}tf ul/Psf] lyof] . ljljw sf/0fn] 
cfof]hgfsf] lgdf{0f cjlw nlDjb} uPsf] x'Fbf yk ljlQo Joj:yfkg ug{' 
k/]sf] x'Fbf ldlt @)*) ciff9 !! df sd{rf/L ;+ro sf]if;+u bf];|f]k6s 
yk ? ! cj{ !) s/f]8sf nflu C0f ;Demf}tf ;DkGg eO{ ljQ Joj:yfkg 
ul/Psf] 5 .

sDkgLsf] ljlQo cfjZostf Joj:yfkg ug{ cf= j= @)*).)*! df >L 
lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8;+u ? @) s/f]8 cNksflng ;fkl6 lnO{ 
cNksflng >f]t kl/rfng ul/Psf]df ? !! s/f]8 / ;f] df nfu]sf] Jofh 
;d]t lkmtf{ ul/;lsPsf] 5 . xfn ## s/f]8 cNksflng C0f bfloTjsf] 
?kdf jf;nftdf b]vfO{Psf] 5 . Jofh eg] lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8nfO{ q}dfl;s ?kdf e'QmfgL x'Fb} cfPsf] 5 .

o;/L x]bf{ cf= j = @)*)÷)*! sf] d;fGt ;Dd sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]ifaf6 
¿= % ca{ * s/f]8 #( nfv ## xhf/ ;fFjf / Jofh k"Flhs/0f jfkt ¿= 
# cj{ ** s/f]8 ^! nfv @& xhf/ ;d]t ¿= * cj{ (& s/f]8 ^) xhf/ 
jf;nftdf lb3{sflng C0f lzif{sdf k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 . b'j} cfof]hgf 
;~rfngdf cfP kl5 sd{rf/L ;+rosf]ifaf6 k|fKt pNn]lvt C0f tyf 
Jofh /sd r'Qmf ug{sf nflu pkof]u ul/g]5 . 

xfn ePsf] Plss[t C0f ;Demf}tf adf]lhd sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]if;+u ePsf] 
C0f ;Demf}tf adf]lhd lb3{sflng C0f / O{lSjl6sf] cg'kft ̂ !M #( sfod 
ePsf] 5 .

$= cfof]hgfdf ePsf] nufgL tyf k"FhLs/0f
cf=j= @)*).)*! cfiff9 d;fGt;Dddf ;fGh]g tyf ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ 
hnljB't cfof]hgfdf k|zf;lgs / k"hLut u/L hDdf ?= ( ca{ ^# s/f]8 
$^ nfv $^ xhf/ -lgdf{0f cjlwsf] Aofh afx]s_ nufgL e};s]sf] 5 . 
h;df ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgfnfO{ o; cf=j=df k"Flhs/0f 
ul/ ? # cj{ @^ s/f]8 (* nfv ^% xhf/ nfO{ l:y/ ;DklQdf ;fl/Psf] 
5 eg] ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] ;+rfng ;+ef/ tyf k"Flhut vr{ ? 
^ cj{ $) s/f]8 #^ nfv (# xhf/ - lgdf{0f cjlwsf] Aofh jfx]s_ 
nfO{ eg] cfof]hgf nufgL tyf sfo{ k|ult cGtu{t /flvPsf] 5 . To:t} 
u/L lhNnf k|zf;g sfof{no /;'jfdf hUufsf] d'cfJhf ljt/0f ug{ hDdf 
ul/Psf] /sd, k/fdz{bftfnfO{ lbPsf] df]ljnfOh];g k]ZsL, l;len lgdf{0f 
sfo{sf 7]s]bf/, O{n]S6«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sf 7]s]bf/, xfO8«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sf 
7]s]bf/ nufot cGo ;fgfltgf 7]Ssf cGtu{t hDdf ?= ^ s/f]8 @* nfv 
$ xhf/ clu|d e'QmfgL /x]sf] tYo hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' .

%= sDkgLaf6 lgdf{0fflwg cfof]hgf tyf efjL of]hgf Pj+ sfo{qmdx?
;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf ut cf j d} ;DkGg eO{;s]sf] 
tYo oxfFx¿nfO{ cjut g} 5 . ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] xsdf klg 
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xfn} ldlt @)*! k'if ! ut] b]lv Aoj;flos pTkfbg z'? eO{;s]sf]n] 
;~rflnt cfof]hgfx?sf] lgoldt ljB't pTkfbg / eljiosf nflu rf8} 
gofF hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] klxrfg, cWoog, lgdf{0f tyf ;~rfng ug]{ 
nIo sDklgn] lnPsf] 5 .

^= ;fGh]g -dflyNnf] _hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] ljB't ljqmLsf nflu lgdf{0f 

ul/Psf]Contingency Plan:
g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f cGtu{t lgdf{0fflwg 6«fG;ld;g nfO{gsf] lgdf{0f 
;DkGg x'g' eGbf klxn] g} ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf lgdf{0f 
;DkGg x'g] ePsf] /pQm cfof]hgfaf6 pTkfbg x'g] ljB't zlQm cfk"lt{ 
ug{sf nflu a}slNks nfOgsf] Joj:yfkg ug{' kg]{ b]lvPsf]n] yfDa'r]taf6 
lrlnd] hnljB't s]G›sf] kfj/xfp;;Ddsl/j ^ lsnf]ld6/!! s]eL 8jn 
;ls{6 k|zf/0fnfOg tyf ##÷!! s] le ;j:6]zg ;d]t sDkgLsf] cfˆg} 
nufgLdf 5f]6f] ;dodf lgdf{0f ;DkGg ul/Psf] lyof] . ldlt @)*) c;f]h 
@! ut]b]lv * d]= jf= sf b/n] g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0fnfO{ ljqmL ul/Psf]df 
pQm k|zf/0fnfO{g xfn ;f]xL If]qdf lgdf{0fflwg nfË6fËvf]nf hnljB't 

cfof]hgfn] k|of]u ug{ dfu u/] cg';f/ lnhdf lbg Memorandum Of 
Understanding (MOU) ePsf] 5 .

&= /fli6«o tyf cGt/fli6«o kl/l:yltn] sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/df kg]{ c;/
cfof]hgfx?df :jb]zL tyf ljb]zL 7]s]bf/ sDkgLx? sfo{/t /x]sf]n] ubf{ 
ljb]zL d'›fsf] ljlgdo b/df k/]sf] c;/, lgdf{0f ;fdflu|df x'g] d"No a[l4 tyf 
ljleGg ;dodf x'g] aGb x8\tfn h:tf 36gfqmdx?n] cfof]hgf lgdf{0fdf 
c;/ kg]{ x'G5 . ;fy} cfof]hgf lgdf{0fsf] qmddf ljleGg ;/sf/L tyf u}x| 
;/sf/L lgsfoaf6 k|fKt ug{' kg]{ :jLs[ltx?df l9nfO{, ljleGg k|sf/sf b}jL 
k|sf]k h:t} @)&@ ;fnsf] e"sDk tyf tTkZrft\ sf] gfsfaGbL / l8;]Da/ 
@)!( af6 z'? ePsf] sf]/f]gf dxfdf/L, k|zf/0fnfOgsf] cefj nufotsf] 
sf/0f klg cfof]hgf lgdf{0fsf] ult k|ToIf jf k/f]Io ?kdf k|efljt ePsf] 
tYo Joxf]/f cjut u/fpg rfxG5' .

*= sDkgLsf] Joj;flos ;DaGw
sDkgLsf] Joj;flos ;DaGw ljleGg ;/f]sf/jfnf ;+:yfx?;+u ;'dw'/ /x]sf] 
5 . sDkgLn] lgdf{0f ul//x]sf cfof]hgfx?n] pTkfbg ug]{ ;Dk"0f{ ljB't vl/b 
ug]{ u/L g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f;Fu ljB't vl/b–laqmL ;Demf}tf e};s]sf] 
5 . To:t} u/L sd{rf/L ;~rosf]if;+u b'a} cfof]hgfx?sf] nufgLsf] nflu 
C0f ;Demf}tf eO{ C0f nufgL ;d]t e};s]sf] 5 . o; sDkgL;+u k|ToIf jf 
ck|ToIf ;DaGw /fVg] cGo ;+:yfx? h:t}M sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, 
pBf]u dGqfno, phf{ dGqfno, ljB't ljsf; ljefu, jg tyf jftfj/0f 
dGqfno, cy{ dGqfno,g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f, lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL 
ln=, /;'jfu9L xfO8«f]kfj/ sDkgL ln=, dWo ef]6]sf]zL hnljB't sDkgL 
ln=,sd{rf/L ;+rosf]if, g]kfn :6s PSr]Gh, gfu/Ls nufgL sf]if, z]o/ 
/lhi6«f/sf] ?kdf sfo{ ul//x]sf] ;g/fO{h Soflk6n ln=,/;'jf lhNnfsf 
;/sf/L lgsfox? tyf :yfgLo lgsfox?, cfof]hgf:yn cfdf5f]lbËdf] 
ufpFkflnsf tyf j8f sfof{no, g]kfn a}+s ln=, Pe/]i6 a}+s ln=, s'df/L 
a}+s ln=, nIdL a}+s ln=, d]3f a}+s ln=, l;4fy{ a}+s ln=, lxdfnog a}+s 
ln=, /;'jf lhNnfsf :yflgo jf;LGbfx?, cflb ;+u klg sDkgLsf] ;'dw'/ 
;DaGw /x]sf] / cfufdL lbgx?df klg of] ;DaGw yk ;'b[9 / k|uf9 aGb} 
kf/:kl/s ;xof]udf clea[l4 x'g]df ljZj:t 5' . 

(= sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt
sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldltdf d'Vo k|aw{s lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL ln= 
sf] tkm{af6 # hgf, g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0fsf] tkm{af6 ! hgf / ;~ro 
sf]ifdf /sd hDdf ug]{ sd{rf/Lsf] k|ltlglwTj gx'Gh]n;Ddsf] nflu 
sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]ifsf] tkm{af6 ! hgf ;d]t u/L % hgf ;~rfns /x]sf] 
;~rfns ;ldlt /x]sf] 5 . sDkgLsf] ;+zf]lwt k|aGwkq / lgodfjnLdf 
ePsf] Joj:yf cg';f/ Ps hgf :jtGq / Ps hgf dlxnf ;lxt b'O{ hgf 
;~rfns ;d]t hDdf & hgf ;~rfns /xg] Joj:yf /x]sf] x'Fbf;j{;fwf/0f 
;d'xsf] k|ltlglwTjsf nflu ;~rfnssf] lgjf{rg ;DkGg eP kZrft dfq 
;~rfns ;ldltn] k"0f{tf kfpg] 5 .

tflnsf $M xfn sfod ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ljj/0fM

;~rfnssf] gfd kb k|ltlglwTj ug]{ ;+:yf b]lv ;Dd
>L /fdhL e08f/L cWoIf k|ltlglw, lrlnd] hnljB't s=ln= @)&&÷!@÷@) xfn;Dd
>L ;'efifs'df/ ld> ;~rfns k|ltlglw, lrlnd] hnljB't s=ln= @)&^÷!)÷)^ xfn;Dd
>L nf]sx/L n'O{6]n ;~rfns k|ltlglw, g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f @)&!÷)^÷!# xfn;Dd
>L gf/fo0fk|;fb cfrfo{ ;~rfns k|ltlglw,lrlnd] hnljB't s= ln= @)&#÷)&÷@^ xfn;Dd
>L 7fs'/h+u yfkf ;~rfns k|ltlglw, sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]if @)&&÷!@÷!@ xfn;Dd

cf=j= @)*).)*! df ljleGg ljifodf 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o ug{sfnflu ;~rfns ;ldltsf] #) k6s a}7s a;]sf] lyof] .

!)= n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt
sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !^$ df ePsf] Joj:yf cg';f/ ;~rfns ;ldltn] ;~rfns >L nf]sx/L n'O{6]nsf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;~rfns >L gf/fo0f k|;fb 
cfrfo{ / ;~rfns >L 7fs'/ h+u yfkf ;b:o /x]sf] tLg ;b:oLo n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 5 .

cf=j= @)*).)*! df n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg,cfjlws cfly{s k|ltj]bg nufotsf ljQLo ljj/0fx? nufotsf ljifodf k'g/fjnf]sg, 5nkmn tyf 
l;kmfl/; ug{sf nflu n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] @% k6s a}7s a;]sf] lyof] . n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] a}7sdf pkl:yt ;~rfnsx?nfO{ k|lt a}7s eQf jfkt 
hgxL ?= $ xhf/ lbg] Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 .
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!!= n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|lts[of
g]kfn laQLo k|ltj]bgdfg -Nepal Financial Reporting Standard_ 
cg'?ktof/ u/L n]vfk/LIf0f ;DkGg e} oxfFx¿nfO{ pknAw u/fOPsf cf=j= 
@)*).)*! sf ljQLo ljj/0fx? pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] s'g} s}lkmot 
gb]lvPsf] Joxf]/f o;} ul/dfdo ;ef;dIf cjut u/fpg rfxG5' . 

!@= cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL 
sDkgLsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfO/fVgsf nflu 
o; sDkgLn] cfjZostf cg';f/ lgod ljlgodx? tof/ u/L ;~rfns 
;ldltaf6 :jLs[lt u/fO{ nfu" ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . k|rlnt >d P]gsf] k|fjwfg 
cg'?k sDkgLsf] sd{rf/L k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL @)&^, ;fj{hflgs vl/b 
P]g cg's'n x'g] u/L cfly{s k|zf;g tyf vl/b ljlgodfjnL–@)&), b}lgs 
tyf e|d0f eQf ljlgodfjnL nufotsf laleGg ljlgodx¿ sfof{Gjogdf 
/x]sf 5g\ . 

sDkgL P]g / sDkgLsf] ljlgodfjnLsf] k|fjwfg adf]lhd n]vfk/LIf0f 
;ldlt, sd{rf/L kbk"lt{ ;ldltx¿ u7g u/L ljleGg sfo{x¿ x'Fb} cfPsf 
5g\ . ;fy} cfjZostf cg';f/ cGo pk–;ldltx? klg u7g x'g] kl/kfl6 
/x]sf] 5 .

sDkgL tyf cfof]hgfsf cfly{s sf/f]af/x?sf] n]vfÍg sfo{ Aojl:yt 
ug{ e/kbf]{ ;ˆ6j]o/sf] dfWodaf6 n]vf /flvPsf] 5 . ;fy} sd{rf/Lx?sf] 

k]/f]n Aoj:yfkg Pj+ xflh/L Joj:yfkgsf] nflu E–attendance sf] 
;d]t Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . 

!#= ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj
cfof]hgf k|efljt If]qdf cfof]hgfsf] ;dflhs tyf jftfj/0fLo k|efj 
Go"gLs/0f tyf ;fdflhs Pj+ k"jf{wf/ ljsf;sf] nflu sDkgLn] ljljw 
sfo{x? ub}{ cfO/x]sf] 5 . o; cGtu{t af6f] tyf ;8s lgdf{0f, :yflgo 
jf;LGbfnfO{ k|fljlws tflnd tyf /f]huf/L, cfdf ;d'x ejg lgdf{0f, 
vfg]kfgL tyf gfnL lgdf{0f, u'Djf tyf dfg] lgdf{0f, lzIff tyf :jf:Yo/ 
v]ns'b If]qdf ;xof]u, e"Ifo lgoGq0f, v]ns'b tyf ;f+:s[lts sfo{x?df 
;xof]u ub}{ cfO/x]sf] 5 . 

!$= ;Da4 sDkgLaLrsf] sf/f]jf/
cf=j= @)*).)*! df lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL;Fu hUuf ef8fdf lnP 
jfktsf] e'Qmflg, sDkgLsf] cg'/f]wdf g]kfn laB't k|flws/0faf6 sfhdf 
vl6g' ePsf] sd{rf/Lx?sf] cf]e/x]8,;fk6L s§L afktsf] e'QmfgL ul/Psf] 
cg'/f]w 5 . To:t} j}sNkLs !! s]= le= 8jn ;ls{6 k|zf/0f nfO{g lgdf{0f 
l56f] ug{' kg]{ cj:yfnfO{ dWogh/ ul/ ;f] k|zf/0f nfO{gsf] nflu cfjZos 
;fdfu|L kf]n g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0faf6 vl/b ul/Psf] lyof] . ;f] k|;f/0f 
nfO{gsf] nflu cfjZos !#@÷!! s]= le= kfj/ 6«fG;km/d/ / ;f] nfO{g 
lgdf{0fsf] k/fdz{;]jf ;d]t g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0faf6 k|fKt ePsf]n] 
pQm lgdf{0f sfo{ ;xh ePsf] lyof] . cf=j= @)*)÷)*! df ;fGh]g 
-dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgfjf6 @)*) cflZjg @! ut]b]lv Jofkfl/s 
pTkfbg ePsf]n] sDkgL / k|flws/0f ljrdf ePsf] ljB't vl/b ljlqm 
;Demf}tf adf]lhd @)*) cflZjg @! ut]b]lv @)*! cfiff9 d;fGt;Dd 
ljB't ljlqmaf6 ? !(,&*,*),&&$=)^ k|fKt ePsf] 5 .

o; cf=j=df lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL ln=af6 cNksflng ;fk6Lsf] 
?kdf ? @) s/f]8 k|fKt u/L cfof]hgf lgdf{0f sfo{df kl/rfng ul/Psf]df 
;fFjf ¿= !! s/f]8 / ;f] sf] Jofh lkmtf{ ul/Psf] 5 eg] jfFsL ;fFjf ¿= ## 
s/f]8 lkmtf{ ug{ jfFsL /x]sf] 5 . 

cfof]hgfsf] lj:t[t l8hfO{g tyf lgdf{0f ;'k/LjIf0f -Detail Design 
and Construction Supervision_ ;DaGwL k/fdz{ sfo{ ug{ 
k/fdz{bftf >L lrlnd] O{lGhlgo/LË P08 ;le{;]h sDkgL ln= nfO{ 
k/fdz{bftfsf] ¿kdf lgo'Qm u/L k/fdz{ ;DaGwL sfd cufl8 a9L /x]sf] 
hfgsf/L u/fpb5' . ;Dj4 sDkgLx¿;Fu ePsf] sf/f]jf/sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f 
n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf ljlQo ljj/0fsf ;DjlGwt cg';"rLdf pNn]v ul/Psf] 
5 .

!%= cf=j= @)*).)*! sf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{
 sDkgLsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no tyf ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] 
@)*) sflt{sb]lvsf] sd{rf/L vr{ tyf cGo ;~rfng ug{ nfu]sf] vr{nfO{ 
Joj:yfkg vr{ dflgPsf] 5 h; cg';f/ o; cfly{s jif{ @)*)÷*! df 
hDdf ¿= * s/f]8 !* nfv ^% xhf/ /x]sf] 5 .

!^= rfn" cf=j= @)*!÷*@ sf] pknAwL tyf vr{
cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] c;f]h d;fGt;Dddf ljB't ljlqmaf6 ? ^ s/f]8 
#$ nfv %& xhf/ / j}s Aofh tyf cGo cfDbfgL tkm{ ?= $ nfv !% 
xhf/ ul/ ? ^ s/f]8 #* nfv &@ xhf/ cfh{g u/]sf] 5 . o;}u/L skf]{/]6 
sfof{nosf] k|zf;lgs vr{ tkm{ ?= ! s/f]8 ! nfv &( xhf/ vr{ ePsf] 
5 . ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] k|zf;lgs vr{ tkm{ ?=! 
s/f]8 &! nfv (^ xhf/ / l:y/ ;DklQdf ? *@ nfv !& xhf/ vr{ 
ePsf] 5 . To:t} u/L ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] k|zf;lgs vr{ tkm{ ?= 
! s/f]8 (( nfv &$ xhf/ / k"FhLut tkm{ ?=@ s/f]8 (# nfv ^* xhf/ 
vr{ ePsf] 5 .

!&= ;~rfns tyf pRr kb:y kbflwsf/Lsf] kfl/>lds
;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf k|lt JolQm k|lt a}7s s/;lxt ?= ( xhf/, 
;~rfns ;ldltn] u7g u/]sf] ;ldlt tyf pk–;ldltsf] a}7s eQf k|lt 
JolQm k|lt a}7s s/ ;lxt ?= $ xhf/ / k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] dfl;s 
kfl/>lds jfkt s/ ;lxt ?= @ nfv #@ xhf/ /x]sf] 5 .

!*= a}+s tyf ljlQo ;+:yfx?af6 lnOPsf] C0f tyf a'emfpg afFsL /x]sf] 
;fFjf tyf Jofhsf] /sd
o; sDkgL, lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8 / sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]ifaLr 
ePsf] lqkIfLo C0f ;Demf}tf adf]lhd cf=j= @)*)÷)*! sf] d;fGt;Dd 
sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]ifaf6 ¿= % ca{ * s/f]8 #( nfv ## xhf/ ;fFjf / 
Jofh k"Flhs/0f jfkt ¿= # cj{ ** s/f]8 ^! nfv @& xhf/ ;d]t ¿= 
* cj{ (& s/f]8 ^) xhf/ jf;nftdf bL3{sflng C0f zLif{sdf k|:t't 
ul/Psf] 5 . b'j} cfof]hgf ;~rfngdf cfP kl5 sd{rf/L ;+rosf]if af6 
k|fKt pNn]lvt C0f tyf Jofh /sd r'Qmf ug{sf nflu pkof]u ul/g]5 . 
sDkgLsf] ljlQo cfjZostf Joj:yfkg ug{ cf= j= @)*).)*! df >L 
lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8;+u ? @) s/f]8 cNksflng ;fkl6 lnO{ 
cNksflng >f]t kl/rfng ul/Psf]df ? !! s/f]8 / ;f] df nfu]sf] Jofh 
;d]t lkmtf{ ul/;lsPsf] 5 . xfn ## s/f]8 cNksflng C0f bfloTjsf] 
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?kdf jf;nftdf b]vfO{Psf] 5 . Jofh eg] lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL 
lnld6]8nfO{ q}dfl;s ?kdf e'QmfgL x'Fb} cfPsf] 5 .

!(= sDkgLn] e'QmfgL lng'kg]{ jf sDkgLn] cGo JolQmnfO{ e'QmfgL ug{' 
kg]{ egL bfaL ul/Psf] /sd jf o; ljifodf d'2f dfldnf rln/x]sf] eP 
To;sf] ljj/0f
pNn]lvt ljifodf s'g} bfloTj gePsf] .

@)= sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkgdf sfo{/t cGo :t/sf sd{rf/L jf sfdbf/sf] 
;+Vof
xfn o; sDkgLdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx¿dWo] g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0faf6 
sfhdf cfPsf b'O{ hgf jfx]s ;a} sd{rf/Lx¿ s/f/ ;]jfdf sfo{/t /x]sf 
5g\ . sd{rf/Lsf] ;]jf ;'ljwfnfO{ Jojl:yt ug{sf nflu sDklgsf] cfˆg} 
sd{rf/L k|zf; ljlgodfjnL /x]sf] 5 . xfn sDkgLsf] s]G›Lo sfof{no, 
;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf / ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfdf 
u/L clws[t :t/ !& hgf, ;xfos :t/ !)@ hgf ;d]t hDdf !!( hgf 
sd{rf/L sfo{/t /x]sf 5g\ .

@!= sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkgdf sfo{/t tyf cGo :t/df sfo{/t ljb]zLx?sf] 
;+Vof tyf lghx?nfO{ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwf
xfn s'g} klg ljb]zLx? sfo{/t 5}gg\ .

@@= sDkgL / s'g} ljb]zL lgsfo jf JolQmx?aLr nufgL, Joj:yfkg jf 
k|fljlws ;]jf jf cGo ljifodf Ps jif{ eGbf a9L cjlwsf] nflu s'g} 
;Demf}tf ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f / ;DalGwt cfly{s jif{df To:tf] 
;Demf}tf cg';f/ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] nfef+;, sld;g, z'Ns, b:t'/ / /f]oN6L 
cflbsf] ljj/0f
of] k|ltj]bg tof/ ug]{ ;do;Dd pk/f]Qm k|of]hgsf] nflu sf]xL ljb]zL JolQm 
tyf ;+:yf;Fu cfly{s bfloTj x'g] u/L s'g} ;Demf}tf ePsf] 5}g . s'g} 
lsl;dsf] /sd e'QmfgL ul/Psf] 5}g .

@#= z]o/wgLx?n] a'lemlng afFsL /x]sf] nfef+;sf] /sd
xfn;Dd To:tf] s'g} /sd afFsL g/x]sf] .

@$= sDkgLn] o; P]g tyf k|rlnt sfg"gsf] kfngf k"0f{ ?kdf u/]sf] 5 eGg] 
s'/fsf] p¢f]if0f
o; sDkgLn] k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd l;h{gf x'g] ;Dk"0f{ zt{x? pRr 
;ts{tfsf ;fy kl/kfng u/]sf] tYo o; ul/dfdo ;efdf p43f]if ug{ 
rfxG5' .

s[t1tf 1fkg tyf wGojfb,
;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf tyf ;fGh]g hnljB't 
cfof]hgfsf] k|f/lDes cWoogz'? ePb]lv xfnsf] cj:yf;Dd NofO{ 
k'¥ofpg k|ToIf jf k/f]If ?kn] ;xof]u k'¥ofpg] phf{, hn;|f]t tyf l;+rfO{ 
dGqfno, ljB't ljsf; ljefu, jg tyf jftfj/0f dGqfno, jg ljefu, 
If]qLo jg lgb]{zgfno, e"ld ;'wf/ dGqfno, e"ld Joj:yf, ;xsf/L tyf 
ul/aL lgjf/0f dGqfno, pBf]u jfl0fHo tyf cfk"lt{ dGqfno, >d /f]huf/ 
tyf ;fdflhs ;'/Iff dGqfno, u[x dGqfno,g]kfn lwtf]kq jf]8{,g]kfn 
:6s PS;r]Gh, l;=l8=P;=;L= lnld6]8 nufot g]kfn ;/sf/sf ljleGg 
lgsfosf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ d wGojfb lbg rfxG5' . 

o;} qmddf :yfgLo /;'jf lhNnfsf] lhNnf k|zf;g sfof{no, lhNnf 
;dGjo ;ldlt, cfof]hgf :yn /x]sf] cfdf5f]lbËdf] ufpFkflnsf,lrlnd] 
tyf uf]Nh'Ë j8f sfof{no, uf];fO{s'08ufpFkflnsftyf :ofFk|m'j]F;L j8f 
sfof{no, nfª6fª /fli6«o lgs'~h tyf sfnLh+u u0f, g]kfnL;]gf, lhNnf 
k|x/L sfof{no, ;z:q k|x/L an, lhNnf dfnkf]t sfof{no, lhNnf jg 
sfof{no cflbaf6 cfof]hgf sfof{Gjogdf k|fKt ;xof]usf nflu wGojfb 
lbg rfxG5' / cfufdL lbgx?df klg lg/Gt/ ;xof]u kfpg] ljZjf; u/]sf] 5' .

cfof]hgfx?sf] lgdf{0f / ;~rfng ;DaGwL sfo{df ;xof]u / ;b\efj 
b]vfpFb} cfpg' ePsf ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf j/k/sf ;Dk"0f{ :yflgo 
afl;Gbfx?, :yfgLo txsf kbflwsf/Lx?, jg pkef]Qmf ;ldltx?, cfdf 
;d"xx?, o'jf Snj, z}lIfs ;+:yf nufot k|ToIf jf k/f]If ?kdf ;xof]u ug{' 
x'g] a'l4hLlj ju{ Pj+ kqsf/ ldqx?nfO{ klg wGojfb lbg rfxG5' .

k|aw{s ;+:yf g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f, lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL ln= df 
sfo{/t /xg' ePsf Joj:yfkg tyf sd{rf/L Pj+ sd{rf/L o'lgogx?df xflb{s 
wGojfb lbg rfxG5' . ljz]iftM sDkgLsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no / cfof]hgfsf 
Joj:yfkg nufot ;a} txsf sd{rf/L tyf sd{rf/L o"lgognfO{ wGojfb 
lbg rfxG5' . ljleGg /fhlglts bnsf g]tf tyf sfo{stf{x?, ;/f]sf/jfnf 
;+3 ;+:yf, lzIfs, ljBfyL{, ;dfh;]jL, gful/s ;dfh, kqsf/, a'l4hLlj, 
lhNnfsf ;/sf/L lgsfox?, ;'/Iff lgsfox?, ;/f]sf/ ;ldlt ;Dk"0f{ 
;/f]sf/jfnfx?k|lt o; sDkgLsf] tkm{af6 xflb{s cfef/ k|s6 ub{5' .

sDkgLsf] :yfkgf, lgdf{0f tyf Joj:yfkgdf of]ubfg k'¥ofpg' x'g] ;~rfns 
;ldltsf ;b:o tyf k"j{ ;~rfns tyf k"j{ sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ klg wGojfb 
lbg rfxG5' .

lgdf{0fsfo{df ;+nUg e} cfof]hgfx?nfO{ cfhsf] cj:yf;Dd Nofpg 

e"ldsf lgefpg] 7]s]bf/ sDkgLx? ECI–BGCCPL J/V, SEW–
TUNDI J/V, g]kfn xfO8«f] P08 O{n]lS6«s sDkgL, Dongfang 
Electric International Coporation, Mudhbhary and Joshi 
Company Pvt Ltd,Nepalese/Sharmila J/V, Tenji Nirman 
Sewa nufotsf ;Dk"0f{ lgdf{0f Joj;foL sDkgLx¿nfO{ ;d]t wGojfb 
lbg rfxG5' .

o; sDkgLsf] ljlQo Joj:yfkgdf ;xof]u / ;b\efj /fVg] sd{rf/L ;~ro 
sf]if, gfu/Ls nufgL sf]if, cGo ljlQo ;+3 ;+:yfx? tyf z]o/ /lhi6«f/sf] 
;]jf k|bfg ug]{ ;g/fO{h Soflk6n lnld6]8nfO{ klg wGojfb lbg rfxG5' .

cGTodf, ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt k|lt 
b]vfpg' ePsf] ;xof]u, ;b\efj / ljZjf;sf] lgldQ d pxfFx?k|lt xflb{s 
s[t1tf tyf wGojfb 1fkg ug{ rfxG5' ;fy} cfufdL lbgx?df klg o;/L g} 
lg/Gt/ ;fy / ;xof]u lbg' x'g]5 eGg] cfzf JoQm ub{5' .

wGojfb,
cWoIf

;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8
dxf/fhu+h, sf7df8f}+ .
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Statement of Financial Position
As on 31st Ashadh , 2081 (Corresponding to 15-July- 2024)

(in NPR)
Particulars Notes 31.03.2081 (15.07.2024) 31.03.2080 (16.07.2023)

ASSETS      
Non-Current Assets      
Property Plant and Equipment’s 1  3,231,530,164 1,296,851
Project Capital Work in Progress 2  9,304,659,216 11,568,695,130
Term Deposit 3  -  - 
Total Non-Current Assets    12,536,189,380 11,569,991,981
Current Assets      
Inventories 4  31,727,203 29,048,281
Prepayments 7  3,784,020 209,518
Financial Assets:      
Advances to Contractors and Consultants 5  62,804,421 78,061,566
Deposits and Margin 6  2,176,103 2,587,835
Current Tax Assets 8.1  12,016,649 13,933,962
Term Deposits with Banks 9  270,000 270,000
Trade Receivables    52,418,035  - 
Other Financial Asssets 10  53,291,757 25,936,565
Bank Balances Call and Current 11  116,949,816 8,678,802
Total Current Assets    335,438,004 158,726,529
TOTAL ASSETS    12,871,627,384  11,728,718,510 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      
Equity      
Equity Share Capital 12  3,650,000,000 3,650,000,000
Other Equity(Reserve & Surplus) 13  (395,848,291)  (240,729,645)
Total Equity    3,254,151,709 3,409,270,355
Liabilities      
Non-Current Liabilities      
Financial Liabilities:      
Borrowings 14.1.1  8,970,060,706 7,682,659,706
Other Non-current Liabilities 14.1.3  256,355,819 245,633,097
Total Non-Current Liabilities    9,226,416,525 7,928,292,803
Current Liabilities      
Provisions 14.2.3  2,433,230 13,436,707
Financial Liabilities:      
Borrowings 14.1.1  330,000,000 240,000,000
Other Financial Liabilities and Payables 14.1.2  58,625,920 137,718,645
Total Current Liabilities   391,059,150 391,155,352
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    12,871,627,384  11,728,718,510 

*As per our report of even date.

..........………………….
Ramji Bhandari

Chairman

………………….……………
Lok Hari Luitel

Director

 ………………………………………
Subhash Kumar Mishra

Director

……………….........………..
Thakur Jung Thapa

Director

 ……………..................………
Arpan Bahadur Singh
Chief Executive Officer 

…………………......….................
Narayan Prasad Acharya

Director

Date : 2081/08/23
Place : Kathmandu, Nepal

………………………………………
Ghanashyam Shrestha

Account Chief

…………….............………………….
Surendra Bahadur K.C., FCA

Proprietor
S.B.K.C & Associates

Chartered Accountants
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jf;nft @)*! cfiff9 d;fGt;Dd
g]kfnL ?k}+ofdf

ljj/0f  @)*! cfiff9 #! Uft]sf] -?=_  @)*) cfiff9 #! Uft]sf] -?=_
;DklQ

l:y/ ;DklQ

;DklQ, KnfG6 tyf pks/0f  3,231,530,164  1,296,851
cfof]hgf nufgL tyf sfo{ k|utL  9,304,659,216  11,568,695,130
d'4tL lgIf]k – –
hDdf l:y/ ;DklQ  12,536,189,380  11,569,991,981
rfn" ;DklQ

lhG;L df}Hbft  31,727,203  29,048,281
clu|d e'QmfgL  3,784,020  209,518
ljlQo ;DklQ

7]s]bf/ tyf k/fdz{bftfnfO{ k]ZsL  62,804,421  78,061,566
lgIf]k tyf dflh{g  2,176,103  2,587,835
sn tyf d'4tLdf k|fKt Jofh  12,016,649  13,933,962
a}ssf] d'4tL lgIf]k  270,000  270,000
Jofkf/ tyf cGo k|fKt ug{'kg]{  52,418,035 –
cGo ljlQo ;DklQ  53,291,757  25,936,565
j}s d}Hbft  116,949,816  8,678,802
hDdf rfn" ;DklQ  335,438,004  158,726,529
hDDff ;DklQ  12,871,627,384  11,728,718,510
z]o/ k"FhL tyf bfloTj

z]o/ k"FhL 

z]o/ k"FhL  3,650,000,000  3,650,000,000
hu]8f sf]if  -395,848,291_  -240,729,645_
hDdf z]o/ k"FhL  3,254,151,709  3,409,270,355
bfloTj

lb3{sfnLg bfloTj

ljlQo bfloTj

lb3{sfnLg C0f ;fk6L  8,970,060,706  7,682,659,706
cGo lb3{sfnLg bfloTj  256,355,819  245,633,097
hDdf lb3{sfnLg bfloTj  9,226,416,525  7,928,292,803
rfn" bfloTj

Joj:yfx?  2,433,230  13,436,707
ljlQo bfloTj – –
cNksflng C0f ;fk6L  330,000,000  240,000,000
cGo ljlQo bfloTj tyf e'StfgL ug'{kg]{  58,625,920  137,718,645
hDDff rfn" bfloTj  391,059,150  391,155,352
hDdf z]o/ k"FhL tyf bfloTj  12,871,627,384  11,728,718,510
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Statement of Profit or Loss
From 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (Corresponding to 17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024)

(NPR)
Particulars Notes FY 2080.81 (2023.24) FY 2079.80 (2022.23)

Revenue      
Sales of Electricity 15.1  197,880,774  - 
Cost of Sales      
Direct Costs 18.1  (35,151,264)  - 
Royalty 18.1  (5,431,153)  - 
Gross Profit    157,298,357  - 
Employee Benefits 16  (17,614,448)  (18,104,649)
Operating and Administrative Expenses 18.2  (23,668,823)  (13,589,819)
Depreciation and Amortization 17  (100,179,545)  (5,126,466)
Profit From Operation    15,835,541  (36,820,934)
Other income 15.4  3,138,160  1,012,230 
Finance income 15.3  5,156,072  11,443,118 
Finance Cost 19  (171,282,437)  - 
Exchange Gain / (loss) 20  (6,147,206)  4,330,333 
Profit Before Bonus and Tax    (153,299,870)  (20,035,253)
Provision for Bonus    -  - 
Income Taxes    (1,289,018)  (2,860,780)
Net Profit    (154,588,888)  (22,896,033)
Notes Basic EPS (Annualised) 21 (4.24) (0.65)
Diluted EPS (4.24) (0.65)

*The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of event date.

..........………………….
Ramji Bhandari

Chairman

………………….……………
Lok Hari Luitel

Director

 ………………………………………
Subhash Kumar Mishra

Director

……………….........………..
Thakur Jung Thapa

Director

 ……………..................………
Arpan Bahadur Singh
Chief Executive Officer 

…………………......….................
Narayan Prasad Acharya

Director

Date : 2081/08/23
Place : Kathmandu, Nepal

………………………………………
Ghanashyam Shrestha

Account Chief

…………….............………………….
Surendra Bahadur K.C., FCA

Proprietor
S.B.K.C & Associates

Chartered Accountants
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gfkmf gf]S;fg ljj/0f cf=j= @)*)÷)*!
g]kfnL ?k}+ofdf

ljj/0f cf=j= @)*)÷*! cf=j= @)&(÷*)
cfDbfgL
ljB't ljqmL  197,880,774 –
ljqmLsf] nfut

k|ToIf vr{  -35,151,264_ –
/f]oN6L  -5,431,153_ –
hDdf cfDbfgL  157,298,357 –
sd{rf/L vr{  -17,614,448_  -18,104,649_
;~rfng tyf ;Def/ vr{  -23,668,823_  -13,589,819_
x|f; tyf cdf]{6fO{h]zg  -100,179,545_  -5,126,466_
;~rfngaf6 gfkmf  15,835,541  15,835,541  -36,820,934_ -36,820,934_
cGo cfDbfgL  3,138,160  1,012,230 
Jofh cfDbfgL  5,156,072  11,443,118 
ljlQo vr{  -171,282,437_ –
ljlgdo b/jf6 ePsf] gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_  -6,147,206_  4,330,333 
nfef+; tyf s/ cuf8Lsf] gfkmf  -153,299,870_  -20,035,253_
nfef+; Joj:yf – –
cfo s/  -1,289,018_  -2,860,780_
v'b gfkmf  -154,588,888_ -154,588,888_  -22,896,033_ -22,896,033_
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
From 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashad 2081 (Corresponding to 17th July 2023 to 15th July 2024)

(NPR)

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2081 
(2024.07.15)

Year Ended 31.03.2080 
(2023.07.16)

Profit/Loss for the year  (154,588,888)  (22,896,033)
Other comprehensive income/(expense)    

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit 
or loss when specific conditions are met    

Available-for-sale investments    
–  fair value gains / (Losses)  -  - 
–  income taxes  -  - 
Exchange differences and other  -  - 
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss    

Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans    
–  before income taxes  -  - 
–  income taxes  -  - 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  -  - 
Total comprehensive income for the year  (154,588,888)  (22,896,033)

As per our report of event date

..........………………….
Ramji Bhandari

Chairman

………………….……………
Lok Hari Luitel

Director

 ………………………………………
Subhash Kumar Mishra

Director

……………….........………..
Thakur Jung Thapa

Director

 ……………..................………
Arpan Bahadur Singh
Chief Executive Officer 

…………………......….................
Narayan Prasad Acharya

Director

Date : 2081/08/23
Place : Kathmandu, Nepal

………………………………………
Ghanashyam Shrestha

Account Chief

…………….............………………….
Surendra Bahadur K.C., FCA

Proprietor
S.B.K.C & Associates

Chartered Accountants
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 15th July 2024

(Figure in NPR)

Particulars 31.03.2081 
(2024.07.15)

31.03.2080 
(2023.07.16)

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss / (profit) before taxation (154,588,888) (22,896,033)
Adjustments for non-cash items and non-operating adjustments
Depreciation 100,179,545 5,126,466
Loss (Gain) on disposal of assets - -
Dividend income - -
Defined benefit plan net charge - -
Changes in Operating assets and Liabilities
Change in operating assets (68,440,460) (60,395,308)
Change in operating liabilities (79,373,480) 6,325,300
Contributions to defined benefit schemes
Previous year adjustments (529,759) (2,747,920)
Defined benefits paid - -
Net cash from operating activities (202,753,042) (74,587,494)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (60,548,158) (363,257)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment - -
Purchase of CWIP (1,005,828,785) (1,786,984,701)
Disposal of CWIP - -
Purchase of Investments - -
Disposal and maturity of investment securities - -
Dividends received from investment in securities - -
Net cash used in investing activities (1,066,376,943) (1,787,347,958)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ordinary and preference share capital, net of expenses - 365,000,000
Share Issue Expenses - (1,423,043)
Borrowings 1,377,401,000 1,392,540,696
Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders, net of scrip
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities 1,377,401,000 1,756,117,653
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 108,271,015 (105,817,800)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 8,678,801 114,496,601
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash & cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 116,949,816 8,678,801

*As per our report of event date.

..........………………….
Ramji Bhandari

Chairman

………………….……………
Lok Hari Luitel

Director

 ………………………………………
Subhash Kumar Mishra

Director

……………….........………..
Thakur Jung Thapa

Director

 ……………..................………
Arpan Bahadur Singh
Chief Executive Officer 

…………………......….................
Narayan Prasad Acharya

Director

Date : 2081/08/23
Place : Kathmandu, Nepal

………………………………………
Ghanashyam Shrestha

Account Chief

…………….............………………….
Surendra Bahadur K.C., FCA

Proprietor
S.B.K.C & Associates

Chartered Accountants
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gub k|jfx ljj/0f cf=j= @)*)÷)*!
g]kfnL ?k}+ofdf

ljj/0f cf=j= @)*)÷*! cf=j= @)&(÷*)
;~rfng ultljlwaf6 v'b gub k|jfx

cfos/ vr{ cufl8sf] v'b gfkmf÷-gf]S;fgL_  -154,588,888_  -22,896,033_
;dfof]hg 

!= x|f; s§L  100,179,545  5,126,466 
@= ;DklQsf] lg;u{jf6 ePsf] gf]S;fg /-gfkmf_ – –
#= nfef+; cfo – –
$= tf]lsPsf] cfo of]hgfsf] vr{ – –
sfo{lzn k'Flhdf ePsf] kl/jt{g

!= rfn' ;DklQdf ePsf] sdL÷-j[l4_  -68,440,460_  -60,395,308_
 @=rfn' bfloTjdf ePsf] j[l4÷-sdL_  -79,373,480_  6,325,300 
# tf]lsPsf] cfo of]hgfdf of]ubfg – –
$= utjif{sf] ;dfof]hg  -529,759_  -2,747,920_
% tf]lsPsf] cfo e'QmfgL – –
;~rfng ultljlwaf6 v'b gub k|jfx  -202,753,042_ -202,753,042_  -74,587,495_ -74,587,495_
nufgL ultljlwjf6 gub k|jfx

;DklQ, KnfG6 tyf pks/0f–vl/b  -60,548,158_  -363,257_
;DklQ, KnfG6 tyf pks/0f–lg;u{ – –
cfof]hgf nufgL tyf sfo{ k|ult–vl/b  -1,005,828,785_  -1,786,984,701_
cfof]hgf nufgL tyf sfo{ k|ult–lg;u{ – –
nufgL – –
lwtf]kqsf] lg;u{ tyf – –
lwtf]kqaf6 k|fKt nfef+; – –
nufgL ultljlwaf6 v'b gub k|jfx  -1,066,376,943_ -1,066,376,943_  -1,787,347,958_ -1,787,347,958_
ljlQo ultljlwsf] gub k|jfx

;fwf/0f ;]o/ k'FhL –  365,000,000 
;]o/ lgisf;g vr{ –  -1,423,043_
lb3{sflng C0f tyf ;fk6L  1,377,401,000  1,392,540,696 
;fwf/0f ;]o/ wlgnfO{ nfef+; e'QmfgL – –
ljlQo ultljlwjf6 v'b gub k|jfx  1,377,401,000  1,377,401,000  1,756,117,653  1,756,117,653 
gubdf ePsf] s'n j[l4÷-sdL_  108,271,015  -105,817,800_
jiff{/Dedf gub tyf a}+s df}Hbft  8,678,801  114,496,601 
ljlgdo b/sf] gf]S;fgLaf6 gubdf ePsf] kl/jt{g – –
jiff{Gtdf gub tyf a}s df}Hbft  116,949,816  116,949,816  8,678,801  8,678,801 



72

;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8, rf}wf}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷@)*!
St

at
em

en
t o

f C
ha

ng
es

 in
 E

qu
ity

Fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 1
6th

 J
ul

y 
20

23
 

(F
ig

ur
e 

in
 N

P
R

)

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s

 C
al

le
d 

up
 S

ha
re

 
C

ap
ita

l 
 C

ap
ita

l 
pr

em
iu

m
 

 R
et

ai
ne

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 

 R
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

er
ve

 
 D

ef
er

re
d 

Ta
x 

R
es

er
ve

 
 T

ot
al

 S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

's
 

Fu
nd

 
A

t 1
6 

Ju
ly

 2
02

2
3,

28
5,

00
0,

00
0

-
(2

13
,6

62
,6

50
)

3,
07

1,
33

7,
35

0
Ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
(3

,4
58

,4
22

)
(3

,4
58

,4
22

)
R

es
ta

te
d

3,
28

5,
00

0,
00

0
-

(2
17

,1
21

,0
71

)
-

-
3,

06
7,

87
8,

92
9

Pr
of

it 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r a
nd

 O
th

er
 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
(n

et
 o

f t
ax

)
(2

2,
89

6,
03

2)
(2

2,
89

6,
03

2)

Sh
ar

e 
Is

su
e

36
5,

00
0,

00
0

71
0,

50
2

36
5,

71
0,

50
2

Sh
ar

e 
is

su
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 
(1

,4
23

,0
43

)
(1

,4
23

,0
43

)
D

ef
er

re
d 

Ta
x 

R
es

er
ve

-
Fi

xe
d 

As
se

ts
 W

rit
te

n 
of

f
-

A
s 

on
 1

6 
Ju

ly
-2

02
3

3,
65

0,
00

0,
00

0
-

(2
40

,7
29

,6
45

)
-

-
3,

40
9,

27
0,

35
5

A
s 

pe
r o

ur
 R

ep
or

t o
f e

ve
n 

da
te

.

...
...

...
.…

……
……

……
.

Ra
m

ji 
Bh

an
da

ri
Ch

ai
rm

an

……
……

……
….

……
……

…
Lo

k 
Ha

ri 
Lu

ite
l

Di
re

ct
or

 …
……

……
……

……
……

……
……

Su
bh

as
h 

Ku
m

ar
 M

is
hr

a
Di

re
ct

or

……
……

……
...

...
...

……
….

.
Th

ak
ur

 J
un

g 
Th

ap
a

Di
re

ct
or

 …
……

……
...

...
...

...
...

...
……

…
Ar

pa
n 

Ba
ha

du
r S

in
gh

Ch
ie

f E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
Offi

ce
r 

……
……

……
….

...
..…

...
...

...
...

...
..

Na
ra

ya
n 

Pr
as

ad
 A

ch
ar

ya
Di

re
ct

or

Da
te

 : 
20

81
/0

8/
23

Pl
ac

e 
: K

at
hm

an
du

, N
ep

al

……
……

……
……

……
……

……
…

Gh
an

as
hy

am
 S

hr
es

th
a

Ac
co

un
t C

hi
ef

……
……

….
...

...
...

...
……

……
……

….
Su

re
nd

ra
 B

ah
ad

ur
 K

.C
., 

FC
A

Pr
op

rie
to

r
S.

B.
K.

C 
& 

As
so

ci
at

es
Ch

ar
te

re
d 

Ac
co

un
ta

nt
s



73

;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8, rf}wf}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷@)*!

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts				  
A. Statement of Compliance	
The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 
(NFRS) to the extent applicable and as published by 
the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) – Nepal. These 
statements have been approved from 302nd Board of 
Directors’ meeting held on 2081/08/23 and have been 
recommended for approval by shareholders in the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM)	 		

B. About SJCL					  
Sanjen Jalavidhyut Company Limited (SJCL) is a 
subsidiary of Chilime and was incorporated in February 
2010 as a public limited company. SJCL is developing 
two hydropower projects – Sanjen Hydroelectric Project 
(SHEP) having capacity of 42.5 MW and Sanjen (Upper) 
Hydroelectric Project (SUHEP) of capacity 14.8 MW in 
Rasuwa district of Province 3 in Nepal. The company’s 
registered office is in Maharajgunj Kathmandu. Both 
the hydropower plants have commissioned and are 
connected to the National Grid through Chilime-Trisuli 
220kv transmission line at Chilime hub located at the 
Rasuwa district.					  

C.  Basis of Preparation			 
The financial information has been prepared under the 
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation 
of assets at fair value wherever the standard requires or 
the company adopts the option given in the standards 
for such revaluation. 				  
	
i. Compliance with NFRS			 
The financial statements of SJCL have been prepared 
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 
(NFRS) issued by Accounting Standard Board of Nepal 
on 13 Sept 2013. These are based on the International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by 
International Accounting Standard Board (IASB). 
The NAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement is notified to be applicable for recognition, 
measurement and reporting of Financial Instruments.	
				  
ii. Presentation of Financial Statements	
The statement of profit or loss has been prepared 
using classification ‘by nature’ method. The cash flows 
from operation within the statement of cash flows 
have been derived using the ‘indirect’ method.		
	
iii. Presentation Currency			 
The financial statements have been presented in the 
nearest Nepalese Rupees (NPR). Nepalese Rupees 
(NPR) is also the functional and presentation currency.	
	
iv. Current and Non-Current Distinction	
Assets and liabilities, wherever applicable, are bifurcated 
in current and non-current based on their respective 
maturity. Such information has been separately disclosed 
wherever applicable. 

v. Discounting					   
When the realisation of assets and settlement of obligation 
is for more than one year, the company considers the 

discounting of such assets and liabilities where the 
impact is material. Various internal and external factors 
have been considered for determining the discount rate 
to be applied to the cash flows of company.		
	
vi. Accounting policies, critical accounting estimates 
and judgements		
Accounting Policies					   
NFRS requires the company to adopt accounting 
policies that are most appropriate to the company’s 
circumstances. In determining and applying accounting 
policies, management is required to make judgements 
in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, 
accounting estimate or assumption to be followed 
could materially affect the company’s reported financial 
position, results or cash flows. These accounting policies 
are consistently applied by the Company.

Specific accounting policies have been included in the 
specific section of the notes for each items of financial 
statements which requires disclosures of accounting 
policies or changes in accounting policies. Effect and 
nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed. 	
	
Accounting estimates and judgements		
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance 
with NFRS requires the management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions in applying 
the accounting policies that affect the reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, including 
contingencies and commitments. Due to the inherent 
uncertainty in making estimates, actual results reported 
in future periods may differ from those estimates. The 
estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on on-going basis based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimates is revised, if the revision 
affects only that period; they are recognised in the period 
of revision and the future periods if the revision affects 
both current and future periods. 

The significant judgements made by management in 
applying the company’s accounting policies and the 
key sources of estimation uncertainty in these financial 
statements, which together are deemed critical to the 
company’s results and financial position, are given in 
the respective sections of the notes wherever they have 
been applied. 
	 				  
vii. Going Concern					   
The management consider that it is appropriate to 
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing 
the financial statements.				 
	
viii. Reporting dates					   
SJCL follows the Nepalese financial year based on the 
Nepalese calendar. The corresponding dates for the 
English Calendar are as follows:	



74

;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8, rf}wf}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷@)*!

Relevant 
Financial 
Statement

Nepalese 
Calendar

English 
Calendar

Date / Period Date / Period
Opening SFP 
date 1 Shrawan 2080 17-Jul-23

Closing SFP 
Date 31 Ashadh 2081 15-Jul-24

Comparative 
reporting period

1 Shrawan 2079 
- 31 Ashadh 

2080

16 July 2022 - 
16 July 2023

ix.  Materiality					   
The Company for the preparation of financial statements 
determines materiality based on the nature or magnitude, 
or both. Materiality is a pervasive constraint in financial 
reporting because it is pertinent to all of the qualitative 
characteristics.

x.    Cost Constraint 				  
	 The company assesses whether the benefits 
of reporting particular information are likely to justify the 
costs incurred to provide and use that information. It is 
consistent with the Framework for in NFRS requirement 
not to maximise the qualitative characteristics of financial 
information and other main Framework concepts when 
the costs of doing so would exceed the benefits	 .

D. Notes to Accounts					   
1. Property Plant & Equipment’s and Intangible 
Assets
A. Intangible Assets				  
Accounting Policies
Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the 
company controls the asset, it is probable that future 
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to 
the company and the cost of the asset can be reliably 
measured. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are 
stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives 
and the amortisation methods of the assets are reviewed 
at least annually. Changes in the estimated useful 
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefit embodied in the assets are accounted 
for by changing the amortisation period or method, as 
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting 
estimates in accordance with NAS 8. Amortisation is 
charged to Statement of Profit or Loss on a straight-line 
basis over the useful life of license. Intangible assets 
having infinite useful life are assessed for impairment at 
each reporting date.				  
	
Explanatory Notes
Company does not have any separable intangible 
assets. The accounting software in use by the company 
is grouped with the office equipment.			 
				  

B. Property Plant and Equipment			 
Accounting Policies 
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement 
of financial position at their cost and are inclusive of 
all expenses necessary to bring the assets to working 
condition for its intended use less any subsequent 
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated 
impairment losses, if applicable. Property, plant and 
equipment are recognised as an asset, if and only if it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the company; and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably.

The depreciation period is based on the expected 
useful life of an asset. Items of property plant and 
equipment are depreciated on pro rata basis in the year 
of acquisition. The residual values, useful lives and the 
depreciation methods of assets are reviewed at least at 
each financial year end and, if expectations differ from 
previous estimates are accounted for as a change in 
accounting estimates in accordance with NAS 8.	

In addition to the purchase price and cost directly 
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
conditions necessary for it to be capable of operating 
in the manner intended by management if an item 
of property, plant and equipment consists of several 
components with different estimated useful lives, those 
components that are significant are depreciated over 
their individual useful lives. Subsequent costs that do 
not qualify the recognition criteria under NAS 16 are 
expensed as and when incurred.		
	
Useful Life
Explanatory Notes
Useful life of property plant and equipment has been 
depreciated under the management’s estimate of 
useful life of the particular class of assets. Assets are 
categorised in different class of assets according to their 
similar nature and characteristics. Useful life estimated 
by the management is as follows.

Asset Class Useful life
Furniture and Fixtures 7
Heavy Equipment 7
Office Equipment 5
Other Assets 5
Tool and Equipment 7
Vehicles 7

Corporate Assets
SJCL is in the process of construction of two hydropower 
plants. Therefore, only assets that are not directly 
associated with the plants and are put to use has been 
categorised as property plant and equipment. These 
assets are basically assets used by the corporate office. 
Some of the assets within property plat and equipment 
include assets handed over by Chilime Hydropower 
Company Limited and rest of the assets are those that 
have been purchased by the company itself.
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Corporate Assets  
2023-24

Furniture 
and Fixtures

Right of Use 
Assets

Office 
Equipment Vehicles Heavy 

Equipment
Tools and 
Equipment

Other 
Assets TOTAL

Original Cost (Rs.) 

Original Cost Total
( 17-July-2023) 2,678,492 10,036,302 4,776,892 4,856,800 1,341,857 166,675 1,537,216 25,394,235

Additions 2080/81 25,425 - 92,250 - - - - 117,675

Adjustment (disposals 
and transfers) - - 316,874 - - - - 316,874

Original Cost Total
(15-July-2024) 2,703,917 10,036,302 5,186,015 4,856,800 1,341,857 166,675 1,537,216 25,828,783

Depreciation (Rs.)

As at 17-July-2023 2,349,239 9,264,280 4,766,102 4,856,800 1,189,611 166,675 1,504,677 24,097,384

Charge for the year 93,432 772,023 166,747 - 121,590 - 63 1,153,856

 Attributable to 
sold/transferred 
/written off

- - - - - - -

Depreciation as at 
15-July-2024 2,442,671 10,036,302 4,932,849 4,856,800 1,311,201 166,675 1,504,741 25,251,240

Net Property, Plant 
& Equipments

As at 15-July-2024 261,246 - 253,166 - 30,656 - 32,476 577,544

As at 16-July -2023 329,253 772,023 10,789 - 152,246 - 32,539 1,296,851

Project Assets
The assets directly attributable to the SUHEP project have been capitalized during the current fiscal year and will be 
depreciated over the license period of the project. Assets directly associated with the SHEP project are considered 
project assets and have been recognized as Capital Work in Progress, as detailed separately in Note 2.		

Project Assets 
SUHEP (14.8MW)  

2023-24
Land and Land 
Development Building Civil Structure Distribution 

Line
Transmission 

Line
Electro 

Mechanical 
Works

Hydro 
Mechanical 

Works
TOTAL

Original Cost (Rs.) 

Original Cost Total ( 
17-July-2023) - - - - - -

Capitalization 66,876,415 74,025,694 1,690,922,650 9,962,127 116,450,694 734,815,650 574,694,076 3,267,747,306

Additions 2080/81 - - 1,868,824 - - 42,236,274 17,032,781 61,137,880

Adjustment (disposals 
and transfers) - - - - (1,356,221) - - (1,356,221)

Original Cost 
Total(15-July-2024) 66,876,415 74,025,694 1,692,791,474 9,962,127 115,094,473 777,051,925 591,726,857 3,327,528,965

Depreciation (Rs.)

As at 17-July-2023 - - - - - - -

Charge for the year 1,997,081 2,210,574 50,494,770 297,492 3,473,878 22,778,743 17,377,176 98,629,713
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 Attributable to 
sold/transferred 
/written off

- - - - - - -

Depreciation as at 
15-July-2024 1,997,081 2,210,574 50,494,770 297,492 3,473,878 22,778,743 17,377,176 98,629,713

Net Property, Plant & 
Equipments

As at 15-July -2024 64,879,334 71,815,120 1,642,296,704 9,664,635 111,620,595 754,273,182 574,349,681 3,228,899,251

As at 17-July -2023 - - - - - -

Depreciation on project assets utilized for project administration has been capitalized as part of the project cost until 
the date of capitalization, i.e., 17th October 2023. The book value of these assets as of 17th October 2023 will be 
depreciated over their remaining useful life.										        
		

Office Assets SUHEP  
2023-24

Furniture 
and Fixtures

Right 
of Use 
Assets

Office 
Equipment Vehicles Heavy 

Equipment
Tools and 
Equipment

Other 
Assets TOTAL

Original Cost (Rs.) 

Original Cost Total( 
17-October-2023)

1,643,331 - 2,000,781 32,912,545 13,446,903 1,941,375 2,593,554 54,538,489

Additions 2080/81 - - 191,874 - - 1,007,053.00 60,523 1,259,450

Adjustment (disposals and transfers) - - - - - - - -

Original Cost Total(15-July-2024) 1,643,331 - 2,192,655 32,912,545 13,446,903 2,948,428 2,654,077 55,797,938

Depreciation (Rs.)

As at 17-10-2023 1,476,165 - 1,602,734 32,866,361 13,446,903 1,807,050 2,149,381 53,348,594
Charge for the year 27,476 - 105,237 46,184 - 142,462 74,617 395,976
 Attributable to sold/transferred/written 
off

- - - - - - - -

Depreciation as at 15-July-2024 1,503,641 - 1,707,972 32,912,545 13,446,903 1,949,512 2,223,998 53,744,570
Net Property, Plant & Equipments
As at 15-July -2024 139,690 - 484,683 - - 998,916 430,079 2,053,369
As at 17-October -2023 167,166 - 398,047 46,184 - 134,324.85 444,173 1,189,895

2. Capital Work in Progress			 
Accounting Policies 
Assets in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Depreciation on these 
assets commences when these assets are ready for their intended use.

The expenditure incurred in acquisition and installation of the equipment till the date of commissioning or civil works 
under construction till the date of completion is recognised as Capital work in progress. The value of capital work in 
progress includes stock of equipment lying in store or in transit for the purpose of getting used in such installation or 
construction. The value also includes balances with contractors and suppliers of the systems and equipment for the 
value to be received. Equipment are capitalised upon commissioning and civil works are capitalised upon handing 
over after being capable of being used.

Capital Work in progress 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23
Capital Assets 2,034,837,243 2,866,791,025
Operation and Maintenance 1,262,297,024 1,403,751,442
Capitalization (3,269,864,701) -
Transferred to Inventory (27,269,567) -
Sanjen Upper 14.8MW (0) 4,270,542,467
Capital Assets 5,487,319,271 4,441,283,809
Operation and Maintenance 3,817,339,945 2,856,868,854
Sanjen - 42.5MW 9,304,659,216 7,298,152,663
Total Sanjen Upper & Sanjen 9,304,659,216 11,568,695,130

CWIP- Capital Assets 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23
Sanjen Upper - 14.8MW
Opening CWIP 2,866,791,023 2,610,513,523
Addition during the year 19,984,322 258,183,355
Adjustments (851,938,102) (1,905,855)
Closing Balance 2,034,837,243 2,866,791,023
Sanjen - 42.5MW
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Opening CWIP 4,441,283,809 3,812,709,687
Addition during the year 195,824,957 629,847,907
Adjustments 851,412,252 (1,273,785)
Adjustments (1,201,747) -
Closing Balance 5,487,319,271 4,441,283,809
Total 7,522,156,515 7,308,074,832

CWIP - Operation & Maintenance 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23
Sanjen Upper - 14.8MW
Opening CWIP 1,403,751,442 1,124,130,093
Addition during the year 76,612,328 279,621,349
Adjustment (218,066,746) -
Closing Balance 1,262,297,024 1,403,751,442
Sanjen - 42.5MW
Opening CWIP 2,856,868,855 2,234,357,124
Addition during the year 742,404,344 622,511,731
Adjustment 218,066,746 -
Closing Balance 3,817,339,945 2,856,868,855
Total 5,079,636,969 4,260,620,297

CWIP Capital Assets 
2023-24  Cost  Accumulated Depreciation  Closing Balance 

 SHEP 42.5 MW  As at 17-July-
2023 

 Addition 
/Adjustment 

 As at 15-July-
2024  Opening  Addition 

/Adjustment  Total  This year  Previous year 

 Assets Not ready to 
Use 

 Land 29,265,579 1,389,062 30,654,641 - - - 30,654,641 30,654,641

 11 KVA line 19,168,778 - 19,168,778 - - - 19,168,778 19,168,778

 Access Road 61,722,172 164,117,320 225,839,492 - - - 225,839,492 61,722,172

 Headworks - 362,672,912 362,672,912 - - - 362,672,912 -

 Headrace Tunnel - 202,439,382 202,439,382 - - - 202,439,382 -

 Surge Tank - 52,297,598 52,297,598 - - - 52,297,598 -

 Residential Building 67,742,012 - 67,742,012 - - - 67,742,012 549,197,707

 Office Building 2,992,860 - 2,992,860 - - - 2,992,860 2,992,860

 Work Shop 4,837,942 488,663 5,326,605 - - - 5,326,605 4,837,942

 Consultancy Services 549,197,707 101,956,986 651,154,692 - - - 651,154,692 549,197,707
 Civil Construction - Main 
Lot 2 2,232,386,258 98,740,354 2,331,126,611 - - - 2,331,126,611 2,232,386,258
 Hydro-Mechanical 
Works Lot 4 361,410,058 7,188,688 368,598,746 - - - 368,598,746 361,410,058
 Electro-Mechanical 
Works Lot 3 975,657,430 25,927,474 1,001,584,904 - - - 1,001,584,904 975,657,430

 Transmission Line Lot 5 113,089,096 30,449,952 143,539,048 - - - 143,539,048 113,089,096
 Environmental Mitigation 
and Compensation (Land 
and Others) 

8,283,315 - 8,283,315 -
-

- 8,283,315 8,283,315

 Sub Total 4,425,753,207 1,047,668,390 5,473,421,597 - - - 5,473,421,597 4,425,753,207
 Assets Ready To Use 
 Furniture and Fixtures 4,911,059 65,653 4,976,712 4,484,942 191,249.25 4,676,192 300,520 426,117

 Right of Use Assets 15,286,355 (557,280) 14,729,075 1,482,244 699,841 2,182,085 12,546,990 13,804,111

 Office Equipment 4,230,960 (228,056) 4,002,904 3,411,004 175,427.63 3,586,431 416,473 819,956

 Tool and Equipment 4,968,691 72,320 5,041,011 4,968,691 1,239.90 4,969,931 71,080 -

 Other Assets 5,372,600 216,182 5,588,782 4,892,182 133,988.82 5,026,171 562,611 480,418

 Heavy Equipment 24,686,599 - 24,686,599 24,686,599 - 24,686,599 - -
 Vehicles 44,692,045 - 44,692,045 44,692,045 - 44,692,045 - -

 Sub Total 104,148,309 (431,181) 103,717,128 88,617,707 1,201,747 89,819,454 13,897,674 15,530,602

 Total 4,529,901,516 1,047,237,210 5,577,138,725 88,617,707 1,201,747 89,819,454 5,487,319,271 4,441,283,809
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 Depreciable Asset SHEP (42.5  Depreciable Asset SHEP (42.5 
MW)MW)  Furniture and  Furniture and 

Fixtures Fixtures 
 Right of Use  Right of Use 

Assets Assets 
 Office  Office 

Equipment Equipment  Vehicles  Vehicles  Heavy  Heavy 
Equipment Equipment 

 Tools and  Tools and 
Equipment Equipment 

 Other  Other 
Assets Assets  TOTAL  TOTAL 

2023-24 2023-24 

 Original Cost (Rs.)  Original Cost (Rs.) 
 As at 17 July 2023  As at 17 July 2023 4,911,0594,911,059 15,286,35515,286,355 4,230,9604,230,960 44,692,04544,692,045 24,686,59924,686,599 4,968,6914,968,691 5,372,6005,372,600 104,148,309104,148,309

 Additions  Additions 65,65365,653 -- 88,81888,818 -- -- 72,32072,320 216,182216,182 442,973442,973
 Adjustment (disposals and  Adjustment (disposals and 
transfers) transfers) -- (557,280)(557,280) (316,874)(316,874) -- -- -- -- (874,154)(874,154)

 As at 15 July 2024  As at 15 July 2024 4,976,7124,976,712 14,729,07514,729,075 4,002,9044,002,904 44,692,04544,692,045 24,686,59924,686,599 5,041,0115,041,011 5,588,7825,588,782 103,717,128103,717,128
 Depreciation (Rs.)  Depreciation (Rs.) 
 As at 17 July 2023  As at 17 July 2023 4,484,9424,484,942 1,482,2431,482,243 3,411,0053,411,005 44,692,04544,692,045 24,686,59924,686,599 4,968,6914,968,691 4,892,1824,892,182 88,617,70788,617,707
 Charge for the year  Charge for the year 191,249191,249 727,362727,362 175,428175,428 -- -- 1,2401,240 133,989133,989 1,229,2671,229,267

 Attributable to  Attributable to 
sold/transferred/written off sold/transferred/written off -- (27,520)(27,520) -- -- -- (27,520)(27,520)

 As at 15 July 2024  As at 15 July 2024 4,676,1914,676,191 2,182,0852,182,085 3,586,4323,586,432 44,692,04544,692,045 24,686,59924,686,599 4,969,9314,969,931 5,026,1715,026,171 89,819,45489,819,454
 Net Property, Plant &  Net Property, Plant & 
Equipments Equipments 
 As at 15 July 2024  As at 15 July 2024 300,521300,521 12,546,99012,546,990 416,472416,472 -- -- 71,08071,080 562,611562,611 13,897,67413,897,674

 As at 16 July 2023  As at 16 July 2023 426,117426,117 13,804,11213,804,112 819,955819,955 -- -- -- 480,418480,418 15,530,60215,530,602

 Depreciable Asset SHEP 
42.5 MW  Furniture 

and Fixtures 
 Right of 

Use Assets 
 Office 

Equipment  Vehicles  Heavy Equipment  Tools and 
Equipment 

 Other 
Assets  TOTAL 

 22-23 
 Original Cost (Rs.) 
 As at 16 July 2022 4,911,059 15,286,355 4,075,811 44,692,045 24,686,599 4,968,691 4,952,600 103,573,160

 Additions - - 155,149 - - - 420,000 575,149
 Adjustment (disposals and 
transfers) - - - - - - -

 As at 16 July 2023 4,911,059 15,286,355 4,230,960 44,692,045 24,686,599 4,968,691 5,372,600 104,148,309
 Depreciation (Rs.) 
 As at 16 July 2022 4,252,152 754,882 3,183,285 44,692,045 24,686,599 4,968,691 4,806,268 87,343,922
 Charge for the year 232,789 727,362 227,720 - - - 85,914 1,273,785

 Attributable to 
sold/transferred/written off - - - - -

 As at 16 July 2023 4,484,942 1,482,243 3,411,005 44,692,045 24,686,599 4,968,691 4,892,182 88,617,707
 Impairment Charge 
 

 As at 16 July 2023 426,117 13,804,112 819,955 - - - 480,418 15,530,602

 As at 15 July 2022 658,907 14,531,473 892,526 - - - 146,332 16,229,238

;fGh]g dflyNnf] cfof]hgfsf] Blancing kf]v/L
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 Operation and Maintenance Expenses-42.5 MW (2023-24)
Particulars As at 16-July-2023 Addition Adjustment As at 15.07.2024

Salary 190,333,745 25,904,196 216,237,942
Wages 14,514,348 274,106 14,788,454
Allowances and Benefits 142,269,470 17,741,924 160,011,394
Overtime Allowances 18,448,476 2,886,622 21,335,098
Employee Leave Provision 13,863,079 1,940,420 15,803,499
Medical Expenses 13,927,611 2,150,553 16,078,164
Employee Providend Fund 8,868,049 81,316 8,949,365
Social Security Fund 17,674,258 5,018,208 22,692,466
Employee Insurance 3,865,459 163,563 4,029,022
Employee Welfare 515,648 - 515,648
NEA Employee Overhead 5,405,122 813,156 6,218,278
Other Services 6,801,029 764,552 7,565,582
Consulting Services 6,645,312 100,000 6,745,312
Electricity 7,682,866 1,003,756 8,686,622
Other Repair Maintenance 2,525,935 219,344 2,745,279
Fuel Vehicle 35,680,019 3,030,368 38,710,387
Fuel - Heavy Equipment 7,620,253 1,424,745 9,044,998
Mobil and Lubricants 1,836,427 130,515 1,966,942
Vehicle Repairs and 
Maintenance 29,659,511 1,783,935 31,443,446

Repair Equipment 7,647,937 189,543 7,837,480
Civil Repair and Maintenance 9,398,758 99,147 9,497,904
Rent 1,202,066 - 1,202,066
Insurance 5,475,722 307,384 5,783,105
Licence Fee 6,966,334 790,406 7,756,740
Land & Proparty Tax 171,505 - 171,505
Postage and Telegram 193,765 - 193,765
Telephone and Internet 4,486,235 337,985 4,824,220
Land Lease 9,416,082 0 9,416,083
Training 1,477,432 46,000 1,523,432
Printing and Stationery 5,376,759 252,951 5,629,710
Books and Periodicals 238,555 - 238,555
Advertisements 6,813,141 91,595 6,904,736
Guest Entertainment 3,072,160 208,695 3,280,855
Examination expenses 6,825 - 6,825
Misc Expenses 9,071,305 591,081 9,662,386
Travel 6,685,221 591,825 7,277,046
Transport 1,841,775 50,000 1,891,775
Meeting Expenses 10,706 - 10,706
Feasibility Study 5,304,193 - 5,304,193
Interest - Finance Cost - EPF 2,042,047,504 644,716,569 214,201,444 2,900,965,517
Interest - Finance Cost Others 43,141,080 20,252,186 3,865,302 67,258,569
Interest - Finance Cost - 
Lease 2,976,020 1,495,587 4,471,607

Service Fee 2,424,534 - 2,424,534
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Particulars As at 16-July-2023 Addition Adjustment As at 15.07.2024
Annual Day Events and 
Celebrations 327,357 65,875 393,232

Bank Charges 10,717,638 930,458 11,648,096
Social and Local Development 51,776,468 4,581,514 56,357,982
Compensations 11,318 - 11,318
Legal Expenses 787,445 100,000 887,445
Donation 380,850 45,000 425,850
Public Hearing 429,670 - 429,670
Depreciation 88,617,706 1,229,267 89,846,973
Adjustments 238,169 - 238,169
Total 2,856,868,854 742,404,344 218,066,746 3,817,339,944

Capital Work in Progress (CWIP)
CWIP for each of the project, comprise of Capital Asset portion and Operation and Maintenance Portion.		
	
Capital Assets under CWIP
These include assets pertaining to the project construction and installation. These assets have been classified as 
those ready to use and those that are not ready to use. Ready to use assets are depreciated over the estimated 
useful life. Those that are not ready to use will be depreciated when they become ready to use. The depreciation 
pertaining to ready to use has been charged to the operation and maintenance additions under CWIP. 		
	
Operation and Maintenance under CWIP
Expenses directly attributable to the individual projects are recognised within the addition to the CWIP under 
Operation and Maintenance Expenses. These also include borrowing costs on the qualifying assets as well. 	
		
Useful life of the assets will be determined when the plants are ready to use.	

3. Term Deposits		
Accounting Policies 
These are deposits and margins with various entities and authorities, are made by the company as the part of the 
operational or regulatory requirements.	

 Term Deposits 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23
Everest Bank Ltd.- For bank guarantee lien   -

Total   -

4. Inventories 		
Accounting Policies 
Inventories are carried at the lower of net realisable value or cost. Cost comprises of all costs of purchase, cost 
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is 
measured using first in first out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business less the estimated cost of completion and the necessary estimated expenses. Cost is determined using the 
First-In, First-Out (FIFO) method, in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standard (NAS) 2		

Composition of Inventories	
Corporate Office Store: These inventories consist of stationery supplies, vehicle spare parts, and other goods for 
office use.		

"Store, Spare Parts and Tools
NAS 16, paragraph 8 and 9 specifically states that:
•	 Spare parts and servicing equipment are usually carried as inventory and recognized in SoPL when consumed.
•	 Major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify as PPE when and entity expects to use them during more than 

one period.
•	 The standard does not prescribe the unit measure for recognition and judgment is to be applied in determining 

what constitutes an item of PPE."		
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Inventory    
Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23

Corporate Office 
Store 2,834,219 29,048,281

Spares Parts 28,892,984 -
  31,727,203 29,048,281

5. Advance Payments, Prepayments and 
Deposits	
Accounting Policies 
These assets are subject annual review for any indication 
of impairment.		

Explanatory Notes
Advances to contractors and consultants	

Advances to contractors and consultants pertain to the 
contractual payments to the contractors and consultants 
and will be settled when the contracted work is completed 
and settled.		

Advances to Contractors and 
Consultants    

Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23

ECI-BGCCPL JV - Lot 2 Upper 1,354,977 1,354,983

SEW Tundi JV - Lot 2 Lower 50,000,100 65,201,093
Dongfang Electric International 
Corp - Lot 3 Upper & Lower 11,449,344 11,505,491

Total 62,804,421 78,061,566

6. Deposits and Margins		
These are deposits and margins with various entities 
and authorities, are made by the company as the part of 
the operational or regulatory requirements.	
Deposits and Margins    

Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23

LC Margin – HBL 606,603 1,018,335

Nepal Telecom 64,500 64,500

Margin Deposit HBL(Chilime 
Hydropower Company Limited) 1,275,000 1,275,000

Police Petrol Pump Deposit 200,000 200,000

Guarantee Margin HBL(Exim Code) 30,000 30,000

Guarantee Margin Laxmi Bank -

Total 2,176,103 2,587,835

7. Prepayments		
Instances where the payments have been made and 
where the expenses pertain to the future period(s) 
are recognised as prepayments. These amounts are 
charged to statement of profit or loss in the period to 
which they relate with.		
Prepayment    

Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23

PrepaidInsurance 2,924,420 209,518

AdvanceRent 859,600 -

Total 3,784,020 209,518

8. Taxes		
Accounting Policies 		
Current Taxes		
SJCL applies NAS 12 Income Taxes in accounting for 
taxes on income. Income tax payable on taxable profits 
(Current Tax) is recognised as an expense in the period 
in which the profits arise. Withholding taxes are also 
treated as income taxes. Income tax recoverable on tax 
allowable losses is recognised as a current tax asset 
only to the extent that it is regarded as recoverable by 
offset against taxable profits arising in the current or prior 
period. Current tax is measured using tax rates and tax 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
at the statement of financial position date. Current tax 
assets and liabilities have been netted off, as there is a 
legal right to settle those amounts on net basis. The net 
current tax asset / liability has been reported separately 
in the statement of financial position.		

Deferred Taxes		
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, 
on temporary differences arising from the differences 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial 
statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates 
and legislation enacted or substantively enacted by the 
statement of financial position date, which are expected 
to apply when the deferred tax asset is realised or the 
deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are only offset when there is both a legal right 
to set-off and an intention to settle on a net basis. 	
	
Explanatory Notes		
8.1 Current Tax Assets and Liabilities	

 Current Tax Assets 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23

Advance Taxes 12,016,649 13,933,962
  12,016,649 13,933,962

Current Tax Assets include withholding tax deducted 
by other entities on behalf of the company, such as by 
the banks on the deposit interests. Since there is no 
incidence of income taxes, company has not paid any 
income taxes.
		
8.2 Income Tax Expenses		
One of the project Sanjen (Upper) Hydropower project 
has come into operation and the company has already 
generated revenue. However, there is no taxable income 
of the company from the generation of hydroelectricity. 
However, it has earned finance income which is subject 
to tax. Further under the applicable income tax laws 
company is exempt to pay income taxes for the first 10 
years of operation after its operation. The company will 
be subject to 50% of the applicable corporate tax rate 
for the next 5 years after the completion of 10 years 
exemption period. 		

8.3 Deferred Taxes		
Tax loss can be carried forward for 7 years from the 
year of incurrence. Since there is 10 years of income 
tax exemption available to the company it is not likely 
that any deferred tax incidence will be adjusted in the 
foreseeable future.
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9. Term Deposits		
These term deposits are classified as held to maturity 
and recognised at amortised cost using effective interest 
rate. Since there are no additional costs involved the 
intrinsic interest on these instruments are considered 
to be the effective interest rate and they cover for the 
default risk and tie value of money. 

The term deposit with Himalayan bank limited as the 
lien for the purpose of issuance of guarantee has been 
classified as non-current. All the other term deposits have 
maturity period of less than one year. These deposit bear 
interests. The commercial banks are regulated by the 
central bank and the risks associated with these deposits 
are considered not to be significant. Company has made 
term deposits with commercial banks as under. 

Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23

Himalayan Bank Limited 
(Lien against Custom 
guarantee)

270,000 270,000

Total 270,000 270,000

10. Other Advances		
Explanatory Notes		
These financial assets are classified as loans and 
receivables and recognised at amortised cost using 
effective interest rate. These advances do not bear any 
interest and are considered to be settled within normal 
course of operation. The company considers that there is 
nominal risk of default on these advances. The company 
considers that the cost of these assets are present the 
amortised costs.	
Other Advances    

Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23

Staff Advances 185,000 170,000

Bhajuratna Engineering 48,000 48,000
Advance to Rasuwa DAO - for 
Land 1,600,391 1,600,391

NRB Margin Receivables HBL 1,606,197 7,374,617

Other Advances 10,000 5,000
Other Receivables(Contractors 
Others) 47,582,389 13,903,431

NEA Dhunche Distribution 
Center 2,256,716 1,965,234

Achyut Singh Basnet - 859,600

Petty cash Corporate office -
Kathmandu Upatyaka Khanepani 
Limited 3,064 10,292

Total 53,291,757 25,936,565

11. Financial Instruments			 
Accounting Policies 			 
The company recognises financial instruments when it 
becomes a party to the terms of the contract, which is the 
trade date or the settlement date. SJCL applies NAS 39 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 

the recognition, classification and measurement, and de-
recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, the 
impairment of financial assets, and hedge accounting. 	
		
Classification and measurement		
Financial assets are classified under four categories as 
required by NAS 39, namely, 	

S.N NAS 39 classification - Financial Assets
1 Fair Value through Profit or Loss
2 Held to Maturity
3 Loans & Receivables
4 Available for Sale

Financial Liabilities are classified under two categories 
as required by NAS 39, namely, 	

S.N NAS 39 classification - Financial Liabilities
1 Fair Value through Profit or Loss
2 Other Financial Liabilities

At initial recognition, the company measures financial 
instruments (financial assets and liabilities) at its fair 
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial 
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair 
value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. 

De-recognition			
The company derecognises a financial asset, or a 
portion of a financial asset, from its balance sheet where 
the contractual rights to cash flows from the asset have 
expired, or have been transferred, usually by sale, and 
with them either substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset or significant risks and rewards, along with the 
unconditional ability to sell or pledge the asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability has 
been settled, has expired or has been extinguished.	
		
11.1	 Financial Assets			 
Financial asset is any asset that is:		
(a)	 Cash			 
(b)	 An equity instrument of another entity	
(c)	 A contractual right:			 

i.	 To receive cash or another financial asset from 
another entity; or			 

ii.	 To exchange financial assets or financial 
liabilities with another entity under conditions 
that are potentially favourable to the entity; 
or	

(d)	 A contract that will or may be settled in the entity's 
own equity instruments and is:
i.	 A non-derivative for which the entity is or may 

be obliged to receive a variable number of the 
entity's own equity instruments; or		
	

ii.	 A derivative that will or may be settled other 
than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash 
or another financial asset for a fixed number of 
the entity's own equity instruments. 
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11.1.1	 Bank Balances 			 
These financial assets are classified as Bank balances. 
The call accounts are interest bearing and current 
accounts are non-interest bearing. The company 
considered that there are nominal risks associated with 
these instruments.
S.N  Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23

 1  Everest Bank 
Limited 335,016 132,193

 2  Himalayan Bank 
Limited 383,584 176,598

 2  Nepal Bank 
Limited - Dhunche 93,044 93,044

 3  Mega Bank New 
Account 31,605,058 687,203

 3  Siddhartha Bank 
Limited 21,293,023 1,479,762

 4  Century Bank 
Limited 929,711 900,656

 5  Prabhu Bank 
Limited - 14,155

 5  Kumari Bank 
Limited 58,167,778 431,906

 6  Sanima Bank 
Limited 711,230 1,425,884

 6  Laxmi Bank 
Limited 3,416,465 3,322,494

 7  NMB Bank Limited 14,907 14,907
  Total 116,949,816 8,678,802

Cash and Cash Equivalents 			 
These bank balances also represent the cash and 
cash equivalents of the company. These can be readily 
converted into cash with nominal risk.

12.	Share Capital		
Accounting Policies 		
Equity Instruments are:		
Any contract that evidences a residual interest in the 
assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities 
meeting both of the following condition		
(i)	 No contractual obligation to deliver cash / another 

financial instrument		
(ii)	 Will or may be settled in the company’s own equity 	

	

SJCL applies NAS 32, Financial Instruments: 
Presentation, to determine whether funding is either 
a financial liability (debt) or equity. Issued financial 
instruments or their components are classified as 
liabilities if the contractual arrangement results in the 
company having a present obligation to either deliver 
cash or another financial asset, or a variable number 
of equity shares, to the holder of the instrument. If this 
is not the case, the instrument is generally an equity 
instrument and the proceeds included in equity, net of 
transaction costs. 		

Dividends and other returns to equity holders are 
recognised when paid or declared by the members at 
the AGM and treated as a deduction from equity. 	

	
Where issued financial instruments contain both liability 
and equity components, these are accounted for 
separately. The fair value of the debt is estimated first 
and the balance of the proceeds is included within equity. 

 Capital in Value
16-Jul-23 
Authorised capital   3,750,000,000
Issued capital   3,650,000,000
Paid up capital   3,650,000,000

 Capital in Value
16-Jul-22 
Authorised capital   3,750,000,000
Issued capital   3,650,000,000
Paid up capital   3,285,000,000
Share Capital Reconciliation
Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23
Opening Share Capital  3,650,000,000  3,285,000,000 
Capital Issued during the 
period    365,000,000 

Allotment Adjustments    
Total  3,650,000,000  3,650,000,000 

Percentage Holding in Paid Up Share Capital 
Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23
Chilime Hydropower 
Company Limited 39.36% 39.36%

Nepal Electricity Authority 10.36% 10.36%
Various Municipalities – 
Rasuwa District 1.28% 1.28%

General Public 15.00% 15.00%
Depositors of EPF 19.50% 19.50%
Project Effected Local 10.00% 10.00%
Employees of Promoter 
Companies 3.50% 3.50%

Employees of EPF 1.00% 1.00%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

Shareholding Structure as per MOA 
Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23
Chilime Hydropower 
Company Limited 39.36% 39.36%

Nepal Electricity Authority 10.36% 10.36%
Various Municipalities – 
Rasuwa District 1.28% 1.28%

General Public 15.00% 15.00%
Depositors of EPF 19.50% 19.50%
Project Effected Local 10.00% 10.00%
Employees of Promoter 
Companies 3.50% 3.50%

Employees of EPF 1.00% 1.00%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

13. Other Equity (Reserves and Surpluses)
Explanatory Notes
Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-22
Capital Premium   -
Retained Earning  (395,848,291)  (240,729,645)
Revaluation Reserve    
Deferred Tax Reserve    

Total  (395,848,291)  (240,729,645)
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Share (Capital) Premium		
Any premium collected on issue of shares to the public 
is credited to this reserve. This reserve is utilised only for 
issue of the bonus share capital.		

Retained Earning		
Earning made during the current and previous years not 
distributed has been credited to this reserve.	
	
Revaluation Reserve		
This is the reserve created to include any gain on 
revaluation of property plant and equipment.	

Deferred Tax Reserve		
It is company’s policy to appropriate the equivalent 
portion of the deferred tax assets when a net deferred 
tax asset arises. In event where deferred tax liability 
arises such amounts are reclassified within the equity to 
retained earnings.	

14. Financial Liabilities		
A financial liability is any liability that is: 		
(a)	 Contractual obligation:		

i.	 To deliver cash or another financial asset to 
another entity; or 		

ii.	 To exchange financial assets or financial 
liabilities with another entity under conditions 
that are potentially unfavourable to the entity; 
or 	

(b)	 A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s 
own equity instruments and is: 
i.	 A non-derivative for which the entity is or 

may be obliged to deliver a variable number 
of the entity’s own equity instruments; or 	
	

ii.	 A derivative that will or may be settled other than 
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or 
another financial asset for a fixed number of the 
entity’s own equity instruments. 		

14.1.1	 Borrowings		
The loans and borrowings include amount received from 
Employee Provident Fund and Citizen Investment Trust. 
These borrowings have been classified as financial 
liabilities carried at amortised cost using effective interest 
rate. 		

Discounting: The additional incremental costs related to 
loans and borrowings includes commission paid during 
the sanction of loans and borrowings. .25% Commission 
was charged by EPF which amounts to Rs.12.50 lakhs. 
Management considers the impact as immaterial and 
therefore the inherent interest on these instruments 
represent the effective interest. Since these instruments 
are held solely for the purpose of principal and interest 
the effective interest rate is assumed to cover for the 
time value of money, i.e. EIR exactly discounts the 
financial instruments therefore no discounting has been 
considered.	

Non-Current Portion	
Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23

From Employee 
Provident Fund 5,083,933,000 4,670,133,000

Capitalised 
Interest – EPF 3,886,127,706 3,012,526,706

Sub Total 8,970,060,706 7,682,659,706
Current Portion 16-Jul-23

Chilime 
Hydropower 
Company Limited

330,000,000 240,000,000

Sub Total 330,000,000 240,000,000
Total 9,300,060,706 7,922,659,706

14.1.2	 Other Financial Liabilities and 
Payables	
Other Liabilities and Payables

Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23
ECI-BGCCPL J/V - 100,000
S.E.W. Tundi J/V 16,713,403 22,592,992
Dongfang Electric 
International 252,151 9,214,631

Nepal Hydro & 
Electric Limited 30,016 51,969,577

Mudvary & Joshi 
Construction P LTD 1,591,050 12,664,420

Chilime Engineering 
& Services Company 
Limited

5,557,750 4,149,906

Tenji Nirman Sewa - 1,034,355
NEA Engineering - 300,000
Payable to 
Employees 10,591,402 1,760,382

Payable to 
Contractors and 
Consultants

- 450,749

 NEA - Overhead 1,330,559 1,291,258
Chilime Jalavidhyut 
Company Limited - 3,246,499

Vat Payable 1,326,025 5,534,049
TDS Payable 4,715,945 6,378,131
Liabilities under 
Finance Lease 15,450,701 16,097,369

Other Liabilities 636,407 456,914
P & B Associates - 75,263
S D & Associates - 402,150
Audit Fee Payable 381,888 -
Staff Union 47,600
Misc Liabilities 1,025

Total 58,625,920 137,718,645
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14.1.3	 Other Non-Current Liabilities (Deposit 
Received from Contractors)

Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23
Deposit Received from 
Contractors 235,793,067 231,217,552

Translation Difference 
on Retention 20,562,752 14,415,545

Total 256,355,818 245,633,097

14.2 Fair Value Measurements of Financial 
Instruments		
In accordance with NFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, 
the Company categorises financial instruments carried 
on the reporting sheet at fair value using a three-level 
hierarchy. Financial instruments categorised as Level 
1 are valued using quoted market prices and therefore 
there is minimal judgement applied in determining fair 
value. However, the fair value of financial instruments 
categorised as Level 2 and, in particular, Level 3 
is determined using valuation techniques including 
discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation models. 
In addition, in line with market practice, the company 
applies credit, debit and funding valuation adjustments in 
determining the fair value of its uncollateralised assets. 
A description of these adjustments is set out as under.

These valuation techniques involve management 
judgement and estimates the extent of which depends 
on the complexity of the instrument and the availability of 
market observable information. Valuation techniques for 
Level 2 financial instruments use inputs that are based 
on observable market data. Level 3 financial instruments 
are those where at least one input, which could have 
a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation, is 
not based on observable market data. Determining 
the appropriate assumptions to be used for Level 3 
financial instruments requires significant management 
judgement. Further details of the company’s Level 3 
financial instruments and the sensitivity of their valuation 
including the effect of applying reasonably possible 
alternative assumptions in determining their fair value 
are set out wherever required. 		

Valuation of financial assets and liabilities 	
Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which 

fair values are disclosed have been classified into three 
levels according to the quality and reliability of information 
used to determine the fair values. 		

Level 1 - Level 1 fair value measurements are those 
derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as 
level 1 predominantly comprise equity shares, treasury 
bills and other government securities. 	

Level 2 - Level 2 valuations are those where quoted 
market prices are not available, for example where the 
instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to 
be active or valuation techniques are used to determine 
fair value and where these techniques use inputs that 
are based significantly on observable market data. 
Examples of such financial instruments include most 
over-the-counter derivatives, financial institution issued 
securities, certificates of deposit and certain asset-
backed securities. 		

Level 3 - Level 3 portfolios are those where at least 
one input, which could have a significant effect on the 
instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable 
market data. These are valued using various valuation 
techniques that require significant management 
judgement in determining appropriate assumptions, 
including earnings multiples and estimated future cash 
flows.
 		
14.2.1	 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities Carried at Fair Value		
There are no financial assets or financial liabilities 
carried at fair value.		

14.2.2	 Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Carried at 
Amortised Costs		
Assets and liabilities carried at amortised costs using 
effective interest rate as below, do not have the active 
market quoted price nor they have observable similar 
value inputs. Management considers that the cost and / 
recognised value of these instruments represents the fair 
value and these assets and liabilities will be recovered 
or settled at the recognised amount without significant 
risk in normal course of the business.
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Assets and Liabilities 23-24		

Particulars Carrying 
amount Fair Value

Quoted 
prices

Observable 
Inputs

Unobservable 
inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets
Term Deposit - non current 270,000 270,000 - - 270,000
Trade Receivables 52,418,035 52,418,035 - - 52,418,035
Other Advances 53,291,757 53,291,757 - - 53,291,757
Bank Balances Call and Current 116,949,816 116,949,816 - - 116,949,816
Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 9,300,060,706 9,300,060,706 - - 9,300,060,706
Other Liabilities and Payables 314,981,739 314,981,739 - - 314,981,739
Assets and Liabilities 22-23
Term Deposit - non current 270,000 270,000 - - 270,000
Trade Receivables - 0 - - -
Other Advances 25,936,565 25,936,565 - - 7,464,422
Bank Balances Call and Current 114,496,603 114,496,603 - - 114,496,603
Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 7,922,659,706 7,922,659,706 - - 6,504,298,382
Other Liabilities and Payables 196,344,565 196,344,565 - - 137,548,597

14.2.3 Provisions

Particulars 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23

Employee Leave 
Provision 1,144,212 10,575,927

Other Provision 1,289,018 2,860,780
Total 2,433,230 13,436,707

The leave provision has been transferred to the respective 
employees' accounts and treated as a retirement benefit 
payable, as disclosed in Notes 14.1.2. Additionally, 15% 
TDS has been deducted from the payable amount in 
compliance with applicable tax regulations.	

15. Revenue		
Accounting Policies 		
"Revenue is recognized in accordance with NFRS 15, 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Revenue 
is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the 
economic benefits associated with the hydropower 
generation will flow to the company and the revenue can 
be reliably measured.

Revenue from the sale of electricity is recognized when 
control of the electricity is transferred to the customer, 
which is typically upon delivery of the electricity to the 
power grid. The company determines the transaction 
price based on the contractual terms with customers 
and allocates this price to the performance obligations 
specified in the contracts.

In assessing revenue recognition, the company 
evaluates whether it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 
company and whether the revenue can be measured 
reliably. Revenue is recognized when the performance 
obligation is satisfied, which is generally over time as 
electricity is generated and delivered.

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Electricity Sales to NEA  197,880,774  - 
Revenue from Contract 
with Customers  -  - 

Finance Income  5,156,072  - 
Other income  3,138,160  1,012,230 
Total  206,175,006  1,012,230 

15.1 Electricity Sales to NEA		
Project SUHEP has been capitalized and commenced 
revenue generation from 1st Kartik 2080. Revenue 
is recognized at the time of invoicing to the Nepal 
Electricity Authority (NEA) in accordance with the terms 
of the Power Purchase Agreement.		

Particular 2023-24 2022-23
Sanjen (Upper) 
Hydroelectric Project  197,880,774  - 

Sanjen Hydroelectric 
Project  -  - 

Total  197,880,774  - 



87

;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8, rf}wf}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷@)*!

15.2 Revenue from Contract with Customers
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

Rental income  -  - 
Total  -  - 

15.3 Finance Income
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

Finance Income  5,156,072  11,443,118 
Total  5,156,072  11,443,118 

15.4 Other Income
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

Other Income  3,133,160  997,230 
Tender Sales  5,000  15,000 

Total  3,138,160  1,012,230 

16. Employee Benefit		
Company applies NAS 19 Employee benefits for 
accounting most of the components of staff costs.

Short-term employee benefits		
Salaries, allowances, socials security expenses, 
performance bonuses as provided in the law and other 
employee related expenses are recognised over the 
period in which the employees provide services to which 
the payments relate. 		

Post-retirement benefits - Defined Contribution 
Scheme		
SJCL provides contribution to Social Security Fund (SSF) 
as post-retirement benefits under defined contribution 
scheme. A certain percentage of basic salary is paid 
into the scheme on monthly basis. SJCL recognises 
contributions due in respect of the accounting period to 
profit and loss. Any contributions unpaid at the reporting 
date are included as a liability.		

Post-retirement benefits - Defined Benefit 
Schemes	
The company operates gratuity, accumulated annual 
leave payments and sick leave payments as post-
retirement benefits as defined benefit schemes. 
Since only two employees are eligible for such 
benefits under cost benefit consideration independent 
actuarial assessment of post-employment liability is 
not undertaken. However, liabilities are valued and 
recognised at each reporting date on the full obligation 
basis as if such benefits payable to employees if the 
employees retired on the reporting date. 	

16.1 Employment Benefit Costs
Staff Expenses – Corporate

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Current Employee 
Benefits    

Salary 7,618,413 7,500,401
Wages - 39,150

Allowances and Benefits 6,476,198 6,550,384
Overtime Allowances 927,198 1,110,226
Employee leave 633,237 585,251
Employee Medical 623,986 607,044
Employee Insurance 74,598 109,578
Training - 365,816
Capacity Development 
exposures - 14,690

 
Post-Employment Benefits
Defined Contribution Plan 
Expenses – EPF 75,221 73,271

Defined Contribution Plan 
Expenses -Social Security 
Fund

1,185,598 1,148,837

Defined Benefit Plan 
Expenses -

Total 17,614,448 18,104,649

Staff Expenses – 14.8 MW
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

Current Employee 
Benefits
Salary 10,793,597 -
Wages 107,500 -
Allowances and Benefits 6,843,861 -
Overtime Allowances 1,923,110 -
Employee Leave Provision 1,124,650 -
Medical Expenses - -
Employee Insurance - -
Training - -
Staff Welfare - -
Post Employment Benefits
Defined Contribution Plan 
Expenses - EPF - -

 Defined Contribution Plan 
Expenses -Social Security 
Fund

2,174,995 -

Total 22,967,712 -

Employee benefits costs is charged for the services 
rendered during the period and for the allowances 
and benefits pertaining to the period during which 
such services are rendered and the employee related 
expenses incurred for such periods.		

Employee benefit costs for Corporate Staff is charged 
directly to profit or loss and those employee costs 
pertaining or directly attributable to the projects have 
been charged to the capital work in progress of the 
individual projects within operation and maintenance 
costs.	

16.2 Post-Employment Benefits		
16.2.1 Defined Contribution Plan		
Employees are entitled to the Social Security scheme 
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(SSF) contribution of 20% of their salaries under 
defined contribution plan. These amounts are deposited 
to Social Security Fund (SSF). Once deposited the 
company is absolved from further obligations. Details of 
the payments made under the plan are disclosed in Note 
10.1.
		
16.2.2	 Defined Benefit Plan		
The company does not have any employees who qualify 
for defined benefit payments. The entire workforce 
comprises of the contracted staffs with four staff being 
deputed under secondment from Nepal Electricity 
Authority (NEA). Two NEA seconded staff will receive the 
defined benefits from NEA for which SJCL pays special 
overhead to NEA. Therefore, no actuarial measurement 
of defined benefit obligation is calculated.	
	
17. Depreciation and Amortisations		
The depreciation and amortisation pertaining to the 
corporate assets and SUHEP project has been charged 
to profit or loss.	

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Depreciation of Property 
Plant and Equipment  100,179,545  5,126,466 

Amortisation of Intangible 
assets  -  - 

Total  100,179,545 5,126,466

18 Operating and Administrative Expenses
18.1 Operating and Administrative Expenses - 
SUHEP	

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Staff Benefits  22,967,712  - 
Other Services  269,959  - 
Electricity  285,030  - 
Consulting Services  97,500  - 
Other Repair and 
Maintenance  48,400  - 

Fuel Vehicle  524,905  - 
Fuel - Heavy 
Equipment  295,771  - 

Mobil and Lubricants  79,735  - 
Vehicle Repairs and 
Maintenance  1,448,642  - 

Repair Equipment  57,646  - 
Civil Repair and 
Maintenance  100,000  - 

Insurance  6,016,586  - 
Licence Fee  156,000  - 
Telephone and Internet  156,660  - 
Training  45,000  - 
Printing and Stationery  166,932  - 
Books and Periodicals  9,500  - 
Advertisements  175,678  - 
Guest Entertainment  203,133  - 
Donation  15,000  - 
Misc Expenses  475,712  - 
Travel  182,400  - 

Legal Fee  100,000  - 
Social and Local 
Development  1,126,142  - 

Bank Charges  147,221  - 
Sub-total 35,151,264
Royalty  5,431,153  - 

Total  40,582,416  - 

18.2	 Operating and Administrative Expenses – 
Corporate

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
House Rent 4,298,000 -
Other Services 
Expenses 324,154 335,996

Water & Electricity 380,032 528,719
Consulting Services 1,260,463 805,690
Vehicle Repair and 
Maintenance 732,309 640,603

Repair – premises Civil 22,000 15,255
Other Repair 240,492 86,375
Fuel and Lubricants 1,340,742 1,970,842
Insurance 78,630 80,732
License Fees 552,631 1,214,275
Share Issue 
Management Expenses 428,480

Legal Fee - 79,778
Telephone and Internet 587,425 723,911
Printing and Stationery 477,116 397,367
Books and Periodicals 47,050 24,395
Guest Refreshments 490,884 389,940
Advertisement 292,410 364,896
Annual Day and events 
expenses 795,199 88,004

Ceremonial Expenses 76,681
BOD Meeting 
Allowances 2,047,900 1,224,500

BOD Facilities 240,000 -
Transportation 23,450 180,000
Other Meeting 
Allowance 1,629,500 1,537,500

Meeting expenses 633,089 496,995
Organization 
Development Expenses 4,239,225

Training Expenses 78,090
Audit Fee 573,475 507,596
Audit Expenses 129,095 237,271
Travel 218,125 160,395
Bank Charges 4,628 2,101
Finance Cost under 
Financial Lease 10,364 340,953
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Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
NEA Overhead 
Charges 752,207 732,707

Misc Expenses 664,975 423,023
Total 23,668,823 13,589,819

19 Finance Cost
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

SUHEP Project
Interest on EPF Loan 166,051,302 -
Interest on Other Loan 5,231,134 -
SHEP Project
Interest on EPF Loan 498,153,907 -
Interest on Other Loan 15,693,403 -
Finance Cost 685,129,747 -
Less : Amount Capitalized 
on Qualifying Assets 
(SHEP Project)

513,847,310

Total Finance Cost 171,282,437 -

20. Effects of Changes in foreign exchange 
rates	
Accounting Policies 		
Foreign currency transactions are converted into 
functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing 
at the date of the transaction. 		

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currency are translated in to the reporting currency of 
the company using the rates prevailing on the reporting 
date. The resulting gain or loss due to translation is taken 
to statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary assets are 
recorded using the rate of exchange prevalent as on the 
date of initial recognition. 		

 Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Exchange Gain 3,768,538.38
Included in CWIP 
adjusted
Translation Gain / 
(Loss)
Advances 
Retention (6,147,206) 561,795

Total (6,147,206) 4,330,333

Foreign currency advances given to the contractors 
and consultants and foreign currency retentions taken 
on behalf of the consultants and contractors have 
been considered as monetary assets for translation as 
at reporting dates. Mid rate of Nepal Rastra Bank has 
been considered for period end translations as follows	
	
21. Earnings Per Share		
Accounting Policies 		
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on 
the profit attributable to equity holders of the company 
and the basic weighted average number of shares. 
When calculating the diluted earnings per share, the 

weighted average number of shares in issue is adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares 
held in respect of the company.		

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Opening 36,500,000 32,850,000
Weight 1 1
Further Issue 3,600,000
Allotment Date 11/08/2079
Weight 0.64
Further Issue 50,000
Allotment Date 05/09/2079
Weight 0.57
Total Shares 36,500,000 36,500,000
Weighted Average 
Shares 36,500,000 35,186,575

PAT (154,588,887) (22,896,032)
Basic EPS (4.24) (0.65)
Diluted EPS (4.24) (0.65)

22. Finance Costs		
Finance costs are capitalised and are included under 
capital work in progress under NAS 23 Borrowing 
Costs. Interest expenses have been included operation 
and maintenance expense of the individual projects. 
Interest income recognized from temporary investment 
of borrowings has been netted off with finance cost as 
explained in Notes 12.2.
		
23. Leases		
Accounting Policies 		
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, 
or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the 
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the 
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of 
a specific asset or whether the arrangement conveys a 
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period 
of time in exchange for consideration.	

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset, the Company considers 
whether:		

The contract involves the use of an identified asset. This 
may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be 
physically distinct or represent substantially all of the 
capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has 
a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not 
identified;		

The Company has right to obtain substantially all of the 
economic benefits from the use of the asset throughout 
the period of use; and 		

The Company has right to direct the use of the asset. The 
Company has this right when it has the decision making 
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for 
what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the 
decision about how and for what purpose the asset is 
used is predetermined, the Company has the right to 
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direct the use of the asset if either; 		

The Company has the right to operate the asset; or

The Company designed the asset in a way that 
predetermines how and for what purpose it will be 
used.		

The Company recognizes a right of use asset and a 
lease liability at the lease commencement date. The 
right to use of assets is the present value of the total 
lease payments up to the contract date from the start 
of contract inclusive of any increments on the payment 
of the rent. The present value has been derived using 
the discount rate equal to the interest rate of Employee 
Provident Fund. The Company has applied cost model 
after initial recognition on commencement date and 
subsequent measurement. The Company has measured 
the right-of-use asset at cost:		

a.	 Less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment and 		

b.	 Adjusted for any reameasuremnt of lease liabilities if 
any.		

The lease liability is initially measured at the present 
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest 
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Company’s interest rate of Employee 
Provident Fund. Generally, the Company uses its 
interest rate of Loan from Employee Provident Fund 
as the discount rate. The lease liability is subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method.	

The Company presents right of use assets under Note 
1 PPE related to corporate assets to the financial 
statements & The Company presents right of use 
assets under Note 2 Capital Work in Progress capital 
assets related to the Sanjen Lower 42.5 to the financial 
statements while the corresponding lease liability is 
presented in Note 14.1.2, ‘Other Liabilities & Payable’.	
	
Short term leases and leases of low value 
assets	
The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use 
assets and lease liabilities for short term leases (that 
have a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low 
value assets. The Company recognizes lease payments 
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight 
line basis over the lease term.		

Explanatory Notes		
The Company has recognized a right of use of asset and 
lease liability as per NFRS 16 Leases. The right to use of 
assets and lease liability is the present value of the total 
lease payments up to the contract date from the start of 
contract inclusive of any increments on the payment of 
the rent. The right to use of assets is depreciated over 
the lease term on straight line basis. The lease liability is 
amortised over the lease term. 		

As required by Para 53 of disclosure part of NFRS 16 
Leases, following amounts shall be disclosed about the 
leases of the company and the maturity analysis of lease 

liability is shown as below.	

Particulars Right of Use 
Assets

Lease 
Liability

Balance 32nd Ashad 
2079  19,935,636  21,383,612 

Less: Depreciation  5,359,501  - 
Add: Interest Cost  -  1,814,662 
Less: Total cash 
outflow of lease  -  6,389,044 

Less: Prior Period 
Adjustment  -  710,502 

Balance 31st 
Ashad 2080  14,576,135  16,098,728 

Particulars Right of Use 
Assets

Lease 
Liability

Balance 31st Ashad 
2080  14,576,135  16,098,728 

Less: Depreciation  1,499,385  - 
Add: Interest Cost  -  1,505,951 
Less: Total cash 
outflow of lease  -  2,152,616 

Less: Prior Period 
Adjustment  529,760  1,361 

Balance 31st 
Ashad 2081  12,546,990  15,450,701 

24. Service Concession Arrangements	
The party that grants the service arrangement (the 
grantor) is a public sector entity, including a governmental 
body, or a private sector entity to which the responsibility 
for the service has been devolved. 		

The operator is responsible for at least some of the 
management of the infrastructure and related services 
and does not merely act as an agent on behalf of the 
grantor. 			 

1	 The contract sets the initial prices to be levied by the 
operator and regulates price revisions over the period 
of the service arrangement. 			 

2	  The operator is obliged to hand over the infrastructure 
to the grantor in a specified condition at the end of the 
period of the arrangement, for little or no incremental 
consideration, irrespective of which party initially 
financed. 			 

3	 IFRIC 12-Service Concession Arrangements applies 
to public-private service concession arrangements 
if:			 

4	 The grantor controls or regulates what services the 
operator must provide with the infrastructure, to 
whom it must provide them and at what prices; 	
		

The grantor controls-through ownership, beneficial 
entitlement or otherwise- any significant residual 
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the 
arrangement. 			 
1	 An arrangement within the scope of this interpretation 

typically involves a private sector entity (an operator) 



91

;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8, rf}wf}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)*)÷@)*!

constructing the infrastructure used to provide the public service or upgrading it (for example, by increasing 
its capacity) and operating and maintaining that infrastructure for a specified period of time. The operator is 
paid for its services over the period of the arrangement. The arrangement is governed by a contract that sets 
out performance standards, mechanisms for adjusting prices and arrangements for arbitrating disputes. Such 
an arrangement is often described as a 'build-operate-transfer', a ‘rehabilitate-operate-transfer' or a 'public-to-
private' service concession arrangement. 			 

2	 Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA)(a government entity), Chilime Hydropower Company Ltd ( government controlled 
entity) and various municipalities holds more than 50% of the shares in SJCL. The interpretations provided in 
IFRIC 12 is based on the relationship of a “Grantor” and an “Operator” under a concession agreement. However, 
SJCL itself is a body where the majority of the capital investment has been done by a public-service entity i.e. 
NEA. Nepal Electricity Authority itself plays a major role in the management of the services provided by SJCL. In 
consideration of all these factors, it is concluded that the requirement of IFRIC 12 are not applicable to SJCL as 
the grantor-operator relationship cannot be established.  		

Related Parties Disclosures			 
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant 
influence over the other party in making financial or operation decisions, or one other party controls both. The 
definition includes subsidiaries, associates, directors, key management personnel and employees’ retirement benefit 
fund.

25. Identification of Related Parties		
Following have been identified as related parties			
25.1 Parent Company 
Chilime Hydropower Company Limited (shareholding is disclosed in Note: 12)			 
i.	 By virtue of representation to the board of directors	
	 · Nepal Electricity Authority			 
ii.	 · Employee Provident Fund	
Board Chair and Directors 

 Position 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23
Chairman Ramji Bhandari Ramji Bhandari
Director Shanti Laxmi Shakya
Director Lokhari Luitel Lokhari Luintel
Director Subhash Kumar Mishra Subhash Kumar Mishra
Director Narayan Prasad Acharya Narayan Prasad Acharya
Director Thakur Jung Thapa Thakur Jung Thapa

 Position  Board Member Meeting Allowances Other Allowances Total

Chairman Ramji Bhandari 2,22,000 45,000 2,67,000

Director Shanti Laxmi Shakya 48,000 15,000 63,000

Director Lokhari Luintel 3,20,000 45,000 3,65,000

Director Subhash Kumar Mishra 3,14,000 45,000 3,59,000

Director Narayan Prasad Acharya 4,68,000 45,000 5,13,000

Director Thakur Jung Thapa 3,17,000 45,000 3,62,000

Total 16,68,000 2,61,000 19,29,000

Key Managerial Personnel

 Designation 15-Jul-24 16-Jul-23

CEO Arpan Bahadur Singh Sunil Kumar Dhungel
Project Chief- Upper Devendra Gautam Sudhan Singh Mahat
Project Chief- Lower Devendra Gautam Arpan Bahadur Singh
Sr Contract Engineer Dipak Ram Vaidhya Dipak Ram Vaidhya
Company Secretary/Head Finance Ghanashyam Shrestha Ghanashyam Shrestha
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Name of Personnel Role
Payments of Employee Benefits Share 

Based 
PaymentsShort

 Term
Post-

Employment Termination
Other 
Long 
Term

Sunil Kumar Dhungel CEO 27,44,790 - - - -

Sudhan Singh Mahat Project Chief- Upper 16,00,739 - - - -

*Arpan Bahadur Singh Project Chief- Lower 28,90,904

Ghanashyam Shrestha Company Secretary 21,27,878

Devendra Gautam Sr. Engineer 22,02,027

Mr. Arpan Bahadur Singh was working as a project manager till 2081/03/03 then after Board has assigned him the 
role of CEO.

Employee Provident Fund - EPF is considered related parties as it represents to the board. It also manages SJCL’s 
employee’s retirement benefit plans.			 

25.2 Transactions with Related Parties

Particulars 2023-24 22-23

Land Lease from Chilime Hydropower Company Limited 1,293,016 1,231,444
Interest Payment to Chilime Hydropower Company Limited 27,437,085 -
Yearly Payment for Utilizing of NEA server for E-bidding - 3,284,629
Overhead payment to NEA for deputed Staff 1,565,363 1,519,127
Directors’ sitting fees 2,047,900 1,404,500
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel 13,327,568 10,144,275
Chilime Jalavidhyut company Limited(Short Term) 330000000 240000000

Payment to EPF for provident fund of staff is disclosed in Note 10.
Year End balances with / from related parties

25.3The year end Receivable/(payable) balance with related parties are as follows:-
Particulars  2023-24 22-23

Chilime Hydropower Company Limited 458,976 3,246,499
 Nepal Electricity Authority 51,087,476 1,291,258
Total 51,546,452.57 4,537,757

Operating Segments
Accounting Policies
26. NFRS 8 Operating Segments requires particular classes of entities (essentially those with publicly traded 
securities) to disclose information about their operating segments, products and services, the geographical areas in 
which they operate, and their major customers.

The Company has only one reportable operating segment (both in terms of geography and products) and therefore, 
identification, classification and disclosure of separate reportable operating segments in accordance with NFRS 8 is 
not disclosed separately.

Interest In Other Entities		
27.	 The company follows NFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities for disclosing the extent of the investment, 

control and influence.		
28.	 The company follows NAS 10 Events After Reporting Period for accounting and report for the events that occur 

after the reporting period. The company classifies those events as adjusting and non-adjusting in 		

There are no material events both adjusting or non-adjusting for the reporting periods. 		
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Contingent Liabilities and Commitments		
29.	 "Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events, 

and present obligations where the transfer of economic resources is uncertain or cannot be reliably measured. 
Contingent liabilities are not classified as on-SFP but are only disclosed unless the outflow of economic resources 
is probable.

The Contractor for Lot-2 Civil Works of the Sanjen (Upper) Hydroelectric Project has submitted a proforma invoice 
claiming NRs. 26,304,682.60. However, the Consultant is currently conducting the reconciliation of previous Interim 
Payment Certificates. This claim will be settled upon the completion and finalization of the reconciliation process."	

A commitment is a contractual obligation to make a payment in the future. These amounts are not recorded in the 
statement of financial position since the company is not under obligation at reporting date to make such payments. 
The amounts below are the minimum amounts that we are committed to pay in future.	
	

Particulars 2023-24 22-23
Contingent Liability 26,304,682 -
Commitments – Contractual 399,605,546 806,945,926
Litigation - -
Total 425,910,228 806,945,926

Restatement of prior period balances		
Previously reported financial statements and financial statements for the current financial year as reported in the 
regulatory financial statements has been restated in compliances with the requirements of NFRS and due to prior 
period error adjustments.	



94

;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8, t]x|f}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&(÷@)*)



95

;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8, t]x|f}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&(÷@)*)





97

;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8, t]x|f}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&(÷@)*)

cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?,
o; sDkgLsf] t]x|f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf d ;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8sf] tkm{af6 oxfFx?nfO{ xflb{s :jfut ug{ rfxG5' . o; ul/dfdo ;efdf 
;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cfly{s jif{ @)&(÷)*) df ;Dkfbg ul/Psf d'Vo d'Vo lqmofsnfkx?sf] ljj/0f ;lxtsf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg / ;f]xL cjlwsf] 
n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf ljlQo ljj/0fx? k|:t't ug]{ cg'dlt rfxG5' . ;fy} o; sDkgLsf] cf= j= @)&(÷)*) sf] k|ult ljj/0fx? klg ;+lIfKt ?kdf oxfFx? 
;dIf k|:t't ug{ rfxG5' .

sDkgLn] lgdf{0f ul//x]sf ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf -!$=* d]= jf=_ lgdf{0f ;DkGg eO{ ldlt @)*)÷^÷@! b]lv Jofkfl/s ljB't pTkfbg 
eO{ j}slNks k|zf/0f nfO{gdfkm{t ljB't vl/b–ljqmL ;+emf}tf cg';f/ g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0fnfO{ ljB't ljqmL eO{/x]sf] 5 . ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf 
-$@=% d]= jf=_ sf ljleGg n6sf sfo{x¿ klg lgdf{0f ;DkGg x'g] clGtd r/0fdf /x]sf 5g\ . n6 g+= # O{n]S6«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sf] rLlgof 7]s]bf/ ePsf] 
/ sf]le8 !( sf] sf/0f nfdf] ;do;Dd rLgdf ePsf] jGbfjGbLn] dflg;x¿ cfjt hfjt tyf d]zLg pks/0fx?sf] 9'jfgLdf cj/f]w ePsf]n] tf]lsPsf] 
;dodf d]lzg pks/0fx¿ 9'jfgL u/L kfj/xfp;df h8fg ug{ l9nfO ePsf] sf/0f cfof]hgfsf] lgdf{0f sfo{ ;DkGg x'g l9nfO{ ePsf] Joxf]/f hfgsf/L 
u/fpg rfxG5' .

xfn eg] n6 g+= # O{n]S6«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sf] 7]s]bf/n] kfj/xfp;df cfjZos kg]{ ljleGg lsl;dsf k|fljlws hgzlQmx¿ kl/rfng u/L o;} cf= j= leq ;Dk"0f{ 
sfo{x¿ ;DkGg ug]{ u/L sfo{ ›'t ultdf cufl8 a9fO{ /x]sf] Joxf]/f klg d o; ul/dfdo ;efdf k|:t't ug{ rfxG5' .

!= cf= j= @)&(÷)*) sf] sf/f]jf/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg 
cf= j= @)&(÷)*) df sDkgLsf] s]G›Lo sfof{no tyf b'j} hnljB't cfof]hgfdf ePsf] s'n vr{ ?= ! cj{ !) s/f]8 !^ nfv #) xhf/ -k"FhLs[t Jofh 
afx]s_ vr{ ePsf] 5 . ;f] dWo] s]G›Lo sfof{no tyf cfof]hgfx?sf] sd{rf/L Pj+ k|zf;sLo vr{ ?= @! s/f]8 #% nfv (( xhf/ -k"FhLs[t Jofh afx]s_ 
/ k'FhLuttkm{ -lgdf{0f sfo{ k|ulttkm{_ s]G›Lo sfof{no / b'j} cfof]hgfx?df hDdf ?= ** s/f]8 *# nfv (% xhf/ vr{ ePsf] 5 . cf= j= @)&(÷)*) sf] 
cfDbfgL / vr{sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f o;} ;fy ;+nUg n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf ljlQo ljj/0faf6 cjut x'g] g} 5 .

cf= j= @)&(÷)*) df sDkgLsf] s]xL /sd a}+sdf df}Hbftsf] ¿kdf /xFbf k|fKt x'g cfPsf] Jofh ?= ! s/f]8 !$ nfv $# xhf/, ljb]zL d'›fsf] ljlgdo 
b/sf] sf/0faf6 ePsf] cfDbfgL ?= $# nfv #) xhf/ tyf cGo cfDbfgL ?= !) nfv !@ xhf/ ;d]t ?= ! s/f]8 ^& nfv *% xhf/ cfDbfgL ePsf] 5 . 
cf= j= @)&(÷)*) sf] cfDbfgL tyf vr{sf] ;+lIfKt ljj/0f lgDgfg';f/ tflnsf ! df k|:t't ul/Psf] 5M
tflnsf ! cfDbfgL / vr{ tkm{

-?= xhf/df_

ljj/0f cf= j= @)&(÷)*) cf= j= @)&*÷)&( yk÷36 k|ltzt

s'n cfDbfgL !,^&,*^ &,%% !^,)#! @!@#=@&

;~rfng ;+ef/ vr{ -skf]{/]6 sfof{no_ -#,(^,*@_ -$,!@,(&_ !^,!% -#=(!_

;~rfngaf6 gfkmf / gf]S;fg -@,@*,(^_ -$,)%,$@_ !,&^,$^ -$#=%@_

z]o/ lgisfzg vr{ -!$,@#_ -((&_ -$,@^_ $@=&%

ut jif{;Ddsf] ;l~rt gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_ -@!,#^,^#_ -!^,&^,@$_ -$,^),#(_ @&=$&

ljut jif{sf] gfkmf÷ gf]S;fg ;dfof]hg -@&,$*_ -$%,))_ !&,%@ -#*=($_

s"n ;l~rt gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_ -@$,)&,#)_ -@!,#^,^#_ -@,&),^&_ !@=^&

cf= j= @)&(÷)*) df z]o/k"FhL ;+sngsf] /sd ljleGg j}+sdf d'2tL lgIf]kdf /fvL Jofh k|fKt x'g cfPsf]n] ut cf= j= sf] t'ngfdf o; cf= j= df 
cfDbfgL pNn]Vo ¿kn] j[l4 x'g uPsf] b]lvG5 . 

k|zf;lgs vr{ tkm{ NFRS n]vfÍg jdf]lhd ljb]zL d'›fsf] ljlgdob/sf] sf/0fn] ePsf] lx;fj ;dfof]hg ubf{ ut cf= j= df gf]S;fgL b]lvPsf]df o; 
cf= j= @)&(÷)*) df 7]s]bf/nfO{ clu|d e'QmfgL ul/Psf] ljb]zL d'›f s§f ubf{ ljlgdo b/df ePsf] j[l2sf sf/0f gfkmf j[l2 eO{ ;~rfng ;Def/ vr{df 
sdL ePsf] 5 . 

cf= j= @)&(÷)*) df :yflgo /;'jfjf;LnfO{ z]o/ jf8Fkmf6 ubf{ nfu]sf] vr{sf sf/0f ut cf= j= df eGbf o; zLif{sdf vr{ /sd j[l4 x'g uPsf] 5 . 
ljB't ljqmL cfDbfgL gePsf] / skf]{/]6 sfof{no ;~rfngdf ePsf] vr{nfO{ gfkmf gf]S;fg vftfdf b]vfOPsf]n] gf]S;fgL klg j[l4 ePsf] b]lvPsf] 5 .

;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 t]x|f}“ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf cWoIfåf/f k|:t't 
cf= j= @)&(÷)*) sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg .
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tflnsf @ cf= j= @)&(÷)*) sf] ;DklQ tyf bfloTjsf] ljj/0f

-?= xhf/df_

ljj/0f @)*) cfiff9 #! @)&( cfiff9 #@ 

z]o/ k"FhL #,^%,)),)) #,@*,%),))

rfn" bfloTj  #(,!!,%%  !$,$*,#)

dWod tyf bL3{sflng C0f &(,@*,@(# ^,&&,%&,%@

s"n ;+lrt gfkmf÷-gf]S;fg_ -@$,)&,#)_ -@!,#^,^#_

hDdf k"FhL tyf bfloTj !!,&@,*&,!* (,((,!(,!(

l:y/ ;DklQ tyf sfo{ k|ult !!,%^,((,(@ (,&*,&&,&)

rfn" ;DklQ !%,*&,@^ @),$!,$(

hDdf ;DklQ !!,&@,*&,!* (,((,!(,!(

z]o/ k"FhL j9\g'df o; cf= j= df :yfgLo jf;Lsf] nflu 
5'6\ofOPsf] z]o/k"hL /sd ?= #^ s/f]8 %) nfv ;+sng /x]sf] 5 .  
rfn' bfloTj a9\g'df lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL ln= af6 
lnO{Psf] cNksflng C0f /sd ?= @$ s/f]8 /x]sf] 5 .  
dWod tyf bL3{sflng C0f /sd j[l2 x'gdf sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]ifaf6 
lnOPsf] C0fsf] ;fFjf tyf Jofh k|d'v /x]sf] 5 . s"n ;l~rt gf]S;fgL 
j9\g'df s]G›Lo sfof{nosf] k|zf;lgs vr{ adf]lhd ljB't ljqmL cfDbfgL 
gePsf] Joxf]/f cg'/f]w 5 . l:y/ ;DktL tyf sfo{ k|ult a9\g'sf] sf/0f 
cfof]hgfx?df ePsf] k"FhLut nufgL tyf ;~rfng ;Def/ vr{ d'Vo /x]sf] 
;fy} lgdf{0f cjlwsf] Jofh ;d]t ;dfj]z k|d'v /x]sf] 5 .

o; cf= j= df rfn' ;Dklt 36\g'sf] d'Vo sf/0f ut jif{sf] j}+s tyf gub 
df}Hbftsf] t'ngfdf o; jif{ pn]Vo ?kdf 36g' /x]sf] 5 .

@= sDkgLsf] z]o/ ;+/rgf
ut cf= j= df g} cfof]hgf k|efljt /;'jf lhNnfsf lhNnf jf;LnfO{ !) 
k|ltzt a/fj/sf] ?= !))÷– sf b/n] x'g cfpg] #^ nfv %) xhf/ lsQf 
z]o/ hf/L u/L z]o/ jfktsf] /sd ;+sng ug]{ nIo /flvPsf]df sf]le8 !( 
nufotsf ljleGg sf/0fn] ubf{ l9nf eO{ lgisfzg ug{ g;lsPsf]df cf= 
j= @)&(.)*) lgisfzg u/L pQm z]o/ jfktsf] /sd ;+sng ul/Psf] 5 . 
tTkZrft sDkgLsf] ztk|ltzt z]o/ hf/L e} ;Dk"0f{ /sd ;+sng e} ;s]sf] 
5 . sDkgLsf] k"FhL ;+/rgf lgDgfg';f/sf] rf6{df b]vfOPsf] 5M

#= cfof]hgfx?sf] cg'dflgt nfut / nufgLsf] Joj:yf
cfof]hgfx?sf] kl/dflh{t nfut cg'dfg adf]lhd ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ 
hnljB't cfof]hgf -!$=* d] jf_ sf] ?= # cj{ %$ s/f]8 ^@ nfv 
-lgdf{0f cjlwsf] Jofh jfx]s_ / ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] nfut 
cg'dfg ?= % cj{ && s/f]8 &* nfv -lgdf{0f cjlwsf] Jofh jfx]s_ 
u/L hDdf ?= ( cj{ #@ s/f]8 $! nfv -lgdf{0f cjlwsf] jfx]s_ x'g] 
b]lvPsf] 5 .

o;} u/L cfof]hgf lgdf{0fsf] qmddf @)&@ ;fnsf] ljgfzsf/L e'sDk, g]kfn–
ef/tsf] ;Ldfdf b]lvPsf] cj/f]w, lab]zL ljlgdo b/df ePsf] kl/jt{g, d"No 
;dfof]hg, l8hfO{g kl/jt{g / sf]le8 !( nufotsf sf/0fn] cfof]hgfsf] 
lgdf{0f calw yk x'Fb} hfFbf ylkb} uPsf] k|zf;lgs vr{, k/fdz{bftfsf] vr{, 
lgdf{0f calwsf] Jofhsf sf/0f cfof]hgf nfut s]xL a9\g] b]lvPsf] 5 . 
o;/L a9\g hfg] nfutnfO{ Joj:yfkg ug]{ of]hgf :j¿k sd{rf/L ;~ro 
sf]if;Fu klxnf]k6s ldlt @)&& >fj0f !$ ut] yk ?= (% s/f]8sf nflu 
k'/s C0f ;Demf}tf ul/Psf] lyof] . ljljw sf/0fn] cfof]hgfsf] lgdf{0f cjlw 
nlDjb} uPsf] x'Fbf yk ljlQo Joj:yfkg ug{' k/]sf] x'Fbf ldlt @)*) ciff9 !! 
df sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]if;Fu bf];|f]k6s yk ?= ! cj{ !) s/f]8sf nflu C0f 
;Demf}tf ;DkGg eO{ ljQ Joj:yfkg ul/Psf] 5 .

sDkgLsf] ljlQo cfjZostf Joj:yfkg ug{ cf= j= @)&(.)*) df >L 
lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8;Fu ?= @( s/f]8 cNksflng ;fkl6 lnO{ 
cNksflng >f]t kl/rfng ul/Psf]df ?= % s/f]8 / ;f]df nfu]sf] Jofh ;d]t 
lkmtf{ ul/;lsPsf] lyof] . xfn @$ s/f]8 cNksflng C0f bfloTjsf] ?kdf 
jf;nftdf b]vfO{Psf] 5 . Jofh eg] lrlnd]nfO{ e'QmfgL x'Fb} cfPsf] 5 .

o;/L x]bf{ of] k|ltj]bg tof/ ubf{sf cj:yf;Dd sd{rf/L 
;~ro sf]ifaf6 ¿= $ ca{ ^& s/f]8 ! nfv ## xhf/ ;fFjf / 
Jofh k"Flhs/0f jfkt ¿= # cj{ ! s/f]8 @% nfv @& xhf/ 
;d]t jf;nftdf lb3{sflng C0f lzif{sdf k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 .  
cfof]hgf ;~rfngdf cfPkl5 txfFaf6 k|fKt /sd pNn]lvt C0f r'Qmf 
ug{sf nflu pkof]u ub}{ ul/g]5 . 

xfn ePsf] Plss[t C0f ;Demf}tf jdf]lhd sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]if;Fu ePsf] 
C0f ;Demf}tf adf]lhd lb3{sflng C0f / O{lSjl6sf] cg'kft ^!M#( sfod 
ePsf] 5 .
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$= cfof]hgfdf ePsf] nufgL
cf= j= @)&(÷)*) cfiff9 d;fGt;Dddf ;fGh]g tyf ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ 
hnljB't cfof]hgfdf k|zf;lgs / k"hLut u/L hDdf ?= * ca{ %% s/f]8 
&$ nfv ^% xhf/ -lgdf{0f cjlwsf] Jofh afx]s_ nufgL e};s]sf] 5 .  
To:t} u/L lhNnf k|zf;g sfof{no /;'jfdf hUufsf] d'cfJhf ljt/0f ug{ 
hDdf ul/Psf] /sd, k/fdz{bftfnfO{ lbPsf] df]ljnfOh];g k]ZsL, l;len 
lgdf{0f sfo{sf 7]s]bf/, O{n]S6«f]d]sflgsn sfo{sf 7]s]bf/, xfO8«f]d]sflgsn 
sfo{sf 7]s]bf/ nufot cGo ;fgfltgf 7]Ssf cGtu{t hDdf ?= & s/f]8 
*) nfv ^@ xhf/ clu|d e'QmfgL /x]sf] tYo hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' . 

%= sDkgLaf6 lgdf{0fflwg cfof]hgf tyf efjL of]hgf Pj+ sfo{qmdx?
;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf ;DkGg eO{;s]sf] tYo oxfFx¿nfO{ 
cjut g} 5 . ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] xsdf klg On]S6«f]d]sflgsn sfo{ 
jfx]s cGo sfo{x¿ sl/j ;DkGg e} ;s]sf] cj:yf 5 . o; cfof]hgfnfO{ 
oyf;So l56f] ;DkGg ug]{ / sDkgLsf] cfDbfgL j[l2 ug]{ nIo /x]sf] 5 . 

;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ tyf ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] lgdf{0f sfo{ sl/j 
clGtd r/0fdf /x]sf]n] eljiosf nflu rf8} gofF hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] 
klxrfg, cWoog, lgdf{0f tyf ;~rfng ug]{ nIo sDkgLn] lnPsf] 5 .

^= ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] ljB't ljqmLsf nflu lgdf{0f 
ul/Psf] Contingency Plan 

g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f cGtu{t lgdf{0ffwLg 6«fG;ld;g nfO{gsf] lgdf{0f 
;DkGg x'g'eGbf klxn] g} ;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf lgdf{0f 
;DkGg x'g] ePsf] / pQm cfof]hgfaf6 pTkfbg x'g] ljB't zlQm cfk"lt{ 
ug{sf nflu a}slNks nfOgsf] Joj:yfkg ug{' kg]{ b]lvPsf]n] yfDa'r]taf6 
lrlnd] hnljB't s]G›sf] kfj/xfp;;Dd sl/j ^ lsnf]ld6/ !! s]eL 
8jn ;ls{6 k|zf/0fnfOg tyf ##÷!! s] eL ;j:6]zg ;d]t sDkgLsf] 
cfˆg} nufgLdf 5f]6f] ;dodf lgdf{0f ;DkGg ul/Psf] lyof] . ldlt @)*) 
c;f]h @! ut]b]lv * d]= jf= sf b/n] g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0fnfO{ ljqmL 
z'? ul/;lsPsf] 5 . 

&= /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o kl/l:yltn] sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/df kg]{ c;/ 
cfof]hgfx?df :jb]zL tyf ljb]zL 7]s]bf/ sDkgLx? sfo{/t /x]sf]n] ubf{ ljb]zL 
d'›fsf] ljlgdo b/df k/]sf] c;/, lgdf{0f ;fdfu|Ldf x'g] d"No a[l4 tyf ljleGg 
;dodf x'g] aGb x8\tfn h:tf 36gfqmdx?n] cfof]hgf lgdf{0fdf c;/ eO/xg] x'G5 .  

;fy} cfof]hgf lgdf{0fsf] qmddf ljleGg ;/sf/L tyf u}x| ;/sf/L lgsfoaf6 k|fKt 
ug{' kg]{ :jLs[ltx?df l9nfO{, ljleGg k|sf/sf b}jL k|sf]k h:t} @)&@ ;fnsf] 
e"sDk tyf tTkZrft\sf] gfsfaGbL / l8;]Da/ @)!( af6 z'? ePsf] sf]/f]gf 
dxfdf/L nufotsf] sf/0f klg cfof]hgf lgdf{0fsf] ult k|ToIf jf k/f]Io ?kdf 
k|efljt ePsf] tYo Joxf]/f cjut u/fpg rfxG5' .

*= sDkgLsf] Joj;flos ;DaGw
sDkgLsf] Joj;flos ;DaGw ljleGg ;/f]sf/jfnf ;+:yfx?;Fu ;'dw'/ /x]sf] 
5 . sDkgLn] lgdf{0f ul//x]sf cfof]hgfx?n] pTkfbg ug]{ ;Dk"0f{ ljB't vl/b 
ug]{ u/L g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f;Fu ljB't vl/b–laqmL ;+emf}tf e};s]sf] 5 .  
To:t} u/L sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]if;Fu b'a} cfof]hgfx?sf] nufgLsf] nflu 
C0f ;+emf}tf eO{ C0f nufgL ;d]t e};s]sf] 5 . o; sDkgL;Fu k|ToIf jf 
ck|ToIf ;DaGw /fVg] cGo ;+:yfx? h:t}M sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, 
pBf]u dGqfno, phf{ dGqfno, ljB't ljsf; ljefu, jg tyf jftfj/0f 
dGqfno, cy{ dGqfno, g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f, lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL 
ln=, /;'jfu9L xfO8«f]kfj/ sDkgL ln=, dWo ef]6]sf]zL hnljB't sDkgL 
ln=, sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]if, g]kfn :6s PSr]Gh, gfu/Ls nufgL sf]if, z]o/ 
/lhi6«f/sf] ?kdf sfo{ ul//x]sf] ;g/fO{h Soflk6n ln=, /;'jf lhNnfsf 
;/sf/L lgsfox? tyf :yfgLo lgsfox?, cfof]hgf :yn cfdf5f]lbËdf] 
ufpFkflnsf tyf j8f sfof{no, g]kfn a}+s ln=, Pe/]i6 a}+s ln=, s'df/L a}+s 
ln=, nIdL a}+s ln=, d]3f a}+s ln=, l;4fy{ a}+s ln=, lxdfnog a}+s ln=, 
/;'jf lhNnfsf :yfgLo jf;LGbfx?, cflb;Fu klg sDkgLsf] ;'dw'/ ;DaGw 
/x]sf] / cfufdL lbgx?df klg of] ;DaGw yk ;'b[9 / k|uf9 aGb} kf/:kl/s 
;xof]udf clea[l4 x'g]df ljZj:t 5' . 

(= sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt
sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldltdf d'Vo k|aw{s lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL ln= 
sf] tkm{af6 # hgf, g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0fsf] tkm{af6 ! hgf / ;~ro 
sf]ifdf /sd hDdf ug]{ sd{rf/Lsf] k|ltlglwTj gx'Gh]n;Ddsf] nflu 
sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]ifsf] tkm{af6 ! hgf ;d]t u/L % hgf ;~rfns /x]sf] 
;~rfns ;ldlt /x]sf] 5 . sDkgLsf] ;+zf]lwt k|aGwkq / lgodfjnLdf 
ePsf] Joj:yf cg';f/ Ps hgf :jtGq / Ps hgf dlxnf ;lxt b'O{ hgf 
;~rfns ;d]t hDdf & hgf ;~rfns /xg] Joj:yf /x]sf] x'Fbf ;j{;fwf/0f 
;d'xsf] k|ltlglwTjsf nflu ;~rfnssf] lgjf{rg ;DkGg eP kZrft dfq 
;~rfns ;ldltn] k"0f{tf kfpg] 5 . 
tflnsf $ xfn sfod ;~rfns ;ldltsf] ljj/0f

;~rfnssf] gfd kb k|ltlglwTj ug]{ ;+:yf b]lv ;Dd

>L /fdhL e08f/L cWoIf k|ltlglw, lrlnd] hnljB't s= ln= @)&&÷!@÷@) xfn;Dd

>L ;'efif s'df/ ld> ;~rfns k|ltlglw, lrlnd] hnljB't s=ln= @)&^÷!)÷)^ xfn;Dd

>L nf]sx/L n'O{6]n ;~rfns k|ltlglw, g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f @)&!÷)^÷!# xfn;Dd

>L gf/fo0f k|;fb cfrfo{ ;~rfns k|ltlglw,lrlnd] hnljB't s= ln= @)&#÷)&÷@^ xfn;Dd

>L 7fs'/ h+u yfkf ;~rfns k|ltlglw, sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]if @)&&÷!@÷!@ xfn;Dd

cf= j= @)&(÷)*) df ljleGg ljifodf 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o ug{sf nflu ;~rfns ;ldltsf] @# k6s a}7s a;]sf] lyof] .
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!)= n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt 
sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !^$ df ePsf] Joj:yf cg';f/ ;~rfns 
;ldltn] ;~rfns >L nf]sx/L n'O{6]nsf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;~rfns >L 
gf/fo0f k|;fb cfrfo{ / ;~rfns >L 7fs'/ h+u yfkf ;b:o /x]sf] tLg 
;b:oLo n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 5 .

cf= j= @)&(.)*) df n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg, cfjlws cfly{s k|ltj]bg 
nufotsf ljQLo ljj/0fx? nufotsf ljifodf k'g/fjnf]sg, 5nkmn tyf 
l;kmfl/; ug{sf nflu n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] @# k6s a}7s a;]sf] lyof] . 
n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf] a}7sdf pkl:yt ;~rfnsx?nfO{ k|lt a}7s eQf jfkt 
hgxL ?= # xhf/ lbg] Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 .

!!= n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bg pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|lts[of 
g]kfn laQLo k|ltj]bgdfg -Nepal Financial Reporting Standard_ 
cg'?k tof/ u/L n]vfk/LIf0f ;DkGg e} oxfFx¿nfO{ pknAw u/fOPsf cf= 
j= @)&(÷)*) sf ljQLo ljj/0fx? pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] s'g} s}lkmot 
gb]lvPsf] Joxf]/f o; ul/dfdo ;ef ;dIf cjut u/fpg rfxG5' . 

!@= cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL 
sDkgLsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfO /fVgsf nflu 
o; sDkgLn] cfjZostf cg';f/ lgod ljlgodx? tof/ u/L ;~rfns 
;ldltaf6 :jLs[lt u/fO{ nfu' ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . k|rlnt >d P]gsf] k|fjwfg 
cg'?k sDkgLsf] sd{rf/L k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL @)&^, ;fj{hflgs vl/b 
P]g cg's'n x'g] u/L cfly{s k|zf;g tyf vl/b ljlgodfjnL @)&), b}lgs 
tyf e|d0f eQf ljlgodfjnL nufotsf laleGg ljlgodx¿ sfof{Gjogdf 
/x]sf 5g\ . 

sDkgL P]g / sDkgLsf] ljlgodfjnLsf] k|fjwfg adf]lhd n]vfk/LIf0f 
;ldlt, sd{rf/L kbk"lt{ ;ldltx¿ u7g u/L ljleGg sfo{x¿ x'Fb} cfPsf 
5g\ . ;fy} cfjZostf cg';f/ cGo pk–;ldltx? klg u7g x'g] kl/kfl6 
/x]sf] 5 .

sDkgL tyf cfof]hgfsf cfly{s sf/f]af/x?sf] n]vfÍg sfo{ 
Aojl:yt ug{ e/kbf]{ ;ˆ6j]o/sf] dfWodaf6 n]vf /flvPsf] 5 .  
;fy} sd{rf/Lx?sf] k]/f]n Joj:yfkg Pj+ xflh/L Joj:yfkgsf] nflu E–
attendance sf] ;d]t Aoj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . 

!#= ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj
cfof]hgf k|efljt If]qdf cfof]hgfsf] ;dflhs tyf jftfj/0fLo k|efj 
Go"gLs/0f tyf ;fdflhs Pj+ k"jf{wf/ ljsf;sf] nflu sDkgLn] ljljw sfo{x? 
ub}{ cfO/x]sf] 5 . o; cGtu{t af6f] tyf ;8s lgdf{0f, :yfgLo jf;LGbfnfO{ 
k|fljlws tflnd tyf /f]huf/L, cfdf ;d'x ejg lgdf{0f, vfg]kfgL tyf gfnL 
lgdf{0f, u'Djf tyf dfg] lgdf{0f, lzIff tyf :jf:Yo / v]ns'b If]qdf ;xof]u, 
e'Ifo lgoGq0f, v]ns'b tyf ;f+:s[lts sfo{x?df ;xof]u ub}{ cfO/x]sf] 5 . 

!$= ;Da4 sDkgL aLrsf] sf/f]jf/
cf= j= @)&(÷*) df lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL;Fu hUuf ef8fdf lnP 
jfktsf] e'QmfgL, sDkgLsf] cg'/f]wdf g]kfn laB't k|flws/0faf6 sfhdf 
vl6g' ePsf] sd{rf/Lx?sf] cf]e/x]8, ;fk6L s§Lafktsf] e'QmfgL / s]xL 
l/rfr]{jn sfo{sf nflu e'QmfgL jfx]s cGo sf/f]jf/ g/x]sf] Joxf]/f cg'/f]w 
5 . To:t} j}sNkLs !! s]= eL= 8jn ;ls{6 k|zf/0f nfO{g lgdf{0f l56f] ug{' 

kg]{ cj:yfnfO{ dWogh/ u/L ;f] k|zf/0f nfO{gsf] nflu cfjZos ;fdfu|L 
kf]n g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0faf6 vl/b ul/Psf] lyof] . ;f] k|zf/0f nfO{gsf] 
nflu cfjZos !#@÷!! s]= eL= kfj/ 6«fG;km/d/ / ;f] nfO{g lgdf{0fsf] 
k/fdz{ ;]jf ;d]t g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0faf6 k|fKt ePsf]n] pQm lgdf{0f sfo{ 
;xh ePsf] lyof] . 

sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]if;Fu yk bL3{sflng Plss[t C0f ;Demf}tf x'g eGbf 
cufj} cNksflng ¿kdf /sd Joj:yfkg ug{' kg]{ ePsf]n] lrlnd] hnljB't 
sDkgL ln=af6 cNksflng ;fk6Lsf] ?kdf ?= @( s/f]8 k|fKt u/L cfof]hgf 
lgdf{0f sfo{df kl/rfng ul/Psf]df ¿= % s/f]8 lkmtf{ ul/Psf] 5 eg] jfFsL ¿= 
@$ s/f]8 lkmtf{ ug{ jfFsL /x]sf] 5 . 

cfof]hgfsf] lj:t[t l8hfO{g tyf lgdf{0f ;'k/LjIf0f -Detail Design and 
Construction Supervision_ ;DaGwL k/fdz{ sfo{ ug{ o; sDkgLsf] 
;Da4 sDkgLsf] ?kdf /x]sf] k/fdz{bftf >L lrlnd] O{lGhlgo/LË P08 
;le{;]h sDkgL ln= nfO{ k/fdz{bftfsf] ¿kdf lgo'Qm u/L k/fdz{ ;DaGwL 
sfd cufl8 a9L /x]sf] hfgsf/L u/fpFb5' . ;Dj4 sDkgLx¿;Fu ePsf] 
sf/f]jf/sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f n]vfk/LIf0f ePsf ljlQo ljj/0fsf ;DjlGwt 
cg';"rLdf pNn]v ul/Psf] 5 .

!%= cf= j= @)&(÷)*) sf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{
o; sDkgL cGtu{tsf cfof]hgfx? lgdf{0fsf] qmddf /x]sf] x'Fbf o; 
sDkgLsf] s]G›Lo sfof{nodf sfo{/t sd{rf/L vr{ tyf cGo ;~rfng ug{ 
nfu]sf] vr{nfO{ Joj:yfkg vr{ dflgPsf] 5 h; cg';f/ o; cfly{s jif{ 
@)&(÷*) df hDdf ¿= # s/f]8 (^ nfv *@ xhf/ /x]sf] 5 .

!^= rfn" cf= j= @)*)÷)*! sf] pknAwL tyf vr{
cf= j= @)*)÷)*! sf] c;f]h d;fGt;Dddf sDkgLn] Jofh tyf cGo 
cfDbfgL tkm{ ?= * nfv *& xhf/ cfh{g u/]sf] 5 . skf]{/]6 sfof{nosf] 
k|zf;lgs vr{ tkm{ ?= ! s/f]8 * nfv !# xhf/ vr{ ePsf] 5 . ;fGh]g 
-dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] k|zf;lgs vr{ tkm{ ?= ! s/f]8 !@ nfv 
(( xhf/ / k"FhLut tkm{ ?= @ s/f]8 $* nfv && xhf/ vr{ ePsf] 5 . To:t} 
u/L ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] k|zf;lgs vr{ tkm{ ?= @ s/f]8 %^ nfv 
^% xhf/ / k"FhLuttkm{ ?= ( s/f]8 !% nfv %& xhf/ vr{ ePsf] 5 .

!&= ;~rfns tyf pRr kb:y kbflwsf/Lsf] kfl/>lds
;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf k|lt JolQm k|lt a}7s ?= ( xhf/, ;~rfns 
;ldltn] u7g u/]sf] ;ldlt tyf pk–;ldltsf] a}7s eQf k|lt JolQm k|lt 
a}7s ?= $ xhf/ / k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tsf] dfl;s kfl/>lds jfkt s/ 
;lxt ?= @ nfv #^ xhf/ /x]sf] 5 .

!*= a}+s tyf ljlQo ;+:yfx?af6 lnOPsf] C0f tyf a'emfpg afFsL /x]sf] 
;fFjf tyf Jofhsf] /sd
o; sDkgL, lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8 / sd{rf/L ;~ro sf]ifaLr 
ePsf] lqkIfLo C0f ;Demf}tf adf]lhd cf= j= @)&(.)*) ;Dd sd{rf/L 
;~ro sf]if;Fu lnOPsf] C0f ?= $ cj{ ^& s/f]8 ! nfv ## xhf/ -hDdf 
;fFjf /sd_ / ;f] sf] Jofh jfkt ?=# cj{ ! s/f]8 @% nfv @& xhf/ ;d]t u/L 
s'n ?= & cj{ ^* s/f]8 @^ nfv ^) xhf/ e'QmfgL ug{ afFsL egL jf;nftsf] 
bL3{sflng bfloTj cGtu{t b]vfOPsf] 5 . 

sDkgLsf] ljlQo cfjZostf Aoj:yfkg ug{ cf= j= @)&(.)*) df >L lrlnd] 
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hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8;Fu ?= @( s/f]8 cNksflng C0f lnO{ cNksflng 
>f]t kl/rfng ul/Psf]df ?= % s/f]8 lkmtf{ e'QmfgL ul/;lsPsf] 5 . xfn @$ 
s/f]8 cNksflng C0f bfloTjsf] ?kdf jf;nftdf b]vfO{Psf] 5 .

!(= sDkgLn] e'QmfgL lng'kg]{ jf sDkgLn] cGo JolQmnfO{ e'QmfgL ug{' kg]{ egL 
bfaL ul/Psf] /sd jf o; ljifodf d'2f dfldnf rln/x]sf] eP To;sf] ljj/0f
pNn]lvt ljifodf s'g} bfloTj gePsf] .

@)= sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkgdf sfo{/t cGo :t/sf sd{rf/L jf sfdbf/sf] 
;+Vof
xfn o; sDkgLdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx¿ dWo] g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0faf6 
sfhdf cfPsf b'O{ hgf jfx]s ;a} sd{rf/Lx¿ s/f/ ;]jfdf sfo{/t /x]sf 
5g\ . sd{rf/Lsf] ;]jf ;'ljwfnfO{ Jojl:yt ug{sf nflu sDkgLsf] cfˆg} 
sd{rf/L k|zf; ljlgodfjnL /x]sf] 5 . xfn sDkgLsf] s]G›Lo sfof{no, 
;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ hnljB't cfof]hgf / ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfdf 
u/L clws[t :t/ !& hgf, ;xfos :t/ !)# hgf ;d]t hDdf !@) hgf 
sd{rf/L sfo{/t /x]sf 5g\ .

@!= sDkgLsf] Joj:yfkgdf sfo{/t tyf cGo :t/df sfo{/t ljb]zLx?sf] 
;+Vof tyf lghx?nfO{ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwf
xfn s'g} klg ljb]zLx? sfo{/t 5}gg\ .

@@= sDkgL / s'g} ljb]zL lgsfo jf JolQmx? aLr nufgL, Joj:yfkg jf k|fljlws 
;]jf jf cGo ljifodf Ps jif{ eGbf a9L cjlwsf] nflu s'g} ;+emf}tf ul/Psf] eP 
;f]sf] ljj/0f / ;DalGwt cfly{s jif{df To:tf] ;+emf}tf cg';f/ e'Qmfg ul/Psf] 
nfef+;, sld;g, z'Ns, b:t'/ / /f]oN6L cflbsf] ljj/0f
of] k|ltj]bg tof/ ug]{ ;do;Dd pk/f]Qm k|of]hgsf] nflu sf]xL ljb]zL JolQm 
tyf ;+:yf;Fu cfly{s bfloTj x'g] u/L s'g} ;Demf}tf ePsf] 5}g .

@#= z]o/wgLx?n] a'lemlng afFsL /x]sf] nfef+;sf] /sd
cfof]hgfx? ;~rfngdf gcfO{;s]sf] x'Fbf xfn o; a'Fbfdf ePsf] Joj:yf 
nfu' gx'g] .

@$= sDkgLn] o; P]g tyf k|rlnt sfg"gsf] kfngf k"0f{ ?kdf u/]sf] 5 eGg] 
s'/fsf] pb\3f]if0f
o; sDkgLn] k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd l;h{gf x'g] ;Dk"0f{ zt{x? pRr 
;ts{tfsf ;fy kl/kfng u/]sf] tYo o; ul/dfdo ;efdf pb\3f]if0f ug{ 
rfxG5' .

s[t1tf 1fkg tyf wGojfb,
;fGh]g -dflyNnf]_ tyf ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] k|f/lDes cWoog 
z'? ePb]lv xfnsf] cj:yf;Dd NofO{ k'of{pg k|ToIf jf k/f]If ?kn] ;xof]u 
k'of{pg] phf{, hn;|f]t tyf l;+rfO{ dGqfno, ljB't ljsf; ljefu, jg tyf 
jftfj/0f dGqfno, jg ljefu, If]qLo jg lgb]{zgfno, e"ld ;'wf/ dGqfno, 
e"ld Joj:yf, ;xsf/L tyf ul/aL lgjf/0f dGqfno, pBf]u jfl0fHo tyf 
cfk"lt{ dGqfno, >d /f]huf/ tyf ;fdflhs ;'/Iff dGqfno, u[x dGqfno, 
g]kfn lwtf]kq jf]8{, g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh, l;=l8=P;=;L= lnld6]8 
nufot g]kfn ;/sf/sf ljleGg lgsfosf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ d wGojfb 
lbg rfxG5' . 

o;} qmddf :yfgLo /;'jf lhNnfsf] lhNnf k|zf;g sfof{no, lhNnf 
;dGjo ;ldlt, cfof]hgf :yn /x]sf] cfdf5f]lbËdf] ufpFkflnsf, lrlnd] 
tyf uf]Nh'Ë j8f sfof{no, uf];fO{s'08 ufpFkflnsf tyf :ofFk|m'j]F;L j8f 
sfof{no, nfª6fª /fli6«o lgs'~h tyf sfnLh+u u0f, g]kfnL ;]gf, lhNnf 
k|x/L sfof{no, ;z:q k|x/L an, lhNnf dfnkf]t sfof{no, lhNnf jg 
sfof{no cflbaf6 cfof]hgf sfof{Gjogdf k|fKt ;xof]usf nflu wGojfb 
lbg rfxG5' / cfufdL lbgx?df klg lg/Gt/ ;xof]u kfpg] ljZjf; u/]sf] 5' .

cfof]hgfx?sf] lgdf{0f / ;~rfng ;DaGwL sfo{df ;xof]u / ;b\efj b]vfpb} 
cfpg' ePsf ;fGh]g hnljB't cfof]hgf j/k/sf ;Dk"0f{ :yflgojf;LGbfx?, 
:yfgLo txsf kbflwsf/Lx?, jg pkef]Qmf ;ldltx?, cfdf ;d"xx?, o'jf Snj, 
z}lIfs ;+:yf nufot k|ToIf jf k/f]If ?kdf ;xof]u ug{' x'g] a'l4hLlj ju{ Pj+ 
kqsf/ ldqx?nfO{ klg wGojfb lbg rfxG5' .

k|aw{s ;+:yf g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f, lrlnd] hnljB't sDkgL ln= df 
sfo{/t /xg' ePsf Aoa:yfkg tyf sd{rf/L Pj+ sd{rf/L o'lgogx?df xflb{s 
wGojfb lbg rfxG5' . ljz]iftM sDkgLsf] s]G›Lo sfof{no / cfof]hgfsf 
Joj:yfkg nufot ;a} txsf sd{rf/L tyf sd{rf/L o"lgognfO{ wGojfb 
lbg rfxG5' . ljleGg /fhlglts bnsf g]tf tyf sfo{stf{x?, ;/f]sf/jfnf 
;+3 ;+:yf, lzIfs, ljBfyL{, ;dfh;]jL, gful/s ;dfh, kqsf/, a'l4hLlj, 
lhNnfsf ;/sf/L lgsfox?, ;'/Iff lgsfox?, ;/f]sf/ ;ldlt ;Dk"0f{ 
;/f]sf/jfnfx?k|lt o; sDkgLsf] tkm{af6 xflb{s cfef/ k|s6 ub{5' .

sDkgLsf] :yfkgf, lgdf{0f tyf Joj:yfkgdf of]ubfg k'¥of{pg'x'g] ;~rfns 
;ldltsf ;b:o tyf k"j{ ;~rfns tyf k"j{ sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ klg wGojfb 
lbg rfxG5' .

lgdf{0f sfo{df ;+nUg e} cfof]hgfx?nfO{ cfhsf] cj:yf;Dd Nofpg e'ldsf 

lgefpg] 7]s]bf/ sDkgLx? ECI–BGCCPL J/V, SEW–TUNDI J/V, 

g]kfn xfO8«f] P08 O{n]lS6«s sDkgL, Dongfang Electric International 
Coporation, Mudhbhary and Joshi Company Pvt Ltd, 
Nepalese/Sharmila J/V, Tenji Nirman Sewa nufotsf ;Dk"0f{ 
lgdf{0f Joj;foL sDkgLx¿nfO{ ;d]t wGojfb lbg rfxG5' .

o; sDkgLsf] ljlQo Joj:yfkgdf ;xof]u / ;b\efj /fVg] sd{rf/L ;~ro 
sf]if, gfu/Ls nufgL sf]if, cGo ljlQo ;+3 ;+:yfx? tyf z]o/ /lhi6«f/sf] 
;]jf k|bfg ug]{ ;g/fO{h Soflk6n lnld6]8nfO{ klg wGojfb lbg rfxG5' .
cGTodf, ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ sDkgLsf] ;~rfns ;ldltk|lt 
b]vfpg' ePsf] ;xof]u, ;b\efj / ljZjf;sf] lgldQ d pxfFx?k|lt xflb{s 
s[t1tf tyf wGojfb 1fkg ug{ rfxG5' ;fy} cfufdL lbgx?df klg o;/L g} 
lg/Gt/ ;fy / ;xof]u lbg' x'g] 5 eGg] cfzf JoQm ub{5' .

wGojfb,
cWoIf

;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8
dxf/fhu+h, sf7df8f}+ .
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;fGh]g hnljB't sDkgL lnld6]8, t]x|f}F jflif{s k|ltj]bg @)&(÷@)*)

Statement of Financial Position 
As on 31st Ashadh, 2080 (Corresponding to 16-July- 2023)

(Figure in NPR)

Particulars
 This Year

 2080.03.31
 (16.07.2023)

 Previous Year
 2079.03.32

 (16.07.2022)
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment’s  1,296,851 6,060,060 
Project Capital Work in Progress  11,568,695,129 9,781,710,428 
Term Deposit  -  - 
Total Non-Current Assets  11,569,991,980  9,787,770,488 
Current Assets
Inventory  29,048,281 10,848,605 
Financial Assets:
Advances to Contractors and Consultants  78,061,566 51,652,755 
Deposits and Margin  2,587,835 6,973,172 
Prepayments  209,518 225,971 
Current Tax Assets  13,933,962 12,217,494 
Term Deposits with Banks  270,000 270,000 
Other Financial Asssets  25,936,565 7,464,422 
Bank Balances Call and Current  8,678,802 114,496,603 
Total Current Assets  158,726,529  204,149,022 
TOTAL ASSETS  11,728,718,509 9,991,919,510 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital  3,650,000,000 3,285,000,000 
Other Equity  (240,729,647) (213,662,650)
Total Equity  3,409,270,353 3,071,337,350 
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities:
Borrowings  7,682,659,706 6,504,298,382 
Other Non-current Liabilities  245,633,098 271,453,726 
Total Non-Current Liabilities  7,928,292,804 6,775,752,108 
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities:
Borrowings  240,000,000 
Provisions  13,436,707 7,281,454 
Other Financial Liabilities and Payables  137,718,645 137,548,598 
Total Current Liabilities  391,155,352  144,830,052 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  11,728,718,509  9,991,919,510 

..........………………….
Ramji Bhandari

Chairman

………………….………………
Shanti Laxmi Shakya

Director

………………….……………
Lok Hari Luitel

Director

 ………………………………………
Subhash Kumar Mishra

Director

……………….........………..
Thakur Jung Thapa

Director

 ……………..................………
Sunil Kumar Dhungel

Chief Executive Officer 

…………………......….................
Narayan Prasad Acharya

Director

………………………………………
Ghanashyam Shrestha

Account Chief

……………………………….
FCA Sanjeev Dhakal

Partner
SD & Associates

Chartered Accountants

As per our report of even date
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jf;nft
ljj/0f æ@)*) cfiff9 #! ut]sf] ?=Æ æ@)&( cfiff9 #@ ut]sf] ?=Æ

;DklQ

l:y/ ;DklQ

;DklQ, KnfG6 tyf pks/0f  1,296,851  6,060,060 
cfof]hgf nufgL tyf sfo{ k|utL  11,568,695,129  9,781,710,428 
d'4tL lgIf]k  –  – 
hDdf l:y/ ;DklQ  11,569,991,980  9,787,770,488 
rfn' ;DklQ
lhG;L df}Hbft  29,048,281  10,848,605 
7]s]bf/ tyf k/fdz{bftfnfO{ k]ZsL  78,061,566  51,652,755 
lgIf]k tyf dflh{g  2,587,835  6,973,172 
clu|d e'QmfgL  209,518  225,971 
sn tyf d'4tLdf k|fKt Jofh  13,933,962  12,217,494 
d'4tL lgIf]k  270,000  270,000 
cGo k]ZsL  25,936,565  7,464,422 
j}+s d}Hbft  8,678,802  114,496,603 
hDdf rfn" ;DklQ  158,726,529  204,149,022 
hDdf ;DklQ  11,728,718,509  9,991,919,510 

z]o/ k"FhL tyf bfloTj
z]o/ k"FhL

r'Qmf k"FhL  3,650,000,000  3,285,000,000 
hu]8f sf]if (240,729,647)  (213,662,650)
hDdf z]o/ k"FhL  3,409,270,353  3,071,337,350 
lb3{sfnLg bfloTj

lb3{sfnLg C0f tyf ;fk6L  7,682,659,706  6,504,298,382 
cGo lb3{sfnLg bfloTj  245,633,098  271,453,726 
hDdf lb3{sflng bfloTj  7,928,292,804  6,775,752,108 
rfn' bfloTj
cNksflng C0f tyf ;fk6L  240,000,000  – 
Joj:yfx?  13,436,707  7,281,454 
cGo bfloTj tyf e'QmfgL ug{ afFsL  137,718,645  137,548,598 
hDdf rfn' bfloTj  391,155,352  144,830,052 
hDdf z]o/ k"FhL tyf bfloTj  11,728,718,509  9,991,919,510 
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Statement of Profit or Loss 
For the Year 2079/80 (Corresponding to F.Y. 2022/23)

(Figure in NPR)

Particulars  This Year FY 
2079/80(2022/23)

Previous year FY 
2078/79(2021/22)

Revenue
Revenue from Contract with Customers  -  - 
Cost Of Sales
Generation Expenses  -  - 
Distribution Expenses  -  - 
Gross Profit  -  - 
Depreciation and Amortization  (5,126,466)  (5,186,234)
Other income  1,012,230  755,273 
Operating and Administrative Expenses  (13,589,820)  (13,948,973)
Employee Benefits  (18,104,649)  (15,006,743)
Profit From Operation  (35,808,705)  (33,386,677)
Finance income  11,443,118  - 
Impairments and Write-Offs
Exchange Gain / (loss)  4,330,333  (7,154,773)
Profit Before Tax  (20,035,254)  (40,541,450)
Income Taxes  (2,860,780)
Net Profit  (22,896,034)  (40,541,450)
Basic EPS (Annualised)  (0.65)  (1.23)
Diluted EPS  (0.65)  (1.23)
The accompaying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

..........………………….
Ramji Bhandari

Chairman

………………….………………
Shanti Laxmi Shakya

Director

………………….……………
Lok Hari Luitel

Director

 ………………………………………
Subhash Kumar Mishra

Director

……………….........………..
Thakur Jung Thapa

Director

 ……………..................………
Sunil Kumar Dhungel

Chief Executive Officer 

…………………......….................
Narayan Prasad Acharya

Director

………………………………………
Ghanashyam Shrestha

Account Chief

……………………………….
FCA Sanjeev Dhakal

Partner
SD & Associates

Chartered Accountants

As per our report of even date
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gfkmf gf]S;fg ljj/0f
ljj/0f  cf= j=@)&(÷)*) sf] ?= cf= j=@)&*÷)&( sf] ?=

cfDbfgL

7]s]bf/af6 k|fKt cfDbfgL  –  – 
ljB't ljqmLaf6 k|fKt cfDbfgL  –  – 
ljqmLsf] nfut  –  – 
pTkfbg nfut  –  – 
ljt/0f nfut  –  – 
v'b gfkmf  –  – 
x|f; vr{  (5,126,466)  (5,186,234)
cGo cfDbfgL  1,012,230  755,273 
sfof{no ;~rfng tyf k|zf;lso vr{  (13,589,820)  (13,948,973)
sd{rf/L vr{  (18,104,649)  (15,006,743)
;~rfngaf6 gfkmf  (35,808,705)  (33,386,677)
sn tyf d'4tL vftfaf6 k|fKt Jofh  11,443,118  – 
gf]S;fgL ckn]vg vr{  –  – 
ljlgdo b/af6 ePsf] gfkmf÷-gf]S;fgL_  4,330,333  (7,154,773)
s/ cl3sf] gfkmf  (20,035,254)  (40,541,450)
cfo s/  (2,860,780)  – 
v'b gfkmf  (22,896,034)  (40,541,450)
k|lt z]o/ cfDbfgL 

cfwf/e't k|lt z]o/ cfDbfgL  (0.65)  (1.23)
l8n'6]8 k|lt z]o/ cfDbfgL  (0.65)  (1.23)
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Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year 2079/80(Corresponding to F.Y. 2022/23)

(Figures in NPR))
Particulars  This Year FY 

2079/80(2022/23)
Previous year FY 

2078/79(2021/22)
Profit/Loss for the year (22,896,034) (40,541,450)
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 
when specific conditions are met 
Available-for-sale investments
–  fair value gains / (Losses)  - - 
–  income taxes  - - 
Exchange differences and other  - - 
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or 
loss 
Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans 
–  before income taxes  -  - 
–  income taxes  -  - 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  -  - 
Total comprehensive income for the year  (22,896,034)  (40,541,450)

..........………………….
Ramji Bhandari

Chairman

………………….………………
Shanti Laxmi Shakya

Director

………………….……………
Lok Hari Luitel

Director

 ………………………………………
Subhash Kumar Mishra

Director

……………….........………..
Thakur Jung Thapa

Director

 ……………..................………
Sunil Kumar Dhungel

Chief Executive Officer 

…………………......….................
Narayan Prasad Acharya

Director

………………………………………
Ghanashyam Shrestha

Account Chief

……………………………….
FCA Sanjeev Dhakal

Partner
SD & Associates

Chartered Accountants

As per our report of even date
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 16th, July 2023 (2022-23)

(Figure in NPR)

Particulars
 This Year

 2080.03.31
(16.07.2023)

 Previous Year
 2079.03.32

 (16.07.2022)
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss / (profit) before taxation (22,896,034) (40,541,450)
Adjustments for non-cash items and non-operating adjustments
Depreciation  5,186,234 
Loss (Gain) on disposal of assets (4,500,000)
Dividend income 
Defined benefit plan net charge
Changes in Operating assets and Liabilities
Change in operating assets  (60,395,308) 262,174,578 
Change in operating liabilities  246,325,300 (212,658,715)
Contributions to defined benefit schemes
Previous year adjustments (2,747,919)
Defined benefits paid
Taxes paid
Net cash from operating activities  160,286,039  9,660,647 
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  4,763,208 (10,160,376)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of CWIP (1,786,984,701) (1,438,133,583)
Disposal of CWIP
Purchase of Investments  - 
Disposal and maturity of investment securities  10,000,000 
Dividends received from investment in securities
Net cash used in investing activities (1,782,221,493) (1,438,293,960)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ordinary and preference share capital, net of expenses 365,000,000  - 
Share Issue Expenses (1,423,043) (996,862)
Borrowings 1,152,540,696 1,532,198,333 
Dividends paid to ordinary shareholders, net of scrip
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities  1,516,117,653  1,531,201,471 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (105,817,801)  102,568,158 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 114,496,603  11,928,445 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash & cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  8,678,802  114,496,603 
The accompaying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

..........………………….
Ramji Bhandari

Chairman

………………….………………
Shanti Laxmi Shakya

Director

………………….……………
Lok Hari Luitel

Director

 ………………………………………
Subhash Kumar Mishra

Director

……………….........………..
Thakur Jung Thapa

Director

 ……………..................………
Sunil Kumar Dhungel

Chief Executive Officer 

…………………......….................
Narayan Prasad Acharya

Director

………………………………………
Ghanashyam Shrestha

Account Chief

……………………………….
FCA Sanjeev Dhakal

Partner
SD & Associates

Chartered Accountants

As per our report of even date
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gub k|jfx ljj/0f
ljj/0f cf= j=@)&(÷*) sf] ? cf= j=@)&*÷&( sf] ?

;+rfng ultljlwaf6 v'b gub k|jfx

cfos/ cufl8sf] v'b gfkmf÷-gf]S;fgL_  (22,896,034)  (40,541,450)
;dfof]hg

!= x|f; s§L  –  5,186,234 
@= ;DklQsf] lg;u{af6 ePsf] gf]S;fg ÷-gfkmf_  –  (4,500,000)
#= nfef+; cfo  –  – 
$ tf]lsPsf] cfo of]hgfsf] vr{  –  – 

sfo{lzn k"Flhdf ePsf] kl/jt{g  –  – 
!= rfn" ;DklQdf ePsf] sdL÷-j[l4_ (60,395,308)  262,174,578 
@= rfn" bfloTjdf ePsf] j[l4 ÷-sdL_  246,325,300  (212,658,715)
# tf]lsPsf] cfo of]hgfdf of]ubfg  –  – 
$ tf]lsPsf] cfo e'QmfgL  –  – 
%=ut jif{sf] ;dfof]hg  (2,747,919)  – 
^=tf]lsPsf] ;'ljwf e'QmfgL  –  – 
&= s/ e'QmfgL  –  – 

;+rfng ultljlwaf6 v'b gub k|jfx  160,286,039  9,660,647 
nufgL ultljlwaf6 v'b gub k|jfx

;DklQ, KnfG6 tyf pks/0f –vl/b  4,763,208  (10,160,376)
;DklQ, KnfG6 tyf pks/0f –lg;u{  –  – 
cfof]hgf nufgL tyf sfo{ k|ult–vl/b  (1,786,984,701)  (1,438,133,583)
cfof]hgf nufgL tyf sfo{ k|ult–lg;u{  –  – 
nufgL  –  10,000,000 
lwtf]kqsf] lg;u{  –  – 
lwtf]kqaf6 k|fKt nfef+;  –  – 
nufgL ultljlwaf6 v'b gub k|jfx  (1,782,221,493)  (1,438,293,959)
ljlQo ultljlwsf] gub k|jfx

;fwf/0f ;]o/ k"FhL  365,000,000  – 
z]o/ lgisf;g vr{  (1,423,043)  (996,862)
;fk6L  1,152,540,696  1,532,198,333 
;fwf/0f ;]o/wgLnfO{ nfef+; e'QmfgL  –  – 
ljlQo ultljlwaf6 v'b gub k|jfx  1,516,117,653  1,531,201,471 
gubdf ePsf] s'n j[l4÷-sdL_  (105,817,801)  102,568,158 
jiff{/Dedf gub tyf j}+s df}Hbft  114,496,603  11,928,445 
ljlgdo b/sf] gf]S;fgLaf6 gubdf ePsf] kl/jt{g  –  – 
 jiff{Gtdf gub tyf j}+s df}Hbft  8,678,802  114,496,603 
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A. Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 
(NFRS) to the extent applicable and as published by 
the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) – Nepal. These 
statements have been approved from 268th Board of 
Directors’ meeting held on 2080/08/08 and have been 
recommended for approval by shareholders in the 
Annual General Meeting

B. About SJCL
Sanjen Jalavidhyut Company Limited (SJCL) is a 
subsidiary of Chilime and was incorporated in February 
2010 as a public limited company. SJCL is developing 
two hydropower projects – Sanjen Hydroelectric Project 
(SHEP) having capacity of 42.5 MW and Sanjen (Upper) 
Hydroelectric Project (SUHEP) of capacity 14.8 MW in 
Rasuwa district of Province 3 in Nepal. The company’s 
registered office is in Maharajgung Kathmandu. 
The hydropower plants, once commissioned, will be 
connected to the National Grid through a single circuit 
transmission line at Chilime hub located at the Rasuwa 
district.

C. Basis of Preparation
The financial information has been prepared under the 
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation 
of assets at fair value wherever the standard requires or 
the company adopts the option given in the standards 
for such revaluation. 

i. Compliance with NFRS
The financial statements of SJCL have been prepared 
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 
(NFRS) issued by Accounting Standard Board of Nepal 
on 13 Sept 2013. These are based on the International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by 
International Accounting Standard Board (IASB). 
The NAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement is notified to be applicable for recognition, 
measurement and reporting of Financial Instruments.

ii. Presentation of Financial Statements
The statement of profit or loss has been prepared using 
classification ‘by nature’ method. The cash flows from 
operation within the statement of cash flows have been 
derived using the ‘indirect’ method.

iii. Presentation Currency
The financial statements have been presented in the 
nearest Nepalese Rupees (NPR). Nepalese Rupees 
(NPR) is also the functional and presentation currency.

iv. Current and Non-Current distinction
Assets and liabilities, wherever applicable, are bifurcated 
in current and non-current based on their respective 
maturity. Such information has been separately disclosed 
wherever applicable. 

v. Discounting
When the realisation of assets and settlement of obligation 
is for more than one year, the company considers the 
discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact 
is material. Various internal and external factors have been 
considered for determining the discount rate to be applied 
to the cash flows of company.

vi. Accounting policies, critical accounting estimates and 
judgements
Accounting Policies
IFRS requires the company to adopt accounting 
policies that are most appropriate to the company’s 
circumstances. In determining and applying accounting 
policies, management is required to make judgements 
in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, 
accounting estimate or assumption to be followed 
could materially affect the company’s reported financial 
position, results or cash flows. These accounting policies 
are consistently applied by the Company. 
Specific accounting policies have been included in the 
specific section of the notes for each items of financial 
statements which requires disclosures of accounting 
policies or changes in accounting policies. Effect and 
nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed. 

Accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance 
with IFRS requires the management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions in applying the accounting 
policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses, including contingencies 
and commitments. Due to the inherent uncertainty in 
making estimates, actual results reported in future periods 
may differ from those estimates. The estimates and 
the underlying assumptions are reviewed on on-going 
basis based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revision to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 
which the estimates is revised, if the revision affects only 
that period; they are recognised in the period of revision 
and the future periods if the revision affects both current 
and future periods. 

The significant judgements made by management in 
applying the company’s accounting policies and the 
key sources of estimation uncertainty in these financial 
statements, which together are deemed critical to the 
company’s results and financial position, are given in 
the respective sections of the notes wherever they have 
been applied. 

vii. Going Concern
The management consider that it is appropriate to 
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing 
the financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts
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viii. Reporting dates
SJCL follows the Nepalese financial year based on the 
Nepalese calendar. The corresponding dates for the 
English calendar are as follows:

Relevant Financial 
Statement

Nepalese Calendar
Date / Period

English Calendar
Date / Period

Opening SFP date 1 Shrawan 2079 16-Jul-22

Comparative SFP 
Date 31 Ashadh 2080 16-Jul-23

Comparative 
reporting period

1 Shrawan 2079 - 
31 Ashadh 2080

16 July 2022 - 16 
July 2023

ix. Materiality
The Company for the preparation of financial statements 
determines materiality based on the nature or magnitude, 
or both. Materiality is a pervasive constraint in financial 
reporting because it is pertinent to all of the qualitative 
characteristics.

x. Cost Constraint 
The company assesses whether the benefits of 
reporting particular information are likely to justify the 
costs incurred to provide and use that information. It is 
consistent with the Framework for in NFRS requirement 
not to maximise the qualitative characteristics of financial 
information and other main Framework concepts when 
the costs of doing so would exceed the benefits

D. Notes to Accounts
1. Property Plant & Equipment’s and Intangible Assets
A. Intangible Assets
Accounting Policies 
Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the 
company controls the asset, it is probable that future 
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to 
the company and the cost of the asset can be reliably 
measured. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are 
stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. The useful lives 
and the amortisation methods of the assets are reviewed 
at least annually. Changes in the estimated useful 
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefit embodied in the assets are accounted 
for by changing the amortisation period or method, as 
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting 
estimates in accordance with NAS 8. Amortisation is 
charged to Statement of Profit or Loss on a straight-line 
basis over the useful life of license. Intangible assets 
having infinite useful life are assessed for impairment at 
each reporting date.

Explanatory Notes
Company does not have any separable intangible 
assets. The accounting software in use by the company 
is grouped with the office equipment.

B. Property Plant and Equipment
Accounting Policies 
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement 
of financial position at their cost and are inclusive of 
all expenses necessary to bring the assets to working 

condition for its intended use less any subsequent 
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated 
impairment losses, if applicable. Property, plant and 
equipment are recognised as an asset, if and only if it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the company; and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably.

The depreciation period is based on the expected 
useful life of an asset. Items of property plant and 
equipment are depreciated on pro rata basis in the year 
of acquisition. The residual values, useful lives and the 
depreciation methods of assets are reviewed at least at 
each financial year end and, if expectations differ from 
previous estimates are accounted for as a change in 
accounting estimates in accordance with NAS 8.

In addition to the purchase price and cost directly 
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
conditions necessary for it to be capable of operating 
in the manner intended by management if an item 
of property, plant and equipment consists of several 
components with different estimated useful lives, those 
components that are significant are depreciated over 
their individual useful lives. Subsequent costs that do 
not qualify the recognition criteria under NAS 16 are 
expensed as and when incurred.

Explanatory Notes
Useful Life
Useful life of property plant and equipment has been 
depreciated under the management’s estimate of 
useful life of the particular class of assets. Assets are 
categorised in different class of assets according to their 
similar nature and characteristics. Useful life estimated 
by the management is as follows.

Asset Class Useful life

Furniture and Fixtures 7

Heavy Equipment 7

Office Equipment 5

Other Assets 5

Tool and Equipment 7

Vehicles 7

Corporate Assets 
SJCL is in the process of construction of two hydropower 
plants. Therefore, only assets that are not directly 
associated with the plants and are put to use has been 
categorised as property plant and equipment. These 
assets are basically assets used by the corporate office. 
Some of the assets within property plat and equipment 
include assets handed over by Chilime Hydropower 
Company Limited and rest of the assets are those that 
have been purchased by the company itself.

Project Assets
Assets directly associated with the hydropower plants 
are considered to be project assets and have been 
recognised as Capital Work in progress discussed 
separately in Note 3.
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2. Capital Work in Progress
Accounting Policies 
Assets in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Depreciation on these 
assets commences when these assets are ready for their intended use.

The expenditure incurred in acquisition and installation of the equipment till the date of commissioning or civil works 
under construction till the date of completion is recognised as Capital work in progress. The value of capital work in 
progress includes stock of equipment lying in store or in transit for the purpose of getting used in such installation or 
construction. The value also includes balances with contractors and suppliers of the systems and equipment for the 
value to be received. Equipment are capitalised upon commissioning and civil works are capitalised upon handing 
over after being capable of being used.

Explanatory Notes

Capital Work in progress 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22
Capital Assets  2,866,791,025  2,610,513,525 
Operation and Maintenance  1,403,751,442  1,124,130,092 
Sanjen Upper 14.8 MW  4,270,542,467  3,734,643,617 
Capital Assets  4,441,283,808  3,812,709,687 
Operation and Maintenance  2,856,868,854  2,234,357,124 
Sanjen Lower 42.5 MW  7,298,152,662  6,047,066,811 
Total Upper & Lower  11,568,695,129  9,781,710,428 

CWIP- Capital Assets 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22
Sanjen Upper - 14.8 MW    
Opening CWIP  2,610,513,523  2,408,381,140 
Addition during the year  258,183,355  204,263,105 
Adjustments  (1,905,855)  (2,130,722)
Closing Balance  2,866,791,023  2,610,513,523 
Sanjen Lower - 42.5 MW
Opening CWIP  3,812,709,687  3,248,442,253 
Addition during the year  629,847,907  565,652,749 
Adjustments  (1,273,785)  (1,385,315)
Closing Balance  4,441,283,809  3,812,709,687 
Total  7,308,074,832  6,423,223,211 

CWIP - Operation & Maintenance 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22
Sanjen Upper - 14.8 MW  
Opening CWIP  1,124,130,092  912,561,945 
Addition during the year  279,621,350  211,568,148 
Closing Balance  1,403,751,442  1,124,130,092 
Sanjen Lower - 42.5 MW
Opening CWIP  2,234,357,124  1,774,191,507 
Addition during the year  622,511,731  460,165,617 
Closing Balance  2,856,868,855  2,234,357,124 
Total  4,260,620,296  3,358,487,216 
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Operation and Maintenance Expenses-SUHEP
CWIP – OM (2022-23) As at 16-July-2022 Addition As at 16-July-202314.8 MW

Salary  87,751,439  14,469,895  102,221,334 
Wages  9,586,291  36,816  9,623,107 
Allowances and Benefits  73,964,220  10,979,291  84,943,511 
Overtime Allowances  9,847,229  1,857,975  11,705,204 
Employee Leave Provision  5,533,903  1,121,279  6,655,183 
Medical Expenses  6,529,141  1,245,319  7,774,460 
Employee Providend Fund  4,743,110  -  4,743,110 
Social Security Fund  6,771,679  2,893,979  9,665,658 
Employee Insurance  2,202,761  82,520  2,285,281 
Staff Welfare  231,184  -  231,184 
Small Tools  43,709  -  43,709 
Other Services  5,080,763  323,564  5,404,327 
Electricity  3,867,423  2,026,264  5,893,687 
Consulting Services  6,273,102  202,150  6,475,252 
Other Repair and Maintenance  2,037,094  67,848  2,104,942 
Fuel Vehicle  13,746,738  1,836,113  15,582,852 
Fuel - Heavy Equipment  2,356,308  121,413  2,477,721 
Mobil and Lubricants  1,165,777  162,682  1,328,459 
Vehicle Repairs and Maintenance  17,304,378  1,842,134  19,146,512 
Repair Equipment  5,491,918  265,594  5,757,512 
Civil Repair and Maintenance  4,792,444  127,148  4,919,591 
Transmission Repair and Maintenance  1,108,837  -  1,108,837 
Rent  767,101  -  767,101 
Insurance  2,081,674  163,435  2,245,109 
Licence Fee  4,432,829  285,660  4,718,489 
Land & Property Tax  328,290  -  328,290 
Postage and Telegram  101,000  -  101,000 
Telephone and Internet  2,139,343  102,205  2,241,548 
Training  3,711,543  96,000  3,807,543 
Printing and Stationery  3,983,774  155,603  4,139,377 
Books and Periodicals  137,428  16,500  153,928 
Advertisements  3,749,624  199,243  3,948,867 
Guest Entertainment  2,525,348  187,708  2,713,056 
Annual Day Events and Celebration  94,392  81,085  175,477 
Donation  2,250,500  -  2,250,500 
Misc Expenses  5,381,152  483,240  5,864,392 
Transport  601,634  -  601,634 
Meeting Expenses  1,200  -  1,200 
Travel  5,147,530  442,575  5,590,105 
Legal Fee  99,445  -  99,445 
Social and Local Development  22,730,510  210,053  22,940,563 
Compensations  202,967  8,910  211,877 
Interest - Finance Cost EPF  724,207,371  228,188,497  952,395,868 
Interest - Finance Cost Others  13,892,530  5,207,396  19,099,926 
Bank Charges  4,216,569  1,284,748  5,501,316 
Depreciation  50,916,888  1,905,855  52,822,743 
Exchange Loss  -  940,653  940,653 
Total  1,124,130,092  279,621,350  1,403,751,442 
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CWIP – OM (2021-22)  As at 15-July-2021 Addition As at 16-July-202214.8 MW
Salary 75,165,379 12,586,061 87,751,439
Wages 9,308,625 277,666 9,586,291
Allowances and Benefits 64,957,409 9,006,811 73,964,220
Overtime Allowances 8,163,574 1,683,655 9,847,229
Employee Leave Provision 4,470,912 1,062,992 5,533,903
Medical Expenses 5,481,201 1,047,940 6,529,141
Employee Providend Fund 4,743,110  - 4,743,110
Social Security Fund 4,254,467 2,517,212 6,771,679
Employee Insurance 2,126,161 76,600 2,202,761
Staff Welfare 231,184  - 231,184
Small Tools 43,709 43,709
Other Services 4,670,636 410,127 5,080,763
Electricity 3,410,482 456,941 3,867,423
Consulting Services 6,083,377 189,725 6,273,102
Other Reaiprs 1,931,803 105,291 2,037,094
Fuel 12,604,045 1,142,694 13,746,738
Fuel - Heavy Equipment 1,635,922 720,387 2,356,308
Mobil and Lubricants 1,005,984 159,793 1,165,777
Vehicle Repairs and Maintenance 15,221,736 2,082,642 17,304,378
Repair Equipment 4,688,702 803,216 5,491,918
Civil Repair and Maintenance 4,635,650 156,793 4,792,444
Transmission Repair and Maintenance 1,108,837  - 1,108,837
Rent 767,101  - 767,101
Insurance 1,960,367 121,307 2,081,674
Licence Fee 3,998,952 433,877 4,432,829
Land & Property Tax 243,590 84,700 328,290
Postage and Telegram 101,000  - 101,000
Telephone and Internet 2,001,645 137,698 2,139,343
Training 1,952,418 1,759,125 3,711,543
Printing and Stationery 3,773,705 210,069 3,983,774
Books and Periodicals 137,428  - 137,428
Advertisements 3,564,748 184,877 3,749,624
Guest Entertainment 2,288,569 236,779 2,525,348
Annual Day Events and Celebration 75,272 19,120 94,392
Donation 2,250,500  - 2,250,500
Misc Expenses 4,614,325 766,826 5,381,152
Transport 601,634  - 601,634
Meeting Expenses 1,200  - 1,200
Travel 4,810,755 336,775 5,147,530
Legal Fee 99,445 99,445
Social and Local Development 20,039,205 2,691,304 22,730,510
Compensations 202,967  - 202,967
Interest - Finance Cost EPF 562,771,644 161,435,727 724,207,371
Interest - Finance Cost CIT 8,385,640 5,506,890 13,892,530
Bank Charges 3,333,915 882,653 4,216,569
Depreciation 48,786,167 2,130,722 50,916,888
Total 912,561,945 211,568,148 1,124,130,092
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Operation and Maintenance Expenses-42.5 MW
2022-23

As at 16-July-2022 Addition As at 16-July-2023
42.5 MW

Salary  164,857,866  25,475,880  190,333,745 
Wages  14,271,147  243,201  14,514,348 
Allowances and Benefits  124,421,825  17,847,645  142,269,470 
Overtime Allowances  15,793,748  2,654,728  18,448,476 
Employee Leave Provision  11,898,649  1,964,430  13,863,079 
Medical Expenses  11,801,894  2,125,717  13,927,611 
Employee Providend Fund  8,789,407  78,642  8,868,049 
Social Security Fund  12,736,366  4,937,892  17,674,258 
Employee Insurance  3,726,916  138,543  3,865,459 
Employee Welfare  515,648  -  515,648 
NEA Employee Overhead  4,618,702  786,420  5,405,122 
Other Services  6,046,047  754,983  6,801,029 
Consulting Services  6,361,237  284,075  6,645,312 
Electricity  6,763,252  919,614  7,682,866 
Other Repair Maintenance  2,408,629  117,306  2,525,935 
Fuel Vehicle  31,320,026  4,359,993  35,680,019 
Fuel - Heavy Equipment  6,938,390  681,864  7,620,253 
Mobil and Lubricants  1,665,684  170,743  1,836,427 
Vehicle Repairs and Maintenance  26,775,508  2,884,003  29,659,511 
Repair Equipment  7,138,154  509,783  7,647,937 
Civil Repair and Maintenance  9,277,340  121,417  9,398,758 
Rent  1,202,066  -  1,202,066 
Insurance  5,149,788  325,934  5,475,722 
Licence Fee  6,334,283  632,051  6,966,334 
Land & Proparty Tax  171,505  -  171,505 
Postage and Telegram  193,765  -  193,765 
Telephone and Internet  4,158,650  327,585  4,486,235 
Land Lease  9,356,082  60,000  9,416,082 
Training  1,174,882  302,550  1,477,432 
Printing and Stationery  5,128,597  248,162  5,376,759 
Books and Periodicals  231,055  7,500  238,555 
Advertisements  6,637,037  176,104  6,813,141 
Guest Entertainment  2,925,835  146,325  3,072,160 
Examination expenses  6,825  -  6,825 
Misc Expenses  8,546,735  524,570  9,071,305 
Travel  6,183,546  501,675  6,685,221 
Transport  1,841,775  -  1,841,775 
Meeting Expenses  10,706  -  10,706 
Feasibility Study  5,304,193  -  5,304,193 
Interest - Finance Cost - EPF  1,509,607,677  532,439,827  2,042,047,504 
Interest - Finance Cost Others  30,990,490  12,150,590  43,141,080 
Interest - Finance Cost - Lease  1,502,312  1,473,709  2,976,020 
Service Fee  2,424,534  -  2,424,534 
Annual Day Events and Celebrations  235,362  91,995  327,357 
Bank Charges  8,202,667  2,514,971  10,717,638 
Social and Local Development  49,538,948  2,237,520  51,776,468 
Compensations  11,318  -  11,318 
Legal Expenses  787,445  -  787,445 
Donation  360,850  20,000  380,850 
Public Hearing  429,670  -  429,670 
Depreciation  87,343,921  1,273,785  88,617,706 
Adjustments  238,169  -  238,169 
Total  2,234,357,124  622,511,731  2,856,868,854 
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Operation & Maintenance 42.5 MW
2021-22

 As at 15-July-2021 Addition As at 16-July-2022
42.5 MW

Salary 143,237,384 21,620,482 164,857,866
Wages 14,125,155 145,992 14,271,147
Allowances and Benefits 111,178,909 13,242,916 124,421,825
Overtime Allowances 13,517,924 2,275,824 15,793,748
Employee Leave Provision 9,730,161 2,168,488 11,898,649
Medical Expenses 9,999,534 1,802,360 11,801,894
Employee Providend Fund 8,721,487 67,920 8,789,407
Social Security Fund 8,548,109 4,188,256 12,736,366
Employee Insurance 3,582,852 144,064 3,726,916
Employee Welfare 515,648  - 515,648
NEA Employee Overhead 3,939,502 679,200 4,618,702
Other Services 5,174,673 871,374 6,046,047
Consulting Services 6,166,237 195,000 6,361,237
Electricity 5,931,994 831,258 6,763,252
Other Repair Maintenance 2,244,949 163,681 2,408,629
Fuel Vehicle 28,063,378 3,256,647 31,320,026
Fuel - Heavy Equipment 4,824,157 2,114,233 6,938,390
Mobil and Lubricants 1,540,935 124,749 1,665,684
Vehicle Repairs and Maintenance 23,737,637 3,037,871 26,775,508
Repair Equipment 5,983,634 1,154,520 7,138,154
Civil Repair and Maintenance 9,004,867 272,474 9,277,340
Rent 1,202,066  - 1,202,066
Insurance 4,831,078 318,710 5,149,788
Licence Fee 5,559,877 774,406 6,334,283
Land & Proparty Tax 171505  - 171,505
Postage and Telegram 193,765  - 193,765
Telephone and Internet 3,849,110 309,540 4,158,650
Land Lease 9,356,082  - 9,356,082
Training 1,136,152 38,730 1,174,882
Printing and Stationery 4,925,594 203,003 5,128,597
Books and Periodicals 231,055  - 231,055
Advertisements 6,435,128 201,909 6,637,037
Guest Entertainment 2,645,731 280,104 2,925,835
Examination expenses 6,825  - 6,825
Misc Expenses 7,727,390 819,345 8,546,735
Travel 5,595,746 587,800 6,183,546
Transport 1,841,775  - 1,841,775
Meeting Expenses 10,706  - 10,706
Feasibility Study 5,304,193  - 5,304,193
Interest - Finance Cost - EPF 1,132,924,313 376,683,364 1,509,607,677
Interest - Finance Cost - CIT 18,141,079 12,849,411 30,990,490
Interest - Finance Cost - Lease  - 1,502,312 1,502,312
Service Fee 2,424,534  - 2,424,534
Annual Day Events and Celebrations 190,748 44,614 235,362
Bank Charges 6,268,819 1,933,848 8,202,667
Social and Local Development 45,663,049 3,875,899 49,538,948
Compensations 11,318  - 11,318
Legal Expenses 787,445  - 787,445
Donation 360,850  - 360,850
Public Hearing 429,670  - 429,670
Depreciation 85,958,606 1,385,315 87,343,921
Adjustments 238,169  - 238,169
Total 1,774,191,507 460,165,617 2,234,357,124
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Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) 
CWIP for each of the project, comprise of Capital Asset 
portion and Operation and Maintenance Portion.

Capital Assets under CWIP
These include assets pertaining to the project construction 
and installation. These assets have bee classified as those 
ready to use and those that are not ready to use. Ready to 
use assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life. 
Those that are not ready to use will be depreciated when they 
become ready to use. The depreciation pertaining to ready 
to use has been charged to the operation and maintenance 
additions under CWIP. 

Operation and Maintenance under CWIP
Expenses directly attributable to the individual projects 
are recognised within the addition to the CWIP under 
Operation and Maintenance Expenses. These also 
include borrowing costs on the qualifying assets as well. 
Useful life of the assets will be determined when the 
plants are ready to use.

3 Term Deposits
Accounting Policies 
These are deposits and margins with various entities 
and authorities, are made by the company as the part of 
the operational or regulatory requirements.

Explanatory Notes

Term Deposits 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

Everest Bank Ltd.- For bank 
guarantee lien

- - 

Total - - 

4 Inventory
Accounting Policies 
Inventories are carried at the lower of net realisable value 
or cost. Cost comprises of all costs of purchase, cost 
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost 
is measured using first in first out method. Net realisable 
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course 
of business less the estimated cost of completion and 
the necessary estimated expenses. 

Explanatory Notes

Inventory 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

Corporate Office Store  29,048,280.87 10,848,605

Project Store 29,048,280.87 10,848,605

5 Advance Payments, Prepayments and Deposits
Accounting Policies 
These assets are subject annual review for any indication 
of impairment.

Explanatory Notes
Advances to contractors and consultants
Advances to contractors and consultants pertain to the 
contractual payments to the contractors and consultants 
and will be settled when the contracted work is completed 

and settled.

Advances to Contractors and 
Consultants 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

ECI-BGCCPL JV - Lot 2 Upper 1,354,983 6 

SEW Tundi JV - Lot 2 Lower 65,201,093 22,515,015 

Dongfang Electric International 
Corp - Lot 3 Upper & Lower 11,505,491 18,694,263 

Nepal Hydro and Electric 
Limited - Lot 4 Upper & Lower - 6,985,049 

Mudvari and Joshi Construction 
Lot 5 -  - 

Trenji Nirman Sewa -  - 

Nepalese Sarmila J/V -  - 

Translation Difference on 
Advances  -  3,458,422 

Total 78,061,566 51,652,755

6 Deposits and Margins
These are deposits and margins with various entities 
and authorities, are made by the company as the part of 
the operational or regulatory requirements.
Deposits and Margins 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

LC Margin – HBL 1,018,335 4,515,672 

PPA Security Deposit - - 

Nepal Telecom 64,500 64,500 

Margin Deposit HBL(Chilime 
Hydropower Company Limited)

1,275,000 1,275,000 

Police Petrol Pump Deposit 200,000 200,000 

Deposit for Custom Clearance - - 

Guarantee Margin HBL(Exim Code) 30,000 30,000 

Guarantee Margin Laxmi Bank - 888,000.00 

Total 2,587,835 6,973,172 

7 Prepayments
Instances where the payments have been made and 
where the expenses pertain to the future period(s) 
are recognised as prepayments. These amounts are 
charged to statement of profit or loss in the period to 
which they relate with.

Prepayment 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

Prepaid Insurance 209,518 225,971 

Total 209,518 225,971 

8 Taxes
Accounting Policies 
Current Taxes
SJCL applies NAS 12 Income Taxes in accounting for taxes 
on income. Income tax payable on taxable profits (Current 
Tax) is recognised as an expense in the period in which the 
profits arise. Withholding taxes are also treated as income 
taxes. Income tax recoverable on tax allowable losses is 
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recognised as a current tax asset only to the extent that it 
is regarded as recoverable by offset against taxable profits 
arising in the current or prior period. Current tax is measured 
using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the statement of financial position 
date. Current tax assets and liabilities have been netted 
off, as there is a legal right to settle those amounts on net 
basis. The net current tax asset / liability has been reported 
separately in the statement of financial position.

Deferred Taxes
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, 
on temporary differences arising from the differences 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial 
statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates 
and legislation enacted or substantively enacted by the 
statement of financial position date, which are expected 
to apply when the deferred tax asset is realised or the 
deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are only offset when there is both a legal right 
to set-off and an intention to settle on a net basis. 

8.1 Current Tax Assets and Liabilities
Explanatory Notes

Current Tax Assets 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

Advance Taxes 13,933,962 12,217,494 

13,933,962 12,217,494
Current Tax Assets include withholding tax deducted 
by other entities on behalf of the company, such as by 
the banks on the deposit interests. Since there is no 
incidence of income taxes, company has not paid any 
income taxes.

8.2 Income Tax Expenses
The company is yet to come under operation and earn 
revenue. Therefore, there is no taxable income of the 
company. Further under the applicable income tax laws 
company is exempt to pay income taxes for the first 10 
years of operation after its operation. The company will 
be subject to 50% of the applicable corporate tax rate 
for the next 5 years after the completion of 10 years 
exemption period. The company has made provision 
for income tax of Rs 2,860,780 at the rate of 25% on 
interest income amounting to Rs 11,443,118.

8.3 Deferred Taxes
Tax loss can be carried forward for 7 years from the 
year of incurrence. Since there is 10 years of income tax 
exemption available to the company it is not likely that any 
deferred tax incidence will be adjusted in the foreseeable 
future.

9 Term Deposits 
These term deposits are classified as held to maturity 
and recognised at amortised cost using effective interest 
rate. Since there are no additional costs involved the 
intrinsic interest on these instruments are considered 
to be the effective interest rate and they cover for the 
default risk and tie value of money. 

The term deposit with Everest bank limited as the lien for 
the purpose of issuance of guarantee has been classified 
as non-current. All the other term deposits have maturity 
period of less than one year. These deposit bear 
interests. The commercial banks are regulated by the 
central bank and the risks associated with these deposits 
are considered not to be significant. Company has made 
term deposits with commercial banks as under. 

Term Deposits 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

Kumari Bank Limited  -  - 

Himalayan Bank Limited (Lien 
against Custom guarantee)

270,000 270,000 

Laxmi Bank Limited  -  - 

Mega Bank Limited  -  - 

Siddhartha Bank Limited  -  - 

Century Bank Limited  -  - 

Sanima Bank Limited  -  - 

Total 270,000 270,000

10 Other Advances
Explanatory Notes
These financial assets are classified as loans and 
receivables and recognised at amortised cost using 
effective interest rate. These advances do not bear any 
interest and are considered to be settled within normal 
course of operation. The company considers that there is 
nominal risk of default on these advances. The company 
considers that the cost of these assets are present the 
amortised costs.

Other Advances 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

Staff Advances 170,000  35,000 

Bhajuratna Engineering 48,000  48,000 

Advance to Rasuwa DAO - 
for Land

 1,600,391  1,600,391 

NRB Margin Receivables 
HBL

 7,374,617  2,247,917 

Other Advances  5,000  - 

Other Receivables 
(Contractors+Others)

 13,903,431  2,673,514 

Achyut Singh Basnet  859,600  859,600 

NEA Dhunche Distribution 
Center

 1,965,234  - 

Kathmandu Upatyaka 
Khanepani Limited

 10,292  - 

Total  25,936,565  7,464,422 
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11 Financial Instruments
Accounting Policies 
The company recognises financial instruments when it 
becomes a party to the terms of the contract, which is 
the trade date or the settlement date. SJCL applies NAS 
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 
the recognition, classification and measurement, and de-
recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, the 
impairment of financial assets, and hedge accounting. 

Classification and measurement
Financial assets are classified under four categories as 
required by NAS 39, namely,

S.N NAS 39 classification - 
Financial Assets

Subsequent 
measurement

1 Fair Value through Profit 
or Loss

At Fair Value – through 
P&L

2 Held to Maturity At Amortised cost using 
effective interest rate

3 Loans & Receivables At Amortised cost using 
effective interest rate

4 Available for Sale At Fair Value – through 
Equity

Financial Liabilities are classified under two categories 
as required by NAS 39, namely,

S.N NAS 39 classification - 
Financial Liabilities

Subsequent 
measurement

1 Fair Value through 
Profit or Loss

At Fair Value – 
through P&L

2 Other Financial 
Liabilities

At Amortised cost 
using effective 
interest rate

At initial recognition, the company measures financial 
instruments (financial assets and liabilities) at its fair 
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value 
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

De-recognition
The company derecognises a financial asset, or a 
portion of a financial asset, from its balance sheet where 
the contractual rights to cash flows from the asset have 
expired, or have been transferred, usually by sale, and 
with them either substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset or significant risks and rewards, along with the 
unconditional ability to sell or pledge the asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability 
has been settled, has expired or has been extinguished.

11 Financial Assets
Financial asset is any asset that is:
(a) 	 Cash
(b) 	 An equity instrument of another entity

(c)  A Contractual Right:
i. 	 To receive cash or another financial asset from 

another entity; or
ii. 	 To exchange financial assets or financial 

liabilities with another entity under conditions that 
are potentially favourable to the entity; or

(d)	 A contract that will or may be settled in the 
entity's own equity instruments and is:

i. 	 A non-derivative for which the entity is or may 
be obliged to receive a variable number of the 
entity's own equity instruments; or

ii. 	 A derivative that will or may be settled other than 
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or 
another financial asset for a fixed number of the 
entity's own equity instruments. 

11.1.1 Bank Balances 
These financial assets are classified as Bank balances. 
The call accounts are interest bearing and current 
accounts are non-interest bearing. The company 
considered that there are nominal risks associated with 
these instruments.

S.N  Particulars 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

1 Everest Bank Limited 132,193 6,451,443 

2 Himalayan Bank Limited 176,598  10,058,224 

2 Nepal Bank Limited - 
Dhunche 

93,044  92,944 

3 Mega Bank New Account 687,203 

3 Siddhartha Bank Limited 1,479,762  752,035 

4 Century Bank Limited 900,656  496,186 

5 Prabhu Bank Limited 14,155  14,138 

5 Kumari Bank Limited 431,906  13,557,136 

6 Sanima Bank Limited 1,425,884  6,633,300 

6 Laxmi Bank Limited 3,322,494  21,257,095 

7 NMB Bank Limited 14,907  55,184,103 

Total 8,678,802 114,496,603 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
These bank balances also represent the cash and 
cash equivalents of the company. These can be readily 
converted into cash with nominal risk.

12 Share Capital
Accounting Policies 
Equity Instruments are:
Any contract that evidences a residual interest in the 
assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities 
meeting both of the following condition
(i) 	 No contractual obligation to deliver cash / another 

financial instrument
(ii)	 Will or may be settled in the company’s own equity 
SJCL applies NAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, 
to determine whether funding is either a financial liability 
(debt) or equity. Issued financial instruments or their 
components are classified as liabilities if the contractual 
arrangement results in the company having a present 
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obligation to either deliver cash or another financial asset, 
or a variable number of equity shares, to the holder of 
the instrument. If this is not the case, the instrument is 
generally an equity instrument and the proceeds included 
in equity, net of transaction costs. 

Dividends and other returns to equity holders are 
recognised when paid or declared by the members at 
the AGM and treated as a deduction from equity. 

Where issued financial instruments contain both liability 
and equity components, these are accounted for 
separately. The fair value of the debt is estimated first 
and the balance of the proceeds is included within equity. 

Explanatory Notes.

16-Jul-23 Number of 
Shares

Value per 
share

Capital in 
Value

Authorised 
capital 37,500,000 NPR100 3,750,000,000 

Issued capital 36,500,000 NPR100 3,650,000,000 

Paid up capital 36,500,000 NPR100 3,650,000,000 

16-Jul-22 Number of 
Shares

Value per 
share

Capital in 
Value

Authorised 
capital 37,500,000 NPR100 3,750,000,000 

Issued capital 36,500,000 NPR100 3,650,000,000 

Paid up capital 32,850,000 NPR100 3,285,000,000 

Share Capital 
Reconciliation 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

Opening Share Capital 3,285,000,000 3,285,000,000

Capital Issued during the 
period 365,000,000 -

Allotment Adjustments -

Total 3,650,000,000 3,285,000,000

Percentage Holding in Paid 
Up Share Capital 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

Chilime Hydropower 
Company Limited 39.36% 43.73%

Nepal Electricity Authority 10.36% 11.51%

Various Municipalities – 
Rasuwa District 1.28% 1.42%

General Public 15.00% 16.67%

Depositors of EPF 19.50% 21.67%

Project Effected Local 10.00% 0.00%

Employees of Promoter 
Companies 3.50% 3.89%

Employees of EPF 1.00% 1.11%

Total 100.00% 100.00%

Percentage Holding in Paid 
Up Share Capital 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

Chilime Hydropower 
Company Limited 39.36% 43.73%

Nepal Electricity Authority 10.36% 11.51%

Various Municipalities – 
Rasuwa District 1.28% 1.42%

General Public 15.00% 16.67%

Depositors of EPF 19.50% 21.67%

Project Effected Local 10.00% 0.00%

Employees of Promoter 
Companies 3.50% 3.89%

Employees of EPF 1.00% 1.11%

Total 100.00% 100.00%

Shareholding Structure as 
per MOA

16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

Chilime Hydropower 
Company Limited

39.36% 43.73%

Nepal Electricity Authority 10.36% 11.51%

Various Municipalities – 
Rasuwa District

1.28% 1.42%

General Public 15.00% 15.00%

Depositors of EPF 19.50% 19.50%

Project Effected Local 10.00% 10.00%

Employees of Promoter 
Companies

3.50% 3.50%

Employees of EPF 1.00% 1.00%

Total 100.00% 100.00%

13 Reserves
Explanatory Notes

Reserves 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

Capital Premium -

Retained Earning (240,729,647) (213,662,650)
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Revaluation Reserve

Deferred Tax Reserve 

Total (240,729,647) (213,662,650)

Share (Capital) Premium
Any premium collected on issue of shares to the public 
is credited to this reserve. This reserve is utilised only for 
issue of the bonus share capital.

Retained Earning
Earning made during the current and previous years not 
distributed has been credited to this reserve.

Explanatory Notes
Share issue expenses amounting to NRs. 1,423,043 has 
also been charged to Retained earning for the period.
Furthermore, Foreign Exchange Loss on Advances to 
Contractor & Consultant amounting to Nrs 3,458,422 of 
F.Y. 2078/79 has been adjusted in Retained Earning in this 
F.Y. 2079/80.

Right of Use Assets, Finance Cost & Depreciation 
overbooked by Nrs 529,795.95, 214,580.31 & 27,519.67 
respectively in F.Y. 2078/79 & Rent Expenses of Rs 
60,000 underbooked in F.Y. 2078/79 which net amount 
of Rs 710,592 has been adjusted in Retained Earning 
through Prior Period Expenses in F.Y. 2079/80.

Retained Earning 16-Jul-23

Opening Retained Earning (213,662,650)

Profit/Loss During the Year (22,896,034)

Share Issue Expenses (1,423,043)

Opening Adjustment of Lease 
Accounting 

710,502 

Opening Adjustment of Foreign 
Exchange Loss

(3,458,422)

Total (240,729,647)

Revaluation Reserve
This is the reserve created to include any gain on 
revaluation of property plant and equipment.

Deferred Tax Reserve
It is company’s policy to appropriate the equivalent 
portion of the deferred tax assets when a net deferred 
tax asset arises. In event where deferred tax liability 
arises such amounts are reclassified within the equity to 
retained earnings.

14 Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is any liability that is: 
(a)	 Contractual obligation:
i. 	 To deliver cash or another financial asset to another 

entity; or 
ii.	 To exchange financial assets or financial liabilities 

with another entity under conditions that are 
potentially unfavourable to the entity; or 

(b)	 A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s 

own equity instruments and is: 
i. 	 A non-derivative for which the entity is or may be 

obliged to deliver a variable number of the entity’s 
own equity instruments; or 

ii.  	 A derivative that will or may be settled other than by 
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another 
financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own 
equity instruments. 

14.1.1 Borrowings
The loans and borrowings include amount received from 
Employee Provident Fund and Citizen Investment Trust. 
These borrowings have been classified as financial 
liabilities carried at amortised cost using effective interest 
rate. 

Discounting: The additional incremental costs related to 
loans and borrowings includes commission paid during 
the sanction of loans and borrowings. .25% Commission 
was charged by EPF which amounts to Rs.12.50 lakhs. 
Management considers the impact as immaterial and 
therefore the inherent interest on these instruments 
represent the effective interest. Since these instruments 
are held solely for the purpose of principal and interest 
the effective interest rate is assumed to cover for the 
time value of money, i.e. EIR exactly discounts the 
financial instruments therefore no discounting has been 
considered.

Borrowings

 Non-Current Portion 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

From Employee Provident 
Fund

4,670,133,000 4,252,400,000 

Capitalised Interest – EPF 3,012,526,706 2,251,898,382 

Sub Total 7,682,659,706 6,504,298,382 

Current Portion 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

Chilime Hydropower 
Company Limited

240,000,000 

Sub Total 240,000,000 - 

Total 7,922,659,706 6,504,298,382 

14.1.2 Other Financial Liabilities and Payables

Other Liabilities and Payables

16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

ECI-BGCCPL J/V 100,000 - 

S.E.W. Tundi J/V 22,592,992 - 

Dongfang Electric 
International 9,214,631 - 

Nepal Hydro & Electrci 
Limited 51,969,577 - 
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Mudvary & Joshi 
Construction P LTD 12,664,420 - 

Chilime Engineering & 
Services Company Limited 4,149,906 - 

Tenji Nirman Sewa 1,034,355 - 

NEA Engineering 300,000 - 

Payable to Employees 1,760,382 92,833 

Payable to Contractors 
and Consultants 450,749 48,937,432 

 NEA - Overhead 1,291,258 5,801,857 

Chilime Jalavidhyut 
Company Limited 3,246,499 - 

Vat Payable 5,534,049 3,138,612 

TDS Payable 6,378,131 2,644,847 

Lease Liabilities 16,097,369 21,383,612 

Other Liabilities and 
Payables 456,914 24,305 

P & B Associates 75,263 69,688 

S D & Associates CA 402,150 393,413 

Employee Provident Fund - 55,062,000 

Total 137,718,645 137,548,598 

14.1.3 Other Non-Current Liabilities

Deposit Received from 
Contractors 16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

Deposit Received from 
Contractors 231,217,552 252,666,208 

Translation Difference 
on Retention 14,415,546 18,787,518 

Total 245,633,098 271,453,726 

14.2 Fair Value Measurements of Financial Instruments
In accordance with NFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, 
the Company categorises financial instruments carried 
on the reporting sheet at fair value using a three-
level hierarchy. Financial instruments categorised 
as Level 1 are valued using quoted market prices 
and therefore there is minimal judgement applied 
in determining fair value. However, the fair value of 
financial instruments categorised as Level 2 and, 
in particular, Level 3 is determined using valuation 
techniques including discounted cash flow analysis and 
other valuation models. In addition, in line with market 
practice, the company applies credit, debit and funding 
valuation adjustments in determining the fair value 
of its uncollateralised assets. A description of these 

adjustments is set out as under. 

These valuation techniques involve management 
judgement and estimates the extent of which depends 
on the complexity of the instrument and the availability of 
market observable information. Valuation techniques for 
Level 2 financial instruments use inputs that are based 
on observable market data. Level 3 financial instruments 
are those where at least one input, which could have a 
significant effect on the instrument’s valuation, is not based 
on observable market data. Determining the appropriate 
assumptions to be used for Level 3 financial instruments 
requires significant management judgement. Further 
details of the company’s Level 3 financial instruments 
and the sensitivity of their valuation including the effect of 
applying reasonably possible alternative assumptions in 
determining their fair value are set out wherever required. 

Valuation of financial assets and liabilities 
Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which 
fair values are disclosed have been classified into 
three levels according to the quality and reliability of 
information used to determine the fair values. 

Level 1 - Level 1 fair value measurements are those 
derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as 
level 1 predominantly comprise equity shares, treasury 
bills and other government securities. 

Level 2 - Level 2 valuations are those where quoted 
market prices are not available, for example where the 
instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to 
be active or valuation techniques are used to determine 
fair value and where these techniques use inputs that are 
based significantly on observable market data. Examples 
of such financial instruments include most over-the-
counter derivatives, financial institution issued securities, 
certificates of deposit and certain asset-backed securities. 
Level 3 - Level 3 portfolios are those where at least 
one input, which could have a significant effect on the 
instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable market 
data. These are valued using various valuation techniques 
that require significant management judgement in 
determining appropriate assumptions, including earnings 
multiples and estimated future cash flows. 

14.2.1 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities Carried at Fair Value
There are no financial assets or financial liabilities 
carried at fair value.

14.2.2 Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Carried at 
Amortised Costs
Assets and liabilities carried at amortised costs using 
effective interest rate as below, do not have the active 
market quoted price nor they have observable similar 
value inputs. Management considers that the cost and /  
recognised value of these instruments represents the fair 
value and these assets and liabilities will be recovered 
or settled at the recognised amount without significant 
risk in normal course of the business. 
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Assets and Liabilities 2022-23 Carrying 
amount Fair Value Quoted 

prices
Observable 

Inputs
Unobservable 

inputs
Assets (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Term Deposit - non current 270,000 270,000 - - 270,000
Term Deposits with Banks – current - - - - -
Other Advances 25,936,565 25,936,565 - - 25,936,565
Bank Balances Call and Current 8,678,802 8,678,802 - - 8,678,802
Liabilities - -
Loans and Borrowings 7,682,659,706 7,682,659,706 - - 7,682,659,706
Other Liabilities and Payables 137,718,645 137,718,645 - - 137,718,645
Assets and Liabilities 21-22
Term Deposit - non current 270,000 270,000 - - 270,000
Term Deposits with Banks – current - - - - -
Other Advances 7,464,422 7,464,422 - - 7,464,422
Bank Balances Call and Current 114,496,603 114,496,603 - - 114,496,603
Liabilities - -
Loans and Borrowings 6,504,298,382 6,504,298,382 - - 6,504,298,382
Other Liabilities and Payables 137,548,597 137,548,597 - - 137,548,597

14.2.3 Provisions
16-Jul-23 16-Jul-22

Employee Leave Provision  10,575,927.08  7,281,453.68 

Provision for Tax  2,860,779.50  - 

Other Provision  -  - 

Total 13,436,706.58  7,281,453.68 

Leave provision of Employees are calculated for the year 
and expenses of leave during the year are recognized 
through Income Statement. However no acturial 
valuation was done for long term liabilities.
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Note 15 Revenue
Accounting Policies 
The company applies NAS 18 for recognition of 
revenue. Revenue includes income from sale of goods, 
for providing services, interest, royalty and dividends. 
Revenue is recognised when right to receive is 
established, amount quantified and it is almost certain 
that the amount(s) is received or will be received.

Explanatory Notes

NRs.
2022-23 2021-22

Revenue from Contract with 
Customers

- -

Dividend Income - -
Other income  1,012,230 755,273

Total 1,012,230 755,273

15.1 Revenue from Contract with Customers
NRs.

2022-23 2021-22
Rental income -
Tender sales

Total  -  - 

15.2 Finance Income
NRs.

2022-23 2021-22
Finance Income  11,443,118 -
Total  11,443,118 -

Interest on Deposits during the year amounting to 
NRs. 11,443,118.01 is interest on temporary deposit of 
proceeds from issue of Share to local public.

15.3 Other Income
2022-23 2021-22

Other Income  997,230  750,273 
Misc Income  - 
Tender Sales  15,000  5,000 

Total  1,012,230  755,273 

16 Employee Benefit
Accounting Policies 
Company applies NAS 19 Employee benefits for 
accounting most of the components of staff costs.

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, allowances, socials security expenses, 
performance bonuses as provided in the law and other 
employee related expenses are recognised over the 
period in which the employees provide services to which 
the payments relate. 

Post-retirement benefits - Defined Contribution 
Scheme

SJCL provides contribution to Social Security Fund (SSF) 
as post-retirement benefits under defined contribution 
scheme. A certain percentage of basic salary is paid into the 
scheme on monthly basis. SJCL recognises contributions 
due in respect of the accounting period to profit and loss. 
Any contributions unpaid at the reporting date are included 
as a liability.

Post-retirement benefits - Defined Benefit Schemes
The company operates gratuity, accumulated annual leave 
payments and sick leave payments as post-retirement 
benefits as defined benefit schemes. Since only two 
employees are eligible for such benefits under cost benefit 
consideration independent actuarial assessment of post-
employment liability is not undertaken. However, liabilities 
are valued and recognised at each reporting date on the full 
obligation basis as if such benefits payable to employees if 
the employees retired on the reporting date. 

Explanatory Notes
16.1 Employment Benefit Costs

Staff Expenses – Corporate NRs.
Current Employee Benefits 2022-23 2021-22
Salary  7,500,401 6,369,417
Wages  39,150 48,060
Allowances and Benefits  6,550,384 5,446,967
Overtime Allowances  1,110,226 1,075,013
Employee leave  585,251 528,811
Employee Medical  607,044 479,218
Employee Insurance  109,578 27,800
Training  365,816 
Capacity Development 
exposures 

 14,690 

Post-Employment Benefits
Defined Contribution Plan 
Expenses – EPF

 73,271 64,421

Defined Contribution Plan 
Expenses -Social Security Fund

 1,148,837 967,036

Defined Benefit Plan 
Expenses

Total 18,104,649 15,006,743

Staff Expenses – 14.8 MW NRs.

Current Employee 
Benefits

2022-23 2021-22

Salary  14,469,895 12,586,061

Wages  36,816 277,666

Allowances and Benefits  10,979,291 9,006,811

Overtime Allowances  1,857,975 1,683,655

Employee Leave 
Provision

 1,121,279 1,062,992

Medical Expenses  1,245,319 1,047,940
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Employee Insurance  82,520 76,600

Training  96,000 1,759,925

Staff Welfare 0

Post Employment 
Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan 
Expenses - EPF

0

Defined Contribution Plan 
Expenses -Social Security 
Fund

 2,893,979 2,517,212

Total 32,783,074 30,018,862

Staff Expenses – 42.5 MW NRs.
Current Employee 

Benefits
2022-23 2021-22

Salary  25,475,880 21,620,482
Wages  243,201 145,992
Allowances and Benefits  17,847,645 13,242,916
Overtime Allowances  2,654,728 2,275,824
Employee Leave 
Provision

 1,964,430 2,168,488

Medical Expenses  2,125,717 1,802,360
Employee Insurance  138,543 144,064
NEA Employee Overhead  786,420 679,200
Training  302,550 38,730
Staff Welfare
Post-Employment 
Benefits
Defined Contribution 
Plan Expenses - EPF

 78,642 67,920

Defined Contribution 
Plan Expenses -Social 
Security Fund

 4,937,892 4,188,256

Total 56,555,647 46,374,232
Employee benefits costs is charged for the services 
rendered during the period and for the allowances 
and benefits pertaining to the period during which 
such services are rendered and the employee related 
expenses incurred for such periods.

Employee benefit costs for Corporate Staff is charged 
directly to profit or loss and those employee costs pertaining 
or directly attributable to the projects have been charged to 
the capital work in progress of the individual projects within 
operation and maintenance costs.

16.2 Post-Employment Benefits
16.2.1 Defined Contribution Plan
Employees are entitled to the Social Security scheme 
(SSF) contribution of 20% of their salaries under 
defined contribution plan. These amounts are deposited 
to Social Security Fund (SSF). Once deposited the 
company is absolved from further obligations. Details of 

the payments made under the plan are disclosed in Note 
10.1.

16.2.2 Defined Benefit Plan
The company does not have any employees who qualify 
for defined benefit payments. The entire workforce 
comprises of the contracted staffs with four staff being 
deputed under secondment from Nepal Electricity 
Authority (NEA). The four staff seconded from NEA will 
receive the defined benefits under NEA by laws from 
NEA for which SJCL pays special overhead to NEA. 
Therefore, no actuarial measurement of defined benefit 
obligation is calculated.

17 Depreciation and Amortisations
The depreciation and amortisation pertaining to the 
corporate assets has been charged to profit or loss.

2022-23 2021-22
Depreciation of Property 
Plant and Equipment

 5,126,466 5,186,234

Amortisation of Intangible 
assets 

-

Total 5,126,466 5,186,234

18 Operating and Administrative Expenses
 NRs. 

2022-23 2021-22
Security Services Expenses 335,996 332,697
Water & Electricity 528,719 458,300
Consulting Services 805,690 662,293
Vehicle Repair and 
Maintenance

640,603 800,279

Repair – premises Civil 15,255 15,000
Other Repair 86,375 147,603
Fuel and Lubricants 1,970,842 2,077,951
Insurance 80,732 83,163
License Fees 1,214,275 915,475
Legal Fee 79,778 100,000
Telephone and Internet 723,911 660,302
Printing and Stationery 397,367 339,585
Books and Periodicals 24,395 65,425
Guest Refreshments 389,940 317,013
Advertisement 364,896 479,691
Annual Day and events 
expenses

88,004 380,431

BOD Meeting Allowances 1,224,500 880,000
Directors Travel and 
Allowances

180,000 180,000

Other Meeting Allowance 1,537,500 1,128,000
Meeting expenses 496,995 518,857
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Organization Development 
Expenses

 -  145,457 

Training Expenses  -  278,284 
Audit Fee 507,596  528,501 
Audit Expenses 237,271  145,273 
Travel 160,395  260,834 
Bank Charges 2,102  2,543 
Finance Cost under 
Financial Lease

340,953  947,187 

NEA Overhead Charges 732,707  644,208 
Misc Expenses 423,023  454,622 

Total  13,589,820 13,948,973

19 Impairments and Write-Offs
2022-23 2021-22

Write off of assets - -

Impairment of assets - -

Less: Reversal of Impairment - -

Total - -

20 Effects of Changes in foreign exchange rates
Accounting Policies 
Foreign currency transactions are converted into 
functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing 
at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currency are translated in to the reporting currency of 
the company using the rates prevailing on the reporting 
date. The resulting gain or loss due to translation is taken 
to statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary assets are 
recorded using the rate of exchange prevalent as on the 
date of initial recognition. 

Explanatory Notes
2022-23 2021-22

Exchange Gain 3,768,538 10,649,141 

Included in CWIP adjusted

Translation Gain / (Loss)

Advances - (8,861,249)

Retention 561,795 (8,942,666)

Total 4,330,333 (7,154,773)
Foreign currency advances given to the contractors and 
consultants and foreign currency retentions taken on behalf 
of the consultants and contractors have been considered 
as monetary assets for translation as at reporting dates. 
Mid rate of Nepal Rastra Bank has been considered for 
period end translations as follows

2022-23 2021-22

USD : NRs 131.47 127.81

21 Earnings Per Share
Accounting Policies 
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on 
the profit attributable to equity holders of the company 
and the basic weighted average number of shares. 
When calculating the diluted earnings per share, the 
weighted average number of shares in issue is adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares 
held in respect of the company.

Explanatory Notes

2022-23 2021-22

Opening 32,850,000 32,850,000

Weight 1 1

Further Issue

Allotment Date

Weight

Further Issue 3,650,000 

Allotment Date 9-Nov-22

Weight - 

Total Shares 36,500,000 32,850,000

Weighted Average Shares 32,850,000 32,850,000

PAT (22,896,034) (40,541,450)

Basic EPS (0.70) (1.23)

Diluted EPS (0.70) (1.23)

22 Finance Costs
Finance costs are capitalised and are included under 
capital work in progress under NAS 23 Borrowing Costs. 
Interest expenses have been included operation and 
maintenance expense of the individual projects. 

23 Leases
Accounting Policies 
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, 
or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the 
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the 
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a 
specific asset or whether the arrangement conveys a right 
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time 
in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset, the Company considers 
whether:

The contract involves the use of an identified asset. This 
may be specified explicitly or implicitly and should be 
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physically distinct or represent substantially all of the 
capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has 
a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not 
identified;

The Company has right to obtain substantially all of the 
economic benefits from the use of the asset throughout 
the period of use; and 

The Company has right to direct the use of the asset. The 
Company has this right when it has the decision making 
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for 
what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the 
decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used 
is predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the 
use of the asset if either; 

The Company has the right to operate the asset; or

The Company designed the asset in a way that 
predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

The Company recognizes a right of use asset and a 
lease liability at the lease commencement date. The 
right to use of assets is the present value of the total 
lease payments up to the contract date from the start 
of contract inclusive of any increments on the payment 
of the rent. The present value has been derived using 
the discount rate equal to the interest rate of Employee 
Provident Fund. The Company has applied cost model 
after initial recognition on commencement date and 
subsequent measurement. The Company has measured 
the right-of-use asset at cost:

a.   	Less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment and 

b.   	Adjusted for any reameasuremnt of lease liabilities if 
any.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present 
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the interest 
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily 
determined, the Company’s interest rate of Employee 
Provident Fund. Generally, the Company uses its interest 
rate of Loan from Employee Provident Fund as the 
discount rate. The lease liability is subsequently measured 
at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The Company presents right of use assets under Note 
1 PPE related to corporate assets to the financial 
statements & The Company presents right of use assets 
under Note 2 Capital Work in Progress capital assets 
related to the Sanjen Lower 42.5 MW to the financial 
statements while the corresponding lease liability is 
presented in Note 14.1.2, ‘Other Liabilities & Payable’.

Short term leases and leases of low value assets
The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use 
assets and lease liabilities for short term leases (that 
have a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low 
value assets. The Company recognizes lease payments 
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight 
line basis over the lease term.

Explanatory Notes
The Company has recognized a right of use of asset and 
lease liability as per NFRS 16 Leases. The right to use of 
assets and lease liability is the present value of the total 
lease payments up to the contract date from the start of 
contract inclusive of any increments on the payment of 
the rent. The right to use of assets is depreciated over 
the lease term on straight line basis. The lease liability is 
amortised over the lease term. 

As required by Para 53 of disclosure part of NFRS 16 
Leases, following amounts shall be disclosed about the 
leases of the company and the maturity analysis of lease 
liability is shown as below.

NRs.

 Right to 
Use of 
Assets 

 Leased 
Liabilities 

Balance 32nd Ashad 2079 19,935,636 21,383,612 

Less: Depreciation 5,359,501 

Add: Interest Cost 1,814,662 

Less: Total cash outflow 
of lease 6,389,044 

Add: Prior Period 
Adjustment (710,502)

Balance 31st Ashad 2080 14,576,135 16,098,728 

NRs.

 Right to Use 
of Assets 

 Leased 
Liabilities 

Balance 1 Shrawan 2078 25,322,657 25,322,657 

Less: Depreciation 5,387,021 

Add: Interest Cost 2,449,499 

Less: Total cash outflow 
of lease

(7,458,030)

Add: Prior Period 
Adjustment

- 

Balance 32nd Ashad 
2079

19,935,636 21,383,612 

The amount of depreciation on right of use assets related 
to Corporate Office and interest cost recognized in profit 
or loss amounts to NPR 4,632,140 and NPR 340,952.96 
for FY 2022/23 respectively & The amount of depreciation 
on right of use assets related to Sanjen Lower and interest 
cost recognized in CWIP amounts to NPR 727,362 and 
NPR for FY 1,473,708.55 2022/23 respectively The 
Right of use assets and Lease liabilities amount to NPR 
14,576,135 and 16,097,369 respectively.
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24 Service Concession Arrangements
i.	 The party that grants the service arrangement (the grantor) is a public sector entity, including a governmental body, or a 

private sector entity to which the responsibility for the service has been devolved. 
ii.	 The operator is responsible for at least some of the management of the infrastructure and related services and does 

not merely act as an agent on behalf of the grantor. 
iii.	 The contract sets the initial prices to be levied by the operator and regulates price revisions over the period of the service 

arrangement. 
iv.	 The operator is obliged to hand over the infrastructure to the grantor in a specified condition at the end of the 

period of the arrangement, for little or no incremental consideration, irrespective of which party initially financed. 

IFRIC 12-Service Concession Arrangements applies to public-private service concession arrangements if:
i.	 The grantor controls or regulates what services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must 

provide them and at what prices; 
ii.	 The grantor controls-through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the infrastructure 

at the end of the term of the arrangement. 

An arrangement within the scope of this interpretation typically involves a private sector entity (an operator) 
constructing the infrastructure used to provide the public service or upgrading it (for example, by increasing its 
capacity) and operating and maintaining that infrastructure for a specified period of time. The operator is paid for its 
services over the period of the arrangement. The arrangement is governed by a contract that sets out performance 
standards, mechanisms for adjusting prices and arrangements for arbitrating disputes. Such an arrangement is often 
described as a 'build-operate-transfer', a ‘rehabilitate-operate-transfer' or a 'public-to-private' service concession 
arrangement.

Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA-a government entity), Chilime Hydropower Company Ltd  
(government controlled entity) and various municipalities holds more than 50% of the shares in SJCL. The interpretations 
provided in IFRIC 12 is based on the relationship of a “Grantor” and an “Operator” under a concession agreement. 
However, SJCL itself is a body where the majority of the capital investment has been done by a public-service entity 
i.e. NEA. Nepal Electricity Authority itself plays a major role in the management of the services provided by SJCL. In 
consideration of all these factors, it is concluded that the requirement of IFRIC 12 are not applicable to SJCL as the 
grantor-operator relationship cannot be established.  

Related Parties Disclosures
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant 
influence over the other party in making financial or operation decisions, or one other party controls both. The 
definition includes subsidiaries, associates, directors, key management personnel and employees’ retirement benefit 
fund. 

25 Identification of Related Parties
Following have been identified as related parties

25.1 Parent Company 
·Chilime Hydropower Company Limited (shareholding is disclosed in Note: 8)
i. 	 By virtue of representation to the board of directors
	 ·  Nepal Electricity Authority
	 · Employee Provident Fund
ii. 	Board Chair and Directors

 Position 2022-23 2021-22

Chairman Ramji Bhandari Ramji Bhandari

Director Shanti Laxmi Shakya Shanti Laxmi Shakya

Director Lokhari Luitel Lokhari Luitel

Director Subhas Kumar Mishra Subhas Kumar Mishra

Director Narayan Prasad Acharya Narayan Prasad Acharya

Director Thakur Jung Thapa Thakur Jung Thapa

iii. Key Managerial Personnel
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 Designation 2022-23 2021-22

CEO Sunil Kumar Dhungel Sunil Kumar Dhungel

Project Chief- Upper Sudhan Singh Mahat Sudhan Singh Mahat

Project Chief- Lower Arpan Bahadur Singh Arpan Bahadur Singh

Sr Contract Engineer Dipak Ram Vaidhya Dipak Ram Vaidhya

Company Secretary/Head 
Finance

Ghanashyam Shrestha Ghanashyam Shrestha

iv. 	Employee Provident Fund - EPF is considered related parties as it represents to the board. It also manages 
SJCL’s employee’s retirement benefit plans.

v.	 Board of directors allowances and facilities.
SN Name Desination Meeting Allowances (Rs) Board Facilities (Rs)

1 Ramji Bhandari Chairman 115,000.00 30,000.00 

2 Shanti Laxmi Shakya Director 98,000.00 30,000.00 

3 Lokhari Luitel Director 225,000.00 30,000.00 

4 Subhas Kumar Mishra Director 163,000.00 30,000.00 

5 Narayan Prasad Acharya Director 280,000.00 30,000.00 

6 Thakur Jung Thapa Director 217,000.00 30,000.00 

Total 1,098,000.00 180,000.00 

vi. Remunaration of Key Managerial personel

SN Name Desination Total Remunaration after 
Tax(Rs) Remarks

1 Sunil Kumar Dhungel CEO 2,380,875.37 

2 Arpan Bahadur Singh Project Chief- SHEP 2,271,833.25 

3 Sudhan Singh Mahat Project Chief- SUHEP 2,107,000.62 

4 Dipak Ram Vaidhya Sr Contract Engineer 1,617,826.82 

5 Ghanashyam Shrestha Company Secretary/Head Finance 1,766,739.20 

Total 10,144,275.26 

25.2 Transactions with Related Parties

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Land Lease from Chilime Hydropower company 1,291,444 1,232,804

Yearly Payment for Utilizing of NEA server for E-bidding 3,284,629 -

Overhead payment to NEA for deputed Staff 1,519,127 1,323,408

Directors’ sitting fees 1,404,500 1,060,000

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel 10,144,275 12,823,083

Payment to EPF for provident fund of staff is disclosed in Note 10.
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25.3 Year End balances with / from related parties
The year end Receivable/(payable) balance with related parties are as follows:-

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Chilime Hydropower Company Limited 3,246,499 315,590 

Nepal Electricity Authority 1,291,257.95 (5,801,857)

Total 4,537,757 (5,486,267)

26 Operating Segments
Accounting Policies 
NFRS 8 Operating Segments requires particular classes 
of entities (essentially those with publicly traded securities) 
to disclose information about their operating segments, 
products and services, the geographical areas in which 
they operate, and their major customers. 

Explanatory Notes
The Company has only one reportable operating 
segment (both in terms of geography and products) and 
therefore, identification, classification and disclosure of 
separate reportable operating segments in accordance 
with NFRS 8 is not disclosed separately.

27 Interest In Other Entities
Accounting Policies 
The company follows NFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in 
Other Entities for disclosing the extent of the investment, 
control and influence.

Explanatory Notes
SJCL does not have any interest in other entities.

28 Events After Reporting Period
Accounting Policies 
The company follows NAS 10 Events After Reporting 
Period for accounting and report for the events that 
occur after the reporting period. The company classifies 
those events as adjusting and non-adjusting in 

Explanations
There are no material events both adjusting or non-
adjusting for the reporting periods. 

29 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Accounting Policies 
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose 
existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events, 
and present obligations where the transfer of economic 
resources is uncertain or cannot be reliably measured. 
Contingent liabilities are not classified as on-SFP but are 
only disclosed unless the outflow of economic resources 
is probable.

A commitment is a contractual obligation to make a 
payment in the future. These amounts are not recorded in 
the statement of financial position since the company is not 
under obligation at reporting date to make such payments. 
The amounts below are the minimum amounts that we are 
committed to pay in future.

Explanatory Notes

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

Contingent Liability - -

Commitments – 
Contractual 

 806,945,926 977,695,975

Litigation - -

Total 806,945,926 977,695,975
Restatement of prior period balances
Previously reported financial statements and financial 
statements for the current financial year as reported in 
the regulatory financial statements has been restated in 
compliances with the requirements of NFRS and due to 
prior period error adjustments.
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